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1.Commencement of Meeting and Welcome
Councils must, in the performance of its role, give effect to the overarching

governance principles in the Local Government Act 20201
These are included below to guide Councillor consideration of issues and Council

decision making.

a. Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance with the
relevant law;

b. priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the municipal
community, including future generations;

c. the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal district,
including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to be promoted:;

d. the municipal community is fo be engaged in strategic planning and strategic
decision making;

e. innovation and continuous improvement is to be pursued;

f. collaboration with other Councils and Governments and statutory bodies is
to be sought;

g. the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured:;

h. regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into account in
strategic planning and decision making;

i. the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be ensured.

2. Apologies
Council's Governance Rules require that the minutes of Council meetings record the
names of Councillors present and the names of any Councillors who apologised in
advance for their non-attendance.2
The annual report will list councillor attendance at Council meetings. Councillor
attendance at Councillor briefings is also recorded.

3.Leave of absence
One reason that a Councillor ceases to hold the office of Councillor (and that office
becomes vacant) is if a Councillor is absent from Council meetings for a period of 4
consecutive months without leave obtained from the Council. (There are some
exceptions to this - see section 35 for more information.)
A Councillor can request a leave of absence. Any reasonable request for leave must be
granted.3 Leave of absence is approved by Council.
Any request will be dealt with in this item which is a standing item on the agenda. The
approvals of leave of absence will be noted in the minutes of Council in which it is
granted. It will also be noted in the minutes of any Council meeting held during the

period of the leave of absence.

1Section 9.
2 Chapter 2, rule 62.

3 See Local Government Act 2020 s 35 (4) and s 35 (1) (e).



4 Conflicts of interest

Conflicts of Interest must be disclosed at the commencement of a Council meeting or
Councillor briefing, or as soon as a Councillor recognises that they have a conflict of
interest.

The relevant provisions in the Local Government Act 2020 include those in Part 6,
Division 2 (from section 126). Failing to disclose a conflict of interest and excluding
themselves from the decision-making process is an offence.

Disclosures at Council meetings
Under the Governance Rules:!

A Councillor who has a conflict of interest in a matter being considered at a
Council meeting at which he or she:

1 is present must disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the
nature of the conflict of interest to those present at the Council
meeting immediately before the matter is considered; or

2 intends to be present must disclose that conflict of interest by
providing to the Chief Executive Officer before the Council meeting
commences a written notice:

2.1 advising of the conflict of interest;
2.2 explaining the nature of the conflict of infterest; and

2.3 detailing, if the nature of the conflict of interest
involves a Councillor's relationship with or a gift from
another person, the:

(a) name of the other person;

(b) nature of the relationship with that other person or
the date of receipt, value and type of gift received from
the other person; and

(c) nature of that other person's interest in the
matter, and then immediately before the matter is considered

at the meeting announcing to those present that he or she has a
conflict of interest and that a written notice has been given to the
Chief Executive Officer under this sub- Rule.

The Councillor must, in either event, leave the Council meeting immediately after
giving the explanation or making the announcement (as the case may be) and
not returning to the meeting until after the matter has been disposed of.

Disclosures at councillor briefings (and other meetings)

Also under the Governance Rules,2 a Councillor who has a conflict of interest in a
matter being considered by a meeting held under the auspices of Council at which
he or she is present must:



1. disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the nature of the conflict of
interest to those present at the meeting immediately before the matter is
considered;

2. absent himself or herself from any discussion of the matter; and

3. as soon as practicable after the meeting concludes provide to the Chief
Executive Officer a written notice recording that the disclosure was made and
accurately summarising the explanation given to those present at the meeting.

Councillor form to disclose conflicts of interest Name:
Date:

Meeting type:
Briefing
Meeting
Other

Nature of the conflict of interest (describe):

If the nature of the conflict of interest involves a Councillor's relationship with or a gift
from another person:

name of the other person (gift giver):
nature of the relationship with that other person or the date of receipt, value and

type of gift received from the other person:
nature of that other person's interest in the matter:

! Chapter 5, Rule 3
2 Chapter 5, Rule .



5. Confirmation of Minutes from Previous Council Meetings

5.1 Confirmation of Minutes from Previous Council Meeting dated 30 May
2023

CENTRAL
GOLDFIELDS

SHIRE COUNCIL

DRAFT COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Tuesday, 30 May 2023

6:00pm

Meeting held in person.

Community Room 1, Community Hub, Maryborough

and livestreamed on the internet.

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors:

Grace La Vella (Mayor)
Liesbeth Long

Geoff Lovett

Chris Meddows-Taylor
Gerard Murphy
Wayne Sproull

Anna de Villiers

To be confirmed at the Council Meeting scheduled for 27 June 2023



1. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING AND WELCOME

The Mayor commenced the meeting at 6pm, welcoming all present, with an
acknowledgement of country and the Council Prayer.

PRESENT:

Councillors

Grace La Vella (Mayor
Anna De Villiers
Liesbeth Long

Geoff Lovett

Gerard Murphy

Chris Meddows-Taylor
Wayne Sproull

Officers

Chief Executive Officer Lucy Roffey
General Manager Assets Infrastructure and Planning Matthew Irving
General Manager Community Wellbeing Emma Little

General Manager Corporate Performance Mick Smith



2. APOLOGIES

Nil

3. LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Nil

4. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Nil

5. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL
MEETINGS

The following were presented for confirmation:

e Minutes of the Council Meeting 2 May 2023
e Minutes of the Special Council Meeting 16 May 2023

The Minutes were confirmed.

6. REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

Nil.

7. PETITIONS

Nil.

8. OFFICER REPORTS

8.1  April Finance Report



8.2

The purpose of this report is to advise Council on the financial
performance for the year to date and how it is tracking against the

adopted budget, noting any material differences.

MOTION
That Council:

1. receives and notes the attached Finance Report for the period to
30 April 2023; and

2. resolves to receive Financial Reports quarterly in the 2023/24
Financial Year.

Moved: Cr Lovett
Seconded: Cr Murphy

Carried

Crs Lovett, Murphy and Meddows-Taylor spoke on the motion.

61722-22 Maryborough Octagonal Pool Replacement

The purpose of this report is to present to Council, a recommendation to
award contract 61722-22 Maryborough Octagonal Pool Replacement.

MOTION

That Council award contract 61722-22 Maryborough Octagonal Pool
Replacement to SJ Weir Ballarat Pty Ltd for the total value of
$1,376,410.64 including GST and authorise the Chief Executive
Officer to execute the contract under delegation.

Moved: Cr Sproull
Seconded: Cr de Villiers

Carried

Crs Sproull and Murphy spoke on the motion.




8.3 COUNCIL PLAN ACTION PROGRESS REPORT

The purpose of this report is to provide the Council with an update on
the status of the projects identified in the 2022-23 Action Plan.

MOTION

That Council noted the Council Plan Action Progress Report for Quarter 3.
Moved: Cr de Villiers

Seconded: Cr Meddows-Taylor

Carried

Crs de Villiers and Meddows-Taylor spoke on the motion.

9. NOTICES OF MOTION
Nil
10. URGENT BUSINESS

The following item of Urgent Business was brought by Cr Chris
Meddows-Taylor.
Urgent Business

If the agenda for a Council meeting makes provision for urgent business,
business cannot be admitted as urgent business other than by resolution
of Council and only then if it:

20.1 relates to or arises out of a matter which has arisen since
distribution of the agenda; and

20.2 cannot safely or conveniently be deferred until the next Council
meefting.



Rational for urgent business:

Since the agenda has been published, Council has been informed by
Regional Development Victoria that there is no further funding for Go
Goldfields in the Victorian State Budget for 2023/24. This issue
cannot be deferred to the next Council Meeting as we need fo engage
with relevant Ministers prior to the end of the financial year to gain a
commitment to funding for the 2023/24 financial year.

Motion Urgent Business: That Council accepts the issue of Go
Goldfields Funding as Urgent Business as it has arisen since the
distribution of the Agenda and cannot be deferred to the next Council
Meeting.

The following item was proposed by Cr Meddows-Taylor as Urgent Business:

6o Goldfields Funding Cut from State Budget.

MOTION
That Council:

1. admit consideration of the implications of Go Goldfields Funding cut
from State Government Budget be admitted as urgent business;

2. confirm that Go Goldfields is a high priority for Central Goldfields
Shire Council to address entrenched social disadvantage through a
partnered approach fossed on early years;

3. communicate concern and disappointment that the State Government
have not provided funding in the 2023/24 Budget for the continuation
of Go Goldfields backbone;

4. write to the Victorian State Treasurer, Minister for Regional
Development and the Member for Ripon as a matter of urgency
requesting that funding be allocated to the Go Goldfields for the
2023/24 financial year with a commitment to exploring options for
longer term funding to ensure the ongoing viability of the backbone; and

5. engage the Go Goldfields Leadership Table, as partners in Every Child,
Every Chance shared vision, to ensure a consistent and region wide
advocacy message.




Moved: Cr Meddows-Taylor
Seconded: Cr Lovett

Carried

Crs Meddows-Taylor, Lovett, Long, Sproull and La Vella spoke on the motion.
BACKGROUND

Go Goldfields is a community-led partnership in the Central Goldfields Shire
that had its origins in Council's "Gold Prospects” research study in 2008 which
identified the social challenges and inequalities faced by the community. Go
Goldfields received a commitment of funding by the Victorian Government in
2010 and was fully functioning by 2011,

Since then, Go Goldfields has gained recognition and support from government,
community organisations, service providers, and residents. Its success and
longevity can be attributed to the strong partnerships that have been
established and the commitment of stakeholders to work fogether fowards
positive social change.

In 2020 the Go Goldfields Collaborative Table took a decision to focus on early
childhood development and its critical role in shaping a child's future social and
economic opportunities, In November 2020 Every Child, Every Chance initiative
(ECEC) was launched. Through ECEC, the Go Goldfields backbone works closely
with local early childhood services, health providers, educators, parents, and
the broader community to ensure that Central Goldfields children have every
opportunity to grow up safe , healthy and confident..

This has involved working with partners across five evidence-based, data driven
priority areas:

e Healthy and Supported Pregnancies

e Confident and Connected Parents

e Safe and Thriving Children

e Valued Early Years Education and Care
e A Great Start to School for all Kids.



Go Goldfields, and the ECEC initiative, is informed by local families and research
noting that any interventions to addressing disadvantage in the early years must
embrace the perspective of families and that the social and service environment
must be easy to navigate and support all families.

Go Goldfields backbone plays an integral role in ensuring state led programs and
services in the early years are meeting the needs and demands of families on
the ground. ECEC provides the framework, support, and connections to ensure
investments in programs and resources are effectively dispersed, promoted, and
coordinated - a challenging feat in a small rural shire with multiple changing fly
in, fly out services and low physical presence and high need.

The backbone staffing for Go Goldfields refers to the team of professionals
who provide the essential support and coordination needed to drive the
strategic collaboration, advocacy and demonstration activities. The backbone
staff play a crucial role in fostering collective impact and maintaining the
momentum of Go Goldfields in the Central Goldfields Shire.

The backbone staffing has been funded to date by the State Government
through Regional Development Victoria. The current grant agreement expires in
2023 and the recent State Budget did not include a new allocation to support
the backbone.

Since 2020 the Go Goldfields backbone has worked with our partners to develop
and implement a plan to reduce developmental vulnerability of children in Central
Goldfields. This has involved:

Place based Governance - The establishment of the Go Goldfields Leadership
Table, that oversees, enables, and authorises activities of the backbone. The
Leadership Table is capably led by an independent local chair. The membership
includes executives from local and state government (DFFH, DH DE) service
providers (MDHS, BDAC, Anglicare and CNV) and community leaders.

Engagement - Engagement with 574 community members and 45 stakeholders
was a key foundation for the development of Every Child, Every Chance. The
Nest and Go Goldfields role in governance groups spanning the priority areas
ensure continuous and active engagement with families, services, community
organisations and government.



Shared Strategic Vision - The Go Goldfields backbone led the development of
Every Child, Every Chance shared vision. Logic mapping workshops captured
input from community, researchers, local institutions, and practitioners working
with children and families in Central Goldfields for each of the five priority
areas. The facilitated workshops enabled a codesigned problem statement,
vision, activity and resource mapping, and desired outcomes for each of the
priority areas.

Service coordination and integration - Governance groups aligned to the 5
priority areas bring fogether a range of services and practitioners to
collaborate and work toward the shared vision and outcomes for each area.
Importantly, Go Goldfields backbone has provided a much-needed anchor in
Central Goldfields for the range of activities, programs and services that
support children and families -building alignment and increasing the value of and
family access to these investments.

Demonstration Projects - Go Goldfields has led demonstration projects
including:

The Nest - Go Goldfields took the lead on a partnership with central
Goldfields Shire Council, Best Start, and Maryborough District Health
Service to create an inclusive welcoming space for parents and carers
from pregnancy to primary school. The Nest is staffed by facilitators
and open from 10am to 4pm Monday to Friday. The Nest provides a safe
space for families, peer support groups, warm referrals to local services
and a welcoming place for parents and carers to feed, rest and connect.
It is connected to Maternal Child Health and other vital local services for
families.

Empowering Parents Empowering Communities - Go Goldfields is working
with Murdoch Childrens Research Institute fo embed the Empowering
Parents, Empowered Communities in the Central Goldfields. The
evidence-based program focuses on partnering with parents through the
parenting journey rather than offering practitioner led advice. To
establish the program an initial cohort of practitioner’s train to become
facilitators. They then facilitate the first Being a Parent courses (8-
week program). Parents completing the course can opt to undertake
training to become facilitators of the course. This model fosters



community capacity building and increases authentic parenting
conversations throughout the community as participation grows.

Partnership projects- Go Goldfields backbone is working in partnership with
organisations leading on critical areas within Every Child, Every Chance
initiative.

Education Engagement - Go Goldfields is working with school principals,
early years education providers, parents and services to build a culture of
attendance. This means directly working families with challenges getting
children to school regularly and identifying options and supports right for
them.

Kinder to School Transition Plan - Go Goldfields partnered with kinders,
schools, early years services and Department of Education to develop of a
whole of shire collaborative approach to early years transition. The
Central Goldfields Transition Plan provides an annualised approach for
local professionals across Central Goldfields to ensure consistent and
informed transitions.

Kinder to School: A guide for families - Go Goldfields worked with the
School Principals to develop a helpful guide for families with resources,
information, and good questions to ask schools when making the
transition.
The guide was provided to every family in Central Goldfields with a child
currently in 4-year-old kinder.

Goldfields Babes - Goldfields Babes is a new program operating out of
the Nest aimed at facilitating social connections for expectant parents
in Central Goldfields. The program was developed in partnership with
Maternal Child Health, Bendigo Perinatal Emotional Health Clinic and
Maryborough District Health Service.

Central Goldfields Early Years Infrastructure Master planning - Go
Goldfields partnered with Council's Community Services branch to drive
the development of the Masterplan. The Masterplan benefitted from
the community engagement data collected early in Every Child, Every
Chance initiative and learnings, research and new approaches to



supporting families in the early years demonstrated through the
initiative.

Advocacy - The Go Goldfields backbone has provided leadership, data
and strategic input to ensure service provision that meets the needs of
local children and families for a number of governments funded
initiatives including the Infant Child and Families Well-being Hub
currently under development for the Loddon region.

A system to monitor progress - The logic mapping process and
governance of priority area groups lays the foundations for a system to
monitor progress for Every Child, Every Chance related activities,
projects, and investments. The monitoring framework is currently being
finalised.

11. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

Nil

12. MEETING CLOSURE

The meeting closed at 6:36PM



6. Minutes of Delegated and Advisory Committees

7. Petitions



8.1 CENTRAL GOLDFIELDS SHIRE COUNCIL BUDGET 2023/24

Author: Manager Finance

Responsible Officer: General Manager Corporate Performance

The Officer presenting this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of
staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

SUMMARY/PURPOSE
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the 2023/24 Budget for adoption.

The Budget was made available for community feedback May /June. This report outlines
some changes made to the budget as a result of community feedback and to adjust for
updated information on the Financial Assistance Grant. The impact on the net result,
cash expenditure and capital works program are minimal as any changes made have been
offset by either increased revenue or reduction in other expenditure.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Thanks all submitters for providing feedback on the draft 2023/24 budget.

2. Notes that the 2023/24 Budget has been prepared in accordance with Section
94 of the Local Government Act 2020;

3. Having considered all the submissons received on the draft 2023/24 Budget,
pursuant to Section 94 of the Local Government Act 2020 adopts the 2023/24
Budget in Attachment 1 and

4. Continues the 50% discount to sporting clubs as agreed at the 24 May 2022
ordinary Council meeting until 31 December 2023, in recogntion of the work still

outstanding to determine and agree an equitable fee structure for clubs across
the Shire.

LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT
Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Our Growing Economy
The Community's vision 4. Effective and sustainable financial management.

Initiative: Review budget and financial reporting processes to improve
monitoring of financial performance

BACKGROUND INFORMATION



In accordance with section 94, of the Local Government Act 2020, Council must ensure
that the Budget gives effect to the Council Plan and contains the following -

(a) financial statements in the form and containing the information required by
the regulations;

(b) a general description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the
Budget:

(c) major initiatives identified by the Council as priorities in the Council Plan, to
be undertaken during the financial year:;

(d) for services to be funded in the Budget, the prescribed indicators and
measures of service performance that are required to be reported fo be
reported against by this Act;

(e) the total amount that the Council intends to raise by rates and charges;

(f) a statement as to whether the rates will be raised by the application of a
uniform rate or differential rate;

(9) adescription of any fixed component of the rates, if applicable;

(h) if the Council proposes to declare a uniform rate, the matters specified in
section 160 of the Local Government Act 1989;

(i) if the Council proposes to declare a differential rate for any land, the
matters specified in section 161(2) of the Local Government Act 1989;

(j) any other information prescribed by the regulations.

Budget process to date has consisted of the following;
(a) Five (5) half day workshops on components of Budget with Councillors
(b) One (1) briefing on the consolidated Budget

REPORT

Central Goldfields Shire Council has prepared this Budget for the 2023/24 financial
year.

The Budget is financially responsible and focuses on the implementation of the Council
Plan 2021-25.

The 2023/24 Budget has been developed with the basis of implementing over 30 policies
and strategies developed by Council in consultation with the community.
These can be viewed on the Central Goldfields Shire Council website.

The Budget outlines the resources required to deliver the diverse and extensive range
of services we provide to the Central Goldfields community.

It outlines projects fto undertake strategic planning for our services, assets, economy,
and land use and includes a comprehensive list of capital works to be undertaken during
the 2023/24 year.



The Budget includes a rate increase of 3.5% in line with the State Government's Fair Go
Rates System (FGRS) rate cap.

Council has not applied to the State Government for a rate cap variation and will continue
to manage Council services as efficiently as possible within the rate cap.

It must be noted that the Budget includes an assumption of savings to be made through
the year to remain sustainable in the rate capped environment with CPI rates well above
the rate cap amount.

Council's Waste charges have been increased by 8.7% in 2023/24 for standard waste
charges and varying increases for non- standard waste charges.

This is to ensure that the full cost of Council's whole waste management function
continues to be fully funded by waste charges.

The Budget includes a capital works program of $18.5m, $3.2m of which is considered
carry over projects. Most of these carry over projects have begun but will be finished
in the 2023/24 financial year.

In line with accounting standards, these must be recognised to the extent to which they
are complete. Of the $18.5m capital works program, Council has been successful in
attracting grants to fund $12.3m of these.

The Budget 2023/24 includes the following

e Comprehensive Income Statement
e Balance Sheet

e Statement of Changes in Equity

e Statement of Cash Flows

e Statement of Capital Works

e Statement of Human Resources

e Schedule of fees and charges

Please note, in the outer years of the Budget, assumptions have been made around spend,
grants expected to be received, capital works and rate capping.

These are reviewed on an ongoing basis, but a conservative approach has been taken with
each of these.

The changes between the draft Budget and the finalised Budget are as follows

e $40k allocated to Talbot Museum for design repair works. This has been of fset
by a $40k reduction in the road works program (not individual roads)

e $455k added into the 2024/25 budget (outer year's Budget) for LRCI 4 - Phase
B funding announced.



e $378k additional costs relating to increased workcover premium following
notification of the estimated premium from Council's insurer.

e $205k added for additional positions including a Community Development Officer
and Live4Life Officer (Grant Funded)

e $600k additional revenue following the release of the Federal Assistance Grant
allocation (please note, the timing of payment of these has not yet been advised).

e $17k anticipated credit to sports clubs whilst equity process is finalised. Note
this is included in the proposed Council motion to continue the current fee
reduction.

e Minor changes to some fees and charges following the release of the unit fee
rates and the penalty unit rates.

These changes have meant the operating surplus as well as the adjusted underlying
deficit remain in line with draft Budget.

CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

All internal service owners have been consulted during the production of the Budget.
Consultation with the Councillors was undertaken during several workshops.

Two online presentations were conducted and are available to view on Council's facebook
page or via the following link https://engage.cgoldshire.vic.gov.au/draftbudget2023

Several submissions were received through the consultation process and were addressed
during the online presentations.

Additional presentations were also made to our Youth Council.
FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Comprehensive Income Statement

The Budget has a net surplus of $9.6m with a total of $12.3m of Capital grants budgeted
for the 2023/24 year.

This produces an adjusted underlying deficit result of ($2.7m) which doesn't include
Roads 2 Recovery funding. Considering Roads 2 Recovery funding will see a deficit result
of ($1.2m).

Fees and Charges have been indexed at 3.5% unless otherwise adjusted using
benchmarking, a review of cost recovery, etc.

A full list of fees and charges is included in section six of the Budget document.

The Budget has been prepared on the basis that Council will receive three quarters
($3.4m) of its 2023/24 Financial Assistance Grant (FAG) in the 2022/23 year, and on


https://engage.cgoldshire.vic.gov.au/draftbudget2023

the assumption that Council will receive a similar advance of the 2024/25 Financial
Assistance Grants in the 2023/24 year.

The timing and payment of this grant remains a large risk to the Council with any decision
to return to payment when due having a large impact on cash and financial performance.

Balance Sheet

Cash on hand is forecast to be $16.0m as of 30 June 2023 and to be $15.5m as of 30
June 2024.

Council's current loan facilities ($2.0m) is budgeted to continue to be held with
repayments paused.

There is no further intended borrowings, however this loan is anticipated to be held with
the impact of the Federal Assistance Grant timing unknown at the time of publishing the
Draft Budget.

Council borrowings remain low with interest bearing loans remaining at 12% of rate
revenue for the 2023/24 year.

Statement of Changes in Equity

Council is currently undertaking a full asset revaluation which will result in a transfer to
the asset revaluation reserve for the 2022/23 financial year.

This has been conducted by external valuers with the impact of this revaluation being
$14.4m.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Budget provides for a reduction in cash held during 2023/24 of $0.5m predominantly
funding the capital works program with funds already received, whilst the underlying
cash budget remains stable but with continuous monitoring required.

Producing a balanced cash budget is one of the fundamental elements of meeting Council
Plan Objective 4 - Effective and sustainable financial management.

Statement of Capital Works
The Budget has a $18.5m capital works program.

This is predominantly funded by the significant additional capital grants outlined in the
Comprehensive Income Statement analysis above.



The 2023/24 Capital Budget is funded by a combination of $12.3m of capital grants
(some received in current and prior years) and $6.2m of council funds.

Whilst many works from the Budget 2022/23 are expected to be completed in the
current year, there is anticipated to be carry forward works of $3.2m.

Details of the Capital Works program are included in the Statement of Capital Works
report of the Budget document.

The financial statements were prepared internally by Council officers.
Statement of Human Resources

The Statement of Human Resources has been prepared based on both our Gender Equity
Plan and Resourcing Plan.

The total number of staff, particularly in the Capital Works space has been developed
to flex based on the Capital Works program and required staffing.

RISK MANAGEMENT

This report addresses Council's strategic risk Financial sustainability - Failure to maintain
our long term financial sustainability .

Any risks in relation to this report have been discussed in the report above.
CONCLUSION

Central Goldfields Shire Council has prepared this Budget for 2023/24 financial year.
The Budget is financially responsible and continues to implement priorities identified in
the Council Plan 2021-2025.

The Budget includes a rate increase of 3.5% in line with the State Government's Fair Go
Rates System (FGRS) rate cap.

The Budget has a $18.5m capital works program supported by $12.3m of capital grant
funding.

ATTACHMENTS

8.1.1 Central Goldfields Shire Council Budget 2023/24
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Acknowledgement of Traditional Owners

Central Goldfields Shire Council acknowledges the ancestors and descendants
of the Dja Dja Wurrung. We acknowledge that their forebears are the Traditional
Owners of the area we are on and have been for many thousands of years.
The Djaara have performed age-old ceremonies of celebration, initiation and
renewal. We acknowledge their living culture and their unique role in the life
of this region.
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BUDGET
2023-24

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Mayor and CEO'’s Introduction

Welcome to 2023/24 budget.
What a year we have ahead of us.

Council's 2023/24 Budget has been developed in a tightening fiscal environment of rapidly
rising interest rates and cost of living and housing affordability pressures across Australia.
These economic challenges also impact on Council’s ability to balance its budget, with
rising costs running well ahead of the rate cap set by the State Government for the 2023/24
year. In 2022/23 the rate cap was set at 1.75% in a year where CPI hit a high of 8.4%. The
rate cap for 2023/24 is set at 3.5%, well below the current rate of inflation.

With the rate cap set well below the actual rate of inflation for the last two years, we need
to reduce our expenditure to ensure we remain financially sustainable with an adjusted
underlying deficit of -8.7% budgeted. A program of service reviews will be undertaken in
2023/24 to review levels of service provided and look for opportunities to deliver savings
in operating costs. The program of savings will need to continue in subsequent years given
the limited ability of small rural Councils like Central Goldfields Shire to raise revenue
from other sources.

Increases in revenue can be generated from growth with key opportunities for this identified
in the Council Plan 2021-25. Work will continue in 2023/24 on several strategic planning
projects that identify opportunities for residential and industrial land development and
build the business case for sewerage for Talbot that will unlock opportunities for growth.

As in previous years, Council has been successful in attracting more than $12 million in
grants towards a number of significant local projects. Some of these projects are already
underway and are due for completion in the 2023/24 year. These projects will provide
a stimulus to the local economy and result in some outstanding community facilities
and assets. With Council funding, the Capital Works Program will exceed $18 million and
planning to deliver many of these projects is well under way.

It is important to note the risk associated with assumptions relating to the Federal Assistance
Grants within the current budget. Currently (until June 2022), the Federal Assistance Grants
have been paid 75% in advance. History has shown that this may alter in the future and
at the time of adopting the Budget 2023/24, this is not yet know if it is to continue. The
continuation or reversal of these grants will have an impact on both the Income Statement
and the working capital (Balance Sheet) for Council. Decisions have been made around
current borrowings in anticipation of this announcement.

Highlights from the Capital Works program include:
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= Deliver Road Restoration Program to repair significant damage incurred following the October 2022 floods utilising Natural
Disaster Financial Assistance funding to approximate value of $9.8M. (over 3 years)
= Building Upgrades and renewal works to the Maryborough Town Hall

= Redevelopment of the Deledio Reserve Netball Courts

= Development of an Indigenous Interpretive Garden at the Central Goldfields Art Gallery
= First stage of renewal works at Maryborough Outdoor Pool Complex (Octagon Pool, Pavilion and Plant Room Heritage Works)

= Completion of Goldfields Reservoir Dam stabilisation works
= Delivery of Road reseals and asphalt program

= [nvestment in IT Strategies including Cyber Security, website integration and Financial System upgrades

Other Rey projects to be undertaken in 2023/24 include
= Review of heritage controls in Maryborough

= Continue with the next stage in the activation of the Maryborough Railway Station

= Construction of new toilets in Rene Fox Gardens Dunolly
= Growing Victoria works at Phillips Gardens
= Completion of the Talbot Futures planning project

= [ocal Laws review in accordance with statutory requirements before current law expires in 2025

= Feasibility and design work for a new Youth Hub

= Scoping and design for key heritage preservation projects on facilities such as Princess Park Grandstand, Talbot Town Hall and
Dunolly Town Hall to improve opportunities in gaining external funding for major required renewal works

Grant funded projects that will continue or begin in 2023/24 include:

= Engage Youth Program

= freeza Program

= [2P Program

= Municipal Emergency Resourcing Program
= Kerbside Reform Support

= Flood recovery coordination

Similar to other regional areas, Central Goldfields Shire Council
has seen a significant increase in our valuations across the Shire,
increasing by just over $500M. While valuations have increased,
the rate cap of 3.5% means the rate in the dollar is reduced for
most differentials.

Property valuations are required by legislation to be conducted
annually and due to differences in valuations between property
types and geographic areas variances in the rate rise for individual
ratepayers occur with some receiving less than a 3.5% rise and
some receiving more than a 3.5% rate rise.

The Budget also includes an increase of 8.7% for waste charges
to meet the increasing costs of managing waste. The current
waste contract expires during 2023/24 which brings risk with cost
assumptions factored into the budget.

The Councillors and staff have worked tirelessly to put together a
balanced budget with weekly workshops to ensure key priorities are
addressed in the budget and that the budget is fiscally responsible.

Grace La Vella Lucy Roffey
Mayor CEO
Central Goldfields Shire Council Central Goldfields Shire Council
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1. Link to the Integrated Strategic Planning
and Reporting Framework

This section describes how the Budget links to the achievement of the Community Vision and Council Plan within an overall integrated
strategic planning and reporting framework. This framework guides the Council in identifying community needs and aspirations over the
long term (Community Vision and Financial Plan), medium term (Council Plan, Workforce Plan, and Revenue and Rating Plan) and short
term (Budget) and then holding itself accountable (Annual Report).

1.1 Legislative planning and accountability framework

The Budget is a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council requires to achieve the strategic
objectives described in the Council Plan. The diagram below depicts the integrated strategic planning and reporting framework that
applies to local government in Victoria. At each stage of the integrated strategic planning and reporting framework there are opportunities
for community and stakeholder input. This is important to ensure transparency and accountability to both residents and ratepayers.

The timing of each component of the integrated strategic planning and reporting framework is critical to the successful achievement of
the planned outcomes.

Central Goldfields Community Vision j

Asset Plan J [

Municipal Public
Health and
Wellbeing Plan

10 Year Plans

Financial Plan J

Council

Plan Municipal Planning Strategy

4 Year Plans

\

Budget Revenue and
- Workforce Plan
1+ 3years Rating Plan
N\
Annual Plans Annual Annual Major Business/Service
Action Plan Budget Initiatives Planning
J
Business/Service Policy Performance
. Annual .
Planning Report & Strategy Monitoring and
and Review P Review Reporting

1.1.2 Key planning considerations

Service level planning

Although councils have a legal obligation to provide some services— such as animal management, local roads, food safety and
statutory planning—most council services are not legally mandated, including some services closely associated with councils, such
as libraries, building permits and sporting facilities. Further, over time, the needs and expectations of communities can change.
Therefore councils need to have robust processes for service planning and review to ensure all services continue to provide value
for money and are in line with community expectations. In doing so, councils should engage with communities to determine how
to prioritise resources and balance service provision against other responsibilities such as asset maintenance and capital works.
Community consultation needs to be in line with a councils adopted Community Engagement Policy and Public Transparency Policy.

Central Goldfields Shire Council

1.2  Our purpose

Our Vision
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To be an engaged, flourishing, lively and inclusive community.

Our mission

To seek, capture and develop opportunities to make our Shire a place of choice to live, work, visit and enjoy.

Our values

= Focus on imperatives and goals

= Value aspiration and achievement

= Encourage innovation and lifelong learning

= Embrace value-added teamwork and partnerships
= Utilise our diversity to find better solutions

1.3 Strategic objectives
Council adopted the 2021 - 2025 Council Plan in October 2021.

As part of the Council plan process, four strategic objectives were set out as detailed below.

Strategic Objective Description

1 Our Community’s Wellbeing

Strengthen and build inclusion and community intergenerational connections
Nurture and celebrate creativity

Support positive life journey development for all residents

Encourage, support and facilitate healthy and safe communities

Maximise volunteer efforts

Value, celebrate and actively engage First Nations culture and people

2 Our Growing Economy

Retain, grow and attract our population

Capitalise on tourism opportunities

Support existing and new and emerging business and industry
Develop a skilled and diverse workforce

Strengthen digital infrastructure and capability

3 Our Spaces and Places

Provide engaging public spaces

Provide infrastructure to meet community need

Value and care for our heritage and culture assets

Manage and reduce and reuse waste

Care for the natural environment and take action on climate change

4 Leading Change

Actively engage, inform and build the leadership capacity of community members and organisations
Provide financial sustainability and good governance

Provide a safe, inclusive and supportive workplace

Advocate and partner on matters of community importance

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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2. Services and service performance indicators 2.1 Our Community's Wellbeing

— Services

This section provides a description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the Budget for the 2023/24 year and how these will 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
contribute to achieving the strategic objectives outlined in the Council Plan. It also describes several initiatives and service performance Service area Description of services provided Actual Forecast Budget
outcome indicators for key areas of Council’'s operations. Council is required by legislation to identify major initiatives, initiatives and $'000 $'000 $'000

service performance outcome indicators in the Budget and report against them in their Annual Report to support transparency and

- - i ~ ) 4 ) ) Aged and Disability Services  Provides support for older people and people Inc 1,919 1,908 1,969
accountability. The relationship between these accountability requirements in the Council Plan, the Budget and the Annual Report is i s lafliees o emelille Hhem o e
Ex 1,840 1,776 1,892
shown below. living independently. This includes home 2 :
care services, personal care services, respite Surplus / (deficit) 80 132 77

services, delivered meals, home safety, social

support programs and community transport.
Council Plan Budget Annual Report Integrated Family Services The Goldfields Family Centre provides long Inc 2,296 2,671 2,882
day care, family day care, 3 and 4 year old

. Exp 2,577 2,906 2,771
( Strategic objective ] ( Services ) ( Indicators (outcome) )— kindergarten and supported playgroups as well X
> ( Report of operations j as a variety of visiting professional services. Surplus / (deficit) (281) (235) 11
[ Strategic indicators j ( Initiatives ) ( Major initiatives )
= Service indicators
( Strategic objective ] N ( Services ) ( Indicators (outcome) ) = Major initiatives Maternal and Child Provides universal access to MCH services and Inc 448 291 297
N . o .
[ Strategic indicators j ( Initiatives ) ( Major initiatives ) = Governance & ‘ Health Services enhanced suppgr.tforfamllles including 10 key Exp 493 599 549
management checklist age and stage visits from birth to 3.5 years.
o . . ? Surplus / (deficit) (45) (238) (252)
( Strategic objective ] ( Services ) ( Indicators (outcome) )
N ( Performance statement j
[ Strategic indicators j ( Initiatives ) ( Major initiatives ) = Service indi
F?W'C? |[ni |(cj§totrs Go Goldfields Go Goldfields is a placed based partnership Inc 487 945 402
= Financial indicators P ‘ ~
( Strategic objective ] ( Services ) ( Indicators (outcome) ) . N, initiative that is designed to address complex 446 945 402
— > — — = Sustainable capacity indicators social issues, to improve outcomes for 2
[ Strategic indicators j ( Initiatives ) ( Major initiatives )— children youth and families. The Partnership Surplus / (deficit) 41 0 0

is coordinated by a dedicated ‘backbone’ team
based with Central Goldfields Shire Council.

Source: Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions. Library Services Provides access to information and resources Inc 165 172 174
in a safe enqunment for all age§ to encourage Exp 506 504 576
life-long learning and improved literacy '
across our communities. Library buildings are  Surplus / (deficit) (341) (353) (402)
located in Maryborough, Dunolly and Talbot.

Arts and Culture Supports participation and engagement Inc 71 12 1
in arts'a.nq culture, |ndqd|ng a program Exp 243 260 279
of exhibitions and associated events at .
The Central Goldfields Art Gallery. Surplus / (deficit) (171) (248) (277)
Community Development Partners with individuals, community Inc = = =
groups and communl'ty orgamsatpns to Exp 51 6 86
identify and support implementation of '
community priorities and activities. Surplus / (deficit) (51) (6) (86)

6 Central Goldfields Shire Council Central Goldfields Shire Council 7
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Major Initiatives

1) Completion of the Early Years Infrastructure Masterplan outlining an environment in which every child born in the Shire has everything
they need to fulfil their potential and live a prosperous life

2) Deliver an Indigenous Interpretive Garden adjacent to the newly revitalised Central Goldfields Art Gallery

3) Support Community Recovery following the October 2022 flooding event through the leadership of a Community Recovery Officer

2.1  Our Community’s Wellbeing (continued..

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Description of services provided Actual Forecast Budget
$'000 $'000 $'000

Ensures compliance with obligations under the  Inc 149 1,620 247
LG Act, EM Act and Emergency Management

Service area

Emergency Management
including Fire Prevention

Other Initiatives

flAfE : Exp 199 1676 299 4) Development of a strategic parking plan and introduction of new infringements module to increase parking turnover in Maryborough
Manual Victoria (EMMV). Delivery of the : Central Business District, freeing up more space for patrons of local businesses and hospital precinct

Municipal Emergency Resources Program Surplus / (deficit) (50) (56) (52) ) Continuation of review into the Local Laws in accordance with statutory requirements before current laws expire in 2025

(MERP). 6) Progress feasibility and design work for a new Youth Hub in alignment with Youth Council’s strategy and vision to improve opportunities
Undertakes the Municipal Fire Prevention in gaining external funding for delivery of this key piece of infrastructure.

statutory responsibilities to take all Development of a Play Space Strategy

practical steps to prevent the occurrence ) Support the Youth Council to deliver identified priorities and demonstrate leadership around youth volunteering
of fires on any land vested in or under

control or management of Council.

ul

& S

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

8

Recreation Services Provides recreation facilities in.cluding Inc 41 79 116 Service et 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
the Maryborough Sport and Leisure Exp 901 1017 1018 Actual Forecast Budget
Centre and outdoor swimming pools. ' ' S T
Surplus / (deficit) (860) (938) (901) Libraries Participation 7.86% 7.86% 7.86%
Aquatic Facilities Utilisation 4.65 4.65 4.65
X — 5 . - Animal Management Health and Safety 0% 0% 0%
Recreation Facilities Provides strategic direction to support active Inc 116 165 37 N . .
Management sporting facilities and open space, active B o 7 o Food Safety Health and Safety 100% 100% 100%
volunteers/sector and an active community. Maternal and Child Health  Participation 87.93% 90.00% 90.00%
Surplus / (deficit) (228) (110) (187)
Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation
Youth Services Provides activities and programs through Inc 153 241 172 Libraries Participation Library membership (Percentage [Number of registered library
FReeZA, Engage! and L2P funded initiatives of the population that are members / Population] x100
' Exp 170 205 233 . .
to enhance confidence, support safety, . registered library members)
improve mental health and build resilience. Surplus / (deficit) (17) 35 (62) Aquatic Facilities Utilisation Utilisation of aquatic facilities. Number of visits to aquatic
(Number of visits to aquatic facilities facilities / Population
, : . . per head of population)
Compliance Provides compliance and enforcement services  Inc 56 58 47 : - - -
to bring land use and development into Animal Management Health and safety Animal management prosecutions. Number of successful animal management
compliance with the Planning and Environment Exp 202 391 526 (Percentage of animal management prosecutions / Total number of
Act and Central Goldfields Planning Scheme. Surplus / (deficit) (146) (333) (479) prosecutions which are successful) animal management prosecutions
Food safety Health and safety Critical and major non-compliance [Number of critical non-compliance
outcome notifications. (Percentage outcome notifications and major non-
Environmental Health PrOVideS? range Ofen\'/ironmental‘ health Inc 57 58 57 of critical and major non_comp[iance Comp[iance outcome notifications
and public health services, educationand the ) 107 139 152 outcome notifications that are about a food premises followed up
enforcement of relevant state legislation. - followed up by Council) / Number of critical non-compliance
Surplus / (deficit) (50) (81) (95) outcome notifications and major non-
compliance outcome notifications
: : about food premises] x100
Local Laws Enforcement and compliance of all Council Inc 117 148 207 - —— —— - :
local laws to ensure the management of Maternal and Child Health Participation Participation in the MCH service. [Number of children who attend the
Exp 358 221 208 (Percentage of children enrolled who MCH service at least once (in the

domestic and livestock animals, protection of
our built and natural environment and general
amenity and general parking enforcement.

Surplus / (deficit)

(241)

Central Goldfields Shire Council

participate in the MCH service)

Participation in the MCH service by
Aboriginal children. (Percentage of
Aboriginal children enrolled who
participate in the MCH service)

financial year) / Number of children
enrolled in the MCH service] x100

[Number of Aboriginal children who
attend the MCH service at least once (in
the financial year) / Number of Aboriginal
children enrolled in the MCH service] x100

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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2.2 Our Growing Economy (continued..)

Services

Service area

Description of services provided

2021/22
Actual
$'000

2022/23
Forecast
$'000

2023/24
Budget
$'000

Economic Development Provide economic development services to the  Inc 470 28 =
and Sustainability council and commgnjty to eﬂ‘ectl.vely identify Exp 945 566 562
and pursue the Shire’'s comparative advantages .
to facilitate economic development and Surplus/ (deficit) (475) (538) (562)
employment opportunities.
Sustainability including Climate Action
Plan and community consultation
Tourism and Events Provide timely, accurate and impartial Inc 50 489 413
visitor |nf.ormqt|.on that will contribute Exp 609 1267 1173
to a growing visitor economy. Support .
events including Energy Breakthrough Surplus/ (deficit) (559) (778) (760)
to attract visitors to the Shire.
Building Services Provide building control services to Inc 103 139 193
adm|n|ster'an.d enforce Fhe Building Exp 310 197 207
Act and building regulations.
Surplus/ (deficit) (206) (58) (13)
Statutory Planning Provides the full range of statutory planning Inc 235 203 193
serwces'and adm|n|strat.|on of.the Planning Exp 608 503 529
and Environment Act as it applies to all :
public and private land within the Shire. Surplus/ (deficit) (373) (300) (336)
Strategic Planning Provides strategic land use planning Inc 4 956 =
to assess and manager future land Exp 10 1,054 77
uses, manage land use change and ‘
population and economic growth. Surplus/ (deficit) (6) (98) (27)
VicRoads Agency Provides a range of VicRoads services Inc 321 305 304
on behalf of VicRoads, from a Exp 730 188 194
central Maryborough location.
Surplus/ (deficit) 92 116 110

Major Initiatives

1) Active participation in the development of the Central Victorian Goldfields World Heritage Bid. Next steps identified by the Community

Reference Group, following the Welcome to Central Goldfields Project

2) Complete Stage 2 of the Maryborough Railway Station Revitalisation Program to enhance tourism offering and product in the shire,

increasing visitation and the flow on economic benefits to businesses across the municipality

Central Goldfields Shire Council

3)

Other Initiatives
As a partner with key stakeholders such as LaTrobe University, progress implementation of they key recommendations of White Paper

BUDGET

2023-24

for Maryborough Innovation Learning Hub, as a key action from the Economic Development Strategy

4) In accordance with key recommendations of Council's Population, Housing and Residential Settlement Strategy. Finalise work on the
Talbot Futures project (including business plan for sewerage upgrade), Maryborough, Flagstaff and Carisbrook Urban Plan Framework

and Maryborough Heritage Review to provide a strong foundation of strategic growth within the municipality

ul
~

and in alignment with environmental conditions of the varying rural landscapes

~N o
~

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Commence work on a review of rural living land within a 10 kilometre radius of Maryborough to identify opportunities and issues for
sustainable growth that is amenable and in alignment with environmental conditions of the varying rural landscapes that is amenable

Finalisation and year one implementation of the Central Goldfields Art Gallery Strategic Plan
Finalisation of a feasibility study for the Castlemaine Maryborough Rail Trail

Service Indicator 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Actual Forecast Budget
Statutory Planning Decision making 50% 50% 50%
Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation

Statutory planning

Service standard

Planning applications decided within
required timeframes (percentage

of regular and VicSmart planning
application decisions made

within legislated timeframes)

[Number of planning application
decisions made within 60 days for
regular permits and 10 days for
VicSmart permits / Number of planning
application decisions made] x100

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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2.3 Our Spaces and Places

Services

Service area

Description of services provided

2021/22
Actual
$'000

2022/23
Forecast
$'000

2023/24
Budget
$'000

BUDGET
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2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Actual Forecast Budget
$'000 $'000 $'000

Service area Description of services provided

Waste Management Provides all waste management, Inc 211 402 103
policy development and education Exp 2749 2988 3949
services from kerbside bin collection, -

Surplus/ (deficit) (2,538) (2,585) (3,139)

transfer station management and
management of closed land fill sites.

Asset Management Provides data collection, analysis and planning  Inc 117 241 134
for the maintenance and renewal of all Council Exp 1321 1188 1204
owned and managed infrastructure and Surplus/ (deficit) (1203) (947) (1070)
assets. This is all facets of Infrastructure and B (N ! ? !
Operations management of Council Assets
including any external consultants such as
valuers, inspections and condition assessments
Building Maintenance Undertakes maintenance works on Council Inc 10 0 1
owned and managed buildings, and other built EXp 101 158 160
structures such as rotundas, BBQ shelters, Sumaluss) (i) (90) (158) (160)
pedestrian underpasses, and playgrounds. urplus/ (deficit
Depot Provides facilities and workshops to support Inc 36 27 22
the activities of Council's outdoor operations. Exp 119 36 87
Surplus/ (deficit) (83) (58) (65)
Drainage This service maintains and renews the drainage  Inc = = =
systems and networks throughout the Shire, Exp 117 38 39
and ensures compliance to the required Surplus/ (deficit) (117) (88) (89)
standards for new land developments. urplus/ (deficit
Environmental Management  Environmental monitoring and implementation  Inc 38 38 36
of services to control the spread of weeds and Exp 20 64 65
pests in Council controlled areas including; Surplus/ (deficit 5 26) 29)
roadsides, nature strips, reserves, drains. urplus/ (deficit
Roads Maintenance Provides the maintenance, construction Inc - - -
and reconstruction of Council's transport Exp 1980 1602 1624
associated infrastructure assets. 5
Surplus/ (deficit) (1,980) (1,602) (1,624)
Parks and Gardens Provides park, gardens and oval maintenance Inc - 200 -
and improvements to provide an attractive Exp 1162 1154 1169
public open space and recreational Surplus/ (deficit (1162) (954) (1169)
environment for our community. L R ! !
Plant Supplies and maintains vehicle and Inc = = =
plant to support Council's operations. Exp (603) (674) (432)
Surplus/ (deficit) 603 674 432
Public Amenities Provides cleaning and servicing Inc = = =
to public amenity blocks. Exp 587 478 484
Surplus/ (deficit) (587) (478) (484)

12 Central Goldfields Shire Council

Major Initiatives

1) Complete the review of waste and recycling kerbside collection program to increase service level and introduce state statutory
requirements for mandatory collection of separated Food Organics Garden Organics (FOGO) and Glass by 2030

) Commence review of transfer stations operations to identify efficiencies and increase service levels for improved outcomes within

the community

Completion of the Octagonal Pool renewal work within Maryborough Outdoor Pool complex, to protect heritage value of this asset

and facilitate ongoing recreation use of the facility

Carry out works including immediate electrical and fire safety renewal works at Maryborough Town Hall, to facilitate reopening of

the building for community use

Implementation of a proactive renewal program for main drains in both Maryborough and Carisbrook to preserve vital drainage asset

Deliver netball replacement project at Deledio Reserve, Dunolly following successful advocacy to receive grant funding from the state

government

= w N
< =

o Ul
= <

Other Initiatives

7) Progress with scoping and design for key heritage preservation projects on facilities such as Princess Park Grandstand, Talbot Town
Hall and Dunolly Town Hall to improve opportunities in gaining external funding for major required renewal works.

8) Deliver Road Restoration Program to repair significant damage incurred following the October 2022 floods utilising Natural Disaster
Financial Assistance funding to approximate value of $9.8m (across multiple years)

9) Deliver improvements at the Maryborough Aerodrome utilising recently received federal funding including kangaroo proof fencing
and lighting improvements for increased safety of users at the facility.

10) Deliver year 2 improvements to onsite waste reduction strategies at the Energy Breakthrough event.

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Service Indicator 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Actual Forecast Budget
Roads Condition 95.20% 95.00% 95.00%
Waste Collection Waste Diversion 43.31% 43.00% 43.00%
Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation
Roads Condition Sealed local roads below the intervention  [Number of kilometres of sealed local

level (percentage of sealed local roads that roads below the renewal intervention
are below the renewal intervention level  level set by Council / Kilometres
set by Council and not requiring renewal)  of sealed local roads] x100

Kerbside collection waste diverted from
landfill. (Percentage of recyclables and

green organics collected from kerbside

bins that is diverted from landfill)

Waste diversion [Weight of recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins / Weight of
garbage, recyclables and green organics

collected from kerbside bins] x100

Waste management

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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2.4 Leading Change

Services

Service area

Description of services provided

2021/22
Actual
$'000

2022/23
Forecast
$'000

2023/24
Budget
$'000

Community Engagement Facilitates engagement with the community Inc = = =
on Cogunc]lcl phrOJectls a?ndl d((je.a:on.s Ihrotjjgh Exp 384 374 410
a range of channels including print media, -
online platforms, forums and workshops. Surplus/ (deficit) (384) (374) (410)
Customer Service Provides a payment transaction service, Inc = - -
and advice to all customers with a Exp 206 253 303
high focus on meeting the customer’s )
needs at the first point of contact. Surplus/ (deficit) (206) (253) (303)
Governance Property & Risk  Provides the governance framework for Inc 55 117 128
the organisation including coordination Exp 1411 1375 1565
of Council meetings and support and i : : :
oversight of compliance with the Local Surplus/ (deficit) (1,356) (1,258) (1,436)
Government Act, privacy and freedom of
information; and comprises the coordination
of Council meetings and the management
occupational health and safety, property, risk
management and procurement services.
Shire Management Provides strategic leadership to the Inc = = =
organisation, implementation of Council Exp 984 1038 1101
decisions and representation and advocacy Surplus/ (deficit (984) (1038) (L.100)
on key issues and projects for the Shire. U g ! !
Finance Provides a full suite of financial Inc 630 284 147
transaction processing, including rates Exp 1679 1210 1501
management and corporate financial Surplus/ (deficit) (1,049) (926) (1353)
planning, monitoring and reporting for Wipltis/ildefen ’ 2 '
both internal and external customers.
Human Resources Provides support and development of Inc 15 = =
meuding e provon o vt sdice, 22 o 0 0
step " Surplus/ (deficit (786) (810) (830)
Information Management Provides lifecycle management of Inc = = =
all information held by Council. Exp 180 148 147
Surplus/ (deficit) (180) (148) (147)
Information Technology Provides the information communication Inc = = =
technglogy platform that enable; the Exp 1174 1161 1,465
organisation to interact electronically -
Surplus/ (deficit) (1,174) (1,161) (1,465)

with all of its customers.

14 Central Goldfields Shire Council

Service area Description of services provided

2021/22
Actual
$'000

BUDGET

2023-24

2022/23
Forecast
$'000

2023/24
Budget
$'000

Nolan Street Offices Provides the operations of heating, lighting Inc 173 426 474
and cooling the NglanIStreet ofﬁces, and the Exp 437 649 668
office needs to maintain a function office. )

Surplus/ (deficit) (264) (223) (193)

Grants Commission Financial Assistance Grants distributed Inc 3,759 4,495 5,102
by the Victoria Grants Commission. Exp _ _ _

Surplus/ (deficit) 3,759 4,495 5,102

Major Initiatives

1) Increased funding pool allocated to Community Grants

2) Increased allocation for ICT infrastructure upgrades, including cyber security review

Other Initiatives

3) Undertake a review of Community Plans, inclusive of developing a new plan for Daisy Hill

Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Service indicator 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Actual Forecast Budget
Governance Satisfaction 51% 51% 51%
Service Indicator Performance Measure Computation
Governance Consultation and Satisfaction with community consultation ~ Community satisfaction rating out of

engagement

and engagement. (Community satisfaction

rating out of 100 with the consultation
and engagement efforts of Council)

100 with how Council has performed on
community consultation and engagement

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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2.5 Reconciliation with budgeted operating result

Surplus/ (Deficit) Expenditure Income / Revenue
$'000 $'000 $'000

Our Community's Wellbeing (2,606) 9,215 6,608
Our Growing Economy (1,589) 2,692 1,103
Our Spaces and Places (7,396) 7,692 296
Leading Change (2,137) 7,990 5,852
Total (13,728) 27,588 13,859
Expenses added in:
Depreciation 7,111
Finance costs 36
Efficiency saving (500)
Surplus/(Deficit) before funding sources (20,376)
Funding sources added in:
Rates and charges revenue 13,404
Waste charge revenue 4,235
Capital Grants 12,340
Total funding sources 29,979
Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year 9,603

3. Financial Statements

This section presents information in regard to the Financial
Statements and Statement of Human Resources. The budget
information for the year 2023/24 has been supplemented with
projections to 2026/27.

This section includes the following financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.
Comprehensive Income Statement

Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Capital Works

Statement of Human Resources

16  Central Goldfields Shire Council Central Goldfields Shire Council 17
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BUDGET

2023-24

Comprehensive Income Statement

For the four years ending 30 June 2027

Income / Revenue

Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees

Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary

Net gain (or loss) on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment

Other income
Total income / revenue

Expenses

Employee costs

Materials and services
Depreciation

Amortisation - right of use assets

Bad and doubtful debts - allowance for impairment
losses

Borrowing costs
Other expenses

Total expenses
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or
deficit in future periods

Net asset revaluation increment /(decrement)*

Share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures

Items that may be reclassified to surplus or deficit in
future periods (detail as appropriate)
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive result

Central Goldfields Shire Council

411
4.12
413
414
4.1.4
415

4.1.6

417

418

419
4.1.10

4.1.11

Forecast .
Budget Projections
Actual
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
16,797 17,639 18,168 18,623 19,088
560 663 801 842 884
1,809 1,859 1,896 1,934 1,973
13,392 10,378 10,689 10,956 11,230
12,046 12,340 2,739 2,310 2,335
279 128 132 136 140
77 - - - -
689 831 715 733 751
45,648 43,838 35,141 35,534 36,401
14,719 16,111 16,191 16,272 16,354
13,818 10,615 10,641 10,668 10,695
7,181 7,091 7,175 7,257 7,340
21 21 21 21 21
2 2 2 2 2
46 36 35 36 36
347 359 367 374 381
36,133 34,234 34,433 34,630 34,828
9,515 9,603 708 904 1,572
14,397 3,960 4,005 4,047 4,091
14,397 3,960 4,005 4,047 4,091
23,912 13,564 4,712 4951 5,663

Balance Sheet
For the four years ending 30 June 2027

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Inventories

Prepayments

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Property, infrastructure, plant & equipment
Right-of-use assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Unearned income/revenue
Provisions
Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Accumulated surplus
Reserves

Total equity

NOTES

421

424
421

4.2.3
424
422

423
4.2.4
4.2.2

Forecast
Actual

2022/23
$'000

Budget

2023/24
$'000

2024/25
$'000

Projections

2025/26
$'000

BUDGET

2023-24

2026/27
$'000

15,997 15,731 16,743 18,085 20,057
2,112 2,782 2912 2,970 3,030
591 603 615 627 640

60 61 62 64 65

327 333 340 347 354
19,087 19,511 20,672 22,093 24,145
380,923 396,027 400,450 404,712 409,077
628 607 586 565 544
381,551 396,635 401,037 405,278 409,621
400,638 416,145 421,709 427,371 433,766
6,058 6,538 6,887 7,025 7,129
1,910 2,511 2,685 2,739 2,794
2,035 2,075 2,117 2,159 2,202
1,217 1,741 1,776 1,812 1,848
21 21 21 21 22
11,240 12,886 13,486 13,756 13,995
4,399 4,716 4,971 5,432 5926
2,089 2,089 2,089 2,089 2,089
159 139 139 118 118
6,647 6,944 7,198 7,639 8,133
17,888 19,830 20,685 21,395 22,128
382,750 396,315 401,024 405,976 411,638
138,895 148,499 149,207 150,111 151,683
243,855 247,815 251,819 255,866 259,957
382,750 396,315 401,024 405,976 411,638

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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BUDGET
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the four years ending 30 June 2027

2023 Forecast Actual

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)*
Transfers to other reserves

Transfers from other reserves

Balance at end of the financial year

2024 Budget

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Transfers to other reserves

Transfers from other reserves

Balance at end of the financial year

2025

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Transfers to other reserves

Transfers from other reserves

Balance at end of the financial year

2026

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Transfers to other reserves

Transfers from other reserves

Balance at end of the financial year

2027

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Transfers to other reserves

Transfers from other reserves

Balance at end of the financial year

Central Goldfields Shire Council

NOTES

431
431
432

Total

$'000

Accumulated
Surplus

$'000

Revaluation

Other Reserves

Reserve

$'000 $'000

358,338 129,380 228,867 591
9,515 9,515 = =
14,397 - 14,397 -
382,750 138,895 243,264 591
382,750 138,895 243,264 591
9,604 9,603 - -
3,960 - 3,960 -
396,315 148,499 247,224 591
396,315 148,499 247,224 591
708 708 - -
4,005 - 4,005 -
401,025 149,207 251,228 591
401,026 149,207 251,228 591
904 904 - _
4,047 - 4,047 -
405,977 150,111 255,275 591
405,977 150,111 255,275 591
1,572 1,572 = =
4,091 = 4,091 £
411,638 151,683 259,366 591

Statement of Cash Flows
For the four years ending 30 June 2027

BUDGET

2023-24

Forecast .
Projections
Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows

(Outflows)  (Outflows)  (Outflows)  (Outflows)  (Outflows)
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 15,453 16,228 17,260 17,691 18,134
Statutory fees and fines 560 663 801 842 884
User fees 1,809 2,045 1,896 1,934 1,973
Grants - operating 13,392 10,378 10,934 10,956 11,230
Grants - capital 14,080 14,415 4,856 4,469 4,537
Contributions - monetary 279 128 132 136 140
Employee costs (15,920) (17,174) (16,363) (16,399) (16,489)
Materials and services (15,200) (11,676) (11,705) (11,735) (11,764)
Other payments (382) (398) (403) (411) (420)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities | 14,072 14,608 7,407 7,483 8,225
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (13,381) (14,838) (6,360) (6,105) (6,218)
Net cash provided by/ (used in) investing activities 4.4.2 (13,381) (14,838) (6,360) (6,105) (6,218)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs (46) (36) (35) (36) (36)
Repayment of borrowings = - = = =
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 443 (46) (36) (35) (36) (36)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 645 (266) 1,012 1,342 1,972
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 15,352 15,997 15,731 16,743 18,085
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 15,997 15,731 16,743 18,085 20,057

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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BUDGET

2023-24

Statement of Capital Works
For the four years ending 30 June 2027

Forecast
Budget Projections
Actual
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
NOTES $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property
Land improvements 2,292 3,104 814 291 119
Total land 2,292 3,104 814 291 119
Buildings 6,282 2,702 1,182 1,027 1,021
Total buildings 6,282 2,702 1,182 1,027 1,021
Total property 8,574 5,806 1,996 1,318 1,140
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 770 825 861 878 896
Computers and telecommunications 506 1,042 440 445 449
Total plant and equipment 1,276 1,867 1,301 1,323 1,345
Infrastructure
Roads 3,316 10,014 3,063 2,457 2,706
Bridges 31 96 452 461 469
Footpaths and cycleways 200 220 196 200 204
Drainage 2,451 270 577 588 600
Waste management = = 33 34 35
Parks, open space and streetscapes 15 15 119 322 124
Aerodromes = 220 = = =
Other infrastructure 864 41 213 928 1,149
Total infrastructure 6,877 10,875 4,653 4,990 5,287
Total capital works expenditure 451 16,727 18,548 7,950 7,631 7,772
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 594 1,137 1,065 1,085 1,107
Asset renewal expenditure 5,170 13,990 6,250 5,900 6,011
Asset expansion expenditure = - = = =
Asset upgrade expenditure 10,964 3,421 635 646 654
Total capital works expenditure 45.1 16,727 18,548 7,950 7,631 7,772
Funding sources represented by:
Grants 12,046 12,340 2,739 2,310 2,335
Contributions 40 - = = =
Council cash 4,641 6,208 5211 5321 5,437
Borrowings = - = = =
Total capital works expenditure 451 16,727 18,548 7,950 7,631 7,772

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Statement of Human Resources
For the four years ending 30 June 2027

BUDGET

2023-24

Forecast
Budget Projections
Actual
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Staff expenditure
Employee costs - operating 14,719 15,714 15,773 15,799 15,877
Employee costs - capital 1,201 1,460 590 601 612
Total staff expenditure 15,920 17,174 16,363 16,399 16,489
FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE
Staff numbers
Employees 176.6 179.4 170.2 169.9 169.7
Total staff numbers 176.6 179.4 170.2 169.9 169.7

A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure of Council is included below:

Comprises
Budget Permanent Casual Temporary
Department
2023/24 Full Time Part time
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Executive and Community Engagement 1,110 1,041 69 = =
Infrastructure Assets and Planning 5,942 4,440 613 889 -
Community Wellbeing 7,025 1,451 3,499 2,075 =
Corporate Performance 1,568 1,369 199 = =
Total permanent staff expenditure 15,644 8,300 4,380 2,965 -
Other employee related expenditure 70
Capitalised labour costs 1,460
Total expenditure 17,174

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above expenditure is included below:

Comprises
Department Budget Permanent Casual Temporary
2023/24 Full Time Part time
Executive and Community Engagement 8.6 8.0 0.6 = =
Infrastructure Assets and Planning 77.1 48.8 7.4 59 15.0
Community Wellbeing 76.7 17.3 41.7 17.7 =
Corporate Performance 17.1 14.8 2.3 = =
Total staff 179.4 88.9 52.0 23.6 15.0

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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Summary of Planned Human Resources Expenditure

For the four years ending 30 June 2027

Executive and Community Engagement
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender

Total Executive and Community Engagement

Community Wellbeing
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Total Community Wellbeing

Infrastructure Assets and Planning
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Total Infrastructure Assets and Planning

Corporate Performance
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Total Corporate Performance

Casuals, temporary and other expenditure
Capitalised labour costs
Total staff expenditure

Central Goldfields Shire Council

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

1,041 1,059 1,077 1,096
746 759 772 786
295 300 305 310
0 0 0 0
69 70 71 73
69 70 71 73
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
1,110 1,129 1,149 1,169
1,451 1,476 1,502 1,528
1,272 1,294 1,317 1,340
179 182 185 189
0 0 0 0
3,499 3,613 3,623 3,686
3,124 3,231 3,234 3,291
375 382 388 395
0 0 0 0
4,950 5,089 5125 5,214
4,440 4,517 4,588 4,588
943 960 943 943
3,497 3,558 3,645 3,645
0 0 0 0
613 624 635 646
392 399 406 413
221 225 229 233
0 0 0 0
5,053 5,141 5,223 5,234
1,439 1,464 1,489 1,516
1,231 1,252 1274 1,296
208 212 215 219
0 0 0 0
199 200 203 207
163 163 166 169
36 37 37 38
0 0 0 0
1,638 1,664 1,693 1,722
2,965 2,751 2,610 2,538
1,460 590 601 612
17,174 16,363 16,399 16,489

Executive and Community Engagement
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender

Total Executive and Community Engagement

Community Wellbeing
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Total Community Wellbeing

Infrastructure Assets and Planning
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Total Infrastructure Assets and Planning

Corporate Performance
Permanent - Full time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Permanent - Part time

Women

Men

Persons of self-described gender
Total Corporate Performance

Casuals and temporary staff
Capitalised labour
Total staff numbers

BUDGET

2023-24

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27
FTE

8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0
6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
06 0.6 0.6 0.6
0.6 0.6 0.6 06
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
86 8.6 8.6 8.6
17.3 17.3 173 173
153 153 153 153
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
417 417 417 417
367 367 367 367
49 49 49 49
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
59.0 59.0 59.0 59.0
488 4838 488 488
9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0
39.8 39.8 39.8 39.8
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
74 74 74 74
47 47 47 47
2.7 2.7 27 27
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
56.2 56.2 56.2 56.2
14.8 148 148 148
12.8 128 128 1238
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
23 23 23 23
2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
03 03 0.3 03
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
17.1 17.1 17.1 17.1
236 23.8 238 238
15.0 5.6 5.3 5.1
179.4 170.2 169.9 169.7

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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2023-24

4. Notes to the financial statements

This section presents detailed information on material components of the financial statements. Council needs to assess which components
are material, considering the dollar amounts and nature of these components.

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement

4.1.1

Rates and charges are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council's budget.

Rates and charges

As per the Local Government Act 2020, Council is required to have a Revenue and Rating Plan which is a four year plan for how Council
will generate income to deliver the Council Plan, program and services and capital works commitments over a four-year period.

In developing the Budget, rates and charges were identified as an important source of revenue. Planning for future rate increases has
therefore been an important component of the financial planning process. The Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum
amount councils may increase rates in a year. For 2023/24 the FGRS cap has been set at 3.50%. The cap applies to both general rates and
municipal charges and is calculated on the basis of council’s average rates and charges.

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to Council’s other sources of income and the
planned expenditure on services and works to be undertaken for the community.

To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a strong capital expenditure program, the average general rate and the
municipal charge will increase by 3.50% in line with the rate cap.

This will raise total rates and charges for 2023/24 to $17.639m.

4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the Comprehensive Income Statement is as follows:

2022/23 2023/24
Forecast Actual Budget
$'000 $'000

General rates* 11,189 11,639 449 4.02%
Municipal charge* 1,657 1,658 1 0.06%
Waste management levy 1,349 1,455 106 7.86%
Service rates and charges 2,539 2,780 242 9.53%
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments = 50 50 100.00%
Interest on rates and charges 63 57 (6) -9.52%
Total rates and charges 16,797 17,639 842 5.01%

* These items combined are subject to the rate cap established under the FGRS.

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under section 158 of the Act for each type or class of

land compared with the previous financial year

Type or class of land

General rate for rateable residential properties - Maryborough*
General rate for rateable residential properties - Other*
General rate for rateable vacant land properties*

General rate for rateable commercial properties — Maryborough*
General rate for rateable commercial properties - Other*
General rate for rateable industrial properties*

General rate for rateable farm properties*

2022/23
cents/$CIV*

0.3334
0.2934
0.5001
0.5334
0.4534
0.3667
0.2453

2023/24
cents/$CIV*

Change
0.3040 -8.82%
0.2675 -8.83%
0.3692 -26.17%
0.4863 -8.83%
0.4134 -8.82%
0.3343 -8.84%
0.2189 -10.76%

* Rates in the dollar is subject to change based on final valuations.

4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to each type or class of land, and the
estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, compared with the previous financial year

Type or class of land 2022/23 2023/24
$'000
Residential - Maryborough 4 L4 4,517 74 1.66%
Residential - Other 2,600 2,647 47 1.81%
Vacant Land 632 669 37 5.88%
Commercial - Maryborough 762 789 28 3.64%
Commercial - Other 108 114 5 4.89%
Industrial 177 179 2 1.31%
Farm 2,467 2,722 255 10.33%
Total amount to be raised by general rates 11,189 11,639 448 4.01%

4.1.1(d) The number of assessments in relation to each type or class of land, and the total number of assessments,
compared with the previous financial year

Type or class of land 2022/23 2023/24 Change
Number Number Number
Residential - Maryborough 4,076 4,079 3 0.07%
Residential - Other 2,361 2,365 4 0.17%
Vacant Land 854 856 2 0.23%
Commercial - Maryborough 243 243 = 0.00%
Commercial - Other 83 79 (4) -4.82%
Industrial 120 120 = 0.00%
Farm 1,028 1,028 = 0.00%
Total number of assessments 8,765 8,770 5 0.06%

4.1.1(e) The basis of valuation to be used is the Capital Improved Value (CIV)

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement (continued..)

4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value of land, compared
with the previous financial year

Type or class of land 2?:;5 - 2?3;3 *
Residential - Maryborough 1,332,832 1,507,764 174,932 13.12%
Residential - Other 886,029 1,003,823 117,794 13.29%
Vacant Land 126,364 148,893 22,529 17.83%
Commercial = Maryborough 142,790 164,700 21,910 15.34%
Commercial - Other 23,887 27,883 3,996 16.73%
Industrial 48,211 54,363 6,152 12.76%
Farm 1,005,826 1,243,787 237,961 23.66%
Total value of land 3,565,939 4,151,213 585,274 16.41%

4.1.1(g) The municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act compared with the previous financial year

Per Rateable
Property
2022/23 2023/24
$ $

Municipal 202

Per Rateable
Property

Type of Charge

202 = 0.00%

4.1.1(h) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges compared with the previous financial year

2022/23 2023/24

Type of Charge 4000 $'000

Municipal 1,657 1,658 1 0.06%

4.1.1(i) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or charge under Section 162 of the Act
compared with the previous financial year

Per Rateable Per Rateable
Type of harge amin 2o
$ $
Standard Garbage Charge 178.14 193.54 15 8.64%
Non-Standard Garbage Charge 304.75 330.93 26 8.59%
Waste Management Fee 154.77 168.07 13 8.59%
Recycling Charge 159.44 173.14 14 8.59%
Green Waste Service (optional) 79.56 86.90 7 9.23%
Total 876.66 952.58 76 8.66%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

4.1.1(j) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate or charge, and the estimated total
amount to be raised by service rates and charges, compared with the previous financial year

Type of Charge 202;/23 2022/24
Standard Garbage Charge 1,026 1,153 127 12.38%
Non-Standard Garbage Charge 435 516 81 18.62%
Waste Management Fee 1,349 1,455 106 7.86%
Recycling Charge 919 920 2 0.16%
Green Waste Service (optional) 159 191 32 20.41%
Total 3,888 4,235 348 8.95%

4.1.1(k) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges compared with the previous financial year

2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000
Total amount to be raised by general rates 11,189 11,639 449 4.02%
Total amount to be raised by the municipal charge 1,657 1,658 1 0.06%
Total amount to be raised by waste charges 3,888 4,235 348 8.95%
Total Rates and charges 16,734 17,532 798 477%

4.1.1() Fair Go Rates System Compliance
Central Goldfields Shire Council is required to comply with the State Government’s Fair Go Rates System (FGRS). The table below details
the budget assumptions consistent with the requirements of the Fair Go Rates System.

2022/23 2023/24

Total Rates $11,189,174 $11,638,500
Number of rateable properties 8,765 8,770
Base Average Rate 1276.57 1327.08
Maximum Rate Increase (set by the State Government) 1.75% 3.50%
Capped Average Rate $1,466 $1,516
Maximum General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $12,846,374 $13,295,997
Budgeted General Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $12,846,374 $13,296,718
Budgeted Supplementary Rates $50,000 $50,000
Budgeted Total Rates and Municipal Charges Revenue $12,896,374 $13,346,718

4.1.1(m) Any significant changes that may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and charges

There are no known significant changes which may affect the estimated amounts to be raised by rates and charges. However, the total
amount to be raised by rates and charges may be affected by:

= The making of supplementary valuations (2023/24: estimated $50,000 and 2022/23: $50,000)
= The variation of returned levels of value (e.g. valuation appeals)

Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice versa
Changes of use of land such that residential land becomes business land and vice versa.

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement (continued..)

4.1.1(n) Differential rates

The rate and amount of rates payable in relation to land in each category of differential are:-
= Residential Maryborough rate of 0.3040% (0.3040 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable residential properties situated within

the Maryborough District boundary

= Residential Other rate of 0.2675% (0.2675 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable residential properties situated outside the

Maryborough District boundary

= Vacant Land rate of 0.3692% (0.3692 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable vacant land properties

= Commercial Maryborough rate of 0.4863% (0.4863 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable commercial properties situated within

the Maryborough District boundary

= Commercial Other rate of 0.0.4134% (0.4134 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable commercial properties situated outside the

Maryborough District boundary

= |ndustrial rate of 0.3343% (0.3343 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable industrial properties
= Farm Land rate of 0.2189% (0.2189 cents in the dollar of CIV) for all rateable farm properties.

Each differential rate will be determined by multiplying the Capital Improved Value of each rateable land (categorised by the characteristics

described below) by the relevant percentages indicated above.

It is considered that each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of Council’s functions, in that it is
likely to achieve an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of Council, including:

= The construction and maintenance of public infrastructure;
= The development and provision of health and community services;
= The provision of general support services.

4.1.2 Statutory fees and fines

Forecast Actual
2022/23
$'000
Infringements and costs 46 121 75 162.39%
Land Information and Building Certificate Fees 16 15 (1) -4.46%
Permits 140 181 41 29.51%
Registrations 169 180 11 6.46%
Town planning fees 187 161 (26) -13.89%
Other 2 5 3 128.83%
Total statutory fees and fines 560 663 103 18.42%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

4.1.3 User fees

Childcare
Aged Care

Transfer Station
VicRoads Agency
Energy Breakthrough
Hire Fees
Immunisation

Other

Total user fees

BUDGET

2023-24

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000

588 580 (8) -1.28%

501 508 7 1.40%

80 82 2 2.50%

285 284 () -0.53%

142 175 33 23.42%

38 44 6 16.93%

13 13 2.36%

163 173 10 6.07%

1,809 1,859 50 2.75%

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement (continued..)

4.1.4 Grants

Grants are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council’s budget.

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Grants were received in respect of the following:
Summary of grants

Commonwealth funded grants
State funded grants

Total grants received

(a) Operating Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants

Family day care

General home care

Recurrent - State Government
Aged care

School crossing

Library

Kindergarten

MCH

Youth

Community Safety

Total recurrent grants
Non-recurrent - State Government
Go Goldfields

Recreation

Community

Other

Total non-recurrent grants

Total operating grants

Central Goldfields Shire Council

6,967 8,056 1,089 16%
3,674 1,908 (1,766) -48%
10,640 9,964 (677) 6%
4,496 5,102 606 13%
1,270 1,671 401 32%
1,201 1,283 82 7%
207 178 (29) -14%
bt 37 7) -16%
166 169 3 2%
634 543 (91) -14%
265 266 1 0%
286 172 (114) -40%
181 138 (43) -24%
8,749 9,559 810 9%
940 374 (566) -60%
68 - (68) -100%
2,684 414 (2,270) -85%
951 31 (921) -97%
4,643 819 (3,824) -82%
13,392 10,378 (3,014) -23%

(b) Capital Grants

Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery

Local Roads and Community Infrastructure
Total recurrent grants

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Aerodrome

Flood Works

Non-recurrent - State Government
Healthy Hearts

Art Gallery

Energy Breakthrough

Maryborough Station

Deledio Nethall Court Redevelopment
Maryborough Outdoor Pool

Goldfields Reservoir Stabilisation
Carisbrook Recreation Reserve

Skate and Scooter Park

Living Libraries

Phillips Garden

Maryborough Tennis Centre Court Redevelopment
Transfer stations

Rural Council Transformation Program
Carisbrook Drainage

Total non-recurrent grants

Total capital grants

Total Grants

790 1,579 790 100%
1,745 1,105 (641) -37%
2,535 2,684 149 6%

- 110 110 100%

93 6,880 6,788 7338%
74 - (74) -100%
1,385 203 (1,182) -85%

803 - (803) -100%
1,324 - (1,324) -100%

362 607 245 68%

417 750 333 80%

363 337 (26) -7%
2,753 - (2,753 -100%

74 - (74) -100%

32 - (32) -100%
150 - (150) -100%
80 320 240 298%
351 - (351) -100%
50 450 400 800%
1,200 - (1,200) -100%
9,511 9,657 146 2%
12,046 12,340 294 2%
25,437 22,718 (2,720) -11%

Central Goldfields Shire Council = 33



BUDGET

2023-24

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement (continued..)

4.1.5 Contributions

Community

Animal Related (microchipping)

Parks and Open Spaces

Fire Services Levy

Leave Contributions (Other Councils)

Other

Total contributions

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000

54 28 (26) -48.41%

14 10 (3) -25.00%

76 40 (36) -47.02%

45 48 3 6.72%

62 - (62) -100.00%

29 2 (27) -93.10%

279 128 (151) -54.05%

4.1.6 Other Income

Energy Breakthrough
(Donations/Sponsorships/Entry fees)

Interest

Other

Donations
Volunteer Services
Rental

Total other income

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000

71 160 89 125.35%

140 50 (90) -64.29%

43 33 (10) -23.26%

= 100 100 100.00%

418 468 50 11.96%

17 20 3 17.65%

689 831 142 20.61%

4.1.7 Employee Costs

Wages and salaries

WorkCover
Superannuation
Long Service Leave
Volunteer Services
Fringe Benefits Tax

Total employee costs

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000

12,274 12,987 713 5.81%

353 798 445 126.19%

1,425 1,605 180 12.62%

183 182 (1) -0.57%

418 468 50 11.96%

65 70 5 8.11%

14,719 16,111 1,392 9.46%

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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4.1.8 Materials and Services

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000

Contractors 9,781 6,899 (2,882) -29.47%
Materials and Services 2,428 2,385 (43) -1.75%
Insurances 458 465 7 1.53%
Event Support, Grants and Contributions 1,151 865 (286) -24.81%
Total materials and services 13,818 10,615 (3,203) -23.18%

4.1.9 Depreciation

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000

Property 1,061 1,171 110 10.34%
Plant & equipment 295 348 53 17.83%
Infrastructure 5,573 5,323 (250) -4.49%
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 252 249 (3) -1.19%
Total depreciation 7,181 7,091 (91) -1.26%

4.1.10 Amortisation — Right of use assets

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000
Right of use assets 21 21 = 0.00%
Total amortisation - right of use assets 21 21 = 0.00%

4.1.11 Other Expenses

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000
Councillor allowances 251 259 8 3.35%
Auditor remuneration - internal auditor 48 50 2 4.17%
Auditor remuneration - external auditor 48 50 2 417%
Total other expenses 347 359 12 3.57%

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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4.2 Balance Sheet

4.2.1 Assets

Overall the total assets in the Balance Sheet are expected to increase each year due to a large capital works program in 2023/24, offset
by the impact of depreciation, and a positive cash position in future years resulting in a higher level of cash held.

4.2.2 Liabilities

Overall Council liabilities are forecast to decrease the next financial year as a result of not borrowing ($668k). It is anticipated that the
full balance of the current borrowings will be paid in full at the end of the following financial year (2024/25).

4.2.3 Borrowings

The table below shows information on borrowings specifically required by the Regulations.

Projections
2024/25

Forecast Actual
2022/23

Budget

2023/24 2025/26 2026/27

Amount borrowed as at 30 June of the prior year 2,089 2,089 2,089 2,089 2,089
Amount proposed to be borrowed = = = = =
Amount projected to be redeemed = = = = =
Amount of borrowings as at 30 June 2,089 2,089 2,089 2,089 2,089

4.2.4 Leases by category

As a result of the introduction of AASB 16 Leases, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities have been recognised as outlined in the table below.

Forecast Actual
2022/23

Budget
2023/24

$ $

Right-of-use assets
Land and Buildings 628 607
Total right-of-use assets 628 607

Lease liabilities

Current lease Liabilities
Land and buildings 21 21
Total current lease liabilities 21 21

Non-current lease liabilities

Land and buildings 159 139
Total non-current lease liabilities 159 139
Total lease liabilities 180 159

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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4.3.1

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time, as movements are difficult to
predict. Council has not budgeted for any movement in this reserve in future years, however has taken into account the most recent
revaluation of Infrastructure Assets into account in the 2022/23 forecast.

Reserves

4.3.2 Equity

The movement in the statement of equity relates to the budgeted comprehensive result for the period.

4.4.1

Cash flows from operating activities are considerably higher in the 2023/24 budget than in future years, due to the significant level of
grants income budgeted for in this year.

Net cash flows provided by/used in operating activities

4.4.2 Net cash flows provided by/used in investing activities

Cash flows used in investing activities are considerably higher in the 2023/24 budget than in future years due to the significant level of
grant-funded capital works budgeted for in this year.

4.4.3 Net cash flows provided by/used in financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities are lower in 2023/24 due to repayment of borrowings, in with the long term financial plan.

Central Goldfields Shire Council

37



BUDGET BUDGET

2023-24

4.5 Capital works program

This section presents a listing of the capital works projects that will be undertaken for the 2023/24 year, classified by expenditure type
and funding source. Works are also disclosed as current budget or carried forward from prior year.

4.5.1 Summary

Forecast Actual Budget
2022/23 2023/24
$'000 $'000
Property 8,574 2,851 (5,724) -66.75%
Plant and equipment 1,276 1,699 423 33.17%
Infrastructure 6,877 10,765 3,888 56.54%
Total 16,727 15,315 (1,412) -8.44%

Asset expenditure types Summary of Funding Sources
New Renewal  Upgrade Expansion Grants Contrib.  Council cash Borrowings
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property 2,851 = 1,212 1,639 = 1,397 = 1,454 =
Plant and equipment 1,699 605 825 270 - 450 - 1,249 -
Infrastructure 10,765 270 10,495 - - 8,459 - 2,306 =
Total 15,315 875 12,532 1,908 = 10,306 = 5,009 =
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4.5 Capital works program (continued..

4.5.2 Current Budget

Project Cost Asset expenditure types Summary of Funding Sources

Capital Works Area New Renewal Upgrade Expansion Grants Contrib.  Council cash

A $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

PROPERTY

Land Improvements

Borrowings
$'000

Deledio Reserve Netball Courts Redevelopment 849 = = 849 = 607 = 242

Maryborough Outdoor Pool Upgrade 150 = 150 = = = = 150

Parks Renewal 12 = 12 = = = = 12

Rubbish Bins Renewal 10 = 10 = = = = 10

Playgrounds Renewal 15 = 15 = = = = 15

Bowenvale Playground Works 50 = 50 = = = = 50

Recycled Watermain Replacement 15 = 15 = = = = 15 =
Buildings

Maryborough Town Hall 790 = = 790 = 790 = =

MLC Roof Renewal Design and Scoping 200 = 200 = = = = 200

Youth Hub Scoping and Feasibility 50 = 50 = = = = 50

Princes Park Grandstand and Changerooms Design and Scoping 200 = 200 = = = = 200

Talbot Museum 40 = 40 = = = = 40

Carisbrook Town Hall Design and Scoping 100 = 100 = = = = 100

Dunolly Town Hall Design and Scoping 100 = 100 = = = = 100

Goldfields Family Centre Kitchen Renewal 20 = 20 = = = = 20

Talbot Town Hall Design and Scoping 100 = 100 = = = = 100

Buildings Renewal Minor Capital 100 = 100 = = = = 100

Depot Renewal Works 50 = 50 = = = = 50

TOTAL PROPERTY 2,851 = 1,212 1,639 = 1,397 = 1,454

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant, Machinery and Equipment

Operating Plant 505 = 505 = = = = 505 =
Vehicles - Cars 200 = 200 = = = = 200 =
Vehicles - Utes 120 = 120 = = = = 120 =
Computers and Telecommunications

IT Strategy initiatives 240 35 = 205 = = = 240

Rural ICT Transformation Project 570 570 = = = 450 = 120

PC Network and Hardware 65 = = 65 = = = 65

TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1,699 605 825 270 = 450 = 1,249 =

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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4.5 Capital works program (continued..

4.5.2 Current Budget (continued...)

Project Cost Asset expenditure types Summary of Funding Sources
Capital Works Area 000 Renewal Upgrade Grants Council cash  Borrowings
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
INFRASTRUCTURE
Roads
Design Roads 150 150 = = = 150
Major Patches 135 = 135 = = 135
Sealed Road Shoulder Renewal 100 = 100 = = 100
Unsealed Roads Renewal 340 = 340 = = 340
Sealed Renewal Reseals 640 = 640 = = 640
Sealed Renewals Asphalt 190 = 190 = = 190
Flood Recovery Works 6,880 - 6,880 - 6,880 = =
Roads to Recovery — Road Rehabilitation Program* 1,579 = 1,579 = 1,579 = =
Bridges
Minor Culverts Renewal 16 = 16 = = 16
Major Culvert Renewal 80 = 80 = = 80
Footpaths and Cycleways
Pathways Renewal 100 = 100 = = 100
Pathways New* 120 120 = = = 120
Drainage
Kerb and Channel Renewal 50 = 50 = = 50
Table drain Renewals 70 = 70 = = 70
Main Drain Renewal - Carisbrook and Maryborough 50 = 50 = = 50
Drainage Renewal 100 = 100 = = 100
Parks, Open Space and Streetscapes
Streetscape Renewal 15 = 15 = = 15
Aerodromes
Aerodrome Fence Renewal 110 = 110 = = 110
Other Infrastructure
Street Furniture Renewal 31 = 31 = = 31
Traffic Control Facilities Renewal 10 = 10 = = 10 =
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 10,765 270 10,495 - 8,459 2,306
TOTAL NEW CAPITAL WORKS 15,315 875 12,532 1,908 10,306 5,009

* Refer Appendix for site listing
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4.5 Capital works program (continued..

4.5.3 Works carried forward from the 2022/23 year

Project Cost

Capital Works Area

$'000
PROPERTY

Land Improvements

Asset expenditure types

Renewal
$'000

Upgrade
$'000

Summary of Funding Sources

Grants Contrib. Council cash
$'000 $'000 $'000

Borrowings
$'000

Energy Breakthrough Land Improvements 61 = = 61 = = 61 =

Play Space Strategy Development 30 = = 30 = = 30 =

Swimming Pool Upgrades 315 = = 315 315 = = =

Maryborough Outdoor Pool Upgrade 750 = 750 = 750 = = =

Parks Renewal Derby Rd 40 = 40 = = = 40 =

Gordon Gardens Masterplan Works 150 = = 150 = = 150 =

Maryborough Tennis Centre Multi Use Courts 320 = = 320 320 = = =

Goldfields Reservoir Dam Stabilisation 337 = = 337 337 = = =

Buildings

Maryborough Town Hall 220 = = 220 = = 220 =

Art Gallery - Indigenous Interpretive Garden 263 263 = = 203 = 60 =

Rene Fox Gardens Toilet Refurbishment 200 = 200 = = = 200 =

Civic Centre Upgrade 270 = 270 = = = 270 =

TOTAL PROPERTY 2,955 263 1,260 1,433 1,925 = 1,031 =

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computers and Telecommunications

Human Resource Information System 80 = = 80 = = 80 =

Field and Mobility services module 88 = 88 = = = 88 =

TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 168 = 88 80 = = 168 -
Project Cost Asset expenditure types Summary of Funding Sources

Capital Works Area §000 Renewal Upgrade Grants Contrib. Council cash  Borrowings
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

INFRASTRUCTURE

Aerodromes

Aerodrome Fence Renewal 110 = 110 = 110 = =

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE 110 = 110 = 110 = =

TOTAL CARRIED FORWARD CAPITAL WORKS 2022/23 3,233 263 1,458 1,513 2,035 = 1,199
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Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure
For the years ending 30 June 2025, 2026 & 2027

Asset Expenditure Types Funding Sources
2024/25 Renewal Expansion Upgrade Grants Contributions Council Cash Borrowings
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property
Land improvements 814 = 814 = = 814 94 = 720
Total Land 814 = 814 = = 814 94 = 720
Buildings 1,182 = 1,011 = 171 1,182 = = 1,182
Total Buildings 1,182 - 1,011 - 171 1,182 = = 1,182
Total Property 1,996 = 1,825 = 171 1,996 94 = 1,902
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 861 861 = = = 861 = = 861
Computers and telecommunications 440 = 440 = = 440 = = 440
Total Plant and Equipment 1,301 861 440 - - 1,301 - - 1,301
Infrastructure
Roads 3,063 22 3,041 = = 3,063 2,432 = 631
Bridges 452 17 435 = = 452 = = 452
Footpaths and cycleways 196 84 = = 112 196 = = 196
Drainage 577 = 242 = 335 577 = = 577
Waste management 33 = 33 = = 33 = = 33
Parks, open space and streetscapes 119 = 119 = = 119 = = 119
Other infrastructure 213 81 115 = 17 213 213 = =
Total Infrastructure 4,653 204 3,985 - 464 4,653 2,645 - 2,008
Total Capital Works Expenditure 7,950 1,065 6,250 = 635 7,950 2,739 = 5,211
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Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure
For the years ending 30 June 2025, 2026 & 2027

Asset Expenditure Types Funding Sources
2025/26 Renewal Expansion Upgrade Grants Contributions Council Cash Borrowings
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property
Land improvements 291 = 117 = 174 291 = = 291
Total Land 291 = 117 = 174 291 = = 291
Buildings 1,027 = 1,027 = = 1,027 = = 1,027
Total Buildings 1,027 - 1,027 - - 1,027 = = 1,027
Total Property 1,318 - 1,144 - 174 1,318 - - 1,318
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 878 878 = = = 878 = = 878
Computers and telecommunications 445 = 445 = = 445 = = 445
Total Plant and Equipment 1,323 878 445 - - 1,323 - - 1,323
Infrastructure
Roads 2,457 23 2,434 = = 2,457 1,997 = 460
Bridges 461 17 Lbl = = 461 = = 461
Footpaths and cycleways 200 86 = = 114 200 = = 200
Drainage 588 = 247 = 341 588 = = 588
Waste management 34 = 34 = = 34 = = 34
Parks, open space and streetscapes 322 = 322 = = 322 = = 322
Other infrastructure 928 81 830 = 17 928 313 = 615
Total Infrastructure 4,990 207 4,311 - 472 4,990 2,310 - 2,680
Total Capital Works Expenditure 7,631 1,085 5,900 - 646 7,631 2,310 - 5,321
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Summary of Planned Capital Works Expenditure
For the years ending 30 June 2025, 2026 & 2027

Asset Expenditure Types Funding Sources
2026/27 Renewal Expansion Upgrade Grants Contributions Council Cash Borrowings
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property
Land improvements 119 = 119 = = 119 = = 119
Total Land 119 = 119 = = 119 = = 119
Buildings 1,021 = 843 = 178 1,021 = = 1,021
Total Buildings 1,021 - 843 - 178 1,021 = = 1,021
Total Property 1,140 = 962 = 178 1,140 = = 1,140
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 896 896 = = = 896 = = 896
Computers and telecommunications 449 = 449 = = 449 = = 449
Total Plant and Equipment 1,345 896 449 - - 1,345 - - 1,345
Infrastructure
Roads 2,706 23 2,683 = = 1 2,016 = 690
Bridges 469 17 452 = = 469 = = 469
Footpaths and cycleways 204 88 = = 116 204 = = 204
Drainage 600 = 252 = 348 600 = = 600
Waste management 35 = 35 = = 35 = = 35
Parks, open space and streetscapes 124 = 124 = = 124 - - 124
Other infrastructure 1,149 83 1,054 - 12 1,149 319 - 830
Total Infrastructure 5,287 211 4,600 = 476 5,287 2,335 - 2,952
Total Capital Works Expenditure 7,772 1,107 6,011 = 654 7,772 2,335 = 5,437
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5a. Targeted performance indicators

The following tables highlight Council's current and projected The targeted performance indicators below are the prescribed
performance across a selection of targeted service and financial performance indicators contained in Schedule 4 of the Local
performance indicators. These indicators provide a useful analysis Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. Results
of Council’s intentions and performance and should be interpreted against these indicators and targets will be reported in Council's
in the context of the organisation’s objectives. Performance Statement included in the Annual Report.

Targeted performance indicators — Service

. Actual Forecast Target Target Projections
Indicator Measure
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Governance
Satisfaction with Community satisfaction rating out 1 51% 51% 51% 51% 51% 51% 0
community consultation of 100 with the consultation and
and engagement engagement efforts of Council
Roads
Sealed local roads below Number of kms of sealed local roads 2 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% o
the intervention level below the renewal intervention level

set by Council / Kms of sealed local

roads
Statutory planning
Planning applications Number of planning application 3 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 0
decided within the relevant decisions made within the relevant
required time required time / Number of decisions

made
Waste management
Kerbside collection waste ~ Weight of recyclables and green 4 43% 43% 43% 43% 43% 43% 0
diverted from landfill organics collected from kerbside

bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables
and green organics collected from
kerbside bins

Key to Forecast Trend:

+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator

o Forecasts that Council’s financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady
- Forecasts deterioration in Council’s financial performance/financial position indicator

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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Targeted performance indicators - Financial

S Measure Actual Forecast Target Target Projections
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Liquidity

Working Capital Current assets 5 131% 170% 151% 153% 161% 173% +
| current liabilities

Obligations

Asset renewal Asset renewal and upgrade expense 6 104% 225% 246% 96% 90% 91% 0
| Asset depreciation

Stability

Rates concentration Rate revenue 7 53% 50% 56% 56% 56% 56% +
/ adjusted underlying revenue

Efficiency

Expenditure level Total expenses 8  $4051  $4,122  $3,904  $3926  $3949  $3971 +

| no. of property assessments

Notes to indicators - 5a

1. Satisfaction with community consultation and engagement
Council has used the average result for small rural councils as the basis for this target

2. Sealed local roads below the intervention level
Council intends to maintain a good level of road condition.

3. Planning applications decided within the relevant required time
Council intends to maintain current servicing levels, noting the resourcing constraints.

4. Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill
Aligns with previous year results and takes into consideration volatility in market/challenging legislative framework.

5. Working Capital
It is a continuous challenge for Council to ensure working capital is kept above 100% and the long term challenges of rate capping and
debt collection legislation impact this position.

6. Asset renewal
Asset renewal is anticipated to decrease from 2024/25 onwards. A conservative approach has been taken to capital grant funding which
impacts the upgrade and renewal capacity of Council.

7. Rates concentration
A conservative approach to capital grant funding results in rate revenue accounting for a higher percentage of revenue, showing an
increase in rates concentration over the coming 4 years

8. Expenditure level

Total expenses is anticipated to increase as the CPI increases which impact Council. The number of assessments has not increased for
the purposes of this KPI in the forecast years

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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5b. Financial performance indicators

The following table highlights Council's current and projected performance across a range of key financial performance indicators. These indicators
provide a useful analysis of Council's financial position and performance and should be interpreted in the context of the organisation’s objectives.
The financial performance indicators below are the prescribed financial performance indicators contained in Part 3 of Schedule 3 of the
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Requlations 2020. Results against these indicators will be reported in Council’s Performance
Statement included in the Annual Report.

Actual Forecast Budget Projections

Indicator
2021/22 2023/24 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

w
(3]
Measure S
=

Operating position
Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) 9 -7.1% -75% -8.7% -6.3% -4.2% -2.2% +
| Adjusted underlying revenue

Adjusted underlying result

Liquidity
Unrestricted cash 10 43% 107% 86% 89% 96% 108% +
| current liabilities

Unrestricted cash

Obligations

Loans and borrowings Interest bearing loans and 11 13% 12% 12% 11% 11% 11% 0
borrowings / rate revenue

Loans and borrowings Interest and principal repayments 4% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0

on interest bearing loans and
borrowings / rate revenue

Non-current liabilities 10% 29% 23% 33% 35% 22% +
| own source revenue

Indebtedness

Stability

Rates effort Rate revenue / CIV of rateable 12 0.63% 0.47% 0.42% 0.42% 0.41% 0.40% 0

properties in the municipality

Efficiency

Revenue level General rates and municipal charges 13 $1,442.7 $1,4656 $1,516.16 $1,546.5 $1577.4 $1,609.0 +

| no. of property assessments

Key to Forecast Trend:

+ Forecasts improvement in Council’s financial performance/financial position indicator

o Forecasts that Council’s financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady
- Forecasts deterioration in Council’s financial performance/financial position indicator
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Notes to indicators — 5b

9. Adjusted underlying result
Council continues to review the long term impact of decision making on the adjusted underlying result. The impact of rate capping and
increases in cost of materials is anticipated to continue to impact this result.

10. Unrestricted Cash
The impact of rate capping as well as a conservative approach taken to capital grant funding has meant the expectation of Council to
self fund capital works at a higher rate, resulting in a decrease in unrestricted cash.

11. Debt compared to rates
Council does not intend to borrow for further works, however does intend to refinance current loan.

12. Rates effort
The increase in CIV has increased substantially as compared to the rate cap over the past number of years. The assumption for the

coming years has been a 2% rate cap and a 5% increase in property valuations.

13. Revenue level
The increase in rates revenue per property increases due to the assumption of no increase in property numbers over the coming years.
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6. Schedule of Fees and Charges

This appendix presents the fees and charges of a statutory/
non-statutory nature which will be charged in respect to various
goods and services during the financial year 2023/24.

Art Gallery

Gallery Admission

Special Gallery Exhibitions

School Holiday Children’s Workshop Fees

Animal Management

Dog Registration - Animal either neutered, over 10 years old, working stock, breeding stock at registered business or obedience trained
Pensioner Dog Registration — Animal either neutered, over 10 years old, working stock, breeding stock at registered business or obedience trained
Cat Registration — Animal either neutered, over 10 years old or breeding stock at registered business.

Pensioner Cat Registration — Animal either neutered, over 10 years old or breeding stock at registered business

Dog Registration

Pensioner Dog Registration

Cat Registration

Pensioner Cat Registration

Micro chipping

Permit for more than 2 dogs (per annum)
Domestic Animal Business Registration (DAB)
Pound release fee (Cat)

Pound release per day (Cat)

Pound release fee (Dog)

Pound release per day (Dog)

Pound release fee (Stock & other)

Pound release fee (Stock & other)

Adoption Fee (Female Dogs)

Adoption Fee (Male Dogs)
Adoption Fee (Female Cats)
Adoption Fee (Male Cats)

Animal Trap Hire Bond

Airport

Site Leases

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Fees and charges are based on information available at the time
of publishing and may vary during the financial year subject to
any changes in Council’s policy or legislation.

Description of Fees and Charges

Unit of Measure

Per person
Per person

Per workshop

Per dog
Per dog
Per cat
Per cat
Per dog
Per dog
Per cat
Per cat
Per animal
Per permit
Per registration
Per cat
Per cat
Per dog
Per dog
Per animal
Per animal per day
Per animal
Per animal
Per animal
Per animal

Per trap

Per site

GST Status

Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$38.00
$19.00
$38.00
$19.00
$108.00
$54.00
$108.00
$54.00
$44.00
$44.00
$258.00
$44.00
$17.00
$44.00
$17.00
$108.00
$22.00
$455.00
$340.00
$232.00
$169.00
$50.00

Market rate

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST

$40.00
$20.00
$40.00
$20.00
$120.00
$60.00
$120.00
$60.00
$45.30
$45.30
$267.00
$45.30
$15.70
$45.30
$17.50
$111.00
$23.00
$470.00
$350.00
$240.00
$175.00
$50.00

Market Rate

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

Fee Increase [
(Decrease)

%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

5.3%
53%
53%
53%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
11.1%
3.0%
3.0%
3.5%
3.0%
-7.6%
3.0%
2.9%
2.8%
4.5%
33%
2.9%
3.4%
3.6%
0.0%

0.0%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Asset Management

Wood collection fee - per m?

Pensioner Concession Wood collection fee - per m?
Consent for excavation works

Vehicle crossing fee

General road occupation

Construction road occupation fee - first week
Construction road occupation fee - after one week

Tree Planting fee

Building

Building Information Fee

Stormwater legal point of discharge

Report & Consent (Demolition sec29A)

Report & Consent (All)

Lodgement Fee

Class 1 Dwelling (House) value $- - $150,000

Class 1 Dwelling (House) value $150,001 - $200,000
value $200,001 - $300,000
value $300,001 - $400,000
Class 1 Dwelling (House) value $400,001 - $500,000
Class 1 Dwelling (House) value $500,000 +

Class 1 Dwelling (House

( )
( )
( )
Class 1 Dwelling (House)
( )
( )

Class 10A Buildings (Sheds, pools, fences and retaining walls) value $- - $5,000
Class 10A Buildings (Sheds, pools, fences and retaining walls) value $5,001 - $10,000
Class 10A Buildings (Sheds, pools, fences and retaining walls) value $10,001 - $20,000
Class 10A Buildings (Sheds, pools, fences and retaining walls) value $20,001 +
Building Alterations Domestic value $- - $5,000

Building Alterations Domestic value $5,001 - $10,000

Building Alterations Domestic value $10,001 - $30,000

Building Alterations Domestic value $30,001 - $50,000

Building Alterations Domestic value $50,001 - $80,000

Building Alterations Domestic value $80,001 - $100,000

Building Alterations Domestic value $100,001 - $200,000

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Unit of Measure

Per m?
Per m?
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per week
Per week

Per permit

Per statement
Per permit
Per report
Per report
Per lodgement
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit

Per permit

GST Status

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$

$22.40
$11.20
$160.80
$139.00
$101.75
$101.75
$48.80
$172.00

$57.00
$72.00
$72.00
$72.00
$44.00
$1,877.00
$2,051.00
$2,248.00
$2,954.00
$3,731.00
POA
$625.00
$742.00
$870.00
$996.00
$625.00
$741.00
$996.00
$1,298.00
$1,645.00
$1,877.00
$2,018.00

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST
$

$23.18
$11.59
$166.40
$143.85
$105.30
$105.30
$50.50
$178.00

$57.00
$155.34
$91.43
$311.80
$44.00
$1,877.00
$2,051.00
$2,326.00
$3,057.00
$3,861.00
POA
$550.00
$652.00
$765.00
$876.00
$647.00
$767.00
$1,030.00
$1,343.00
$1,702.00
$1,940.00
$2,088.00

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$

$0.78
$0.39
$5.60
$4.85
$3.55
$3.55
$1.70
$6.00

$_
$83.34
$19.43

$239.80

$78.00
$103.00
$130.00
$_
$(75.00)
$(90.00)
$(105.00)
$(120.00)
$22.00
$26.00
$34.00
$45.00
$57.00
$63.00
$70.00

Fee Increase [
(Decrease)

%

3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
35%

0.0%
115.8%
27.0%
333.1%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
0.0%
-12.0%
-12.1%
-12.1%
-12.0%
3.5%
3.5%
3.4%
3.5%
3.5%
3.4%
35%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Building (continued...)

Building Alterations Domestic value $200,001 - $300,000
Building Alterations Domestic value $300,001 - $400,000
Building Alterations Domestic value $400,001 - $500,000

Building Alterations Domestic value over $500,000
All other buildings including Commercial value $- - $500,000

All other buildings including Commercial value $500,001 +

Extension of existing Building Permit value Class 10 buildings 1st permit extension1st permit extension
Extension of existing Building Permit value Class 10 buildings Subsequent extension

Extension of existing Building Permit value Class 1 - 9 buildings 1st permit extension

Extension of existing Building Permit value Class 1 - 9 buildings Subsequent extension

Redline report liquor licence

Building inspections

Demolition minor

Demolition Major

Minor Amendment of existing Building Permit

Major Amendment of existing Building Permit
Illegal building work

ESM report

Title search

Archive retrieval

Swimming pool or spa registration

Swimming pool or spa registration - Information search fee

Swimming pool or spa registration - Compliance Certificate Lodgement
Swimming pool or spa registration - Certificate of Noncompliance Lodgement
FRV report and consent comments

Place of Public Occupation (POPE)

Prescribed Temp Structures - Siting

Occupation of Temp Structures

Alternative Performance Solutions

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Unit of Measure

Per permit
Per permit
Per permit

Per permit

Per permit

Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per licence
Per inspection
Per permit
Per permit
Per request

Per permit
Per permit

Per report

Per search

Per retrieval
Per pool or spa
Per request
Per certificate
Per certificate
Per request
Per application
Per application
Per application

Per application

GST Status

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST
$

New
New
New
POA

$1.16 per 1% of
value of Building
works

POA
$544.00

POA
$544.00

POA
$469.00
$237.00
$591.00
$550.00
$220.00
$550.00

1.5 times building

permit fee
$591.00
$59.00
$86.00
$33.00
$49.00
$22.00
$397.00
New
New
New
New

New

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST
$

$2,326.00
$3,057.00
$3,861.00

POA

$1.20 per 1% of
value of Building
works

POA
$350.00
$550.00
$350.00
$550.00
$485.00
$245.00
$611.00
$570.00
$227.00
$569.00

1.5 times building

permit fee
$591.00
$61.00
$89.00
$33.00
$49.00
$22.00
$397.00
$720.00
$591.00
$400.00
$225.00
$350.00

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%
0.0%

0.0%

0.0%
-35.7%
0.0%
-35.7%
0.0%
3.4%
3.4%
3.4%
3.6%
3.2%
3.5%

0.0%

0.0%
3.4%
3.5%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Unit of Measure

GST Status

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST
$

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Caravan Park Registrations

Registration Application Fees less than 26 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 26 and 50 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 51 and 100 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 101 and 150 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 151 and 200 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 201 and 250 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 251 and 300 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 301 and 350 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 351 and 400 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 401 and 450 Sites
Registration Application Fees between 451 and 500 Sites

Civil Services

Checking of Civil drawings for Subdivisions
Supervision of construction
Private Works for Others

Environmental Health
Septic Tank application fee
Alter Septic Tank fee
Septic Tank amendment
Septic Tank extension
Additional Site Inspection

Search Fee

Finance

Land Information Certificate

62 Central Goldfields Shire Council

Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration

Per registration

Per job

Per job

Per job

Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per inspection

Per search

Per certificate

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable

$293.33

$586.65
$1,173.30
$1,777.21
$2,363.86
$2,950.51
$3,537.16
$4,141.07
$4,727.72
$5,314.37
$5,901.02

0.75% of the total
construction costs

2.5% of the total
construction costs

Costs plus 20%
plus GST

$734.00
$561.00
$58.00
$58.00
$210.00
$86.00

$31.40

$270.30

$540.60
$1,081.20
$1,637.70
$2,178.30
$2,718.90
$3,259.50
$3,816.00
$4,356.60
$4,897.20
$5,437.80

0.75% of the total
construction costs

2.5% of the total
construction costs

Costs plus 20%
plus GST

$777.19
$592.28
$62.00
$62.00
$217.00
$89.00

$28.28

$(23.03
$(46.05
3(92.10
$(139.51
(185.56
(23161
$(277.66
(325.07
(371.12
(
(

417.17

—_ e O O =

$(463.22

$43.19
$31.28
$4.00
$4.00
$7.00
$3.00

$(3.12)

-7.9%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%
-7.8%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

5.9%
5.6%
6.9%
6.9%
3.3%
35%

-9.9%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Food Premises
Class 1

Class 2 Fixed food premises

Class 2 Community Group fixed food premises

Class 2 Mobile Food Vehicle

Class 2 Mobile Food Vehicle (Community Group)

Class 2 Temporary Premise

Class 2 Temporary Premise (Community Group)

Class 2 Domestic Kitchen

Class 2 Community Group (Registration of a food van or temporary premises associated with a fixed premises)
Class 2 Registration of a food van or temporary premises associated with a fixed premises

Class 3 Fixed food premises

Class 3 Mobile Food Vehicle

Class 3 Mobile Food Vehicle (Community Group)

Class 3 Temporary Premises

Class 3 Temporary Premises (Community Group)

Class 3 Domestic Kitchen

Class 3 Registration of a food van or temporary premises associated with a fixed premises

Class 3 Community Group (Registration of a food van or temporary premises associated with a fixed premises)

Class & Street Trader Notification

Class 3 fee

Initial Registration fee for new business

Transfer of proprietor fee

Description of Fees and Charges

Requested inspection fee

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Description of Fees and Charges

Unit of Measure

Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration

Per registration

Per registration

Per transfer

Unit of Measure

Per inspection

GST Status

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

GST Status

Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$

$373.00

$326.00

$163.00

$326.00

$98.00

$326.00

$163.00

$326.00

$239.00

$490.00

$198.00

$198.00

$97.00

$198.00

$163.00

$198.00

$291.00

$192.00

$-

$-

Renewal fee as
per above + 50%.
Fees applied on a
pro-rata quarterly

basis for new
registrations

50% of applicable
renewal fee as per
the above. Plus
inspection fee

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

50% of applicable
renewal fee as per
the above. Plus
inspection fee

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST
$

$386.00

$337.00

$168.00

$337.00

$101.00

$337.00

$168.00

$337.00

$247.00

$507.00

$205.00

$205.00

$100.00

$205.00

$168.00

$205.00

$301.00

$198.00

$-

$-

Renewal fee as
per above + 50%.
Fees applied on a
pro-rata quarterly

basis for new
registrations

50% of applicable
renewal fee as per
the above. Plus
inspection fee

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST

50% of applicable
renewal fee as per
the above. Plus
inspection fee

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$_

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$_

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

35%
3.4%
3.1%
3.4%
3.1%
3.4%
3.1%
3.4%
33%
3.5%
3.5%
35%
3.1%
3.5%
3.1%
3.5%
3.4%
3.1%
0.0%
0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

0.0%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Food Premises (continued...)

Reinspection fee as a result of noncompliance follow up inspection required

Freedom of Information
Printing
Search fee per hour

Request fee

Goldfields Family Centre
Daily

Before kindergarten care
After kindergarten care
Vacation care

Kindergarten

Health Registrations

Skin Penetration fee

Hairdressers fee

Beauty Therapy

Prescribed Accommodation fee

Initial Registration fee Skin Penetration, Hairdressers or Beauty Therapy
Initial Registration fee Prescribed Accommodation fee

Transfer of proprietor fee Skin Penetration, Hairdressers or Beauty Therapy

Transfer of proprietor fee Prescribed Accommodation Fee

Requested inspection fee

Reinspection fee as a result of noncompliance follow up inspection required

Aquatic Facility Registration Category 1 (public aquatic facility)

Aquatic Facility Registration Category 2 (residential apartment complex, hotel, motel or hostel)

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Unit of Measure

Per inspection

Per A4 page
Per hour

Per search

Per day
Per session
Per session
Per day

Per term

Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per registration
Per transfer

Per transfer

Per inspection

Per inspection

Per registration

Per registration

GST Status

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$

50% of applicable
renewal fee as per
the above. Plus
inspection fee

$0.25
$22.90
$30.60

$113.00
$10.10
$20.15
$76.30
$407.00

$157.00
$79.00
$157.00
$205.00
$79.00
$105.00
$79.00
$102.00

50% of annual
renewal fee as per
the above.

50% of annual
renewal fee as per
the above.

$361.00
$206.00

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST
$

50% of applicable
renewal fee as per
the above. Plus
inspection fee

$0.25
$23.85
$31.13

$120.00
$10.70
$22.35
$80.87
$_

$162.00
$81.00
$162.00
$212.00
$81.00
$108.00
$81.00
$105.00

50% of annual
renewal fee as per
the above.

50% of annual
renewal fee as per
the above.

$373.00
$213.00

Fee Increase /

(Decrease)

$_
$0.95
$0.53

$7.00
$0.60
$2.20
$4.57
$(407.00)

$5.00
$2.00
$5.00
$7.00
$2.00
$3.00
$2.00
$3.00

$_

$_

$12.00
$7.00

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

0.0%

0.0%
4.1%
1.7%

6.2%
5.9%
10.9%
6.0%
-100.0%

3.2%
2.5%
3.2%
3.4%
2.5%
29%
2.5%
2.9%

0.0%

0.0%

3.3%
3.4%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
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6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Home Support Services
Home care

Respite

Personal care

Social support - group
Social support - individual
Home maintenance

Home modifications

Delivered meals

Immunisations
FluQuadri [FLU]
Bexsero [Men B]

Varilix [Chickenpox]

Adacel [Diphtheria - Tetanus - Whooping Cough]

Engerix B [Hep B - adult]
Havrix [Hep A - adult]

Library Services

Book Club Registration on Institution
Fines per day

Lost Card

Library Bags

Photocopy A4 B&W

Photocopy A3 B&W

Photocopy A4 Colour
Photocopy A3 Colour

Fax - sending

Fax - receiving

Processing fee - lost books
Reservations/Inter-Library Loan

Reservations/Inter-Library Loan - Tertiary

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Description of Fees and Charges

Unit of Measure

Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour

Per hour

Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose
Per dose

Per dose

Per registration
Per book
Per card
Per bag
Per page
Per page
Per page
Per page
Per page
Per page
Per book
Per book
Per book

GST Status

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

2022/23 Fee

Inc GST
$

$7.15
$4.10
$4.10
$1.40
$7.15
$12.70
$12.70
$10.70

$15.00
$130.00
$57.00
$35.00
$20.00
$_

$157.70
$_
$2.00
$3.60
$0.25
$0.50
$1.00
$2.00
$2.00
$_
$6.00
$3.00
$18.40 - $23.40

2023/24 Fee

Inc GST
$

$7.50
$4.30
$4.30
$1.45
$7.50
$17.00
$13.20
$11.10

$15.50
$135.00
$59.00
$36.25
$21.00
$53.50

$157.70
$_
$2.00
$3.60
$0.25
$0.50
$1.00
$2.00
$2.00
$_
$6.00
$3.00
$18.40 - $23.40

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$

$0.35
$0.20
$0.20
$0.05
$0.35
$4.30
$0.50
$0.40

$0.50
$5.00
$2.00
$1.25
$1.00
$53.50

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

4.9%
4.9%
4.9%
3.6%
4.9%
33.9%
3.9%
3.7%

33%
3.8%
3.5%
3.6%
5.0%
100.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Local Laws

Parking fines

Disabled Parking Permit
Advertising A Frame90cm X60cm
Gas heater

Outdoor Dining per table
Impounded Vehicle Release fee
Temporary barriers

Umbrella

Outside Dining permit x2 chairs
Busking permit

Display of goods per metre
Container/Camping Storage Permit
[tinerate Trade Permit

Local Laws infringements

Open Air Burning Permit

Street Party , festivals and Procession permit*

" Events on Council land which are not required to obtain a POPE

Local Laws - Parking Infringements

Stop contrary to a no parking sign

Parked contrary to requirement of parking area

Parked no completely within a parking bay

Parked for period longer than indicated

Stop double parked

Stop on a footpath

Stop on an area between a road and adjacent land
Park not facing direction of travel

Stop next to a yellow edge line

Stop heavy vehicle in built-up area longer than one hour
Stop long vehicle in built up area longer than one hour
Stop in a loading zone

Stop in a loading zone longer than 30 minutes

Stop in a no stopping area

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Description of Fees and Charges

Unit of Measure

Per fine

Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per vehicle
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per permit
Per fine

Per Permit

Per Permit

Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine

Per fine

GST Status

Non-Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Non-Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$118.00
$_
$59.00
$139.40
$258.50
$100.00
$_

$_

$65.00

$65.00

$65.00

$65.00
$109.00
$109.00
$109.00
$109.00
$109.00
$109.00
$109.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST

$65.00
$_
$56.00
$56.00
$58.00
$150.00
$58.00
$56.00
$58.00
$23.00
$59.00
$139.40
$258.50
$184.92
$28.00
$160.00

$65.00

$65.00

$65.00

$65.00
$112.82
$112.82
$112.82
$112.82
$112.82
$112.82
$112.82
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$65.00
$(12.20)
$2.00
$56.00
$(1.00)
$150.00
$58.00
$56.00
$(60.00)
$23.00

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

%

100.0%
-100.0%
3.7%
100.0%
-1.7%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
-50.8%
100.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
84.9%
100.0%
100.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
35%
35%
3.5%
35%
3.5%
3.5%
35%
3.5%
35%
35%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

7
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Local Laws - Parking Infringements (continued...)
Stop on a children’s crossing

Stop within20 metres before a children's crossing
Stop within 10 metres after a children’s crossing
Stop on a pedestrian crossing

Stop within 20 metres before pedestrian crossing
Stop within 10 metres after a pedestrian crossing
Stop in a parking area for people with disabilities
Stop within 10 metres of an intersection

Stop within an intersection

Parking or leaving vehicle standing in a council-controlled area contrary to sign

Local Laws - Animal Infringements

Failure to apply to register a dog or cat

Failure to renew a cat or dog registration

Registered dog or cat not wearing council identification marker outside premises
Dog at large or not securely confined to owner's premises during daytime

Dog at large or not securely confined to owner’s premises during night time

Dog or cat being a nuisance

Failure to pick up dog waste

Failing to include declaration of restricted breed at registration

Attack or bite on a person or animal by a dog other than a dangerous dog causing injury that is not in the nature of serious injury

Contravening council order relating to presence of dogs and cats in public places

Dog rushing or chasing any person

Planning

Extension to Planning Permit - First extension

Extension to Planning Permit — Second extension

Extension to Planning Permit - Third extension

Secondary Consent

Written Planning Advice

Request for copying of Planning Permit (Electronic Version)
Request for hard copy of Planning Permit or other documentation
Notice of Planning Application

Notice letters (only above 12 letters/notices)

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Unit of Measure

Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine

Per fine

Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine
Per fine

Per fine

Per extension
Per extension
Per extension
Per consent
Per report
Per copy

Per copy

Per notice

Per letter

GST Status

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$

$182.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00
$182.00

$363.00
$363.00

$91.00
$273.00
$363.00

$91.00
$250.00
$363.00
$454.00
$182.00
$182.00

$330.00
$553.00
$203.00
$110.00
$58.00
$110.00
$54.00
$55.50
At cost

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST

$

$188.37
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37
$188.37

$375.71
$375.71

$94.19
$282.56
$375.71

$94.19
$258.75
$375.71
$469.89
$188.37
$188.37

$227.00
$340.00
$570.00
$227.00
$113.00
$60.00
$113.00
$55.50
$2.00

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$

$6.37
$6.37
$6.37
$6.37
$6.37
$6.37
$6.37
$6.37
$6.37
$6.37

$12.71
$12.71
$3.18
$9.55
$12.71
$3.18
$8.75
$12.71
$15.89
$6.37
$6.37

$(103.00)
$(213.00)
$367.00
$117.00
$55.00
$(50.00)
$59.00
$_

$_

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

35%
3.5%
35%
3.5%
35%
35%
3.5%
35%
3.5%
3.5%

3.5%
35%
35%
3.5%
35%
3.5%
3.5%
35%
3.5%
35%
3.5%

-31.2%
-38.5%
180.8%
106.4%
94.8%
-45.5%
109.3%
0.0%
0.0%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory
Statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Planning (continued...)
Public notice in newspaper or Government Gazette
Planning Panel Costs

Request to Approve Development Plan

Sporting Grounds Casual Use/Hire

Frank Graham Oval - Casual

Princes Park Oval Casual Hire - training without lights

Princes Park Oval Casual Hire - training with lights

Princes Park Netball Court Casual Hire - training without lights

Princes Park Netball Court Casual Hire - training with lights

Jubilee Oval - Casual

Hedges Oval - Casual

Jack Pascoe Reserve - Casual

Soccer Fields - Casual

Personal Training Licence Application 1 - 10 participants

Personal Training Licence Application 1 - 10 participants

Personal Training Licence Application 11 - 20 participants

Personal Training Licence Application 11 - 20 participants

Tullaroop Leisure Centre - Squash courts

Tullaroop Leisure Centre - Main court

Tullaroop Leisure Centre - Multi-purpose room

Tullaroop Leisure Centre - All facilities

Tullaroop Leisure Centre - All facilities

Nolan Street Gymnasium - entire building excluding the designated Youth space (community group)
Nolan Street Gymnasium - All facilities excluding the designated Youth space (community group)
Nolan Street Gymnasium - All facilities excluding the designated Youth space (other users)
Nolan Street Gymnasium - All facilities excluding the designated Youth space (other users)
Nolan Street Gymnasium - Front room (community group)

Nolan Street Gymnasium - Front room (other users)

Nolan Street Gymnasium - Main court (community group)

(
(

Nolan Street Gymnasium - Main court (other users)

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Unit of Measure

Per notice
Per panel

Per request

Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per quarter
Per annum
Per annum

Per quarter

Per hour/ per court

Per hour
Per hour
Per hour
Per day
Per hour
Per day
Per hour
Per day
Per hiring
Per hiring
Per hour

Per hour

GST Status

Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$

At cost
$442.00
$220.00

$48.00
$48.00
$69.00
$12.00
$29.00
$48.00
$48.00
$48.00
$48.00
$98.00
$380.00
$136.00
$544.00
$10.00
$20.00
$10.00
$40.00
$150.00
$10.20
$102.00
$40.70
$152.70
$12.20
$34.60
$10.20
$20.40

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST

$

At cost
At cost
$450.00

$50.00
$50.00
$70.00
$15.00
$30.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$50.00
$100.00
$395.00
$140.00
$565.00
$10.00
$20.00
$10.00
$40.00
$155.00
$10.00
$155.00
$40.00
$155.00
$15.00
$35.00
$20.00
$20.00

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

Fee Increase [
(Decrease)
%

0.0%
0.0%
104.5%

4.2%
4.2%
1.4%
25.0%
3.4%
4.2%
42%
4.2%
4.2%
2.0%
3.9%
29%
3.9%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
33%
-2.0%
52.0%
-1.7%
15%
23.0%
12%
96.1%
-2.0%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Tourism and Resource Centre

Tourism Membership - Premium

Tourism Membership - Essential

Tourism Membership - Not-for-profit

Tourism Membership - Taste Member

Tourism Membership - Associations

Tourism Membership - Digital

Resource Centre Meeting Room/Foyer - Other users
Resource Centre Meeting Room/Foyer - Not-for-profit
Photocopy A4 B&W

Photocopy A3 B&W

Photocopy A4 Colour

Photocopy A3 Colour

Fax

Venue Hire

Community Hub — Community groups
Community Hub - Other users
Maryborough Town Hall*#

Maryborough Town Hall Kitchen Only#
Maryborough Lower Town Hall
Maryborough Town Hall sound system hire*

* Plus Bond $300 # Plus Key Bond $100

Waste Services

Kerbside Collection

Garbage collection - Standard bin

Garbage collection - Optional larger bin - Urban 140, Rural 240
Garbage collection - Multiple service (per bin)

Recycling collection

Recycling collection - Multiple service (per bin)

Service establishment/bin supply cost for additional garbage bin
Waste Management fee

Green Waste collection

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Unit of Measure

Per membership
Per membership
Per membership
Per membership
Per membership
Per membership
Per hire
Per hire
Per page
Per page
Per page
Per page
Per page

Per hiring
Per hiring
Per hiring
Per hiring
Per hiring
Per hiring

Per year
Per year
Per year
Per year
Per year
Per service
Per year

Per year

GST Status

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Non-Taxable
Taxable
Non-Taxable

Non-Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST

$

$658.40
$331.70
$169.00
$137.40
$547.40
$84.50
$33.60
$12.20
$0.25
$0.50
$1.00
$2.00
$2.00

$12.20
$34.60
$386.70
$54.00
$54.00
$60.00

$178.14
$304.75
$178.14
$159.44
$159.44
$112.73
$154.77

$79.56

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST

$

$681.50
$343.30
$175.00
$142.20
$566.50
$87.50
$34.80
$12.60
$0.25
$0.50
$1.00
$2.00
$2.00

$13.00
$36.00
$400.00
$56.00
$56.00
$62.00

$193.54
$330.93
$193.54
$173.14
$173.14
$122.41
$168.07

$86.90

Fee Increase /

(Decrease)

$0.80
$1.40
$13.30
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00

$15.40
$26.18
$15.40
$13.70
$13.70

$9.68
$13.30

$7.34

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

3.5%
3.5%
3.6%
3.5%
3.5%
3.6%
3.6%
33%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

6.6%
4.0%
3.4%
3.7%
3.7%
3.3%

8.6%
8.6%
8.6%
8.6%
8.6%
8.6%
8.6%
9.2%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

6. Schedule of Fees and Charges «oinuca.)

Description of Fees and Charges

Waste Services (continued...)

Transfer Station Gate fees

Waste Disposal

Waste Disposal

Waste Disposal

Green Waste Disposal

Car Tyre Disposal

Truck or Tractor Tyre Disposal - Per tyre
Mattress Disposal

Televisions - Each

Building demolition waste (up to 3 tonne)
Additional Waste Vouchers for Monthly Kerbside Hard waste Collection
Mulch sales

Loaded

Self loaded

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Unit of Measure

Per cubic metre
Car boot load
240 litre bin
Per cubic metre
Per tyre

Per tyre

Per mattress
Per television
Per cubic metre

Per voucher

Per cubic metre

Per cubic metre

GST Status

Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable
Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

Taxable

2022/23 Fee
Inc GST
$

S44.32
$15.83
$11.61
$44.32

$9.50
$41.15
$29.55
$23.21
S44.32
$11.61

$29.55
$6.33

2023/24 Fee
Inc GST
$

$43.85
$16.38
$12.01
$45.85

$9.83
$42.60
$30.58
$24.02
$45.85
$12.01

$30.58
$6.55

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)

$

$(0.47)
$0.55
$0.40
$1.53
$0.33
$1.45
$1.03
$0.81
$1.53
$0.40

$1.03
$0.22

Fee Increase /
(Decrease)
%

-11%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%

3.5%
3.5%

Central Goldfields Shire Council

BUDGET

2023-24

Basis of Fee

Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory
Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory

Non-statutory
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BUDGET

2023-24

Appendix A

This appendix represents a listing of anticipated New Footpaths to be completed and Road Renewals to be funded through Roads to

Recovery funding in the 2023/24 year.

New Footpaths

Kars St

Havelock St

Ballarat St N

Bucknall St

Road Renewals - Roads to Recovery Funded
Frost Avenue

Burns Street

Clunes Mt Cameron Road

Central Goldfields Shire Council

From (Road Name)

Clarendon Street

Dunolly - Bridgewater Road
King St

Mclachlan St

Crimea Street
Station Street
Wattle Gully Road

To (Road Name)

Wellington Street

Hospital Entrance

Ballarat Maryborough Road
McNeil St

Clarke Street
Tuaggra Street

Mt Cameron Glengower Road (Hepburn)

100
210
200
123

180
96
1081

15
15
15
15

6.6
113
3.6

150
315
300
300

1188
1084.8
3891.6

Proposed Treatment

New Concrete Footpath
New Concrete Footpath
New Concrete Footpath

New Concrete Footpath

Pavement Reconstruction
Pavement Reconstruction

Pavement Reconstruction

Proposed Year

2023/24
2023/24
2023/24
2023/24

2023/24
2023/24
2023/24

BUDGET

2023-24

Central Goldfields Shire Council
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8.2 DRAFT PROCUREMENT POLICY - 2023 REVIEW

Author: Coordinator Procurement

Responsible Officer: General Manager Corporate Performance

The Officer presenting this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of
staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

SUMMARY/PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to present to Council the Draft Procurement Policy as
part of the 2023 Review, for endorsement of the draft policy o be made available for
community feedback.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1. endorse the Draft Procurement Policy 2023 as attached for public consultation;

2. that the feedback period close at 5pm 26 July 2023; and

3. that a final Procurement Policy 2023, taking into consideration public feedback,
be considered for adoption at the Council Meeting Scheduled for 29 August
2023.

LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT
Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Leading Change
The Community's vision 4. Good planning, governance, and service delivery
4. Transparent decision making;
4. Effective and sustainable financial management.

e Local Government Act 2020 (The Act) Section 108 and Section 109.

e Procurement Policy December 2021
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Central Goldfields Shire Council adopted its Procurement Policy in December 2021,
following the commencement of The Act.



The Act no longer requires an annual review (as the previous Act did), a review date of
December 2022 was set on its adoption, however operational requirements have delayed
the review until now.

The application of the policy to date has led to some improvements in procurement
performance such as the establishment of quarterly reporting on compliance to the
policy, and a reduction in the number of retrospective purchase orders.

REPORT

Section 108 of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) prescribes the following
requirements for the Procurement Policy.

1. A Council must prepare and adopt a Procurement Policy which specifies the
principles, processes and procedures applying in respect of the purchase of goods
and services by the Council, including for the carrying out of works.

2. A Procurement Policy must seek to promote open and fair competition and provide
value for money.

3. A Procurement Policy must include the following—

a. the contract value above which the Council must invite a tender or seek an
expression of interest;

b. a description of the criteria to be used by the Council to evaluate whether a
proposed contract provides value for money;

¢. adescription of how the Council will seek collaboration with other Councils and
public bodies in the procurement of goods or services;

d. the conditions under which the Council may purchase goods or services without
inviting a public tender or expression of interest;

e. a description of the process to be undertaken in inviting a public tender or
expression of interest;

f. any other matters prescribed by the regulations.

4. The contract value to be included in a Procurement Policy in accordance with
subsection 3(a) must not exceed the value prescribed by the regulations for the
purposes of this section.

5. A Council must review its Procurement Policy at least once during each 4 year term
of the Council.

6. A Council must adopt the first Procurement Policy under this section within 6
months of the commencement of this section.

Section 109 of the Act requires that:



1. A Council must comply with its Procurement Policy before entering into a contract
for the purchase of goods or services or the carrying out of works.

2. The Chief Executive Officer must ensure that any report to the Council that
recommends entering into a procurement agreement includes information in
relation to any opportunities for collaboration with other Councils or public bodies
which may be available.

Victorian councils play a pivotal role in providing and maintaining a wide range of services,
programs, and infrastructure for their communities.

With responsibility for the management of community infrastructure worth
approximately $90 billion and delivery of more than $7 billion in critical public services
every year, councils spend between 45 per cent and 60 per cent of their annual budgets
on procurement.

Considerable power is therefore vested in public officers of councils to source suppliers,
manage contracts and authorise payment for goods, services and works - using public
money. The Victorian community rightly expects that council employees will perform
their duties with integrity and impartiality and will act in the public interest rather than
their own.!

The review of the policy has taken into account:

e requirements of the Act and regulations
e Victorian Local Government Best Practice Procurement Guidelines 2013

e recommendations from investigations by the Independent Broad Based Anti-
corruption Commission (IBAC), the Local Government Inspectorate, and the
Victorian Ombudsman

e internal consultation with all staff and key internal stakeholders
e feedback from two sessions with Councillors, and a session with the Audit and
Risk Committee.

What is Procurement?2

Procurement is the whole process of acquisition of external goods, services and works.

This process spans the whole life cycle from initial concept through to the end of the
useful life of an asset (including disposal) or the end of a service contract.

Principals of Procurement?

1. Value for Money

1 Preface to New Best Practice Procurement Guidelines For The Local Government Sector in Victoria
June/July 2020

2 Central Goldfields Shire Council Procurement Policy December 2021

3 Victorian Local Government Best Practice Procurement Guidelines 2013



The concept of 'value for money' involves taking into account both costs and non-cost
factors including:

e Advancing the council's priorities

e Fitness for purpose

e Quality

e Service and support

e Whole-of-life costs and transaction costs associated with acquiring, using,
holding, maintain and disposing of goods, services and works.

2. Open and Fair competition

All prospective suppliers/vendors must be freated (and be seen to be treated) fairly in
an open and transparent manner with the same access to information about the
procurement to enable them to submit prices/quotations/tenders on the same basis.

Councils must adequately test the market in a consistent manner without any bias, or
perception of bias, so that potential suppliers and the public have confidence in the
outcome.

3. Accountability

Council staff are responsible for the actions and decisions they take in relation to
procurement and for the resulting outcomes.

Staff are answerable for such activities through established lines of accountability and
delegation, and ultimately to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO).

Staff must also ensure they provide adequate and reliable advice to the elected council
to allow it to make sound decisions on procurement matters.

4. Risk Management

All procurement carries some level of risk. It is important for councils to recognise this
risk and to develop appropriate strategies to deal with it.

5. Probity and Transparency

In all commercial dealings, the highest standards of honesty must be observed. Councils
must conduct their business in a fair, honest and open manner, demonstrating the
highest levels of integrity consistent with the public interest.

6. Sustainable and social procurement objections4

4 Preface to New Best Practice Procurement Guidelines For the Local Government Sector in Victoria
June/July 2020



Emerging Themes in Local Government Procurement

Circular Economy

Sustainable Procurement

Social Procurement

Collaboration

Post-disaster/emergency procurement management
Entrepreneurial Powers of Council

Grants Funding and Procurement

Supplier Code of Conduct

Findings

Based on these inputs, attached are the rationale for the proposed changes and the
Draft Policy as reviewed, with material changes highlighted.

The focus of the review has been on maintaining and enhancing probity in the
procurement process, while ensuring the policy is flexible enough to accommodate the
operational needs of the organisation in order to deliver best value for the community.

The major changes include:

clarifying sustainable procurement principles

examining the policy to remove content that would more appropriately sit in a
procedure, or where it repeats existing policies and procedures (e.g., Fraud
Policy).

tightening definitions and including a provision for Council to provide delegation
to the CEO to approve a percentage or set value of variation for individual
contracts.

adjusting thresholds to better match industry standard and provide a more
workable policy (Appendix 1 of the Draft Policy)

specifying how vendor panels are to be used

managing personal interest risks by including a provision for a probity advisor
under specific circumstances

including reference to modern-day slavery laws.

CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

The policy has been in operation for a year and during that time the Procurement Team
has been working with procurement practitioners, the local Regional Procurement
Network and the Audit and Risk Committee, and has been undertaking research around



industry trends, benchmarking, and best practice. The team has also consulted
extensively across the organisation.

Community consultation is now proposed to gather feedback on the draft policy.

Date Activity

27 June 2023 Council Meeting - For endorsement of Draft for
community feedback

28 June - 26 July 2023 | Community Feedback

29 August 2023 Council Meeting - For consideration of feedback
and adoption

FINANCTIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
The Policy review is funded from existing department budgets.
RISK MANAGEMENT

This report addresses Council's strategic risk Governance - Failure to fransparently
govern and embrace good governance practices and Legislative compliance - Failure to
manage our compliance with relevant legislative requirements by ensuring Council's policy
in relation to Procurement is regularly updated, complies with the legislative
requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and aligns with best practice.

CONCLUSION

After extensive research and internal consultation, the draft Procurement Policy July
2023 is presented to Council for endorsement for Community Feedback.

ATTACHMENTS

8.2.1 Procurement Policy December 2021
8.2.2 Proposed changes with rationale 23 May 2023
8.2.3 Draft Procurement Policy Review 2023
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1 Acknowledgement

Central Goldfields Shire Council acknowledges that we are situated on the traditional lands of
the Dja Dja Wurrung people, and we offer our respects to their elders past, present and
emerging.

2 Definitions and Abbreviations

Term Definition

Act Section 108 Local Government Act 2020.(The Act)

A contract established by the Council, government or a
nominated agent, such as Procurement Australasia (PA),
Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV), Loddon Mallee
Procurement Network of Councils or a local government
entity, for the benefit of numerous state, federal and/or
local government entities that achieves best value by
leveraging combined economies of scale.

Collaborative Procurement
Arrangement

Information that, if released, may prejudice the business
dealings or commercial interests of Council or another
party, e.g. prices, discounts, rebates, profits,
methodologies, and process information, etc.

Commercial in Confidence

A conflict of interest exists when private interests conflict
with public duty. In a situation where private interests may

Conflict of Interest benefit from or be adversely affected by public duty a
conflict of interest probably exists and it should be
declared.

The process that ensures all parties to a contract fully
meet their respective obligations as efficiently and
effectively as possible, in order to deliver the contract
objectives and provide Value for Money.

Contract Management

The Central Goldfields Shire Council organisation,

Gl including Councillors and Council Staff.
Council's elected representatives (the Mayor and
Councillors Councillors) or Administrator(s) appointed to act in this

capacity.

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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Term Definition

Includes all Council officers, temporary employees,

Council Staff contractors, volunteers and consultants while engaged by
Council.
The Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption
IBAC o
Commission

An Indigenous Business is one that is at least 50% owned
by an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islands person(s)

Indigenous Business (consistent with Supply Nation’s definition).
https://supplynation.org.au/benefits/indigenous-
business/

A commercial business with an operational premises that

[T is physically located within the municipal borders.

The 10 Councils comprising the LMPN, being the Buloke
Shire  Council, Campaspe Shire Council, Central
Goldfields Shire Council, City of Greater Bendigo,
Gannawarra Shire Council, Loddon Shire Council,
Macedon Ranges Shire Council, Mildura Rural City
Council, Mount Alexander Shire Council and Swan Hill
Rural City Council.

Loddon Mallee Procurement
Network LMPN

Panels of suppliers or vendors who are able to supply
goods, works or services. Panels are based on categories
such as trade services and plant hire. Panels mean that
Council staff are able to request a quotation (from
Preferred Supplier Panels suppliers on the panel) without publically inviting tenders
(noting that the number of quotations requested still
needs to be compliant with the policy). Preferred Supplier
Panels are also known as Approved Supplier Lists or
Approved Contractor Lists.

Procurement principles are the fundamental propositions
Principles or forces that serve as the foundation for the policy and
will govern procurement practices and decision making.

Within government, the term "probity" is often used in a
general sense to mean "good process”. A procurement
process that conforms to the expected standards of
probity is one in which clear procedures that are
Probity consistent with the Council’s policies and legislation, are
established, understood, and followed from the outset.
These procedures need to consider the legitimate
interests of suppliers and ensure that all potential
suppliers are treated equitably.

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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Term Definition

Procurement is the whole process of acquisition of
external goods, services and works. This process spans
Procurement the whole life cycle from initial concept through to the end
of the useful life of an asset (including disposal) or the end
of a service contract.

The Procurement System is the IT system for managing

Procurement System
procurement and contract management processes.

Public Advertising is through The Maryborough District
Advertiser and online/digital through Councils eTender
Portal. Print advertising is at the discretion of the Tender
Evaluation Panel.

Public Advertising

A standing offer arrangement based on a Schedule of
Rates contract that sets out rates for goods and services
Schedule of Rates Contract which are available for the term of the agreement but
without a commitment to purchase a specified value or
quantity of goods or services.

The positive impacts on people, places or communities
Social Benefit generated through procurement practices within the
municipal boundary.

Any organisation which supplies goods or services to
Council including but not limited to, contractors,

Suppliers subcontractors, manufacturers, wholesalers, retailers and
consultants.
Activities that meet the needs of the present without
Sustainability compromising the ability of future generations to meet

their needs.

The process of inviting parties from either a select list or
via public advertisement to submit an offer by tender
Tender Process followed by evaluation of submissions and selection of a
successful bidder or tenderer in accordance with pre-
determined evaluation criteria.

The potential total value of the contract including:

Total Contract Sum o costs for the full term of the contract, including any
options for either party to extend the contract;

e applicable goods and services tax (GST);

e anticipated contingency allowances or variations, and

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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Term Definition

o all other known, anticipated and reasonably
foreseeable costs.

Value for Money in procurement is about selecting the
supply of goods, services and works taking into account
both cost and non-cost factors including:

e non-cost factors such as contribution to the
advancement of Council’s priorities, fithess for
purpose, quality, service and support, and

o cost-related factors including whole-of-life costs and
transaction costs associated with acquiring, using,
holding, maintaining and disposing of the goods,
services or works.

Value for Money

Overview

This Procurement Policy is made under Section 108 of the Local Government Act 2020
(the Act). The Act requires each council to:

e Prepare and adopt a procurement policy which specifies the principles, processes and
procedures applying in respect of the purchase of goods and services and carrying out of
works by the Council; and

o Review its procurement policy at least once during each 4-year term of the Council.

This Policy has been developed collaboratively by the Loddon Mallee Procurement Network
(LMPN) with a view to facilitating smooth collaborative procurement processes, consistent
with the Act.

Applicability

This Policy applies to all procurement activities at the Council and is applicable to
Councillors and Council Staff.

It is recognised this will enhance achievement of the Council’s objectives such as
sustainable and socially responsible procurement, supporting local economies and obtaining
Value for Money, leading to a better result in the provision of goods, services and works for
the benefit of the community.

This Policy provides direction on the conduct of procurement activities throughout the
sourcing, management and disposal phases. It does not extend to the related accounts
payable processes.

The Council must comply with this Procurement Policy before purchasing, or entering into a
contract for, the purchase of goods, services or the carrying out of works.

Objectives

This Policy is consistent with the requirements of s 108 (2) of the Act and will:
e Promote open and fair competition and provide Value for Money;

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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Provide clear guidelines to the Council to allow consistency and control over
procurement activities;

Demonstrate accountability to ratepayers and residents;

Provide guidance on ethical behaviour in public sector procurement;

Demonstrate the application of best practice in procurement activities;

Demonstrate the consideration of sustainability in procurement with respect to social,
economic and environmental factors;

Increase the probability of obtaining the best outcome for the municipal community
when procuring goods and services; and delivering works, and

Promote collaborative procurement.

These objectives will be achieved by requiring that the Council’s contracting, purchasing and
contract management activities:

Support the Council’s corporate strategies, aims and objectives;

Span the whole life cycle of an acquisition and take sustainability and environmental
benefit considerations into account;

Achieve demonstrable Value for Money;

Are conducted in and demonstrate an impartial fair and ethical manner;

Seek continual improvement through innovative and technological initiatives, and
Generate and support Local Business through inclusion wherever practicable.

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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3 Application of GST

All monetary values stated in this policy are inclusive of GST.

4 Effective Legislative and Policy Compliance and Control

2.1 Ethics and Probity
2.1.1 Requirement

The Council’s procurement activities will be performed in an open, transparent and ethical
manner with demonstrated integrity, fairness and accountability that meets relevant legal
requirements.

All tender processes will be conducted in accordance with the requirements of this
Procurement Policy and any associated procedures, relevant legislation, relevant Australian
Standards, Commercial Law and the Act.

2.1.2 Conduct of Councillors and Council Staff

Councillors and Council Staff will at all times conduct themselves in ways that are in
accordance with the Councillor Code of Conduct and the Staff Code of Conduct respectively,
and will perform their duties ethically and with integrity and must:

e Treat potential and existing suppliers with equality and fairness;

Not use their position to seek or receive personal gain in procurement matters;

Maintain confidentiality of Commercial in Confidence information;

Present the highest standards of professionalism and probity;

Afford suppliers and tenderers with the same information and an equal opportunity to

tender or quote for goods, services and works contracts;

¢ Be able to account for all decisions and demonstrate and provide evidence of the
processes followed;

¢ Not perform any work under any Council contracts they are supervising i.e. Council
Staff cannot also work for the relevant supplier;

¢ Query incidents, decisions or directions that appear to contradict or deviate from
Council’s standards of ethics or probity or established policies and procedures; and

e Ensure that this Procurement Policy and Council’s Procurement guidelines are
adhered to in relation to any expenditure of Council funds.

2.1.3 Conflict of Interest

Councillors and Council Staff will at all times avoid situations which may give rise to an actual
or perceived conflict of interest. A conflict of interest may be a ‘general’ or a ‘material’ conflict
of interest.

A person has a general conflict of interest in a matter if an impatrtial, fair-minded person would
consider that the person's private interests could result in that person acting in a manner that
is contrary to their public duty. A general conflict of interest includes a perceived conflict of
interest, that is, when it could be perceived that there may be a conflict of interest.’

" The policy for managing conflicts of interests and the codes of conduct can be referred for further
information.

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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A person has a material conflict of interest in a matter if an affected person would gain a benefit
or suffer a loss depending on the outcome of the matter. The benefit or loss may be direct or
indirect and pecuniary or non-pecuniary. Affected persons include, among others, the member
of Council Staff, Councillors and their family members.

Council Staff involved in the procurement process, in particular preparing tender
documentation, writing tender specifications, participating in tender evaluation panels,
preparing a recommendation report; and Councillors and Council Staff awarding tenders must:

¢ Avoid conflicts of interest, whether material or general or actual, potential or perceived;

o Declare if they have a conflict of interest in respect of the procurement. Council Staff,
Contractors and external parties participating in any stage of the tender process must
complete a Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality declaration. Council Staff will complete
this declaration through the Procurement System , all other parties will complete a Council
supplied Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality Declaration template, this will be uploaded
into the Procurement System . Council Staff must declare any actual or perceived conflicts
in line with Council’s internal processes for reporting conflicts of interest. Councillors must
declare any actual or perceived conflict in accordance with the Councillor process for
conflicts of interest; and

¢ Observe prevailing Council and Government guidelines on how to prevent or deal with
conflict of interest situations; and not take advantage of any tender related information
whether or not for personal gain.

2.1.4 Fair and Honest Dealing

All prospective contractors and suppliers must be treated impartially and afforded an equal
opportunity to tender or submit a quotation.

Any suspected improper conduct, including suspected fraud, corruption, substantial
mismanagement of public resources, risk to public health and safety, risk to the environment,
or detrimental action should be managed in accordance with Council’s internal policies and
processes.

2.1.5 Probity, Accountability and Transparency

Accountability in procurement means being able to justify and provide evidence of the process
followed. An independent third party must be able to see clearly that a process has been
followed and that the process was fair and reasonable.

Council Staff must be able to account for all procurement decisions and ensure all
procurement activities leave an audit trail for monitoring and reporting purposes.

2.1.6 Gifts and Benefits
e Any gift or benefit offered to a Councillor or Council Staff will be managed in
accordance with Council’s internal policies and processes, but noting that Councillors
and Council Staff:
o Must not receive a private benefit from a contractor or supplier;
o Must declare the offer of a gift or benefit even if this is refused;
o must not knowingly engage a Council supplier for private benefit,
2.1.7 Disclosure of Information

Commercial in Confidence information received by the Council must not be disclosed and is
to be stored in a secure location.

Councillors and Council Staff must take all reasonable measures to maintain confidentiality
of:
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e Information disclosed by organisations in tenders, quotation or during tender
negotiations; and
e Commercial in Confidence information.

Councillors and Council Staff are to avoid references to current or proposed contracts in
discussion with acquaintances or outside interests.

Discussion with potential suppliers during tender evaluations should not go beyond the extent
necessary to resolve doubt on what is being offered by that supplier.

At no stage should any discussion be entered into which could improperly influence the
procurement process or negotiation of a contract prior to the contract approval process being
finalised, other than authorised pre-contract negotiations.

2.1.8 Complaints & Reporting suspicious activities
Complaints Handling
Members of the public and suppliers are encouraged to report known or suspected
incidences of improper conduct to the CEO. Councillors and Council Staff will report and
manage complaints in accordance with Council’s internal policies and processes.
Reporting Suspicious Activities
All Councillors, Council Staff and Council suppliers are required at all times to act honestly
and with integrity and to safeguard the public resources for which they are responsible.
Council is committed to protecting all revenue, expenditure and assets from any attempt to
gain illegal benefits (financial or otherwise).
Council will take all reasonable steps to protect those who assist Council by providing
information about suspected fraud. This will include confidentiality of identity and protection
from harassment, to the extent possible.
Suspected improper conduct, offers of bribes, commissions and any other irregular
approaches from suppliers, prospective suppliers or other individuals will be investigated and
reported in accordance with Council’s internal policies and processes.
The CEO must notify IBAC of any matter they suspect on reasonable grounds to involve
corrupt conduct occurring or having occurred in accordance with mandatory reporting
requirements under the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission Act 2011.

2.2 Governance

2.21 Structure
Council has delegated a range of powers, duties and functions to the CEO in relation to
procurement. The delegation aims to ensure that the Council’s procurement structure
operates according to processes that:
¢ Are flexible enough to procure in a timely manner the diverse range of goods, works
and services required by Council;
e Guarantee that prospective contractors and suppliers are afforded an equal
opportunity to tender or submit a quotation; and
e Encourage competition and collaboration.
2.2.2 Methods

The Council’s standard methods for procuring goods, services and works will be by any of the
following:

e Purchase order that represent best Value for Money under the quotation process from
suppliers for goods or services under the thresholds adopted by the Council. An
approved purchase order must be created prior to committing expenditure on behalf of
Council;

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
Page 9 of 32



PROCUREMENT POLICY

Under contract following a quotation or tender process;

Under a Preferred Supplier Panel

Using Collaborative Procurement Arrangements;

Multi-stage tenders commencing with an EOI followed by a tender process;
Under a sole-sourcing arrangement or other exemption contained in Appendix 4;
Purchasing Cards (in a manner consistent with this policy);

Petty Cash

unless other arrangements are authorised by Council or under appropriate delegated authority
on an ‘as needs’ basis as required by exceptional circumstances such as emergencies.

2.2.3 Responsible Financial Management

The principle of responsible financial management will be applied to all procurement activities.
Accordingly, to give effect to this principle, the availability of existing funds within an approved
budget or source of funds will be established prior to the commencement of any procurement
action for the supply of goods, services or works.

Council funds must be used efficiently and effectively to procure goods, services and works
and every attempt must be made to contain the costs of the procurement process without
compromising any of the procurement principles set out in this Policy.

2.2.4 Procurement Thresholds and Competition

In every procurement activity all practicable efforts will be made to consider the sustainable
procurement considerations as listed in Section 3.2.

Council will invite offers from the supply market for goods, services, and works in accordance
with the thresholds listed in Appendix 1.

2.2.5 Procurement Principles

Council will apply the following fundamental best practice principles to procurement,
irrespective of the value and complexity of that procurement:

¢ Value for Money;

e Sustainability (social, economic and environmental);
¢ Open and fair competition;

¢ Accountability;

¢ Risk management, and

¢ Probity and transparency.

Council also recognises the importance of purchasing locally.
2.2.6 Procurement Methodology

Section 108 of the Act details that each Council will set the public tender threshold above
which tenders or expressions of interest for contracts must be publicly invited.

A public tender process must be used for all procurements valued at $200,000 (inclusive of
GST) and above for goods, services or works through either a single contract or cumulative
spend over a period of two Financial Years.

For procurements valued under $200,000 (inclusive of GST), the procurement methodology
and thresholds detailed in Appendix 1 will apply.

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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2.2.7 Contract Variations

All contract variations must be assessed to determine whether they are properly characterised
as variations, or whether they are, in effect, a new contract. This will depend on factors like:

e The monetary value of the proposed variation, i.e. the value of the variation in the
context of the thresholds fixed by the Procurement Policy; and
e The subject matter of the proposed variation, and whether it is consistent with the scope
of the original contract.
2.2.7.1 Recording of Contract Variations
All contract variation requests, including specification variation requests, must be recorded in
Council’s contract management section of Procurement System. A record of the decision of
a variation, including the reasons for the decision, must also be saved in the Procurement
System.
2.2.7.2 Approving of Contract Variations
Approval of contract variations must be in accordance with Instruments of Delegation.
2.2.8 Public Tender Requirements

All public tenders invited by the Council will be published via Council’'s eTendering Portal and
may be advertised in the media.

Information regarding Current Tenders and Awarded Tenders will be published on Council’s
eTendering Portal.

2.2.8.1 Procurement Conduct Plan

A detailed Procurement Conduct Plan, completed by the chairperson, will be developed,
approved, and strictly adhered to by that panel.

The Procurement Conduct Plan should be completed and signed off prior to the tender or
quotation being issued.

2.2.8.2 Tender Evaluation

A tender evaluation panel will be established to evaluate each tender submission against the
tender’s selection criteria. Tender evaluation panels can include external personnel in order
to ensure the best outcome for a procurement activity and must comprise of at least 3 Council
Officers including a chairperson and Procurement Officer. The Procurement Officer does not
score submissions, but their role is to oversee the evaluation process, including compliance
to the best practice guidelines, this Procurement Policy and legislation.

2.2.8.3 Evaluation Criteria

The Council may include the following evaluation criteria categories to determine whether a
proposed contract provides Value for Money:

¢ Mandatory Compliance criteria (e.g. ABN registration, OH&S, Fair Work Act, risk and
conflict of interest);

Tendered price;

Capacity of the Tenderer to provide the goods and/or services and/or works;
Capability of the Tenderer to provide the goods and/or services and/or works;

Local Economic Benefit;

Environmental Benefit; and

Social Benefit.
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2.2.8.4 Probity Advisor

A formal probity plan should be developed, and a probity advisor appointed, in the following
circumstances:

e Where the proposed Total Contract Sum exceeds $1 million over the life of the
contract or for a lesser value set by Council from time to time; or

e Where a proposed contract is considered by Council or the CEO to be particularly
complex, of a high risk or controversial nature, and requiring a high level of public
confidence.

A probity advisor may be appointed to any tender evaluation panel and may be appointed to
oversee the evaluation process.

2.2.8.5 Shortlisting and Negotiations

Council may conduct a shortlisting process during EOI, tender and quotation processes.
Shortlisting must be based on the advertised selection criterion.

Shortlisted tenderers may be invited by the Council to submit a best and final offer in relation
to all or certain aspects of their respective tenders.

Once one or more preferred tenderers are selected, negotiations can be conducted in order
to obtain the optimal solution and commercial arrangements within the original scope and
intent of the tender. Probity requirements apply to all negotiations.

2.2.9 Collaborative Procurement

In accordance with section 108(c) of the Act, this policy must describe how council will seek
collaboration with other councils and public bodies in the procurement of goods or services.

Council Staff must consider any opportunities for Collaborative Procurement in relation to a
procurement process undertaken by Council. Any report to the Council that recommends
entering into a procurement agreement must set out information relating to opportunities for
Collaborative Procurement, if available, including:?

e The nature of those opportunities, if any, and the councils or public bodies with which
they are available; and

e Why Council did, or did not, pursue the identified opportunities for collaboration in
relation to that procurement process.

When collaborating with the LMPN, the Council will do so in accordance with the following:

e The LMPN will develop a consolidated contract register to identify joint procurement
projects on an annual basis;

e Council contracts with a minimum value of $1 million per annum (per Council), for the
ongoing supply of goods or provision of services or works, other than projects that
are unique to an individual Council (e.g. unique construction or works projects), will
be included in the consolidated contract register for collaboration consideration;

e Other contracts which, due to the subject matter, nature or scope, are likely to deliver
operational efficiencies if procured in collaboration with the LMPN, must be included

2 [ ocal Government Act 2020, s 109 (2).
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in the consolidated contract register for consideration as a possible joint procurement

opportunity;

e Where Collaborative Procurement is to be pursued:

o A pre-market approval submission will be submitted to each Council and the
LMPN prior to commitment to collaboration, seeking delegation of contract
approval to CEOs;

o The LMPN will establish a Heads of Agreement that gives authority for a lead
council to act as each Council’'s agent in the Collaborative Procurement;

o Each of the Councils who participate will be able to enter into a contract with the
preferred supplier identified though the Collaborative Procurement process, or
may choose as a group to enter into a contract using “jump in/opt-in” contract
provisions during the contract term, or with the Council which conducted the
public tender; and

o Each participating council must be involved in:

e The initial decision to undertake the Collaborative Procurement;

e Preparation of, and agreement to, the specifications and evaluation
criteria;

e Ensuring probity for the Collaborative Procurement; and

e The acceptance of tender(s) and awarding of contract(s).

Furthermore, Council may collaborate with other Councils or other agents such as MAV
Procurement or Procurement Australasia to procure goods, services or works, or utilise
existing Collaborative Procurement Arrangements for the procurement of goods, services or
works established through a public tender process where it provides an advantageous, Value
for Money outcome for the Council.

The following principles will be applied when utilising procurement agents (e.g. MAV
Procurement and Procurement Australasia) and whole of government contracts:
e Council will use an agent where potential cost savings exist.
o The use of procurement agents must not eliminate the ability of suppliers locally
and within our region to submit a quotation or tender.

Any Federal or State Government grant funded projects may be excluded from collaborative
procurement if required as part of the funding agreement.

2.3 Delegation of Authority

Instruments of Delegation define the limitations within which Council Staff are permitted to
commit Council to the procurement of goods, services or works and the associated costs. The
Instrument of Delegation allows specified Council Staff to undertake certain purchases,
quotation, tender and contractual processes without prior referral to the Council. This enables
the Council to conduct procurement activities in an efficient and timely manner whilst
maintaining transparency and integrity.

Council has delegated responsibilities relating to the expenditure of funds for the purchase of
goods, services and works, the acceptance of quotations and tenders and for contract
management activities to the CEO. The CEO has further delegated some of those
responsibilities to other members of Council Staff, subject to specified conditions and
limitations.

2.4 Internal Controls

The CEO will install and maintain a framework of internal controls over procurement processes
that will ensure:
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¢ More than one person is involved in, and responsible for, the creation and
authorisation of a contract (this includes creation and authorisation of purchase
orders);

Transparency in the procurement process;

A clearly documented audit trail exists for procurement activities;

Appropriate authorisations are obtained and documented;

Systems are in place for appropriate monitoring and performance measurement; and
A process is in place for escalation, where appropriate, of procurement matters
(including procedural non-compliance) to the Executive Management Team, the Audit
and Risk Committee and Council.

2.5 Risk Management

Council is committed to the practice of effective risk management to provide improved
stakeholder confidence and trust, and to support improved compliance and better corporate
governance. Risk management is to be appropriately applied at all stages of procurement
activities including:

e Standardisation of contracts including current and relevant clauses

e Requiring security deposits where appropriate

e Referring specifications to relevant industry experts as required

e Ensuring contractual agreements are in place before the commencement of works

¢ Use of and enforcement of delegated authorities

o Effectively manage the contract through ongoing monitoring to ensure the required
performance is being achieved

To protect the interests of Council, terms and conditions must be settled in advance of any
commitment being made with a supplier. Any exceptions to this requirement exposes Council
to risk.

Contracts are to be proactively managed by Council staff responsible for the delivery of the
project/contract. Each should be assessed equivalent to size, type, complexity, duration and
value to determine the level of risk. This will then determine the level of management of the
particular project / contract and forms an integral part of good contract management.

Risk assessments are a vital part of the procurement planning process, particularly for
significant contracts. Risks will be identified for each part of the sourcing, transition, delivery
and finalisation stages of procurement. Appropriate risk avoidance and mitigation strategies
will be employed whenever practicable and appropriate.

2.6 Endorsement

Council Staff must not publicly endorse any products or services without the permission of the
CEO.

2.7 Dispute Resolution

All Council standard contracts will incorporate dispute management and alternative dispute
resolution provisions to minimise the chance of disputes escalating to legal action.

2.8 Contract Management

In order to continually improve its procurement and contract management processes and
outcomes, Council will evaluate and seek to improve on all aspects of procurement and
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contract management, in accordance with its documented procurement processes and
Contract Management Guidelines.

Good contract management ensures goods, services and works are delivered to the required
standards of quality and quantity as intended by the contract through:

e Establishing a system monitoring and achieving the responsibilities and obligations of
all parties under the contract;

e Providing a means for the early recognition of issues and performance problems and
the identification of solutions;

e Adhering to the Council’s risk management framework and relevant Occupational
Health and Safety and sustainability requirements.

Council contracts are to include contract management requirements commensurate with the
complexity of the procurement. Furthermore, contracts are to be proactively managed by the
member of Council Staff responsible for the delivery of the contracted goods, services or works
to ensure the Council, and therefore the community, receives Value for Money.

Council awards some contracts that are strategically critical and of relatively high value.
Council will provide additional senior oversight to the management of such significant
contracts.

2.9 Training

All staff with duties that involve the purchasing of good and services will undertake
procurement training when they commence employment. In order to ensure existing staff are
up-to-date with the latest requirements of this policy they should participate in refresher
training every 12 months. Staff that breach the policy will be required to undertake refresher
training immediately and may be subject to disciplinary action. Until initial training and/or
refresher training has been completed, any staff member that has breached the policy will be
prohibited from participating in any procurement process.

3. Demonstrate Sustained Value

3.1 Achieving Value for Money
3.1.1  Requirement

The Council’s procurement activities will be carried out to obtain Value for Money. This means
minimising the total cost of ownership over the lifetime of the requirement consistent with
acceptable quality, reliability and delivery considerations. Lowest price is not the sole
determinant of Value for Money.

3.1.2 Approach
This will be facilitated by:

e Achieving continuous improvement in procurement activity in accordance with the
direction set out in the Council’s Strategic Procurement Plan;

o Developing, implementing and managing processes that support the co-ordination
and streamlining of activities throughout the procurement lifecycle;

o Effective use of competition;

e Using existing Council contractual arrangement or Collaborative Procurement
Arrangements where appropriate;
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Identifying and rectifying inefficiencies in procurement processes;

e Developing cost efficient tender processes;

e Council Staff responsible for providing procurement services or assistance within the
Council providing competent advice in terms of available products and agreements;
and

o Working with suppliers to create relationships that are professional, productive, and
are appropriate to the value and importance of the goods, services and works being
acquired.

3.2 Sustainable Procurement
3.2.1 Sustainable procurement definition

Sustainable procurement involves decision making that has the most positive environmental,
social and economic impacts possible across the entire lifecycle of goods, services and works.
The United Nations Environment Programme defines sustainable procurement as a “process
whereby organisations meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilities in a way that
achieves Value for Money on a whole of life basis in terms of generating benefits not only the
organisation, but also to society and the economy whilst minimising damage to the
environment.”

3.2.2 Applying sustainable procurement in Council

Sustainability will be embedded in Council’s work. All Council staff will have a clear and shared
understanding about what it means and how they can apply it to their daily tasks. Council
commits to applying the principles of sustainability to its decision-making and activities.

Council demonstrates sustainable procurement by:

e Being accountable for its impacts on society, the economy and the environment
including the impacts of the organisation’s supply chain;

e Examining anticipated organisational, project and/or community needs;

e Continually improving sustainability specifications, practices and outcomes, and

e Planning and undertaking sustainability evaluations as part of contracting activities.

3.2.3 Principles and objectives

In its Sustainable Procurement Policy as _detailed in Appendix 2, Council commits to

e Applying specific principles of sustainability to its decision-making and activities, and
e Focusing on specific Economic, Environmental and Social objectives.

The following economic, environmental and social objectives have been determined in line
with these principles.
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Area

Principles

Objectives

Economic

Council is committed to procurement
that supports Local Business and
economic diversity.

Where practicable and applicable
Council will give preference to goods
manufactured or produced in Australia
and will actively seek quotations and
tenders from Local Businesses as a
priority.

Council’s  Sustainable Procurement
Policy (as detailed in Appendix 2) will be
underpinned by the following principles:

«  Ensuring accountability and
transparency;

*  Ensuring Value for Money
outcomes;

«  Ensuring open and effective
competition, and development of
competitive Local Business and
industry;

* Fostering innovation and emerging
sectors; and

+ Considering life cycle costs.

Council’s economic
approach aims to:

sustainability

* Achieve Value for Money on a
whole of life (including disposal)
basis, rather than just initial cost;

+  Consider broader life cycle impacts
of products procured;

»  Ensure probity and accountability in
the procurement process;

+  Commit to sourcing locally as
detailed in Appendix 2;

*  Build relationships with Local
Business and encourage
procurement from them to help
build their capacity; and

* Increase local employment.

Appendix 2 details the policy by which

Council will achieve the above

objectives.
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Area

Principles

Objectives

Environmental

Where applicable Council will purchase
goods, services and works that reduce
air, water and soil pollution, greenhouse
gas emissions, waste production,
natural resource depletion and
biodiversity depletion whenever they
present an acceptable Value for Money
outcome, and in some cases where they
might not.

Council’s  sustainable procurement
strategies (as detailed in Appendix 2)
will be underpinned by the following
principles:

* Considering a product’s or asset’s
lifecycle;

*  Promoting circular economy
participation;

* Managing demand to reduce
procurement requirements;

« Encouraging innovation through
specifications; and

« Engaging suppliers who are also
committed to reducing their
environmental impact.

Council’s environmental sustainability
and approach aims to:

* Improve energy efficiency;

* Reduce greenhouse gas emissions
and contribution towards Council’s
carbon footprint;

*  Minimise waste production;

* Improve water efficiency;

* Reduce air, water and soil
pollution;

* Reduce biodiversity impacts; and

* Increase the use of recycled
materials to:

o Reduce demand for raw
materials and non-renewable
resources; and

o Close the loop on kerbside
recycling.

Appendix 2 details the policy by which

Council will achieve the above

objectives.
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Area

Principles

Objectives

Social

Council is committed to building
stronger communities and meeting
social objectives which benefit the
municipality and commits to integration
of measures in its procurement
processes and documentation which
promote improved social outcomes.

Council’s sustainable procurement (as
detailed in Appendix 2) wil be
underpinned by the following principles:

*  Athorough understanding of the
socio-economic issues affecting
the community;

*  Creation of training and
employment opportunities for
unemployed or disadvantaged
residents and ratepayers in
Council’'s municipality, and
marginalised job seekers in
Council’'s municipality, to address
local socio-economic issues;

*  Promotion of equity, diversity and
equal opportunity; and

* Respect for human rights, the rule
of law and international norms of
behaviour.

Council’s social sustainability approach
aims to:

*  Ensure vendors do not exploit
workers and provide fair wages,
including inclusive business
practices;

* Maintain a social procurement
program to increase social
procurement spend across the
LMPN;

*  Ensure sourced products are
accessible by all segments of the
community;

* Increase employment opportunities
for indigenous people, people with
a disability, disadvantaged people
and long term unemployed;

* Improve gender equity; and

*  Prevent, detect and remove
modern slavery from Council’s
supply chain.
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4. Build and Maintain Supply Relationships

4.1 Managing Suppliers

Council recognises the importance of managing existing suppliers including through
performance measurements which ensure supplier responsibilities of the contract are
delivered.

4.2 Supply Market Development

A wide range of suppliers are encouraged to compete for Council work. The focus for new
work need not always be with the larger more familiar businesses. Other types of organisations
offering business diversity include:

Green suppliers;

Local, small to medium sized enterprises (SMEs) and Social enterprises;
Ethnic and minority businesses;

Indigenous businesses;

Businesses employing people with disability; and

Volunteer and community organisations.
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APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Council — Procurement Methodology Thresholds

Council will invite tenders, proposals, quotes and expressions of interest from the supply
market for goods, services and works in accordance with the thresholds in Table 1, except
where a panel is in place for the goods/services, in which case the requirement for quotes is
in accordance with the thresholds in the Table 2.

Table 1: General Procurement Thresholds

Range or total value of | Minimum Procurement [ Management

goods/services or | Action Requirement
works
$0-$1,999 At least one verbal quote, | Purchase order must be

sourced locally if available | raised and supplied to
supplier to confirm order
prior to receiving goods
and services.

$2,000-$4,999 Staff member will seek at | Quotation must be saved
least one written quote, | in the document
including one quote from a | management system
local business where the | referencing purchase
goods/services are | order number as proof of
available locally compliance with policy, in
compliance  with  the
relevant procedure.

Purchase order to be
raised at time of ordering.

*$5,000-$19,999 Staff member will seek at [ Quotation must be saved
least three written quotes, | in the document
including one quote from a | management system
local business where the | referencing purchase
goods/services are | order number as proof of
available locally compliance with policy, in
compliance  with  the
relevant procedure.

Purchase order to be
raised at time of ordering.
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*$20,000-$59,999 Selective or Public | Request for quote to be
Quotation via eTendering | raised through the
portal Procurement System and

Procurement Team.

Purchase order to be
raised at time of ordering.

*$60,000-$199,999 Selective or Public Tender | Request for tender to be
via eTendering portal raised through the
Procurement System.

Contract to be dually
signed prior to order being
raised.

**$200,000 and above Public Tender Request for tender to be
raised through the
Procurement System.

Contract to be dually
signed prior to order being
raised.

Note:
All Pricing is inclusive of GST

Exemptions to the requirements detailed in this table (as per Appendix 4) must be
forwarded to the Procurement Unit who will obtain Manager, General Manager and CEO
approval before any purchase is made or contract entered into.

*Expression of Interest, Selective or Public Tendering can be considered, and a written
scope or specification must be prepared. Consideration must be given to a Risk Analysis
and a Strategic Procurement Plan

**Expression of Interest, or Public Tendering. Consideration must be given to a Risk Analysis
and a Strategic Procurement Plan.
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The thresholds for additional panels will be determined as part of the procurement process

until this Procurement Policy is next reviewed.

PROCUREMENT POLICY

Goods/service | Staff Staff member | Selective | Selective | Public
s supplied | member will seek at| Quote to|or Public [ Tender
under the | will seek at | least one | panel Tender via
Panel Contract | least one | written quote | members | Procurem

verbal in consultation | via ent

quote with Procurem | System

Procurement | ent
Unit System

Cleaning $0-$999 | $1,000-$9,999 | $10,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Products $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Plant and [ $0 - $999 | $1,000-$9,999 | $10,000 - | $60,000 - [ $200,000
Equipment $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Crushed Rock | $0 - $999 | $1,000-$9,999 | $10,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
and Aggregate $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Landscape $0-$999 | $1,000-$9,999 | $10,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Materials $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Office $0-$999 | $1,000-$9,999 | $10,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Products $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Civil $0 - | $5,000 - | $20,000 - | $60,000 - [ $200,000
Engineering $4,999 $19,999 $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Consultancy
Services
Supply and | $0 - $999 | $1,000 - | $5,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Fitting of Tyres $4,999 $59,999 | $199,999 | and above
Plumbing $0-$999 | $1,000 - |1 $5,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Services $4,999 $59,999 | $199,999 | and above
Electrical $0-$999 | $1,000 - |1 $5,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Services $4,999 $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
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Supply, $0 $5,000 - |1 $20,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Delivery and | $4,999 $19,999 $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Lay Asphalt
Weed, Pest | n/a $0 - $29,999, | $30,000 - | $60,000 - [ $200,000
Control  and two quotes | $59,999 | $199,999 | and above
Environmental must be
Services sought, one of

these must be

sought  from

Djandak.
Kerb and | $0 $5,000 - | $20,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Channel $4,999 $19,999 $59,999 $199,999 | and above
Works
Human $0 $5,000 - | $20,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Resource $4,999 $19,999 $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Services
Trees Services | $0 $2,000 - |1 $10,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
and Removal | $1,999 $9,999 $59,999 | $199,999 | and above
Project $0 $5,000 - | $20,000 - | $60,000 - | $200,000
Management | $4,999 $19,999 $59,999 | $199,999 [ and above
Services
Notes:
All prices are inclusive of GST
Management Requirements remain the same as Table 1: General Spend Thresholds
Exemptions to these requirements must in accordance with Appendix 4, and be forwarded
to the Procurement Unit who will obtain Manager, General Manager and CEO approval
before any purchase is made.
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Further details of the applicable procedures and processes is available in the Council’s
Procurement Procedures.
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Appendix 2 Council — Performance KPls

Performance Indicators

Central Goldfields Shire Council will improve its procurement performance by seeking to
capture and analyse data on key performance indicators including:

Extent of contracts delivered on time and on budget;
Addendums issued;

New Collaborative Procurement contracts;

New preferred supplier (panel) contracts;

The number of Local Businesses engaged and proportion of local spend;
Value of savings and benefits achieved;

Compliance with the Procurement Policy;

Annual spend on sustainable goods and services;
Annual Social engagement;

Retrospective Purchase Orders;

Conflict of Interest Declarations;

CEO Exemption requests; and

A report will be presented quarterly to the Executive Management Team, Audit & Risk
Committee and the Council regarding procurement performance.
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Appendix 3 Related Council Plans, Strategies and Policies

e Contract Management Policy

e Council Plan 2021-2025

e Long Term Financial Plan 2021-2031

e Council’'s Annual Budget

e Councillor Code of Conduct Policy

e Delegations

e Inclusive - Disability Action Plan

e Economic Development Strategy

o Gender Equality Strategy

e Gifts, Benefits & Hospitality for Council Staff Policy

o Gifts, Benefits & Hospitality for Councillors Policy

e Managing Conflicts of Interest for Council Staff Policy
e Managing Conflicts of Interest for Councillors & Council Committee Members Policy
e Occupational Health and Safety Manual

e Public Interest Disclosure Policy

e Staff Code of Conduct Policy

e Risk Management Policy
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Appendix 4 Exemptions from the Policy

The following circumstances may, with evidence and recording of decision making, allow an
exemption from the general requirements for publicly advertised tender, quotations and
expression of interest. These exemptions also apply to collaborative procurements and
require the same approvals. Exemptions can only be granted by the CEO.

It is also noted that Council may apply to the Minister for an exemption to the requirement for
public tender or compliance to the Procurement Policy, pursuant to Local Government Act
2020 s 177.

Exemption Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and approvals

1. A contract made with the Where the CEO has decided that the contract must be

approval of the CEO entered into because of an emergency (e.g. to provide
because of a genuine immediate response to a natural disaster, declared
emergency emergency, etc.)

e This general exemption allows engagements:

o  With another government entity or government
owned entity. For example, Federal, State or Local
Government or an entity owned by the Federal, State
or Local Government; and/or

o Inreliance on contracts and arrangements
established by another government entity, local
authority or local government group purchasing
scheme, Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) or
National Procurement network members (e.g. Local
Buy), Procurement Australia (PA). or LMPN

2. A contract made with, or
a purchase from a
contract made by,
another government
entity, government-
owned entity or other
approved third party

e Allows Council to extend an existing contract where the
procurement process to replace the contract has

3. Extension of contracts commenced, and where the tender process or
while Council is at negotiations will take or are taking longer than expected.
market to replace that e This exemption may be used when the establishment of
contract. an interim short-term arrangement with an alternative

supplier is considered not to be in the public interest, as it
may be cost prohibitive and/or present a risk in the
delivery of critical public services to the municipality.

o Where the initial contract was entered into in compliance
with the Act and due diligence has been undertaken in
respect to the new party.

4. Novated Contracts
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Exemption

Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and approvals

5.

Information technology
resellers and software
developers

Allows Council to renew software licenses and
maintenance and support, or upgrade existing systems,
where there is only one supplier of the software who
holds the intellectual property rights to the software.
Decision making must be recorded and include the
matters below:

o the existing software must be fit for purpose:

o the availability of other software products and the
costs and benefits of these compared with the
current software; and

o whether value for money would be received under
the proposed renewal or upgrade.

To reduce the need to consider the use of this
exemption, tender specifications for all software licenses
must include maintenance, support, upgrades and a
reasonable contract term to ensure value for money.

Situations where a Regional Waste and Resource

el e Recovery Group (or equivalent entity) constituted under

Resource Recovery . .

Groups the Environment Protect/on Act 1970 had alrea_dy
conducted a public tender for and on behalf of its
member councils.

7. Statutory Compulsory . .
Monopoly Insurance Motor vehicle compulsory third party
Schemes
. Where a lessor leases an asset (generally a vehicle or
g OpaEng lLeeses plant and equipment) to the Council and assumes the
residual value risk of the vehicle.
Where it is required to maintain a valid warranty,
Where works needs to be carried out by recognised
suppliers using genuine parts. To achieve this Council
9. Plant and Equipment utilises servicing by the manufacturers from whom the

Servicing plant and equipment was originally purchased. Spare
parts from specific manufacturers can be purchased to
complete works on a plant and equipment in Council’s
workshop.

It is not practical to obtain quotes for artworks, statues
10. Artworks, Statues and and monqments as eaph pleceiof.work is unique. Please
note that if an artwork is commissioned to be created

Monuments ) . ;
then this exemption does not apply and quotations or
tenders must be sought.

Units of Council that operate a retail outlet that are
. required to purchase stock for resale to the public. This is
11. Shop Supplics due to the nature of the goods that are offered for resale,
which may be of a unique nature.
12. Performers Units of Council that engage performers as part of their

performance program are exempt.
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Exemption

Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and approvals

13. Specialist sole supplier
knowledge and skills

e if Council requires advice from a supplier who offers
specialist knowledge which is not available from any
other supplier. An exemption to complying with minimum
number of quotes form must be completed for these
purchases.

14. Sole Supplier (Core
Service)

e The Council deals with a number of core service sole
suppliers. There is no market to test and obtain multiple
quotations. Examples of core service sole suppliers are:
Central Highlands Water, Coliban Water PowerCor,
Professional membership payments (relating to positions
held at Council), where the supplier is the sole source of
intellectual property e.g. Facebook, Google , Advertising
(newspapers)

15. Contractor filling critical
vacancy in workforce

e [f a vacancy for a general manager position, manager
position, coordinator position or position required by
legislation has been advertised but has not been able to
be filled, the vacancy may be filled by a contractor.
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Appendix 5 Evaluation Criteria

MANDATORY

Relevant Insurances Pass/Fail

OH&S Requirements Pass/Fail

Financial Viability Pass/Fail (as required)
FINANCIAL

Financial Benefit to Council Up to 45%

- Relative cost to Council

Financial Benefit to Community Up to 20%
- Business Ownership/Head Office
- Business Branch/Office
- Employment of Local Staff
- Use of Local Sub-Contractors
- Use of Local Materials
- Local Accommodation for duration of works

- Score for benefit to local economy

OTHER
Capability Weighted criteria to be
determined by  Tender
- Demonstrated experience Evaluation Panel prior to
quotation or tender being
- Depth of technical skills and knowledge released.

- Management and monitoring system

- Quality Assurance System and accreditation
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Capacity Weighted criteria to be
determined by  Tender
- Available access to required resources Evaluation Panel prior to
quotation or tender being

- Available access to required labour released.

- Key Sub-contractors

- Demonstrated system and processes for
deploying resources

Environmental Sustainability Minimum 5%

- Environmental Management System, Policy
etc

- Level of Environmental Objectives, Actions
and Specifications proposed under this
contract

- Demonstrated level of past Environmental
Performance

Social Sustainability Minimum 5%

- Level of Social Employment Opportunities
and Strategies

- Social Enterprise Strategies, Purpose and
Social Outcomes

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander People Minimum 5%

- Employment opportunities within Central
Goldfields Shire

- Business ownership and subcontractor
engagement

- Opportunities in the Loddon Mallee Region

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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8.2.2

Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

Weighting - Local
content

Council’s role in supporting the local
economy is undisputed, however
local content requirements can be
ineffective or even counter
productive when there is no
likelihood of obtaining the required
works or services from within the
Shire.

Consideration be given to evaluation
on a sliding scale to accommodate
vendors in neighbouring Councils.
Outcome:

Enables some weight to be allocated
for benefit in the immediate region.

Contract management plays an
important role in ensuring
commitments to local content are
followed through.

Sustainable
Procurement

Current text:
3.2 Sustainable Procurement

3.2.1 Sustainable procurement
definition

Sustainable procurement involves
decision making that has the most
positive environmental, social and
economic impacts possible across
the entire lifecycle of goods, services
and works.

The United Nations Environment
Programme defines sustainable
procurement as a “process whereby
organisations meet their needs for
goods, services, works and utilities in
a way that achieves Value for Money
on a whole of life basis in terms of
generating benefits not only the
organisation, but also to society and
the economy whilst minimising
damage to the environment.”

Change to text as follows:

Social, environmental and economic
sustainability criteria are to be
considered at the planning stage of
procurement and included in
Council’'s tender documentation to
achieve  Council's  sustainability
outcomes. Environmental and social
outcomes sought to be achieved
through the tender may be imbedded
in any tender criteria.

Social, environmental and economic
sustainability criteria are to be
evaluated independently of one
another and are not to be bundled into
a single sustainability measure.

Provides a clearer framework for
maximising sustainable
procurement.




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

Add after “services and works” first
par:

It looks beyond up-front costs to
make purchasing decisions that
consider associated environmental
and social risks and benefits, and
broader social and environmental
implications.

In its-Sustainable-Pprocurement
activities Policy-as-detailed-in
Appendix-2, Council commits to

¢ Applying specific principles of
sustainability to its decision-making
and activities, and

¢ Focusing on specific Economic,
Environmental and Social objectives.

The following economic,
environmental and social objectives
have been determined in line with
these principles

Sustainable
Procurement —
Economic

Given the approach above, the
factors to be considered for
Economic sustainability include the
proposed change.

Change text as follows:
Principles:

Council is committed to procurement
that supports Local Business and
economic diversity in the LMPN

Where practicable and applicable
Council will give preference to goods
manufactured or produced in

Provides a clearer framework for
maximising economically sustainable
procurement




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

Australia and will actively seek
quotations and tenders from Local
Businesses in the Shire as a first
priority and the LMPN as a second
priority.

Council’'s Sustainable-Procurement
Policy {as-detailed-in-Appendix-2} will

be underpinned by the following
economic sustainability principles:

* Ensuring accountability and
transparency;

* Ensuring Value for Money
outcomes;

* Ensuring open and effective
competition, and development of
competitive Local Business and
industry;

* Fostering innovation and emerging
sectors; and

* Considering life cycle costs; and

+ Considering adaptability and
resilience to climate change impacts

Obeijctives

Council’s economic sustainability
approach aims to:

* Achieve Value for Money on a
whole of life (including disposal)
basis, rather than just initial cost;




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

+ Consider broader life cycle impacts
of products procured;

* Consider climate adaptability and
resilience of products procured;

» Ensure probity and accountability in
the procurement process;

* Increase purchasing from business

within the Shire and LMPN Commit
ina local lotailod |

* Build relationships with Local

Business and provide opportunities

to increase their capacity and

capability to become suppliers to

Council encourage-procurement

, ; helo build thei

capaeity; and

* Increase local employment.

Appendix2-detailsthe-policy-by
hich.C | will achi I I

Sustainable
Procurement -
Environmental

Given the approach above, the
factors to be considered for
environmental sustainability include
the proposed change.

Change text as follows:

Where applicable Council  will
purchase goods, services and works
that reduce air, water and solil
pollution, greenhouse gas emissions,
waste production, natural resource
depletion and biodiversity depletion
whenever they present an acceptable

Provides a clearer framework for
maximising environmentally
sustainable procurement




Issue Description Proposed change Outcome
Value for Money outcome, and in
some cases where they might not.
Council’'s sustainable—procurement
will be underpinned by the following
environmental sustainability
principles:
» Considering a product’s or asset’s
lifecycle;
*+ Promoting circular economy
participation;
* Managing demand to reduce
procurement requirements;
* Encouraging innovation through
specifications; and
» Engaging suppliers who are also
committed to reducing their
environmental impact
Sustainable Given the approach above, the Changed text as follows: Provides a clearer framework for

procurement — social

factors to be considered for social
sustainability include the proposed
change.

Principles

Council is committed to building
stronger communities and meeting
social objectives which benefit the
municipality and commits to
integration of measures in its
procurement processes and
documentation which promote
improved social outcomes.

maximising socially sustainable
procurement




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

Council’'s sustainable procurement
{as—detailed—in—Appendix—2)-will be
underpinned by the following social
sustainability principles:

* A thorough understanding of the
socio-economic issues affecting the
community;

* Creation of training and employment
opportunities for unemployed or
disadvantaged residents and
ratepayers in Council’s municipality,
and marginalised job seekers in
Council’'s municipality, to address
local socio-economic issues;

* Promotion of equity, inclusion,
diversity and equal opportunity; and

* Respect for human rights, the rule of
law and international norms of
behaviour

Objectives

Council’s social sustainability
approach aims to:

* Ensure vendors do not exploit
workers and provide fair wages,
including inclusive business
practices;

* Maintain a social procurement
program to increase both direct and
indirect social procurement




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

spend across the LMPN

(Direct - engaging a social benefit
provider to deliver goods or a service;

Indirect - including social benefit(s) as
an outcome of a procurement
contract);

» Ensure sourced products are

accessible by all segments of the
community;

* Increase employment opportunities
for indigenous—people Dja Dja
Wurrung and other Traditional
Owners living on Djaara Country,
people with a disability,
disadvantaged people and long term
unemployed;

* Improve gender equity; and

* Prevent, detect and remove
modern slavery from Council’s

supply chain.

Flexibility of Policy -
exemptions

A risk-based approach rather than a
highly prescriptive policy would allow
Council to respond in a more agile
way to unforeseen circumstances
that threaten the delivery of projects.

A risk-based approach to
procurement is dependent on a
mature risk framework and culture in
the organisation. The project for
reviewing and renewing Council’s
risk management framework is about

Enables Council to respond in an
agile and compliant manner to
ensure Council Plan priorities can be
fulfilled.



Jane Still
Review exclusivity of local first nations people


Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

to commence, so this is a medium to
longer term goal.

In the meantime, officers
recommend the addition of an
exemption to the policy where the
CEO is satisfied that the failure to
take the recommended action would
threaten the delivery of commitments
in the current Council Plan.

Flexibility of Policy -
procedures

A highly prescriptive policy means
that any breach of the processes
within it, whether or not they have a
material impact on best practice or
procurement integrity, automatically
become a breach of the Act under
section 109.

The review to carefully consider what
elements are purely procedural and
not related to the purpose or scope
of a Procurement Policy as
prescribed under the Act.

Procedures can be adapted more
quickly to changing circumstances
and capabilities, as they are signed
off by the CEO, and Council is less
likely to breach its own policy while
still staying within good practice
guidelines.

Flexibility of policy —
managing
emergencies

The policy makes reference to
emergencies but does not define
what an emergency is. This
produces grey areas when
procurement is necessary for
emergency response as opposed to
emergency recovery, and makes it
harder to determine when the
appropriate exemption applies.

Set a scope and timeframe of an
emergency and consider delegating
the CEO power to declare when an
emergency can be used to enter into
a contract.

Wording to consider the definition of
emergency under the Emergency
Management Act 2013: an
emergency due to the actual or
imminent occurrence of an event
which in any way endangers or
threatens to endanger the safety or
health of any person, or threatens to
destroy or damage, any property in

Clarity around what constitutes an
emergency, and therefore when the
appropriate exemption can apply.

Reduced risk to Council of
perception of inappropriate
application of exemption.




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

or endangers or threatens to
endanger the environment or an
element of the environment.

Thresholds — for
tender

It is important to benchmark
thresholds regularly to ensure they
meet needs and expectations in
facilitating delivery of services while
maintaining transparency and
accountability.

The contract value at which Council
must seek public tender is currently
set at $200,000. Based on the
review of Regional Victorian
Council’s procurement policies and
City of Melbourne, Council can be
confident that this figure remains
appropriate. Thresholds
benchmarking is attached.

Maintain current tender threshold
level.

Thresholds — Request
for Quote

Council currently undertakes a
selective or public RFT process at
$60,000.

RFQ limited be raised to $199,999.
Changes to documents used and the
inclusion in the Procurement
Procedure document currently being
written would be needed.

Changing the terminology to RFQ
instead of RFT would simplify
processes under the threshold and
bring Council more inline the majority
of Regional Victorian Councils.

Proposal to address concerns about
information and reporting without
overly onerous requirements on
staff.

Thresholds — Written
Quotes

Written Quotes are currently
acceptable up to $19,999 and the
process undertaken by the staff
member seeking the goods, services
or works. This threshold requires
regular view to take into account
best practice and the economic
landscape.

Due to inflation Council could look to
increase this to $30,000. A clear and
auditable procedure would need to
be established to enable this. This is
a challenging area for Procurement
staff to monitor due to the lack of
technology and resources.

A more realistic threshold for written
quotes.

To be determined how many quotes
have to be sought AND received.
Consider 1 quote to $5k and 2-3 to
$30k?




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

Thresholds — Verbal
Quotes

Verbal Quote threshold currently
maximum spend $1000, Council
should be confident to leave this
unchanged.

Nil

This is a low risk spend threshold
with existing finance procedures to
enable monitoring and prevent fraud.

Thresholds — financial
delegations

The CEO’s financial delegation is set
at $500,000. Council determines
contracts over this amount.

Include in Procurement Reporting
contracts awarded by the CEO
between the RFT threshold and the
CEO financial delegation.

Improved transparency in the
awarding of tenders in line with
growing sector practice.

Cumulative Spend

Cumulative spend is when the total
spend under a contract or with a
supplier over a defined period of time
is considered.

Cumulative spend is an area of
concern for regulatory/integrity
agencies, as “cost splitting” for a
single vendor across related or
similar services can be perceived as
a way of circumventing procurement
policies and can be a risk for fraud.

For instance, printing costs may be
minimal in each instance, but over
the course of a year may result in a
single supplier receiving payments
from Council well over its threshold
requirements, without an appropriate
level of procurement taking place.

Reviews of cumulative spend should
be no less than 2 financial years.
The purpose of this is to ensure that
correct processes are being
followed, contracts are being put in
place where necessary and Council
is remaining compliant with
legislation.

Processes outside the policy will be
developed to assist in avoiding non-
compliant cumulative spend, such as
procurement planning templates that
require a check on existing spend to
date in the review period.

Include the words:

Any attempts to circumvent
procurement threshold requires by
order splitting or other methods
constitutes a bread of the
Procurement Policy.

Risk of investigation or adverse
findings on cumulative spend is
minimised.




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

(Taken from City of Greater Bendigo)

The purpose of
approved panel
suppliers

Lack of definition and understanding
around the purpose and use of an
approved panel of suppliers provides
uncertainty about the appropriate
way to use them for procuring goods
and services and can lead to
inadvertent breaches of the policy.

Continue to apply thresholds for
approved panel suppliers.

Include the following wording in the
Policy:

An approved panel supplier is a
contractor or consultant that has
been appointed following an open
tender process. Unless specified
during a tender process no minimum
quantity of sales or turnover is
guaranteed to an approved panel
supplier.

The use of established panels
should be transparent as suppliers
appointed to the panel will have a

reasonable expectation that Council
will provide panel members with an
equal opportunity to quote for goods,
services or works.

Before establishing a panel there
should be documented methodology
on how works and services are to be
determined for allocation to
companies appointed to the panel.

Greater transparency and clarity
around how approved panel
suppliers are to be established and
used, ensuring more efficient
procurement of goods and services.




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

Consideration should be given to the
number of contractors or consultants
tfo be appointed to maintain a
workable panel. (Taken from
Yarriambiack’s policy)

Variations to contracts

Variations to contracts are inevitable
from time to time and no policy or
process can control to prevent them.
However, it is important they are
managed in a way that maintains
transparency and integrity in the
procurement process.

Council has recently managed a
number of these circumstances by
consulting with the Audit and Risk
Committee and seeking decisions at
Council.

Include the following wording:

Variations should take into account
the cumulative spend under the
contract and should be approved by
the Council staff member holding the
correct financial delegation for the
revised total contract sum.

When Council is requested to award
a contract, the CEO or contract
manager should be authorised to
approve variations up to their
delegation - contract variations
greater than delegation of the CEO
will need to be approved by Council.

(Taken from Moyne Shire)

Consistent approach to managing
variations, providing clarity to officers
who have to decide how to manage
them, and guiding Council when
decisions are presented for
endorsement.

Consider including a discretion for
CEO to approve over a percentage.

Modern Day Slavery
laws

Council does not currently consider
in its policy the application of Modern
Slavery legislation. Information about
modern slavery is attached. Council
is not required to report or make a
statement under the Modern Slavery
Act 2018. However, Councils and
other entities are increasingly

Suggest including in policy wording:

While Council is not subject to the
reporting requirements of the
Modern Slavery Act 2018, Council
understands its responsibility to
resist modern slavery through its
procurement processes. Council will
take the following steps to ensure it

A clear statement from Council to the
community about its commitment to
minimising the risk of modern
slavery.

Guidance to officers on how
practically to demonstrate this
position.




Issue

Description

Proposed change

Outcome

acknowledging the need to ensure
supply chains and other practices
are not contributing to modern
slavery.

is avoiding modern slavery risks in
its procurement:

e Include in tender document a
declaration of whether the Act
applies to them, and if so, ask
them to provide their Modern
Slavery Statement (if one has
been prepared) or to provide
details of activities they have
undertaken so far and have
planned to address the Act
reporting requirements.

e Consider including modern
slavery as an evaluation
criterion in high risk
procurement such as
electronics, clothing,
construction and cleaning
services.

(Taken from Modern Slavery — How
can local government address it in
procurement?- Sustainable Choice)
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1 Acknowledgement

Central Goldfields Shire Council acknowledges that we are situated on the traditional lands of
the Dja Dja Wurrung people, and we offer our respects to their elders past, present and
emerging.

2 Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to:

e provide a framework to guide the efficient, effective, socially and ecologically
responsible procurement of goods, services and works on behalf of the community;

e provide guidance to Council to allow consistency and control over procurement
activities;

o demonstrate accountability to ratepayers;

e provide guidance to Council employee’s regarding ethical behaviour in public sector
purchasing;

o demonstrate the application of elements of best practice in purchasing; and

o align the City’s procurement practices with the Guidelines.

3 Application and Scope

This Policy applies to all Council staff and Councillors.

4 Definitions and Abbreviations

Term Definition

Act Section 108 Local Government Act 2020.(The Act)

A contract established by the Council, government
or a nominated agent, such as Procurement
Australasia (PA), Municipal Association of Victoria
Collaborative Procurement | (MAV), Loddon Mallee Procurement Network of
Arrangement Councils or a local government entity, for the benefit
of numerous state, federal and/or local government
entities that achieves best value by leveraging
combined economies of scale.

Information that, if released, may prejudice the
business dealings or commercial interests of Council
or another party, e.g. prices, discounts, rebates,
profits, methodologies, and process information, etc.

Commercial in Confidence

A conflict of interest exists when private interests
conflict with public duty. In a situation where private
interests may benefit from or be adversely affected

Conflict of Interest

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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Term Definition

by public duty a conflict of interest probably exists
and it should be declared.

The process that ensures all parties to a contract
fully meet their respective obligations as efficiently
and effectively as possible, in order to deliver the
contract objectives and provide Value for Money.

Contract Management

The Central Goldfields Shire Council organisation,

Council including Councillors and Council Staff.

Council’s elected representatives (the Mayor and
Councillors Councillors) or Administrator(s) appointed to act in
this capacity.

Includes all Council officers, temporary employees,
Council Staff contractors, volunteers and consultants while
engaged by Council.

The combined total spent on a good, services or
works or with a single supplier.

Cumulative Spend
Council will consider the cumulative spend over a
period of 2 Financial Years.

As per the Emergency Management Act 2023: An
actual or imminent occurrence of an event which in
any way endangers or threatens to endanger the
Emergency safety or health of any person, or threatens to
destroy or damage, any property or endangers or
threatens to endanger the environment or an
element of the environment.

The Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption

IBAC o
Commission
An Indigenous Business is one that is at least 50%
Indigenous Business owned by an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islands
person(s) (consistent with Supply Nation’s
definition).

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System
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Term Definition

https://supplynation.org.au/benefits/indigenous-
business/

A commercial business with an operational premises
Local Business that is physically located within the municipal
borders.

The 10 Councils comprising the LMPN, being the
Buloke Shire Council, Campaspe Shire Council,

Loddon Mallee | Central Goldfields Shire Council, City of Greater
Procurement Network | Bendigo, Gannawarra Shire Council, Loddon Shire
(LMPN) Council, Macedon Ranges Shire Council, Mildura

Rural City Council, Mount Alexander Shire Council
and Swan Hill Rural City Council.

Panels of suppliers or vendors who are able to
supply goods, works or services. Panels are based
on categories such as trade services and plant hire.
Panels mean that Council staff are able to request a
quotation (from suppliers on the panel) without
publically inviting tenders (noting that the number of
quotations requested still needs to be compliant with
the policy). Preferred Supplier Panels are also
known as Approved Supplier Lists or Approved
Contractor Lists.

Preferred Supplier Panels

Procurement principles are the fundamental
propositions or forces that serve as the foundation
for the policy and will govern procurement practices
and decision making.

Principles

Within government, the term "probity" is often used
in a general sense to mean "good process”. A
procurement process that conforms to the expected
standards of probity is one in which clear procedures
that are consistent with the Council’s policies and
legislation, are established, understood, and
followed from the outset. These procedures need to
consider the legitimate interests of suppliers and
ensure that all potential suppliers are treated
equitably.

Probity
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Term Definition

Procurement is the whole process of acquisition of
external goods, services and works. This process
Procurement spans the whole life cycle from initial concept
through to the end of the useful life of an asset
(including disposal) or the end of a service contract.

The Procurement System is the IT system for
Procurement System managing procurement and contract management
processes.

Public Advertising is through The Maryborough
District Advertiser and online/digital through
Councils eTender Portal. Print advertising is at the
discretion of the Tender Evaluation Panel.

Public Advertising

A standing offer arrangement based on a Schedule
of Rates contract that sets out rates for goods and
services which are available for the term of the
agreement but without a commitment to purchase a
specified value or quantity of goods or services.

Schedule of Rates
Contract

The positive impacts on people, places or

Social Benefit communities generated through
procurement practices  within  the  municipal
boundary.

Any organisation which supplies goods or services
to Council including but not limited to, contractors,
subcontractors, manufacturers, wholesalers,
retailers and consultants.

Suppliers

Activities that meet the needs of the present without
Sustainability compromising the ability of future generations to
meet their needs.

The process of inviting parties from either a select
list or via public advertisement to submit an offer by
Tender Process tender followed by evaluation of submissions and
selection of a successful bidder or tenderer in
accordance with pre-determined evaluation criteria.
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Term Definition

The potential total value of the contract including:

e costs for the full term of the contract, including
any options for either party to extend the

Total Contract Sum contract;

¢ applicable goods and services tax (GST);

¢ anticipated contingency allowances or variations,
and

¢ all other known, anticipated and reasonably
foreseeable costs.

Value for Money in procurement is about selecting
the supply of goods, services and works taking into
account both cost and non-cost factors including:

e non-cost factors such as contribution to the
advancement of Council’s priorities, fitness for
purpose, quality, service and support, and

e cost-related factors including whole-of-life costs
and transaction costs associated with acquiring,
using, holding, maintaining and disposing of the
goods, services or works.

Value for Money

A change to a contract that varies the original
agreement. This includes increases and decreases
in contract price, extensions of time and changes to
scope.

Variation

Overview

This Procurement Policy is made under Section 108 of the Local Government Act 2020 (the
Act). The Act requires each council to:

e Prepare and adopt a procurement policy which specifies the principles, processes and
procedures applying in respect of the purchase of goods and services and carrying out of
works by the Council; and

e Review its procurement policy at least once during each 4-year term of the Council.

The Policy has been developed collaboratively by the Loddon Mallee Procurement Network
(LMPN) with a view to facilitating smooth collaborative procurement processes, consistent
with the Act.

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System

Page 7 of 36



PROCUREMENT POLICY

The Policy will enhance achievement of the Council’s objectives such as sustainable and
socially responsible procurement, supporting local economies and obtaining Value for
Money, leading to a better result in the provision of goods, services and works for the benefit
of the community.

Applicability

This Policy applies to all procurement activities at the Council and is applicable to all
Councillors and Council Staff.

The Policy provides direction on the conduct of procurement activities throughout the
sourcing, management and disposal phases. It does not extend to the related accounts
payable processes.

The Council must comply with this Procurement Policy before purchasing, or entering into a
contract for, the purchase of goods, services or the carrying out of works.

Objectives

The Policy is consistent with the requirements of s 108 (2) of the Act and will:

e Promote open and fair competition and provide Value for Money;

e Provide clear guidelines to the Council to allow consistency and control over
procurement activities;
Demonstrate accountability to ratepayers and residents;
Provide guidance on ethical behaviour in public sector procurement;
Demonstrate the application of best practice in procurement activities;
Demonstrate the consideration of sustainability in procurement with respect to social,
economic and environmental factors;
¢ Increase the probability of obtaining the best outcome for the municipal community

when procuring goods and services; and delivering works, and

e Promote collaborative procurement.

These objectives will be achieved by requiring that the Council’s contracting, purchasing and
contract management activities:

e Support the Council’s corporate strategies, aims and objectives;

e Span the whole life cycle of an acquisition and take sustainability and environmental
benefit considerations into account;
Consider adaptability and resilience to climate change impacts;
Achieve demonstrable Value for Money;
Are conducted in and demonstrate an impartial fair and ethical manner;
Seek continual improvement through innovative and technological initiatives, and
Generate and support Local Business through inclusion wherever practicable.

5 Application of GST

All monetary values stated in this policy are inclusive of GST.

6 Effective Legislative and Policy Compliance and Control

2.1 Ethics and Probity
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2.1.1 Requirement

The Council’s procurement activities will be performed in an open, transparent and ethical
manner with demonstrated integrity, fairness and accountability that meets relevant legal
requirements.

All tender processes will be conducted in accordance with the requirements of this
Procurement Policy and any associated procedures, relevant legislation, relevant Australian
Standards, Commercial Law and the Act.

2.1.2 Conduct of Councillors and Council Staff

Councillors and Council Staff will at all times conduct themselves in ways that are in
accordance with the Councillor Code of Conduct and the Staff Code of Conduct respectively,
and will perform their duties ethically and with integrity and must:

Treat potential and existing suppliers with equality and fairness;

Not use their position to seek or receive personal gain in procurement matters;

Maintain confidentiality of Commercial in Confidence information;

Present the highest standards of professionalism and probity;

Afford suppliers and tenderers with the same information and an equal opportunity to

tender or quote for goods, services and works contracts;

e Be able to account for all decisions and demonstrate and provide evidence of the
processes followed;

¢ Not perform any work under any Council contracts they are supervising i.e. Council
Staff cannot also work for the relevant supplier;

e Query incidents, decisions or directions that appear to contradict or deviate from
Council’s standards of ethics or probity or established policies and procedures; and

¢ Ensure that this Procurement Policy and Council’s Procurement guidelines are

adhered to in relation to any expenditure of Council funds.

2.1.3 Conflict of Interest

Councillors and Council Staff will at all times avoid situations which may give rise to an actual
or perceived conflict of interest. A conflict of interest may be a ‘general’ or a ‘material’ conflict
of interest.

A person has a general conflict of interest in a matter if an impartial, fair-minded person would
consider that the person's private interests could result in that person acting in a manner that
is contrary to their public duty. A general conflict of interest includes a perceived conflict of
interest, that is, when it could be perceived that there may be a conflict of interest."

A person has a material conflict of interest in a matter if an affected person would gain a benefit
or suffer a loss depending on the outcome of the matter. The benefit or loss may be direct or
indirect and pecuniary or non-pecuniary. Affected persons include, among others, the member
of Council Staff, Councillors and their family members.

' The policy for managing conflicts of interests and the codes of conduct can be referred for further
information.
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Council Staff involved in the procurement process, in particular preparing tender
documentation, writing tender specifications, participating in tender evaluation panels,
preparing a recommendation report; and Councillors and Council Staff awarding tenders must:

o Avoid conflicts of interest, whether material or general or actual, potential or perceived;

o Declare if they have a conflict of interest in respect of the procurement. Council Staff,
Contractors and external parties participating in any stage of the tender process must
complete a Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality declaration. and

o Observe prevailing Council and Government guidelines on how to prevent or deal with
conflict of interest situations; and not take advantage of any tender related information
whether or not for personal gain.

2.1.4 Fair and Honest Dealing

All prospective contractors and suppliers must be treated impartially and afforded an equal
opportunity to tender or submit a quotation.

Any suspected improper conduct, including suspected fraud, corruption, substantial
mismanagement of public resources, risk to public health and safety, risk to the environment,
or detrimental action should be managed in accordance with Council’s internal policies and
processes.

2.1.5 Probity, Accountability and Transparency

Accountability in procurement means being able to justify and provide evidence of the process
followed. An independent third party must be able to see clearly that a process has been
followed and that the process was fair and reasonable.

Council Staff must be able to account for all procurement decisions and ensure all
procurement activities leave an audit trail for monitoring and reporting purposes.

2.1.6 Gifts and Benefits
e Any gift or benefit offered to a Councillor or Council Staff will be managed in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and Council’s internal policies and
processes, but noting that Councillors and Council Staff:
o Must not receive a private benefit from a contractor or supplier;
o Must declare the offer of a gift or benefit even if this is refused;
o must not knowingly engage a Council supplier for private benefit,

2.1.7 Disclosure of Information

Councillors and Council Staff must take all reasonable measures to maintain confidentiality
of:

¢ Information disclosed by organisations in tenders, quotation or during tender
negotiations; and
o Commercial in Confidence information.

Councillors and Council Staff are to avoid references to current or proposed contracts in
discussion with acquaintances or outside interests.
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Discussion with potential suppliers during tender evaluations should not go beyond the extent
necessary to resolve doubt on what is being offered by that supplier.

At no stage should any discussion be entered into which could improperly influence the
procurement process or negotiation of a contract prior to the contract approval process being
finalised, other than authorised pre-contract negotiations.

2.1.8 Complaints, suspected fraud and misconduct

All complaints management and reports of suspected fraud and misconduct are to be carried
out in accordance with the Local Government Act 2020, with consideration of the
requirements of the IBAC Act and the Public Interest Disclosure Act, and in accordance with
Council’'s Complaints Handling Policy and Fraud Prevention Policy.

2.2 Governance

2.2.1 Structure
Council has delegated a range of powers, duties and functions to the CEO in relation to
procurement. The delegation aims to ensure that the Council’s procurement structure
operates according to processes that:
¢ Are flexible enough to procure in a timely manner the diverse range of goods, works
and services required by Council;
e Guarantee that prospective contractors and suppliers are afforded an equal
opportunity to tender or submit a quotation; and
e Encourage competition and collaboration.

2.2.2 Methods

The Council’s standard methods for procuring goods, services and works will be by any of the
following:

e Purchase order that represent best Value for Money under the quotation process from
suppliers for goods or services under the thresholds adopted by the Council. An
approved purchase order must be created prior to committing expenditure on behalf of
Council;

Under contract following a quotation or tender process;

Under a Preferred Supplier Panel

Using Collaborative Procurement Arrangements;

Multi-stage tenders commencing with an EOI followed by a tender process;

Under a sole-sourcing arrangement or other exemption contained in Appendix 4;
Purchasing Cards (in a manner consistent with this policy);

Petty Cash

unless other arrangements are authorised by Council or under appropriate delegated authority
on an ‘as needs’ basis as required by exceptional circumstances such as emergencies.
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2.2.3 Responsible Financial Management

The principle of responsible financial management will be applied to all procurement activities.
Accordingly, to give effect to this principle, the availability of existing funds within an approved
budget or source of funds will be established prior to the commencement of any procurement
action for the supply of goods, services or works.

Council funds must be used efficiently and effectively to procure goods, services and works
and every attempt must be made to contain the costs of the procurement process without
compromising any of the procurement principles set out in this Policy.

2.2.4 Procurement Thresholds and Competition

In every procurement activity all practicable efforts will be made to consider the sustainable
procurement considerations as listed in Section 3.2.

Council will invite offers from the supply market for goods, services, and works in accordance
with the thresholds listed in Appendix 1.

2.2.5 Procurement Principles

Council will apply the following fundamental best practice principles to procurement,
irrespective of the value and complexity of that procurement:

e Value for Money;

Sustainability (social, economic and environmental);
Open and fair competition;

Accountability;

Risk management, and

Probity and transparency.

Council also recognises the importance of purchasing locally.

2.2.6 Procurement Methodology

Section 108 of the Act details that each Council will set the public tender threshold above
which tenders or expressions of interest for contracts must be publicly invited.

A public tender process must be used for all procurements valued at $200,000 (inclusive of
GST) and above for goods, services or works through either a single contract or cumulative
spend over a period of two Financial Years.

For procurements valued under $200,000 (inclusive of GST), the procurement methodology
and thresholds detailed in Appendix 1 will apply.

2.2.7 Contract Variations

All contract variations must be assessed to determine whether they are properly characterised
as variations, or whether they are, in effect, a new contract. This will depend on factors like:
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e The monetary value of the proposed variation, i.e. the value of the variation in the
context of the thresholds fixed by the Procurement Policy; and

e The subject matter of the proposed variation, and whether it is consistent with the scope
of the original contract.

Variations must take into account the cumulative spend under the contract.
2.2.7.1 Recording of Contract Variations

All contract variation requests, including specification variation requests, must be recorded in
Council’s contract management section of Procurement System. A record of the decision of
a variation, including the reasons for the decision, must also be saved in the Procurement
System.

2.2.7.2 Approving of Contract Variations

Approval of contract variations must be in accordance with Financial Delegation and take
into account the cumulative spend under the contract. A variation can only be approved by a
Council staff member holding the correct financial delegation for the revised contract sum.

Where the revised contract sum falls above the financial delegation of the CEO, or above the
nominated figure or percentage of a figure delegated by Council to approve variations to the
contract, the variation must be approved by Council at a Council meeting.

2.2.8 Public Tender Requirements

All public tenders invited by the Council will be published via Council’'s eTender Portal and
may be advertised in the media.

Information regarding Current Tenders and Awarded Tenders will be published on Council’s
eTender Portal.

2.2.8.1 Procurement Conduct Plan

A detailed Procurement Conduct Plan, completed by the chairperson, will be developed,
approved, and strictly adhered to by that panel.

The Procurement Conduct Plan should be completed and signed off prior to the tender being
issued.

2.2.8.2 Tender Evaluation

A tender evaluation panel will be established to evaluate each tender submission against the
tender’s selection criteria. Tender evaluation panels can include external personnel in order
to ensure the best outcome for a procurement activity and must comprise of at least 3 Council
Officers including a chairperson and Procurement Officer. The Procurement Officer does not
score submissions, but their role is to oversee the evaluation process, including compliance
to the best practice guidelines, this Procurement Policy and legislation.
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2.2.8.3 Evaluation Criteria

The Council may include the following evaluation criteria categories to determine whether a
proposed contract provides Value for Money.

¢ Mandatory Compliance criteria (e.g. ABN registration, OH&S, Fair Work Act, risk and
conflict of interest). Consideration of what should be evaluated as mandatory
(pass/fail) criteria will be informed by Council’s Risk Appetite Statement;

Tendered price;

Capacity of the Tenderer to provide the goods and/or services and/or works;
Capability of the Tenderer to provide the goods and/or services and/or works;

Local Economic Benefit;

Environmental Benefit;

Social Benefit; and

Compliance issues, regulatory breaches or legal action

2.2.8.4 External Probity Advisor
An external probity advisor must be appointed, in the following circumstances:

e Where the proposed Total Contract Sum exceeds $1.5 million over the life of the
contract or for a lesser value set by Council from time to time; or

e Where a proposed contract is considered by Council or the CEO to be particularly
complex, of a high risk or controversial nature, and requiring a high level of public
confidence; or

e Where a Councillor or member of Council’s executive staff have or are perceived to
have a pecuniary interest in the proposed contract.

A probity advisor may be appointed to any tender evaluation panel and may be appointed to
oversee the evaluation process.

2.2.8.5 Shortlisting and Negotiations

Council may conduct a shortlisting process during EOI, tender and quotation processes.
Shortlisting must be based on the advertised selection criterion.

Shortlisted tenderers may be invited by the Council to submit a best and final offer in relation
to all or certain aspects of their respective tenders.

Once one or more preferred tenderers are selected, negotiations can be conducted in order
to obtain the optimal solution and commercial arrangements within the original scope and
intent of the tender. Probity requirements apply to all negotiations.

2.2.8.6 Expression of Interest

Council may conduct an expression of interest prior to conducting a tender. A tender must
follow the expression of interest. An expression of interest should be used in the following
circumstances;
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o Where there is likely to be many tenderers and Council does not wish to impose the
costs of preparing full tenders on a large number of potential tenderers

o Where there is uncertainty as to the interest of suppliers or vendors or their capacity
to fulfil the contract.

2.2.8.7 Request for Information

Council may conduct a request for information where Council is uncertain as to what goods or
services it requires. A request for information does not replace the need for public tender or
an expression of interest followed by a tender. Requests for information may be undertaken
to establish:

e Available technologies, products or services
e If proposed terms and conditions or deliverables are acceptable to the market

o Whether proposed budgets are adequate

2.2.9 Collaborative Procurement

In accordance with section 108(c) of the Act, this policy must describe how council will seek
collaboration with other councils and public bodies in the procurement of goods or services.

Council Staff must consider any opportunities for Collaborative Procurement in relation to a
procurement process undertaken by Council. Any report to the Council that recommends
entering into a procurement agreement must set out information relating to opportunities for
Collaborative Procurement, if available, including:?

e The nature of those opportunities, if any, and the councils or public bodies with which
they are available; and

o Why Council did, or did not, pursue the identified opportunities for collaboration in
relation to that procurement process.

When collaborating with the LMPN, the Council will do so in accordance with the following:

e The LMPN will develop a consolidated contract register to identify joint procurement
projects on an annual basis;

e Council contracts with a minimum value of $1 million per annum (per Council), for the
ongoing supply of goods or provision of services or works, other than projects that
are unique to an individual Council (e.g. unique construction or works projects), will
be included in the consolidated contract register for collaboration consideration;

e Other contracts which, due to the subject matter, nature or scope, are likely to deliver
operational efficiencies if procured in collaboration with the LMPN, must be included
in the consolidated contract register for consideration as a possible joint procurement
opportunity;

o Where Collaborative Procurement is to be pursued:

2 Local Government Act 2020, s 109 (2).
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o A pre-market approval submission will be submitted to each Council and the
LMPN prior to commitment to collaboration, seeking delegation of contract
approval to CEOs;

o The LMPN will establish a Heads of Agreement that gives authority for a lead
council to act as each Council’s agent in the Collaborative Procurement;

o Each of the Councils who participate will be able to enter into a contract with the
preferred supplier identified though the Collaborative Procurement process, or
may choose as a group to enter into a contract using “jump in/opt-in” contract
provisions during the contract term, or with the Council which conducted the
public tender; and

o Each participating council must be involved in:

e The initial decision to undertake the Collaborative Procurement;

o Preparation of, and agreement to, the specifications and evaluation
criteria;
Ensuring probity for the Collaborative Procurement; and

e The acceptance of tender(s) and awarding of contract(s).

Furthermore, Council may collaborate with other Councils or other agents such as MAV
Procurement or Procurement Australasia to procure goods, services or works, or utilise
existing Collaborative Procurement Arrangements for the procurement of goods, services or
works established through a public tender process where it provides an advantageous, Value
for Money outcome for the Council.

The following principles will be applied when utilising procurement agents (e.g. MAV
Procurement and Procurement Australasia) and whole of government contracts:
e Council will use an agent where potential cost savings exist.
e Council will follow the procurement agent’s established procedures.
e The use of procurement agents must not eliminate the ability of suppliers locally
and within our region to submit a quotation or tender.

Any Federal or State Government grant funded projects may be excluded from collaborative
procurement if required as part of the funding agreement.

2.3 Delegation of Authority

Instruments of Delegation define the limitations within which Council Staff are permitted to
commit Council to the procurement of goods, services or works and the associated costs. The
Instrument of Delegation allows specified Council Staff to undertake certain purchases,
quotation, tender and contractual processes without prior referral to the Council. This enables
the Council to conduct procurement activities in an efficient and timely manner whilst
maintaining transparency and integrity.

Council has delegated responsibilities relating to the expenditure of funds for the purchase of
goods, services and works, the acceptance of quotations and tenders and for contract
management activities to the CEO. The CEO has further delegated some of those
responsibilities to other members of Council Staff, subject to specified conditions and
limitations.

Procurement approval delegations can be found in Appendix 1

2.4 Internal Controls
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The CEO will install and maintain a framework of internal controls over procurement processes
that will ensure:

¢ More than one person is involved in, and responsible for, the creation and
authorisation of a contract (this includes creation and authorisation of purchase
orders);

Transparency in the procurement process;

A clearly documented audit trail exists for procurement activities;

Appropriate authorisations are obtained and documented;

Systems are in place for appropriate monitoring and performance measurement; and
A process is in place for escalation, where appropriate, of procurement matters
(including procedural non-compliance) to the Executive Management Team, the Audit
and Risk Committee and Council.

2.5 Risk Management

Council is committed to the practice of effective risk management to provide improved
stakeholder confidence and trust, and to support improved compliance and better corporate
governance. Risk management is to be appropriately applied at all stages of procurement
activities including:

Standardisation of contracts including current and relevant clauses

Requiring security deposits where appropriate

Referring specifications to relevant industry experts as required

Ensuring contractual agreements are in place before the commencement of works
Use of and enforcement of delegated authorities

Effectively manage the contract through ongoing monitoring to ensure the required
performance is being achieved

To protect the interests of Council, terms and conditions must be settled in advance of any
commitment being made with a supplier. Any exceptions to this requirement exposes Council
to risk.

Contracts are to be proactively managed by Council staff responsible for the delivery of the
project/contract. Each should be assessed equivalent to size, type, complexity, duration and
value to determine the level of risk. This will then determine the level of management of the
particular project / contract and forms an integral part of good contract management.

Risk assessments are a vital part of the procurement planning process, particularly for
significant contracts. Risks will be identified for each part of the sourcing, transition, delivery
and finalisation stages of procurement. Appropriate risk avoidance and mitigation strategies
will be employed whenever practicable and appropriate.

2.6 Endorsement

Council Staff must not publicly endorse any products or services without the permission of the
CEO.

2.7 Dispute Resolution

All Council standard contracts will incorporate dispute management and alternative dispute
resolution provisions to minimise the chance of disputes escalating to legal action.

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System

Page 17 of 36



PROCUREMENT POLICY
2.8 Contract Management

In order to continually improve its procurement and contract management processes and
outcomes, Council will evaluate and seek to improve on all aspects of procurement and
contract management, in accordance with its documented procurement processes and
Contract Management Guidelines.

Good contract management ensures goods, services and works are delivered to the required
standards of quality and quantity as intended by the contract through:

e Establishing a system monitoring and achieving the responsibilities and obligations of
all parties under the contract;

e Providing a means for the early recognition of issues and performance problems and
the identification of solutions;

e Adhering to the Council’s risk management framework and relevant Occupational
Health and Safety and sustainability requirements.

Council contracts are to include contract management requirements commensurate with the
complexity of the procurement. Furthermore, contracts are to be proactively managed by the
member of Council Staff responsible for the delivery of the contracted goods, services or works
to ensure the Council, and therefore the community, receives Value for Money.

Council awards some contracts that are strategically critical and of relatively high value.
Council will provide additional senior oversight to the management of such significant
contracts.

2.9 Training

All staff with duties that involve the purchasing of good and services will undertake
procurement training when they commence employment. In order to ensure existing staff are
up-to-date with the latest requirements of this policy they should participate in refresher
training every 12 months.

Staff that breach the policy will be required to undertake refresher training immediately and
may be subject to disciplinary action. Until initial training and/or refresher training has been
completed, any staff member that has breached the policy will be prohibited from participating
in any procurement process.

2.10 Cost Splitting

Any attempts to circumvent procurement thresholds by order splitting or other methods
constitutes a breach of the Procurement Policy.

211 Approved Panel of Suppliers
An approved panel supplier is a contractor or consultant that has been appointed following a

public tender process. Unless specified during the tender process there is no minimum
quantity of work guaranteed to an approved panel supplier.
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The use of panel of suppliers contracts should be transparent as suppliers appointed to the
panel will have a reasonable expectation that Council will provide panel members with an
equal opportunity to quote for goods, services or works.

Thresholds listed in Appendix 1 Table 4 Panel Contract Thresholds apply when using
approved panel of suppliers.

3. Demonstrate Sustained Value

3.1 Achieving Value for Money
3.1.1 Requirement

The Council’s procurement activities will be carried out to obtain Value for Money. This means
minimising the total cost of ownership over the lifetime of the requirement consistent with
acceptable quality, reliability and delivery considerations. Lowest price is not the sole
determinant of Value for Money.

3.1.2 Approach
This will be facilitated by:

e Achieving continuous improvement in procurement activity;

e Developing, implementing and managing processes that support the co-ordination
and streamlining of activities throughout the procurement lifecycle;

e Effective use of competition;

e Using existing Council contractual arrangement or Collaborative Procurement
Arrangements where appropriate;

e Identifying and rectifying inefficiencies in procurement processes;

o Developing cost efficient tender processes;

e Council Staff responsible for providing procurement services or assistance within the
Council providing competent advice in terms of available products and agreements;
and

e Working with suppliers to create relationships that are professional, productive, and
are appropriate to the value and importance of the goods, services and works being
acquired.

3.2 Sustainable Procurement
3.2.1 Sustainable procurement definition

Sustainable procurement involves decision making that has the most positive environmental,
social and economic impacts possible across the entire lifecycle of goods, services and works.
It looks beyond up-front costs to make purchasing decisions that consider associated
environmental and social risks and benefits, and broader social and environmental
implications.

The United Nations Environment Programme defines sustainable procurement as a “process
whereby organisations meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilities in a way that
achieves Value for Money on a whole of life basis in terms of generating benefits not only the
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organisation, but also to society and the economy whilst minimising damage to the
environment.”

3.2.2 Applying sustainable procurement in Council

Sustainability will be embedded in Council’s work. All Council staff will have a clear and shared
understanding about what it means and how they can apply it to their daily tasks. Council
commits to applying the principles of sustainability to its decision-making and activities.

Council demonstrates sustainable procurement by:

e Being accountable for its impacts on society, the economy and the environment
including the impacts of the organisation’s supply chain;

¢ Examining anticipated organisational, project and/or community needs;

e Continually improving sustainability specifications, practices and outcomes, and

¢ Planning and undertaking sustainability evaluations as part of contracting activities.

Social, environmental and economic sustainability criteria are to be considered at the planning
stage of procurement and included in Council’s tender documentation to achieve Council’s
sustainability outcomes. Environmental and social outcomes sough to be achieved through
the tender may be imbedded in any tender criteria.

Social, environmental and economic sustainability criteria are to evaluated independently of
one another and are not be bundled into a single sustainability measure.

3.2.3 Principles and objectives
In its Procurement Activities Council commits to

e Applying specific principles of sustainability to its decision-making and activities, and
e Focusing on specific Economic, Environmental and Social objectives.

While Council not subject to the reporting requirements of the Modern Slavery Act 2018,
Council understands its responsibility to resist modern slavery through its procurement
processes. Council will take the following steps to ensure it is avoiding modern slavery risks
in its procurement:

e Include in tender document a declaration of whether the Act applies to them, and if so,
ask them to provide Modern Slavery Statement (if one has been prepared) or to provide
details of activities they have undertaken so far and have planned to address the Act
reporting requirements.

Consider including modern slavery as an evaluation criterion in high risk procurement such as
electronics, clothing, construction and cleaning services.

The following economic, environmental and social objectives have been determined in line
with these principles.
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Area

Principles

Objectives

Economic

Council is committed to
procurement that supports Local
Business and economic diversity in
the LMPN.

Where practicable and applicable
Council will give preference to goods
manufactured or produced in
Australia and will actively seek
quotations and tenders from Local
Businesses in the Shire as a first
priority and the LMPN as a second
priority

Council’'s Procurement Policy will be
underpinned by the following
economic sustainability principles:

* Ensuring accountability and
transparency;

* Ensuring Value for Money
outcomes;

+ Ensuring open and effective
competition, and development
of competitive Local Business
and industry;

* Fostering innovation and
emerging sectors;

» Considering life cycle costs; and

+ Considering adaptability and
resilience to climate change
impacts

Council’'s economic sustainability
approach aims to:

* Achieve Value for Money on a
whole of life (including disposal)
basis, rather than just initial
cost;

» Consider broader life cycle
impacts of products procured;

+ Consider climate adaptability
and resilience of products
procured;

* Ensure probity and
accountability in the
procurement process;

* Increase purchasing from
businesses within the Shire and
LMPN;

» Build relationships with Local
Business and provide
opportunities to increase their
capacity and capability to
become suppliers to Council;
and

* Increase local employment.
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Area

Principles

Objectives

Environmental

Where applicable Council  will
purchase goods, services and works
that reduce air, water and soil

pollution, greenhouse gas
emissions, waste production,
natural resource depletion and

biodiversity depletion whenever they
present an acceptable Value for
Money outcome, and in some cases
where they might not.

Council’'s procurement will be
underpinned by the following
environmental sustainability
principles:

» Considering a product’s or
asset’s lifecycle;

* Promoting circular economy
participation;

* Managing demand to reduce
procurement requirements;

* Encouraging innovation through
specifications; and

* Engaging suppliers who are
also committed to reducing their
environmental impact.

Council’s environmental
sustainability and approach aims to:

* Improve energy efficiency;

* Reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from Council
operations, capital works and
supply chain (working towards
target of net zero emissions
from Council operations by
2030) t;

* Minimise waste generation and
waste to landfill;

* Improve water efficiency;

 Reduce air, water and soil
pollution;

* Reduce biodiversity impacts;
and

* Increase the use of recycled
materials to:

o Reduce demand for raw
materials and non-
renewable resources;

o Support the ongoing viability
of the recycling and
resource recovery sector;
and

o Close the loop on kerbside
recycling.
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Area

Principles

Objectives

Social

Council is committed to building
stronger communities and meeting
social objectives which benefit the
municipality and commits to
integration of measures in its
procurement processes and
documentation  which  promote
improved social outcomes.

Council’s procurement will be
underpinned by the following social
sustainability principles:

» A thorough understanding of the
socio-economic issues affecting
the community;

» Creation of training and
employment opportunities for
unemployed or disadvantaged
residents and ratepayers in
Council’s municipality, and
marginalised job seekers in
Council’s municipality, to
address local socio-economic
issues;

*  Promotion of equity, inclusion,
diversity and equal opportunity;
and

* Respect for human rights, the
rule of law and international
norms of behaviour.

Council’s social
approach aims to:

sustainability

* Ensure vendors do not exploit
workers and provide fair wages,
including inclusive business
practices;

* Maintain a social procurement
program to increase both direct
and indirect social procurement
spend across the LMPN (Direct
— engaging a social benefit
provider to deliver goods or
services; Indirect — including
social benefit(s) as an outcome
of a procurement contract);

» Ensure sourced products are
accessible by all segments of
the community;

* Increase employment
opportunities for;

o Dja Dja Wurrung people
and all Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander

People;
o People living with a
disability; and

o People experiencing
long term unemployment
or other socioeconomic
barriers.

* Improve gender equity; and

* Prevent, detect, report and
remove modern slavery from
Council’s supply chain.
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4. Build and Maintain Supply Relationships

4.1 Managing Suppliers

Council recognises the importance of managing existing suppliers including through
performance measurements which ensure supplier responsibilities of the contract are
delivered.

4.2 Supply Market Development

A wide range of suppliers are encouraged to compete for Council work. The focus for new
work need not always be with the larger more familiar businesses. Other types of organisations
offering business diversity include:

Green suppliers;

Local, small to medium sized enterprises (SMEs) and Social enterprises;
Ethnic and minority businesses;

Indigenous businesses;

Businesses employing people with disability; and

Volunteer and community organisations.

Review

This Policy must be reviewed a minimum of once every 2 years.

Human Rights Statement

Itis considered that this policy does not impact negatively on any rights identified in the Charter
of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act (2006). Central Goldfields Shire Council is
committed to consultation and cooperation between management and employees.

Relevant Legislation and Council Policies

Local Government Act 2020
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APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Council — Procurement Methodology Thresholds

Council will invite tenders, proposals, quotes and expressions of interest from the supply
market for goods, services and works in accordance with the thresholds in Table 3, except
where a panel is in place for the goods/services, in which case the requirement for quotes is
in accordance with the thresholds in the Table 4.

Table 1: Procurement Approval Delegations

Up to $10,000 Coordinator

Up to $25,000 Manager

Up to $150,000 General Manager

Up to $500,000 Chief Executive Officer
Greater than $500,000 | Council

Table 2: Contract Award Delegations

Limit of Delegations Power to Award

<$500,000 or as otherwise determined by Council | Chief Executive Officer

>$500,000 Council
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Table 3: General Procurement Thresholds

PROCUREMENT POLICY

FETEEL Minimum Requirements
Thresholds
Including GST | Processed by E LETLE: Engagement Documentation
ngagement Type
<$2,000 Business Unit | 1 Verbal Quote Purchase order or
Purchase card to
financial
delegation
$2,001 to Business Unit | 1 Written Quote Purchase order Quotes must be
$5,000 saved in
document
management
system
$5,001 - Business Unit | 2 Written Quotes Purchase order Quotes must be
$19,999 saved in
document
management
system
$20,001- Business Unit | 3 Written quotes Purchase order Quotes must be
$30,000 registered in
procurement
system and
saved in
document
management
system
$30,001 - Procurement Request for Quote | Purchase order | Request must be
$199,999 Unit via eTendering | for goods registered in
portal procurement
Contract for | system.
services or works
Evaluation Report
signed by
General Manager
$200,000 and | Procurement Request for Tender | Contract Request must be
above Unit via eTendering registered in
portal procurement
system.
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Evaluation Report
signed by
General Manager

Note:

All Pricing is inclusive of GST

Exemptions to the requirements detailed in this table (as
per Appendix 4) must be forwarded to the Procurement Unit
who will obtain Manager, General Manager and CEO
approval before any purchase is made or contract entered

into.

Threshold values to be presented for review annually

Table 4: Panel Contract Thresholds

The thresholds for additional panels will be determined as part of the procurement process
until this Procurement Policy is next reviewed.

Goods/services Business Business Unit Request for Public Public Tender
supplied under Unit will will seek at least | quote to panel | Requestfor | via eTender
the Panel seek at one written members via Quote via portal

Contract least one quote in eTender portal eTender
verbal consultation with portal
quote Procurement
Unit
Cleaning $0 - $999 $1,000-$9,999 $10,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and
Products $99,999 $199,999 above
Plant and | $0 - $999 $1,000-$14,999 | $15,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and
Equipment $99,999 $199,999 above
Crushed Rock | $0 - $999 $1,000-$99,999 | $100,000 or
and Aggregate more
Landscape $0 - $999 $1,000-$9,999 $10,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and
Materials $99,999 $199,999 above
Office Products | $0 - $999 $1,000-$9,999 $10,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and
$99,999 $199,999 above

Civil $0 - $4,999 | $5,000 - | $20,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and
Engineering $19,999 $99,999 $199,999 above
Consultancy
Services

Warning — uncontrolled when printed — the current version of the document is kept in Council’'s Records Management System

Page 27 of 36




PROCUREMENT POLICY

Supply and | $0 - $999 $1,000 - $4,999 | $5,000-$99,999 | $100,000- $200,000 and

Fitting of Tyres $199,999 above

Plumbing $0 - $999 $1,000-$4,999 $5,000 - $99,999 | $100,000- $200,000 and

Services $199,999 above

Electrical $0 - $999 $1,000 - $4,999 | $5,000-$99,999 | $100,000- $200,000 and

Services $199,999 above

Supply, Delivery | $0 - $4,999 | $5,000 - | $30,000 or more

and Lay Asphalt $29,999

Weed, Pest | n/a $0 - $29,999, | $30,000 - | $100,000- $200,000 and

Control and two quotes must | $99,999 $199,999 above

Environmental be sought

Services

Kerb and | $0 - $4,999 | $5,000 -1 $20,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and

Channel Works $19,999 $99,999 $199,999 above

Trees Services | $0 - $1,999 | $2,000 - $9,999 | $10,000 - |1 $100,000- | $200,000 and

and Removal $99,999 $199,999 above

Specialist $0 - $4,999 | $5,000 - |1 $30,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and

Project Services $29,999 $99,999 $199,999 above

Trade Services | $0 - $4,999 | $5,000 - | $30,000 - | $100,000- | $200,000 and
$29,999 $99,999 $199,999 above

Note:

made.

All Pricing is inclusive of GST

Threshold values to be presented for review annually.

Documentation requirements remain the same as Table 1: General Procurement Thresholds.

Exemptions to these requirement must be in accordance with Appendix 4, and be forwarded to the
Procurement Unit who will obtain Manager, General Manager and CEO approval before purchase is

Further details of the applicable procedures and processes is available in the Council’s
Procurement Procedures.
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Appendix 2 Council — Performance KPIs

Performance Indicators

Central Goldfields Shire Council will improve its procurement performance by seeking to
capture and analyse data on key performance indicators including:

Extent of contracts delivered on time and on budget;

Addendums issued;

New Collaborative Procurement contracts;

New preferred supplier (panel) contracts;

The number of Local Businesses engaged and proportion of local spend;
Value of savings and benefits achieved;

Compliance with the Procurement Policy;

Annual spend on sustainable (economic, environmental and social) goods and
services;

Annual Social engagement;
Retrospective Purchase Orders;
Conflict of Interest Declarations;
CEO Exemption requests; and

Contracts awarded between the RFT threshold and the CEO financial delegation

A report will be presented quarterly to the Executive Management Team, Audit & Risk
Committee and the Council regarding procurement performance.
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Appendix 3 Related Council Plans, Strategies and Policies
e Council Plan 2021-2025

e Long Term Financial Plan 2021-2031

e Council’'s Annual Budget

e Councillor Code of Conduct

e Central Goldfields Climate Action Plan 2022-30

e Complaints Management Policy

e Fraud Prevention Policy

e Delegations

e Inclusive - Disability Action Plan

e Economic Development Strategy

o Gender Equality Strategy

o Gifts, Benefits & Hospitality for Council Staff Policy

o Gifts, Benefits & Hospitality for Councillors Policy

e Managing Conflicts of Interest for Council Staff Policy
e Managing Conflicts of Interest for Councillors & Council Committee Members Policy
e Occupational Health and Safety Manual

e Public Interest Disclosure Policy

e Staff Code of Conduct Policy

e Risk Management Policy
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Appendix 4 Exemptions from the Policy

The following circumstances may, with evidence and recording of decision making, allow an
exemption from the general requirements for publicly advertised tender, quotations and
expression of interest. These exemptions also apply to collaborative procurements and
require the same approvals. Exemptions can only be granted by the CEO within the CEO’s
financial delegation.

It is also noted that Council may apply to the Minister for an exemption to the requirement for
public tender or compliance to the Procurement Policy, pursuant to Local Government Act
2020s 177.

Exemption Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and
approvals

e Where the CEO has declared that an emergency
exists, purchases may be made without the need to
initially follow policy during the emergency.
Situations covered by this include genuine concerns

1. A contract or for public safety, security, building specific critical
purchase made works, loss of essential services and, invoking an
because of a genuine emergency response plan.
emergency e This exemption ceases where there is no further

imminent threat or requirement to take immediate
action to protect life or property.

e This exemption must be used for the procurement
of extended goods, works or services.

e This general exemption allows engagements:

2. A contract made with, o With another government entity or government
or a purchase from a owned entity. For example, Federal, State or
contract made by, Local Government or an entity owned by the
another government Federal, State or Local Government; and/or
entity, government- o In reliance on contracts and arrangements
owned entity or other established by another government entity, local
approved third party authority or local government group purchasing

scheme, Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV)
or National Procurement network members (e.g.
Local Buy), Procurement Australia (PA). or
LMPN

e Allows Council to extend an existing contract where
the procurement process to replace the contract has
commenced, and where the tender process or

3. Extension of contracts negotiations will take or are taking longer than
while Council is at expected.
market to replace that |e This exemption may be used when the
contract. establishment of an interim short-term arrangement

with an alternative supplier is considered not to be
in the public interest, as it may be cost prohibitive
and/or present a risk in the delivery of critical public
services to the municipality.
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Exemption

Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and
approvals

4. Novated Contracts

e Where the initial contract was entered into in
compliance with the Act and due diligence has been
undertaken in respect to the new party.

5. Information
technology resellers
and software
developers

e Allows Council to renew software licenses and
maintenance and support, or upgrade existing
systems, where there is only one supplier of the
software who holds the intellectual property rights to
the software.

e Decision making must be recorded and include the
matters below:

o the existing software must be fit for purpose:

o the availability of other software products and
the costs and benefits of these compared with
the current software; and

o whether value for money would be received
under the proposed renewal or upgrade.

e To reduce the need to consider the use of this
exemption, tender specifications for all software
licenses must include maintenance, support,
upgrades and a reasonable contract term to ensure
value for money.

6. Regional Waste and
Resource Recovery
Groups

e Situations where a regional waste and/or resource
recovery opportunity has been identified, which
demonstrably benefits the Shire and aligns with
circular economy objectives as defined in the
Circular Economy (Waste Reduction and Recycling)
Act 2021.

7. Statutory Compulsory
Monopoly Insurance
Schemes

e Motor vehicle compulsory third party

8. Operating Leases

e Where a lessor leases an asset (generally a vehicle
or plant and equipment) to the Council and
assumes the residual value risk of the vehicle.

9. Plant and Equipment
Servicing

e Where it is required to maintain a valid warranty,

e Where works needs to be carried out by recognised
suppliers using genuine parts. To achieve this
Council utilises servicing by the manufacturers from
whom the plant and equipment was originally
purchased. Spare parts from specific manufacturers
can be purchased to complete works on a plant and
equipment in Council’s workshop.
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Exemption Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and
approvals

e Itis not practical to obtain quotes for artworks,
statues and monuments as each piece of work is

10. Artworks, Statues and unique. Please note that if an artwork is
Monuments commissioned to be created then this exemption
does not apply and quotations or tenders must be
sought.

e Units of Council that operate a retail outlet that are
required to purchase stock for resale to the public.
This is due to the nature of the goods that are
offered for resale, which may be of a unique nature.

11. Shop Supplies

¢ Units of Council that engage performers as part of

12. Performers .
their performance program are exempt.

e if Council requires advice from a supplier who offers

13. Specialist sole specialist knowledge which is not available from any
supplier knowledge other supplier. An exemption to complying with
and skills minimum number of quotes form must be completed

for these purchases.

e The Council deals with a number of core service
sole suppliers. There is no market to test and obtain
multiple quotations. Examples of core service sole
suppliers are: Central Highlands Water, Coliban
Water PowerCor, Professional membership
payments (relating to positions held at Council),
where the supplier is the sole source of intellectual
property e.g. Facebook, Google , Advertising
(newspapers)

14. Sole Supplier (Core
Service)

o |f a vacancy for a general manager position,

15. Contractor filling manager position, coordinator position or position
critical vacancy in required by legislation has been advertised but has
workforce not been able to be filled, the vacancy may be filled

by a contractor.

e When providing term emergency accommodation
inline with Council’'s Emergency Management
function, or

16. Accommodation e For overnight/short term accommodation for Council
staff when their approved work requires travel, or

e When Council is required to provide accommodation
facilities to visiting representatives.

e The use of labour hire providers as defined in

the Labour Hire Licensing Act 2018 (Vic) to fill
17. Labour Hire short term or temporary additional labour
requirements. This is separate to a contractor
filling critical vacancy.

e This does not extend to include debt recovery

18. Legal Services .
services
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Exemption Explanation, limitations, responsibilities and
approvals

e A member of Council staff may apply, in writing,
for an exemption under this policy to the Chief
Executive Officer.

e The Chief Executive Officer may consider an
application and provide a written exemption
under this policy, where it can be clearly
demonstrated that a public procurement process
will not be in the best interests of the
organisation or community to do so, the Council
staff member must be able to demonstrate in
their application that clear and robust market
testing as occurred.

e The Chief Executive Officer may also provide a
written exemption under this policy where he or
she is satisfied that:

o Exceptional circumstances exist; and

o ltis in the public interest to depart from
the procurement processes that would
otherwise apply.

e The Chief Executive Office must present to a
Council meeting details of any contract or other
agreement entered into as result of such
exemption being provided.

19. Chief Executive
Officer exemptions
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PROCUREMENT POLICY

MANDATORY

Relevant Insurances

Pass/Fail

OH&S Requirements

Pass/Fail

Financial Viability

Pass/Fail (as required)

- Depth of technical skills and knowledge
- Management and monitoring system

- Quality Assurance System and accreditation

FINANCIAL
Financial Benefit to Council Up to 45%
- Relative cost to Council
Financial Benefit to Community Up to 20%
- Business Ownership/Head Office
- Business Branch/Office
- Employment of Local Staff
- Use of Local Sub-Contractors
- Use of Local Materials
- Local Accommodation for duration of works
OTHER
Capability Weighted criteria to be
determined by Tender
- Response to specification Evaluation Panel prior to
quotation or tender being
- Demonstrated experience released.
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Capacity
- Available access to required resources
- Available access to required labour
- Key Sub-contractors

- Demonstrated system and processes for
deploying resources

Weighted criteria
determined by
Evaluation Panel p
quotation or tender
released.

to be
Tender
rior to

being

Environmental Sustainability
- Environmental Management System, Policy etc

- Level of Environmental Objectives, Actions and
Specifications proposed under this contract

- Demonstrated level of past Environmental
Performance

Minimum 5%

Social Sustainability

- Level of Social Employment Opportunities and
Strategies

- Social Enterprise Strategies, Purpose and Social
Outcomes

Minimum 5%

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander People

- Employment opportunities within Central
Goldfields Shire

- Business ownership and subcontractor
engagement

- Opportunities in the Loddon Mallee Region

Minimum 5%
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8.3 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE'S BIANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL

Author: Chair Audit and Risk Committee

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer

The Officer presenting this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of
staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

SUMMARY/PURPOSE

As required section 54(5) of the Local Government Act 2020, an Audit and Risk
Committee (ARC) report must be prepared and presented to Council on the outcomes of
the Audit and Risk Committee meetings on a biannual basis.

This report from the Committee covers the six months to 31 May 2023.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council receives the Biannual Report of the Audit and Risk Committee for the
period of 31 May 2023.

LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT
Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Leading Change

The Community's vision 4. Transparent decision making;

REPORT
Membership and Attendance
At the start of this reporting period:

Current Membership

e John Watson, Independent Chair

e Robert Tommasini, Independent Member
e Linda McNeill, Independent Member

e (Geoff Lovett, Councillor

e Gerard Murphy, Councillor



During the reporting period, the current term of independent member John Watson
expired, and his reappointment was subsequently made at the 2 May Council Meeting
following a recommendation by the Committee.

The terms of appointment of independent members are staggered year by year to
promote continuity on the Committee.

Although not mandatory under the Act, the Independent Audit and Risk Committee
members completed personal interests returns.

Meetings

e 6 March 2023 - Scheduled Meeting

e 27 March 2023 - Special Meeting to consider Provision of Project Management
Services for Priority Projects

e 19 June - Scheduled Meeting
Matters Considered

This report provides a summary of regular matters which are actively considered by the
Audit and Risk Committee during each of its meetings.

These items are listed on the agenda and include the following:
e Chief Executive Officer's (CEQ's) Report including updates on legal and regulatory

compliance matters

e Central Goldfields Shire Council (C6SC) Internal Audit Progress Report (provided
by AFS Chartered Accountants, Council's contracted internal auditor).

e Quarterly finance report

e Outstanding Audit Recommendations Register

o Defined Benefits Superannuation Scheme Update

e Management reports on a variety of matters such as the results of internal audits
e CEO credit card and Councillor expenses

e The Committee's annual work plan

e Sector related agencies and integrity reports
Additionally, the Committee has received reports on:

e Risk Management update including progress on the tender for the procurement
for a Risk Management Project to review Council's Risk Management Framework
and risk registers

e Cyber security update including the Protective Data Security Plan. This has now
been added to the standing reporting items for the Committee.



e Rates collection and outstanding amounts. This has been added to the regular
financial reporting.

e Review of the report of operations in the Annual Report

The Committee has not reviewed any policies in the reporting period but notes that the
Guidelines for reviewing and managing policies and procedures has been reviewed, the
register updated, and an online compliance system is being procured to ensure effective
ongoing review of policies.

Members Only discussion

At each meeting, the committee sets aside time for a member only discussion if required.
During the Members only meeting the members can raise any matter without management
or auditors being present.

Members can also invite the CEO and or Internal or External Auditors fo join them to
discuss matters without others being present.

Internal Audit

Internal Auditors

AFS Chartered Accountants are currently contracted by the council to provide internal
audit services until 31 October 2023.

Internal Audit work Plan

The committee approves a rolling three-year internal audit plan and monitors progress
against the plan at each meeting.

The timing of a number of internal audits were adjusted to accommodate operational
requirements for both Council and AFS.

Reports presented

While no completed reports of internal audits have been presented in the report period,
the following internal audits are in train and to be presented to the June Committee
meeting:

e Customer Service Requests and Complaints (to be presented to June meeting)

e Past Issues Review (to be presented to June meeting)

Planning documents reviewed:




e Operational Review - Environmental Health

Internal Audit Recommendations

Risk rating: | Minor Moderate N/A Total
Open as at 31 May 2023 24 30 6 2 60 (-3)
New added - - - -
Completed (year to date) 7 7 4 3 21 (+8)
Deferred (year to date) 3 7 1 11 (-6)

Council maintains a register of outstanding actions of prior audit recommendations which
has recently been transferred into Pulse management software.

The objective of this register is to track the status of outstanding actions to ensure
that all actions requested by various auditors are completed by the assigned action
officers.

Once an action officer considers that an action has been completed it is marked as such.

The committee closely monitors management's progress on the implementation of internal
audit recommendations.

Internal Auditors Performance Review

The committee annually undertakes a review of the performance of the internal auditors.
Strategic Risk Register and Risk Management

The committee receives regular reports on the status of the strategic risk register and
the management of risk within the organisation.

A contractor has been appointed to deliver a project to review the Council's Risk
Management Framework including its Strategic Risk Register, with the bulk of the work
to be delivered in 2023.

Committee Charter

The committee is governed by the ARC Charter adopted by the council as required by
the Local Government Act.

The Charter is reviewed by the Committee annually with advice provided to the Council
on any recommended changes.

Committee Annual Work Plan



The committee adopts an annual work plan setting out all the known matters it needs to
consider at each of its quarterly meetings.

The plan includes all the matters included in the Committer Charter together with
matters under the Local Government Act and any other matter the committee considers
necessary. The Work Plan is reviewed at each meeting and has achieved completion of
the activities as scheduled.

Annual Self-Assessment

The committee undertakes an annual self-assessment, and the results are reported to
the council by the CEO.

Due to staff turnover in the Governance Property and Risk team, a self-assessment was
not completed in time for the March committee meeting but has been prepared for
presentation at the June meeting.

CONCLUSION

The Biannual Report provides the Audit and Risk Committee with the opportunity to
report to Council a summary of the outcomes of the Audit and Risk Committee over the
reporting period.

The Committee works proactively and constructively with Management to support
continuous improvement in the identification and management of risk and audit matters.

Members participate actively and avail themselves of the opportunities to engage with
internal and external auditors.

ATTACHMENTS

Nil



8.4 G1746-23 PANEL OF APPROVED SUPPLIERS - SPECILIAST PROJECT

SERVICES
Author: Manager Project Management Office
Responsible Officer: General Manager Infrastructure Assets and Planning

GMTIAP identified a conflict of interest in a sub set of evaluations and removed himself
from that process..

SUMMARY/PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to brief the Councillors on the recommendation to award
contract 61746-23 Specialist Project Services - Panel Contract following a public tender

process.

The contract is a schedule of rates contract and the anticipated spend under the
contract is above the CEO's financial delegation. The contract is required to be awarded

by Council.

1.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

Award contract G1746-23 to the following contractors across the listed
service categories and authorise the CEO to execute these contracts under
delegation:

Creo Consulting Pty Ltd for the provision of aquatic engineering and
drafting and building design services

Lacus Consulting Pty Ltd for the provision of aquatic engineering
services

Fahrenheit Fire Engineers Pty Ltd for the provision of fire engineering
services

JJ Ryan Consulting Pty Ltd for the provision of electrical engineering
and drafting and building design services

Harris Kmon Solutions Pty Ltd for the provision of electrical engineering
services

Wrap Engineering Pty Ltd for the provision of electrical engineering
services

Currie and Brown (Australia) Pty Ltd for the provision of quantity
surveying and project management services




Plancost Australia Pty Ltd for the provision of quantity surveying
services

Mitbrand Vic Pty Ltd for the provision of quantity surveying services

N2SH Pty Ltd for the provision of building surveying and bushfire
management consulting services

McGregor Project Services Pty Ltd for the provision of building
surveying services

United Building Consultants Pty Ltd for the provision of quantity
surveying services

Practical Ecology Pty Ltd for the provision of bushfire management
consulting services

Spiire Australia Pty Ltd for the provision of bushfire management
consulting, strategy and masterplan development and open space and
recreation planning services

DWP Australia Pty Ltd for the provision of drafting and building design
and architectural services

Avro Architecture Pty Ltd for the provision of drafting and building
design services

Content Studio for the provision of architectural services
K20.AU Pty Ltd for the provision of architectural services
Mode Design Corp Pty Ltd for the provision of architectural services

Dja Dja Wurrung Enterprises Pty Ltd for the provision of
communications and engagement, digital, graphic and interpretive design
and cultural heritage consultancy services

L.A McCoy & R.A Williams t/as Local Logic Place for the provision of
communications and engagement services

Conservation Corporation Pty Ltd for the provision of communications
and engagement services

Paoli Smith Pty Ltd for the provision of digital, graphic and interpretive
design services

Sandpit Media Pty Ltd for the provision of digital, graphic and
interpretive design services

Denise Lane and Hayden Goodall t/as Sardine Design for the provision
of digital, graphic and interpretive design services

Extent Heritage Pty Limited for the provision of cultural heritage
consultancy, heritage conservation consultancy and heritage consultancy
services




Conservation Studio Australia Pty Ltd for the provision heritage
architecture, heritage conservation consultancy and heritage
consultancy services

Lovell Chen Pty Ltd for the provision heritage architecture and heritage
consultancy services

NBRS & Partners Pty Ltd for the provision heritage architecture
services

The Trustee for Gard'ner Jarmin Martin Trust t/as GIM Heritage for
the provision heritage conservation consultancy services

Urban Initiative Pty Ltd for the provision of strategy and masterplan
development services

Beveridge Williams and Co Pty Ltd for the provision of strategy and
masterplan development, landscape architecture and urban planning
services

Leisure Planners Pty Ltd for the provision of open space and recreation
planning services

Michael Edward Smith t/as Michael Smith and Associates for the
provision of open space and recreation planning, and landscape
architecture services

Ethos Urban Pty Ltd for the provision of urban planning and urban design
services

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd for the provision of landscape architecture,
urban planning and urban design services

Mesh Livable Urban Communities Pty Ltd for the provision of urban
planning and urban design services

Touch Projects Limited for the provision of project management
services

Accuraco Pty Ltd for the provision of project management services
Ontoit Global Pty Ltd for the provision of project management services

Ranbury Management Group Pty Ltd for the provision of project
management services

CT Management Group Pty Ltd for the provision of project management
services

JF Studio Pty Ltd for the provision of landscape architecture services




LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT

Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Our Spaces and Places and
Our Growing Economy

The Community's vision 4. Good planning, governance, and service delivery

Initiative: Improve project management processes and uplift capability
in the delivery of priority projects.

Legislation: s108 and s109, Local Government Act 2020
Policy: Central Goldfields Shire Council Procurement Policy 2021
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

For several years, Council has experienced resource instability across its functions
responsible for project delivery.

In March 2022, Council established the Project Management Office ("PMO") as a
separate department to Infrastructure and recruited for a Manager PMO and Manager
Infrastructure to provide more resources to the organisation and distribute those
resources appropriately to effectively deliver a significant portfolio of priority projects
and the capital works program.

Both senior roles were resolved in the second half of 2022 and internal resourcing in
project delivery stabilised with the appointment of the Manager PMO in July 2022, and
three additional project management resources in March 2023.

The PMO team are working on the development of a project management framework to
improve and streamline project management processes, as well as uplift internal
capability in the delivery of priority projects.

As part of this work, Officers identified an opportunity to establish a panel of approved
suppliers to enable access and a streamlined approach to procuring a diverse range of
technical services required in the provision of project delivery.

As a result, Council advertised contract 61746-23 Specialist Project Services - Panel
Contract through a public tfender process.

REPORT

Through the public tender process Council received 97 tender submissions.

Due to the number of submissions 7 evaluation feams were established with a focus on
tenders received for specific services. The evaluation teams consisted of staff from
across Council.

The tender responses were assessed against the following criteria:



e Risk Management. (Pass/Fail)

e Financial Benefit to Council (15%)

o Capability (30%)

o Capacity (30%)

o Financial Benefit to Community (10%)

o Environmental Sustainability (5%)

e Social Sustainability (5%)

e Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander People (5%)

The tender evaluation panel recommends that the following contractors be awarded
contract 61746-2023 Specialist Project Services Panel Contract.

Conservation Corporation Pty Ltd Creo Consulting Pty Ltd

Paoli Smith Pty Ltd Lacus Consulting Pty Ltd

Sandpit Media Pty Ltd Fahrenheit Fire Engineers Pty Ltd
gz::;(:el'gzi;:d Hayden Goodall t/as JJ Ryan Consulting Pty Ltd

Extent Heritage Pty Limited Harris Kmon Solutions Pty Ltd
GJM Heritage Wrap Engineering Pty Ltd
Conservation Studios Pty Ltd Currie & Brown (Australia) Pty Ltd
Lovell Chen Pty Ltd Plancost Australia Pty Ltd

Touch Project Limited Mitbrand Vic Pty Ltd

Accuraco Pty Ltd N2SH Pty Ltd

Ontoit Global Pty Ltd McGregor Project Services Pty Ltd
Ranbury Management Group Pty Ltd United Building Consultants Pty Ltd
CT Management Practical Ecology Pty Ltd
Beveridge Williams & Co Pty Ltd Spiire Australia Pty Ltd

JF Studio Pty Ltd DWP Australia Pty Ltd

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd Avro Architecture Pty Ltd




Michael Smith and Associates Content Studio

Ethos Urban Pty Ltd K20.AU Pty Ltd

Mesh Liveable Urban Communities Pty Ltd [Mode Design Corp Pty Ltd

Urban Initiative Pty Ltd Dja Dja Wurrung Enterprises Pty Ltd

LA McCoy & RA Williams t/as Local Logic

Leisure Planners Pty Ltd
Place

As the value of the recommended awarding of the contract is above the CEQ's $500,000
(inc 6ST) financial delegation, the contract is required to be awarded by Council.

CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

The tender was advertised in line with Council's Procurement Policy 2021.

The request for tender was advertised on Council's eTender portal, eProcure.com.au as
well as in The Maryborough and District Advertiser as part of Council's weekly
advertisement.

The tender was also advertised on Council's website and through Council's social media
pages.

The tender was available for public download from 18 January 2023 until closing 08
February 2023.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Contract will provide Council a panel of contractors that staff Council wide will be
able to access to deliver projects.

Establishing this panel should allow officers to save time in the procurement process
while remaining compliant with the Act and Council's Procurement Policy.

Any engagement with a panel member will be funded from the budget of the project the
contractor is being engaged to work on.

Each contract executed with the recommended contractors will be a schedule of rates
contract based on the submission provided at tender-.



RISK MANAGEMENT

This report addresses Council's strategic risk Governance - Failure to fransparently
govern and embrace good governance practices.

The panel will assist Officers in accessing a diverse range of technical services required
in the provision of project delivery services.

The establishment of an approved panel of suppliers for specialist project services will
ensure a streamlined approach to accessing specialist project services in the delivery of
Councils priority projects, while maintaining transparency and rigour around procurement
activities associated with the same.

CONCLUSION

The PMO team have been working to improve the provision of project management
services within the Council.

The establishment of an approved panel of suppliers for specialist project services will
provide Officers with access to a diverse range of technical services which aren't
available internally, assisting them in the effective delivery of project management
services.

This report recommends that Council award contract 61746-2023 Specialist Project
Services Panel to the service providers listed in the table outline in the ‘Report' section
of this document.

1. Confidential attachments provided under separate cover.

The evaluation report is confidential under sections 3(a) and (g) of the Local
Government Act as it contains:

(a) Council business information, being information that would prejudice the
Council's position in commercial negotiations if prematurely released.

This section applies because the contract is not finalised and releasing the
information prior to decision could prejudice the Council's commercial position in
negotiations.

(g9) private commercial information, being information provided by a business,
commercial or financial undertaking that—

(i) relates to trade secrets; or

(ii) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or financial



undertaking to disadvantage

This section applies because it contains detailed submission information that
could provide an unreasonable commercial advantage to competitors.

CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENTS

8.4.1 Tender Evaluation Report 61746-23 Main Report
8.4.2 Reference Checks G1746-23

8.4.3 Tender Evaluation Report 61746-23 GROUP 1
8.4.4 Tender Evaluation Report G1746-23 GROUP 2
8.4.5 Tender Evaluation Report G1746-23 GROUP 3
8.4.6 Tender Evaluation Report 61746-23 GROUP 4
8.4..7 Tender Evaluation Report 61746-23 GROUP 5
8.4.8 Tender Evaluation Report 61746-23 GROUP 6
8.4.9 Tender Evaluation Report 61746-23 GROUP 7



8.5 WELCOME TO CENTRAL GOLDFIELDS EVALUATION REPORT

Author: Chief Executive Officer

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer

The Officer presenting this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of
staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

SUMMARY/PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to provide an evaluation of the Welcome to Central
Goldfield Project including recommendations and next steps.

The Welcome to Central Goldfields (WTCG) project was developed in response to staff
and skills shortages that were impacting local employers in the Shire.

The project was run from July 2022 through to January 2023 in partnership with the
Community through a Community Reference Group and with Blackfella Films a production
company that documented the project.

The evaluation provides a detailed evaluation based on interviews with participants and
supported by economic and social data.

The report highlights the key success factors that the community and businesses can
build on, and key learnings that have shaped the recommendations and next steps for
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1. Note the evaluation report;
2. Endorse the recommendations in the report; and

3. Thank the members of the Community Reference Group, businesses and the
volunteers who provided support to the project and the participants involved.

LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT

Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Our Community's Wellbeing

And Our Growing Economy



This project addressed key objectives in several Council strategies and plans as follows:

CGSC Council Plan 2021 - 2025

a. Changing the narrative

b. Multicultural celebration

CGSC Economic Development Strategy 2020 - 2025

c. Invest in People and Place
d. A Thriving Business Community

e. Tailored Economic Development Practice
Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025

f. Advocate for social change

g. Foster social connection and diversity
Tourism and Events Strategy 2020 - 2025

h. Shift the narrative around the Shire's Identity and Perception

i. Strengthen and diversify our economy

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Welcome to Central Goldfields (WTCG) project was developed in response to staff
and skills shortages that were impacting local employers in the Shire, as evidenced by a
survey undertaken in 2022.

The project looked at filling these vacancies with skilled migrants who were living in
Melbourne and would consider relocating to a regional area.

The project was undertaken in partnership with Blackfella Films, a documentary film
production company who approached the local community in 2022 with an interest in
documenting skilled migrants' relocation to regional areas.

Blackfella films played a key role in recruiting for the pilot with the assistance of AMES
Australia and filmed each of the migrant families over a three - six-month period.



A community reference group chaired by Councillor Meddows-Taylor and consisting of
business leaders and community members provided leadership and oversight of the
project. This group was critical in providing links o business and community members
including the provision of support to the participants, such as welcoming them to the
Shire, providing mentorship and finding accommodation.

REPORT
The aspirations of the project and this approach over the longer term were:

e A growing workforce which is highly competitive in the skilled jobs market

e A growing population with a younger median age group and increased cultural
diversity

e A community of empowered leaders who work together to solve complex problems
e Aninclusive community who is proud of who they are and who lead by example in
the region What are the benefits/disadvantages to this recommendation?

Key success factors of the project included the level of support provided by the
community in welcoming the families to the Shire and providing them with links to
community groups and activities; finding them short fterm accommodation including
billeting; raising of awareness of workforce issues and the benefits (economic and social)
of recruiting migrant people.

Key learnings of the project included:;
e the need to find a better match between mentors and volunteers (age and
interests);

e more information for volunteers on their role and resources to support them;

o formal agreements for billeting to provide greater clarity and certainty for both
parties;

e More targeted information and support for migrant employees required from
their employers;

e and training for employers to better understand the needs of migrant employees
including visa requirements.

Other issues identified during the project included;

e low availability of childcare;
e limited housing options beyond the billeting arrangements;
e and no centralised website or hub for job vacancy listings.

The project was also driven by the timeframes of the documentary film maker which
resulted in sub-optimal outcomes for businesses and participants.



The project would have benefited from more time for planning, and more flexible
timelines that suited individual businesses’ needs and participants personal requirements
to relocate.

The report makes recommendations for the next steps for the Community Reference
Group to consider and prioritise. These recommendations include:

e Facilitate a coordinated approach to recruiting migrant employees

e Facilitate a coordinated approach to short term housing solutions

e Formalise the support network with community leaders

e Seek funding for an ongoing project liaison role to support local collaboration

e Create opportunities for migrants considering resettlement fo get to know the
Shire

e Advocate on housing and childcare needs with all levels of government

These recommendations can be implemented over time subject to resource availability
and interest from local businesses and the community.

CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

Community Reference Group

A Community reference group was formed to oversight the project with representation
across business and community.

The reference group participants and Statement of Intention are in Appendix 2 of the
Evaluation Report.

The Community Reference Group met on 10 May to discuss the evaluation report and in
particular the recommendations and next steps.

Participants

Interviews were conducted with businesses, volunteers, and participants in the project
to gain their insights and feedback on the successes and challenges faced.

These interviews have informed the Evaluation Report.



Communications

From August to December 2022 a weekly social media plan with suggested Facebook
posts were sent to Community Reference Group members, along with photos-
encouraging them to spread the message of the project.

Articles on the project were featured in The Maryborough Advertiser weekly throughout
October.

They also featured the Welcome to Central Goldfields poster regularly before residents
arrived in mid-October.

An issue highlighted by the reference group was that we needed to communicate with
the community beyond social media and the paper.

A poster was developed in September and placed around the Shire to increase awareness
of the project.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Council allocated resources to support the pilot delivery (equivalent to 0.2 FTE for six
months). The Project lead - responsible for project management and co-ordination.

Project liaison - responsible for working with the community to identify job and housing
options. The cost of this was partially offset by a contribution from Blackfella Films of
$10,000.

An internal working group was also formed with representatives from Tourism,
Events and Culture, Economic Development and Community Engagement given the
strong strategic alignment of this project with many objectives in the Council Plan
and other Council plans and strategies as outlined in Appendix 3 of the report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

This report addresses Council's strategic risk Community Well-being - Failure to
recoghise and manage the impact of changing social and economic conditions on the
community by addressing the issue identified by business in attracting qualified /
skilled staff to fill vacancies whilst also meeting the aspiration of the community to
celebrate and embrace cultural diversity.



CONCLUSION

The Welcome to Central Goldfields evaluation report outlines the background of the
project, the outcomes, key successes and learnings and recommendations for
consideration to continue to address the skills gaps for local businesses through the
attraction of skilled migrants to Central Goldfields Shire and to enrich the
local community through cultural diversity.

ATTACHMENTS

8.5.1 Welcome to Central Goldfields Evaluation Report
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Located at the geographical centre of Victoria, Central Goldfields Shire is within one hour's
drive of the regional centres of Ballarat and Bendigo and just two hours from Melbourne.

The municipality covers an area of 1,532 square kilometres and has a population of 13,483
people (ABS Census, 2021). Manufacturing is the main industry in the shire, employing 12.2%
of workers and accounting for 20.5% of economic output.

Other major industries by employment include health care and social assistance (21.2% of
workers), retail (12.4%), education and training (9.4%), accommodation and food services
(7.5%) and agriculture (7%).

The Shire has a history of high unemployment and disadvantage and is ranked as the most
socially disadvantaged in Victoria and 46th in Australia (2016 census).

It has high proportions of the population not in learning or further education compared to
the rest of Victoria's population.

The Welcome to Central Goldfields (WTCG) pilot was developed in response to staff and
skills shortages that were impacting local employers in the Shire, as evidenced by a survey
undertaken in 2022.

The project looked at filling these vacancies with skilled migrants who were living in
Melbourne and would consider relocating to a regional area.

This model has been successful in other regional communities such as Nhill, Pyramid Hill, and
Ararat.

The project was undertaken in partnership with Blackfella Films, a documentary film
production company who approached the local community in 2022 with an interest in
documenting skilled migrants' relocation to regional areas.

Blackfella films played a key role in recruiting for the pilot with the assistance of AMES
Australia and filmed each of the migrant families over a three - six- month period. It is
expected that the resulting documentary will be aired in Australia in mid-2023.

A community reference group chaired by a Councillor and consisting of business leaders and
community members provided leadership and oversight of the project. This group was
critical in providing links to business and community members including the provision of
support to the participants, such as welcoming them to the Shire, providing mentorship and
finding accommodation.
The aspirations of the pilot project and this approach over the longer term were:

e A growing workforce which is highly competitive in the skilled jobs market

e A growing population with a younger median age group and increased cultural diversity

e A community of empowered leaders who work together to solve complex problems



e Aninclusive community who is proud of who they are and who lead by example in the
region

This report provides a detailed evaluation of the pilot project based on interviews with
participants and supported by economic and social data. The report highlights the key
success factors that the community and business can build on, and key learnings that have
shaped the recommendations and next steps for consideration.

Key success factors of the project included the level of support provided by the community
in welcoming the families fo the Shire and providing them with links to community groups
and activities; finding them short term accommodation including billeting; raising of
awareness of workforce issues and the benefits (economic and social) of recruiting migrant
people.

Key learnings of the project included:;
e the need to find a better match between mentors and volunteers (age and interests);

e more information for volunteers on their role and resources to support them;

formal agreements for billeting to provide greater clarity and certainty for both
parties;

e more targeted information and support for migrant employees required from their
employers;

and fraining for employers to better understand the needs of migrant employees
including visa requirements.

Other issues identified during the pilot included:;
e low availability of childcare;
¢ limited housing options beyond the billeting arrangements;
e and no centralised website or hub for job vacancy listings.

The report makes recommendations for the next steps for the Community Reference Group
to consider and priortise.
These recommendations include:

o Facilitate a coordinated approach to recruiting migrant employees

¢ Facilitate a coordinated approach to short term housing solutions

e Formalise the support network with community leaders

o Seek funding for an ongoing project liaison role to support local collaboration

e Create opportunities for migrants considering resettlement to get to know the Shire

e Advocate on housing and childcare needs with all levels of government



These recommendations can be implemented over time subject to resource availability and
interest from local businesses and the community.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 REPORT PURPOSE

Through the Welcome to Central Goldfields (WTCG) pilot (June 2022 - December 2022),
seven migrant families and or single adults relocated from Metropolitan Melbourne to Central
Goldfields to take up job opportunities in the Shire.

The pilot was in response to staff and skills shortages affecting local businesses as
confirmed in a survey responded to by 50 businesses in June 2022.

The survey found that whilst there was difficulty in attracting all occupational groups some,
such as qualified professionals, qualified frades people, and skilled workers, were
particularly hard to recruit and retain.

The pilot also responded to the community's desire to become more culturally diverse.

The Community Vision developed in 2021 included an aspiration fo Welcome and support new
Australians and recognise their culture and contribution to the community.

The purpose of this report is to:

e Capture the key factors that supported successful resettlement for the
participants involved in the pilot

e TIdentify areas for improvement to increase success rates with future migrant
resettlement initiatives

e Facilitate a platform for advocacy for those inhibitors to successful migrant
resettlement that can't be addressed locally

1.2 EVALUATION APPROACH

Through improving our approach to migrant resettlement, community and business leaders

seek to achieve long-term outcomes for the Central Goldfields Shire community, including:
e A growing workforce which is highly competitive in the skilled jobs market
e A growing population with a younger median age group and increased cultural diversity
e A community of empowered leaders who work together to solve complex problems

e Aninclusive community who is proud of who they are and who lead by example in the
region



The key findings in this report are particularly important from this perspective as they form
a solid foundation on which further insight and improvement might be built over time towards
achievement of the long-term outcomes.

1.2.1 Data collection
Data has been collected from three main sources:
Case studies

To learn from existing resettlement programs to regional Victoria:
e Small towns, Big Returns, Economic and social impact of the Karen resettlement in
Nhill, Deloitte Access Economics and AMES, 2015

e Ballarat Skilled Migration Project, Ongoing
e Population Attraction and Retention Toolkit, Rural Councils Victoria, 2020

e A bridge to Regional Employment and Opportunities, A Try, Test and Learn Fund
Project, Department of Social Services and Ames, 2021

e Regional Workforce Pilots - Regional Development Victoria (High Country, Great
South Coast Robinavale and Grampians)

Social media analysis

To gauge community perceptions and sentiments: The response to our social media posts
about the project were mainly positive and supportive.

The main concern raised in these posts was in relation to the availability of housing.

Quote: "Fabulous idea and right on the money, all over Australia this is the only way to plug
the labour gaps but also to build towns."

Quote "There are very few rentals in Maryborough and for what they are charging
Maryborough just does not have enough to offer..."

Semi structured interviews

To generate deep insights with key people involved in the project:

e Pilot participants who resettled in Central Goldfields (x6 interviews as one person
could not be contacted)

e Community Reference Group members (x6 interviews)

e Community members (volunteers) including those who provided housing options
(x5 interviews)

e Local businesses (x7 interviews)
e AMES



Economic data

1) Central Goldfields Shire Council Recruitment and Retention of Staff in the Shire
Survey results

2) ABS 2021 Census Data

3) Remplan Economic Data

1.3 REPORT STRUCTURE

The report comprises the following sections:

e Section 2 - Provides a profile of Central Goldfields Shire Council by
looking at demographics, the economy and social indicators

e Section 3 - Documents the background to the pilot including the model for delivery
and the important role of local leadership

e Section 4 - Discusses the key findings for the pilot including what helped and
hindered resettlement efforts

e Section 5 - Identifies the top factors for successful migrant
reseftlement and recommendations next steps

2. ABOUT CENTRAL GOLDFIELDS SHIRE

Located at the geographical centre of Victoria, Central Goldfields Shire is within one hour's
drive of the regional centres of Ballarat and Bendigo and just two hours from Melbourne.

The municipality covers an area of 1,532 square kilometres and has a population of 13,483
people (ABS Census, 2021).

Cenftral Goldfields Shire is bounded by Loddon Shire in the north, Pyrenees Shire in the west,
Mount Alexander Shire in the east and Hepburn Shire to the south.

Maryborough is the Shire's major business centre with a population of 8,160 (Maryborough
SA2 level ABS Census 2021).

Other smaller fownships include Bealiba, Carisbrook, Daisy Hill, Dunolly, Talbot, Majorca,
Bet Bet and Timor.

The Traditional Custodians of the land in Central Goldfields Shire are the Dja Dja Wurrung
people.

The Shire's rich history began with Traditional Owners and has been enriched by migration
during Victoria's gold rush era.

All tfownships feature iconic heritage architecture and agricultural industries spread across
the Shire and include grain, sheep grazing and broiler farming.



The Shire is also home to manufacturing, infrastructure, agricultural, freight, printing, and
food production companies.

Residents have access to affordable housing, a wide variety of health services, schools,
recreational facilities, parks, and gardens.

In 2020 Council developed a Community Vision in collaboration with a Community Advisory
Group drawing on input from over 2000 people across the Shire.

The Community Vision is:

"In 2031, we are an inspiring, thriving, and prosperous community of choice, we've taken bold
steps towards growing our economy and our community is full of optimism and opportunities.
We are kind, connected and inclusive and we nurture creativity, leadership, and innovation.
We value and invest in our young people and our health and wellbeing is high. We live
sustainably, cherish, and protect our environment and heritage and we have access to
outstanding jobs, education, health, community services, infrastructure, and housing”.

2.1 ABOUT THE COMMUNITY

The median age in Central Goldfields Shire is 52 (ABS Census 2021), higher than the regional
Victorian median age of 43 (ABS Census 2021).

The population is forecast to grow at a rate of 0.7% annually from 2022 to 2028.

Of the population, 82.3% were born in Australia and 89.7% speak only English at home,
compared to the State average of 67.2%. Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people
represent 2.3% of the population (ABS Census 2021).

The ancestry of the Shire is predominately from the United Kingdom. Of those born
overseas residents were from England (3.4% of total population), New Zealand (0.8%), the
Philippines (0.6%), Netherlands (0.6%) and Scotland (0.4%).

Residents have access to a wide variety of health services, schools, retail, and recreational
facilities, making Central Goldfields a great place to live.

Like other small rural towns, challenges include limited public transport and lack of specialist
services, particularly in health, and limited access to post-secondary education locally.

Despite being a great place to live, Central Goldfields is the most socially disadvantaged in
Victoria and 46th in Australia with a SEIFA index in 2016 of 870 (2021 census data will be
available in late April 2023).

It has high proportions of the population not in learning or further education compared to
the rest of Victoria's population.

Family and household median weekly income is lower than the Victorian medians, $904, lower
than the regional Victorian median of $1,386. At 46.8%, rates of home ownership in the Shire
are higher than the rate of 39.3% for the rest of regional Victoria (ABS census 2021).



However, 14.4% of dwellings are in housing stress.

This consists of 241 in mortgage stress (15.4% of mortgaged dwellings), and 652 in rental
stress (53.5% of rented dwellings).

In Central Goldfields, affordable housing in C6S has decreased between 2007 and 2020 with
the COVID-19 pandemic impacting housing availability (rental and purchase).

2.2 ABOUT THE ECONOMY

Manufacturing is the main industry in the shire, employing 12.2% of workers and accounting
for 20.5% of economic output (REMPLAN, 2023).

This includes sectors such as printing, publishing, and food processing. Other major
industries by employment include health care and social assistance (21.2% of workers), retail
(12.4%), education and training (9.4%), accommodation and food services (7.5%) and
agriculture (7%) (REMPLAN, 2023).

Traditionally unemployment rates have been higher than for the rest of Victoria, however
the unemployment rate as of February 2022 was 4.4% which was higher than the average
rate for regional Victoria (3.7%) but lower than the Victorian State average of 4.6%.

3. BACKGROUND TO THE PILOT

3.1 SKILLS SHORTAGES IN REGIONAL VICTORIA

Inrecent years, businesses in Victoria have faced significant challenges in attracting skilled
employees.

One of the main factors contributing to this challenge is the state's aging workforce, which
is leading to a shortage of workers with specific skills and experience.

Businesses in Regional Victoria face unique challenges when it comes to attracting skilled
employees.

One of the main challenges is the perception that career opportunities in regional areas are
limited compared fo cities.

Many people are hesitant to relocate to regional areas due to the perceived lack of job
opportunities and social amenities.

This perception is particularly prevalent in fields such as technology and finance, where most
job opportunities are concentrated in metropolitan areas.

Another challenge faced by businesses in Regional Victoria is the limited pool of qualified
candidates. While there are many talented individuals living in regional areas, the number of
qualified candidates may be lower than in metropolitan areas.

A third challenge faced by businesses in Regional Victoria is the difficulty in competing with
metropolitan areas regarding salaries and benefits.



This challenge is particularly significant in fields, where highly skilled workers are in high
demand and can command high salaries.

Attracting skilled migrant employees to Regional Victoria to fill these skill gaps can also be
challenging for businesses as many migrants may not be familiar with regional areas and may
prefer to settle in metropolitan areas where there are established migrant communities and
access to social amenities.

As a result, businesses in Regional Victoria may find it difficult to attract skilled migrants,
particularly those who have no prior experience living in a regional area.

Another challenge is the lack of available services to support migrants settling in Regional
Victoria.

Migrants often require support to find accommodation, access healthcare services, and
establish social connections in their new community.

3.2 SKILLS SHORTAGES IN CENTRAL GOLDFIELDS

Central Goldfields Shire Council (C6SC) conducted a survey (Appendix 6) with businesses
following feedback that recruiting and retaining staf f was becoming more problematic.

Businesses were concerned this was having a detrimental effect on their businesses reaching
their full potential.

The survey was distributed electronically to over 200 businesses in the Shire. Fifty-one
responded.

The survey asked a range of questions, from workforce size to support and incentives. The
largest groups of responding businesses were retail, followed by hospitality and
manufacturing.

Over 60% of participants said finding staff was either difficult or very difficult. Whilst
there was difficulty in attracting all occupational groups some, such as qualified

professionals, qualified trades people, and skilled workers, were particularly hard to recruit
(90%).

Apart from the general skills shortage in Victoria and regional Victoria, some of the issues
in Central Goldfields can also be attributed to the level of educational attainment in the
Shire, which is lower than the State and Regional averages.

The 2021 census showed that 9.2% of the population had a bachelor's degree compared to
Victoria (29.2%) and Australia (26.3%), and 6.8% held a diploma compared to Victoria (9.8%)
and Australia (9.6%).



As a result of these challenges, businesses are looking for several solutions including;

e additional financial and non-financial incentives, such as flexible work arrangements
and a better work-life balance - many businesses stated they were doing this in the
survey

e building partnerships with local education providers to develop a pipeline of skilled
workers from within the community -a project called TILT is working on this option
(see Appendix 7)

e attracting skilled migrant employees - the subject of this pilot

3.3 THE COMMUNITY COMING TOGETHER

2017-2021 - Community and business leaders grapple with increasingly complex issues with
attracting and retaining staff (particularly skilled staff) and the issue is identified in
Central Goldfields Shire Council's Economic Development Strategy 2020-2025

2021 - Building on conversations with Committee for Maryborough and local business
leaders, Central Goldfields Shire Council invites over 200 businesses fo provide further
insight into staff attraction and retention challenges (see Appendix 6)

Early 2022 - Blackfella Films approach local and community leaders with their interest to
shine a light on the divide between urban and regional Australia and fo elevate and promote
the 'gold’' to be found in regional towns

Mid-2022 - Community and business leaders form a Community Reference Group to lead a
pilot project - Welcome to Central Goldfields - fo resettle up to ten migrant families, from
Metropolitan Melbourne to Central Goldfields Shire and agree to work alongside Blackfella
Films through the pilot

3.4 DELIVERING THE PILOT PROJECT

June 2022 - Community and business leaders form a Community Reference Group (See
Appendix one)

June 2022 - Central Goldfields Shire Council allocates resources to support the pilot
delivery (equivalent to 0.2 FTE for six months)

The Project lead - responsible for project management and co-ordination
Project liaison - responsible for working with the community to identify job and housing
options (Position description in Appendix 8)

June 2022 - October 2022 - Blackfella Films uses a range of strategies to recruit migrant
families and individual adults with an interest in resettling in regional Victoria

July 2022 - September 2022 - Project liaison launches a communications campaign for the
pilot and works with local communications professionals to promote the campaign on a



weekly basis The project liaison also works with local businesses to identify job
opportunities which have not yet been filled locally and; local community members to
source short term, community-based housing options

September 2022 - Project liaison works intensively with Blackfella Films and people in the
community tfo match migrant families and or individual adults with jobs and housing options
and community members come ftogether to establish a support network (including a buddy
system) and attend AMES training

October 2022 - December 2022 - Seven families/ participants arrive in Central Goldfields
after local flooding events cause some delays. Families settle intfo new jobs, housing and
schools and filming in the community intensifies

October 2022 - Community Reference Group and support network members host a
community picnic o welcome the participants in the pilot. Culturally appropriate welcome
packs are distributed

January 2023 - One migrant family and one adult choose to stay in Central Goldfields,
and the pilot ends. The evaluation processes commence.

April 2023 - Recommendations for next steps are agreed by the Community Reference
Group (as part of this report)

Late 2023 - A three-part documentary about the pilot may be aired on television

3.5 PILOT PARTNERS

Blackfella Films - Is a production company known for its distinctive style of documentary
film making, with previous work including First Australians, Mabo, Redfern Now and Addicted
Australia.

Blackfella Films had a key role in recruiting for the pilot with the assistance of AMES
Australia and filmed each of the migrant families over a three - six-month period including
their decision o leave Metropolitan Melbourne and experiences settling in Maryborough and
surrounds.

AMES - Provides comprehensive settlement services for refugees and migrants and has
extensive experience in supporting migrant resettlement to regional Victoria.

As key advisers on the pilot, AMES also provided training with community and business
leaders, particularly focusing on cultural diversity and safety.

LOCAL BUSINESSES - Many local employers were interested in and supportive of the
project and stayed involved regardless of their success or not in filling a vacant position.



4. KEY FINDINGS

The key findings section is a simple synthesis of the data collected through the research
process (see section 1.2.1 Data collected).

4.1 UNDERSTANDING THE NEEDS OF NEW MIGRANTS

New migrants need support settling into schools

Homesickness is a common feeling, so opportunities to connect intfo community
are important

Career opportunities such as learning new skills and expanding knowledge are
important

New settlers would prefer more of a ground swell of migrants, so they don't 'stick
out’ and can share experiences

Skilled migrants are not always as competitive in a job market i.e... Language and
cultural differences, so businesses need to modify their interview approach
understanding this

4.2 WHAT WORKED WELL?

Most migrant families found the support network worked well and were grateful for
the support base in their transition, for some the match did not fit (particularly due
to age differences)

Common interests between volunteers and migrant families and individual adults
really helped with creating strong connections

Billeting with local families is a successful way of welcoming migrant families and
quickly integrating them into the community. Lots of people in the Shire live in large
houses alone, and billeting is a great solution for all

Community based housing (including billeting) was a quick and effective way for
solving short term housing solutions

Local leaders are committed to migrant resettlement as a key focus for the future
of the community, even if there is no obvious gain for them (i.e., many involved did
not solve their employment issues through to pilot but are committed to further
pilots and getting better). They also cited the range of potential reputational risks
with filming the process, but felt the potential gains outweighed these risks

The community barbeque was highly valued by all people involved in the project,
particularly volunteers, as they were able to meet their ‘buddies’ in a supportive
environment

Cultural exchanges, particularly through the communications campaign



e Local businesses preparing staff to welcome new migrant workers, and to encourage
support, particularly around community involvement

e Volunteers who were able to draw on their own experiences of travelling or living in
another country were more able to empathise with, and anticipate the needs of
migrant families and individual adults

e Participants became involved in local community groups and activities such as:
e Local Carols Group
e Local Cricket Club
e Field Naturalist Club

e Migrant family (Galang family) to share Christmas lunch with a volunteer
(Jan) (cancelled due to COVID)

e Latin night (hosted by one of the migrant families)

4.3 AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
All people involved in the pilot saw value in continuing the support network

activities, however, a few people cited areas for improvement:
o A clearer definition of the volunteer role

o Guidance on how to contact families including how frequently they should
be contacted

o Guidance on how to draw on personal experience to help people feel welcomed

o Overall co-ordination and information sharing among volunteers and
billets including opportunities to connect face to face

o Volunteers needed more information about their buddies to help identify
shared hobbies and interests and to help with connecting

o Ensure that volunteers are matched with interests (and age)
o Greater visibility of a key contact point for the support network

e In some instances, volunteers, migrant families, and individual adults failed to
connect through the pilot period. Some volunteers were anxious that they could be
doing more, but did not want to overwhelm the migrant families

e Ultimately, the pilot was unsuccessful at attracting skilled migrants (professionals),
this was partly due to the short timeframe of the pilot and timelines driven by the
documentary partner

e Some people who billeted individual adults would have liked some sort of contractual
arrangement in place and would require this in future pilots. They also suggested a
key point of contact for those billeting and billeted would have helped with any arising
challenges and or conflicts



e Ownership of the project remained ambiguous for some, was it local leaders or Council
or both? Greater clarity would have provided more confidence in the community

¢ No footpaths in some areas were an issue for one of the migrant families

e More options are needed for groceries and takeaway for migrants, i.e., there is no
fruit and vegetable store, and limited options for vegetarians locally

e One family did not stay because their daughter didn't settle well into school

e There isn't much for young people to do in the Shire i.e., 20's to 40's, this makes it
difficult for young migrants in this age bracket to stay

e Some migrants did experience ‘casual racism' such as 'you're not from here,
conversations which aren't acceptable, according to the migrant families and
individual adults and would not be encountered in Melbourne

Quote

TJ - "Provide education that everyone is contributing to the same thing. Just because we
look a certain way doesn't mean we are not the same as you”

4.4 SHIFTING THE NARRATIVE OF MARYBOROUGH

e All people involved in the pilot welcomed a shift away from the traditional ‘Anglo town’
attitudes of Maryborough and expressed excitement for the Shire as it steps
towards cultural diversity

e Many people involved in the pilot agreed that the raising of awareness of workforce
issues and the benefits (economic and social) of recruiting migrant people as the
greatest success factor of the pilot

e Seeing highly respected community leaders involved in the project, encouraged others
to feel that it was a valid and important initiative for the community

e All people agreed there is an opportunity for the Shire and businesses fo really
market themselves as a community of choice for migrant communities
Quote

Anki - “there are lots of facilitates here and everything is accessible, but there needs to be
a drawcard to keep people here on the weekend. People spend a lot of time travelling on the
weekends, but we should be attracting people to the Shire. Things like the Goldfields
Community Festival should be happening regularly”

Quote

(John Golf club) "We need to show that Central Goldfields is ready to welcome skilled
migrants, that it can be the place of choice for people from all backgrounds”



Quote

(David at MEC) "One of our grade 3 students asked to host a Diwali festival, what a great
way to introduce cultural festivals to the Shire, it could really open people’s eyes”
First impressions of the Shire

e The air is fresher here and the town feels safe

e The community is very friendly and welcoming, particularly compared to Melbourne

e It'svery quiet with much less people around, that's hard when you're from the city

e Here you are a human, people know your name

e The town and gardens are beautiful, it has a good vibe

Quote (Eddy) "This is a beautiful town with a lot of potential, but there's not much for
people to do”

4.5 STRUCTURAL ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES

e Visa are frequently a sore point and issue for migrant families, and they need
stronger employer support to navigate the system

e Availability of health care (particularly GP's) is critical

¢ Migrant families and individual adults recommend that there are more local
programs on cultural awareness, particularly for businesses

e More employers could provide housing options, particularly short term and to
support the resettlement, noting that MDHS and Asteria already do to some extent

e The pay is less in the regions than in the city

e Working with children checks are difficult for migrants to acquire. This was a key
barrier to successful employment at the local schools

e Community leaders acknowledged the strong spirit in the community and that there
are a range of challenges that locals have not been able to solve (unemployment,
poverty, and the ageing population. People really do believe that migrant resettlement
is a way out of this cycle

e State Government are undertaking an international recruitment campaign to help with
worker shortages in education and health

e This pilot is an important platform for advocacy which businesses can collaborate on
to effect change at other levels of government

¢ There needs to be more co-ordination around training, with better links into Bendigo
(TAFE) and other major centres and placed based programs (TILT program may
address this - see Appendix seven)



Quote

"It just takes time to link everything up and we need to be realistic about that i.e.,
housing, jobs, the right candidate, schools, childcare, etc.”

4.6 BU

5. SU

SINESS READINESS, CAPACITY, AND CAPABILITY

There are varying degrees of readiness in the business community with some
businesses lacking induction processes (HR staff) let alone culturally appropriate
ones

For smaller local businesses, there is a need for cultural awareness training, to
understand that working with migrants is different and requires a particular skill
set

Businesses do continue to see skilled migration as a significant opportunity and
are committed to finding a way to making it work

Some businesses didn't benefit from the program, that was difficult

Migrant resettlement does come with risks for local businesses particularly as the
costs are high (time and resources) and there is no guarantee of successfully
employing people (such as happened for several businesses involved in the pilot)

A centralised system - in the Shire - for visas would be attractive for businesses and
would increase their level of confidence in hiring skilled migrants for skills shortages
(a visa agent available for all businesses in the Shire)

Most businesses will offer short term housing as part of their conditions for
professional job adverts. Having a centralised system to access this short-term
housing was cited as valuable for businesses also

A local community connector role was also cited as a valuable opportunity areag,
particularly for instances where there might be difference or conflict, and the role
could be a neutral person to support in those instances

A local job portal could create a funnel for skilled migrants, with a well-maintained
list of local vacancies in the Shire (TILT program may address this - see Appendix
seven)

CCESS FACTORS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 TOP FIVE SUCCESS FACTORS

Skilled

migration is a complex and costly way for businesses to recruit new staff with many

needs to be addressed. These five factors must be in place to increase the likelihood of
success:

1.

Build on 'bonding capital' by resettling migrant families from a common cultural
background, also focus on families and not individual adults (targeted rather than an
ad hoc approach)



Partner with a resettlement organisation (such as AMES) and prepare local businesses
to ensure that culturally appropriate employment and training is available for migrant
families and employers

Provide initial accommodation to support successful resettlement including billeting
options

Provide a welcoming and supportive community through activities such as a ‘buddy
system,” referrals into relevant services (health, education, other.) seamless
integration info community groups and clubs and welcome pack with local information

Ensure strong leadership from all levels of the community to manage the complexities
of cultural adjustment including coordinated communications to promote the benefits
of resettlement and how the community can support

5.2 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEXT STEPS

The Community Reference Group, in partnership with Central Goldfields Shire Council, will
be responsible for determining how the following six recommendations might be
implemented, overtime, and in the absence of any ongoing dedicated funding (at the time of
writing this report).

5.2.1 Facilitate a coordinated approach to recruiting migrant employees

Local business leaders need to work tfogether to improve overall success rates with recruiting
and retaining migrant employees across businesses in the Shire. The items below were
suggested as areas where collaboration and information sharing might be beneficial -

People and culture resources:
o Culturally appropriate induction programs
o Visarequirements, processes, and timing
o Referrals and training

A jobs portal to show the employment pipeline in the Shire and thinking strategically
longer term - knowing that it takes time to recruit (TILT program may address this -
see Appendix seven)

Recruitment of families from the same cultural background (as per Karen community
in Nhill)

5.2.2Facilitate a coordinated approach to short term housing solutions with community
and business leaders

Develop an approach for ensuring that community-based housing solutions are easy
to access for local businesses. Particularly as we know that available housing can be
a key barrier to successful migrant resettlement



5.2.3Formalise the support network with community leaders to increase rates of
staff retention
e We need to be clearer about what's on offer from the community

e MDHS are already recruiting international workers, but they still need help with
settlement and retention strategies

e According to AMES, the supportive community is the most important thing

e Consider supporting and expanding community based childcare options to help with
short term issues

e Community connectors are critical to help embed people and ensure they stay

e Can the MVRC lead the volunteer network?

e Businesses need to be better informed about the support network so that this is
part of their 'sell’ to support people to move to the area and settle

5.2.4Seek funding for an ongoing project liaison role to support local
collaboration efforts

o Key feedback from AMES is that while community members and volunteers have a
key role, for this to be a success it can't be on volunteers in the community ‘only, or
people in businesses, real resourcing is needed to drive the opportunity forward

e Without dedicated funding it will be difficult to repeat and scale this opportunity

e As observed by MDHS - the community connector role is most important to help
people embed in the community - this could be a role hosted by Council with funding
support but shared across the whole shire and all the businesses

e The Ballarat work is showing how extensive the problem is - of employment issues
and that even well-resourced organizations and places struggle with the time, effort
and cost that goes into migrant resettlement

Quote

"There is so much time and effort that goes into this [migrant resettlement] - it really makes
sense to do it collaboratively - how much more can we do across the Shire together to cut
down time and resources”

5.2.5Create opportunities for migrants considering resettlement to get to know the Shire

e Videos and other documents to showcase that Central Goldfields Shire is a great place
to live and a great place to raise a family

e More accessible information on community groups and what they have to offer

e More information on access to cultural needs such as places of worship, specialist
food retailers



5.2.6Advocate on housing and childcare needs with all levels of government
Childcare

CGSC has recently developed an Early Years Infrastructure Master Plan, a comprehensive
and well evidenced report that outlines resources and investment required to meet
increasing requirements of the Victorian Government early years policy agenda.

It is underpinned by the latest research on how best to support children and families and
provides significant social and economic opportunities to grow Central Goldfields as a
desirable and supportive place for families and children to prosper.

Early Years Infrastructure Masterplans are typically undertaken to ensure alignment
between the forecast demand for kindergarten places as described in the KISP
(Kindergarten Infrastructure and Service Plan) and the physical assets within the
organisations control that provide kindergarten places.

The final Masterplan describes the necessary renewal and new build projects required to
deliver accessible and inclusive Early Years services and meet the community's needs over
the short and long tferm. Implementation of the Masterplan will depend on the availability
of funding.

The Victorian State Government made an election commitment to delivering a new low-cost
childcare centre in Maryborough.

The timing of this project is unknown at the time of drafting this report.
Housing

The Victorian State Government Department of Jobs, Skills, Industry and Regions provided
funding for the development of a Loddon Mallee Housing Action Plan that investigated the
issues relating to the provision of additional housing across the Loddon Mallee Region and
identified strategies that if implemented would address the critical housing needs of the
region.

All the Loddon Mallee Councils were invited to take part in the project and took up the
opportunity through the consultation process to ensure that each Council area had their
issues identified and factored into the final strategies.

Consultation also took place with a wide variety of stakeholders, industry experts and
community leaders as the project aimed to develop an Action Plan that will over time deliver
more housing on the ground which the region has identified as one of the key requirements
to ensure the future prosperity of the Loddon Mallee Region.

The Action Plan has identified six key issues together with how to address these issues
because of extensive consultation which are:

e Lack of comprehensive strategic planning for future housing

e Suitable development land being withheld from in sequential release

e Lack of Infrastructure finance/provision to support development



Poor development feasibility in some markets for medium density and compact
housing and therefore unachievable sale prices

Decreased housing affordability and increased housing stress

Costs and time delays in planning and development that hamper responsive supply

The provision of housing whether it is social, affordable or for the meeting the requirements
of attracting and retaining a workforce will continue to be a high priority for all Councils
within the Loddon Mallee Region.

Governance models as suggested within the plan are currently being considered by
member Councils to take ownership and drive the plan forward.

APPENDICES

APPENDIX ONE - COMMUNITY REFERENCE GROUP AND INTERNAL WORKING
GROUP

Community reference group

David Sutton, MEC Principal

Annie Constable, Asteria Services CEO

Chris Meddows-Taylor, Central Goldfields Shire Mayor
Craig Young, Havilah CEO

John Sedunary, Committee for Maryborough Chair
Nickola Allan, MDHS CEO

Gary Higgins, Rotary President OAM

Lucy Roffey, Central Goldfields Shire Council CEO
Kelly Mason, Bounce

Simon Cox, Sonac

Bronwen Haywood

Bec Schroeder, True Foods

Taren Gill, Priceline

Elisa Luu, Priceline

Website link: Statement of Intention - Community Reference Group




Internal working group

e EmmaLittle, General Manager Community Wellbeing

e Kylie Long, Manager Community Engagement + Project lead

e Alisha Chadwick, Acting Manager Tourism, Events & Culture

e David Leathem, Acting Manager Strategy and Economic Development

e Brian Gould, Economic Development Officer

e Angela Tucker, Digital Communications Officer + Project liaison of ficer

APPENDIX TWO - COMMUNICATIONS CAMPAIGN

Website link: Welcome to Central Goldfields poster v1.pdf

From August to December 2022 a weekly social media plan with suggested Facebook posts
were sent to Community Reference Group members, along with photos- encouraging them to
spread the message of the project and reiterate that it was not solely Council's project, but
one being led by the community.

These featured quotes from CRG members and community leaders involved in the project.
They also highlighted the necessary details of the documentary.

While the aspiration was to also include stories on the new residents, this was only partly
done and is an area which could have been improved.

Articles on the project were featured in The Maryborough Advertiser weekly throughout
October. They also featured the Welcome to Central Goldfields poster regularly before
residents arrived in mid-October.

An issue highlighted by the CRG, we needed to try and communicate with the community
beyond social media and the paper. The poster was developed in September and placed around
the Shire to increase awareness of the project.

Conversation online

Most of the feedback received throughout the communication campaign was positive, with
comments stating they were excited to welcome new people into town.

When stories focused on new residents, comments welcomed them fo tfown and stated they
were excited for them to be in the Shire.

Comments did focus on the fact that housing is an issue, with people often asking, "where
are they going to live," and “why is council focusing on this and not our roads, rates and
rubbish.”

APPENDIX THREE - STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT

There is also significant strategic alignment for the pilot project, as well as range of



opportunities to better align with local and regional programs, plans and strategies currently
under development. For example:

CGSC strategies

CGSC Council Plan 2021 - 2025
a. Changing the narrative

b. Multicultural celebration

CGSC Economic Development Strategy 2020 - 2025
c. Invest in People and Place
d. A Thriving Business Community

e. Tailored Economic Development Practice

Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-
2025

f. Advocate for social change

g. Foster social connection and
diversity Tourism and Events Strategy

2020 - 2025

h. Shift the narrative around the Shire's Identity and

Perception Regional strategies

Loddon Mallee South Regional Growth Plan
i. Strengthen our communities, especially in our small fowns
j. Strengthen and diversify our economy

Business and community strategies

Committee for Maryborough
k. Monthly Consultation program with major employers
|. Development of special interest groups o further cross-training & development

m. Cross-business training programs (e.g., OHS, leadership)



27 June 2023 Council Meeting

Rotary:

n. Peace and Harmony Park

APPENDIX FOUR- AMES AUSTRALTIA REGIONAL RESETTLEMENT MODEL

ATTACHMENT 2: AMES AUSTRALIA REGIONAL RESETTLEMENT MODEL
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APPENDIX FIVE: CASE STUDY REMPLAN ECONOMIC IMPACT ANALYSIS

"Economists often discuss immigration in terms of a multiplier effect. Newcomers don't just
fill jobs, they also create them, by bringing demand for new products and services.” New York
Times article Australia's Immigration Solution: Small-Town Living - The New York Times

(nytimes.com)

Welcome to Central Victoria

Economic Impact Analysis — March 2023

Case Study — One Family’s Experience

“My family really like it here. My work really help a lot in our economic decision to stay
here. My wife's work is great as well, she's learning new skills and gaining a lot of self
confidence in herself. My son is extremely happy with his school. He thinks it's way better
that his 2 previous Elementary Schools in Melbourne.

We buy our food and other consumables locally. That include clothes etc as well.”

Parent 1
Occupation Owner/driver
contractor
Location of work Ballarat
Hours worked per week 50+ hours
R | i ot ice
employer
Attending school i

Housing - renting
Housing - purchased

Economic Impacts for Central Goldfields Shire

Parent 2 Dependent Child
Carer NA
Maryborough NA
35 hours NA
Aged care services NA

Inyear 5 at local

NA
primary school

$240 per week

“Looking to buy a property this year or next year”

Impacts include all direct, and flow-on supply chain and consumption effects.

Economic Output

$0.334 million

Output data represents gross revenue. Under this
scenario, for every dollar directly generated, it is
estimated that the broader local y benefitz by 2

Employment (full-time equivalent, FTE)

2.95 jobs

Employment baszed in Central Goldfields Shire. Under
this scenario, for each direct job a further 0.6 FTE jobs is

further $1.20 once flow on supply chain and
consumption effects are considered.

Wages and Salaries

$0.149 million

Total remuneration. Under this scenario, for every
dollar paid in direct wages and salaries in Central
Goldfields Shire, it is estimated that the broader local
economy benefits by a further 50.40 once flow on supply
chain and consumption effects are considered.

d to be supported across the local economy
once flow on supply chain and consumption effects are
considered.

Gross Regional Product (GRP)

$0.218 miillion

GRP is the total value of final goods and services
produced in the region over the period of one year. This
includes exports but subtracts imports and does not
incude intermediate expenditure to avoid double
counting.
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APPENDIX SIX: BUSINESS SURVEY - RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION OF
STAFF IN THE SHIRE

Website link: https://hdp-au-prod-app-goldfields-engage-

files.s3.ap- southeast-2.amazonaws.com/4416/5958/1723/
Central_Goldfields_Shire_Council_Recruitment_and_Retention_of_Staff_in_the_Shire.pdf
APPENDIX SEVEN: TILT PROJECT WHITEPAPER

Website link: https://www.centralgoldfields.vic.gov.au/Council/About-Council/Council -

Meetings/18- April-2023- Special-Council -Meeting/18- April-2023 - Special - Council -

Meeting- Agenda



8.6 600DS SHED ADVOCACY

Author: Chief Executive Officer

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer

The Officer presenting this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of
staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

SUMMARY/PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the response from the State
Government to the request that the goods shed at the Maryborough Railway Station be
made available for community use.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council note

1. the response from the Minister for Public Transport, the Hon Ben Carroll MP,
and

2. continue to advocate for the goods shed at the Maryborough Railway Station
be made available for community use.

LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT
Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Our Community's Wellbeing

The Community's vision 1. Socially connected, creative, inclusive, healthy, and safe ‘all
ages' friendly communities

Initiative: Facilitate and support Council and community led events,
programs and activities that focus on building community
connections.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

At the February Ordinary Meeting of Council, Councillor Meddows-Taylor submitted a
notice of motion that Council



1.

Write to the Hon Jacinta Allan MP, Deputy Premier and Minister for Transport
and Infrastructure requesting that the former Goods Shed at Maryborough
Railway Station be made available to Council for community purposes and
specifically for use by the Maryborough Men's Shed to enable its continued
development, including plans to accommodate women within its membership, and
that funding be allocated for appropriate fit out for its new purpose.

. Advise Martha Haylett MP Member for Ripon accordingly and seek her continued

advocacy with Government for this to be agreed and implemented.

The rationale provided for the motion was as follows:

1.

Maryborough Railway Station is a most significant and valued heritage asset
which is not only an operating railway station for passenger and freight services
but also is a treasured community and visitor hub.

This has been acknowledged by the Victorian Government through investment in
its heritage restoration and more recently providing funding for its development
to enabling wider use and attraction.

. The former Goods Shed is an important feature within this heritage complex

but is no longer used for its original purpose.

Approximately a decade ago the Victorian Government offered the former
Goods Shed to Council for community use but despite interest, a definite
proposal did not eventuate at that time and the offer lapsed.

The Maryborough Men's Shed performs a valued role in our community but its
present location does not enable its growth and further development including
possible options to include women, and a new location is desirable.

The former Goods Shed would be an ideal location for the Men's Shed and this is
supported by the Maryborough Men's Shed organisation. It would also be an
excellent example of sustainable reuse of this significant heritage asseft.

The Victorian Men's Shed Program provides funding for Men's Sheds.

8. Several discussions have been held with Martha Haylett MP Member for Ripon

and her encouragement is appreciated. Council did include this proposal in its
Election advocacy but it was unable to be settled before the Election.

REPORT

The Deputy Premier and Minister for Transport, and Infrastructure, Hon Jacinta Allan
MP, forwarded the request to the Hon Ben Carroll MP Minister for Public Transport. The
response from the Minister is provided in attachment 1.



The Minister advised that VLine are currently using the goods shed for operational
storage, and as such the goods shed cannot be made available for community use at this
time.

CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

Advocacy for the use of the Maryborough goods shed for community use has been
ongoing with State Government representatives.

It has been raised through meetings with MPs and Ministers, and through a direct
request to the Minister for Public Transport because of the Council resolution in
February 2023.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Refurbishment of the goods shed for community use would need o be explored with the
State Government to identify a relevant funding program.

RISK MANAGEMENT

This report addresses Council's strategic risk Property and Assets - Failure to maintain,
renew and expand our assests in a timely and robust way, that considers service and
delivery needs by making better use of assets in our Shire such as the goods shed.

CONCLUSION

Council wrote to State Government to request that the Maryborough Goods Shed be
available for community use.

The response from the Minister for Public Transport advised that it is currently being
used by VLine for operations. It is recommended that Council continue to advocate on
this issue as the goods shed could be better utilised as a community asset.

ATTACHMENTS

8.7.1 Response from Minister for Public Transport



The Hon Ben Carroll 121 Exhibition Street

MP Melbourne Victoria 3000 Australia

Telephone: +61 3 9095 4301
Minister for Industry and Innovation

Minister for Manufacturing Sovereignty

Minister for Employment
Minister for Public Transport

Ref: CMIN-1-23-1633

Cr Grace La Vella

Mayor

Central Goldfields Shire Council
PO Box 194

MARYBOROUGH VIC 3465
grace.lavella@cgoldshire.vic.gov.au

Dear Mayor,

Thank you for your correspondence to the Deputy Premier, the Hon Jacinta Allan MP,
regarding Maryborough station goods shed. As the matter falls within my portfolio
responsibilities, it has been referred to me for response.

I acknowledge your request for the goods shed at Maryborough station to be made available
to Central Goldfields Shire Council for community purposes.

The goods shed at Maryborough is an asset maintained by V/Line. V/Line have advised that
the goods shed is currently used for operational purposes and for the storage of materials.
I regret to advise that V/Line is unable to approve community usage of the shed at this
stage.

I trust this information is of use. Thank you for raising this

matter. Yours sincerely

The Hon Ben Carroll MP

Minister for Industry and Innovation
Minister for Manufacturing Sovereignty
Minister for Employment

Minister for Public


mailto:grace.lavella@cgoldshire.vic.gov.au

Transport Date:



8.7 2023 COMMUNITY SATISFACTION SURVEY RESULTS

Author: Manager Community Engagement

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer

The Officer presenting this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of
staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

SUMMARY/PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to provide an analysis of the Community Satisfaction Survey
results for Council for 2022.

For this year's results we moved to a quarterly data collection in line with best practice
and to alleviate risks associated with seasonality factors which can skew satisfaction
results.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1. note the results for the Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 Central
Goldfields Shire Council and receive a report at the June Council meeting.
2. make the Community Satisfaction Survey available on Council's website

LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT
Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Leading Change

The Community's vision 4. Good planning, governance, and service delivery

The Community Satisfaction Survey is undertaken annually to provide indicators for
Council's performance in key areas.

The survey is mandated in the Victorian Local Government Act 2020 and reported on in
Council's Annual Report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Each year Local Government Victoria (LGV) coordinates the Statewide Local Government
Community Satisfaction Survey with all participating local councils.

While participation in the survey is not mandatory, it is the most cost-effective way for
local councils to collate the information mandated under the Victorian Local Government
Act 2020 including key performance indicators on a broad range of services, programs,
and infrastructure.



For the Customer Satisfaction Survey for 2022 (reported on in 2023), Council decided
to ask the following questions:
e Overall performance (required)
o Value for money (required)
e Overall Council direction (required)
e Customer service (required)
e Appearance of public areas (voluntary)
e Waste management (required)
e Informing the community (required)
e Consultation and engagement (required)
e Community decisions (required)
e Lobbying (voluntary)

e Sealed local roads (required)
Council can change which questions they include in their survey year on year.

JWS, who undertake the survey, presented insights to Council at a Briefing meeting on
Central Goldfields Shire and sector wide results.

REPORT

The following section presents and analyses the community satisfaction survey results
with suggested next steps for ongoing improvements in satisfaction:

Survey participants

Out of the 400 people surveyed, the following key cohorts were represented:

e 248 people were aged 65 years and older
o 85 people were aged 50-64 years

o 37 people were aged 35-49 years

o 31 people aged 18-34 years

The timing of survey phone calls was late January 2022 through to February 2023.

Context

Council results must be understood in the context of an overall, state-wide decline in
satisfaction with local government.



As highlighted by Metropolis Research, the average satisfaction with local government
across Victoria has declined by 4.6% in this year's results.

Overall performance

The council's overall performance result remains consistent with previous years at 52 (1
point down from previous year.

By comparison the overall performance for small rural is 55 (down 3 points) and the state-
wide result is 56 (also down 3 points).

The highest score for overall performance was from people aged 65+ and the lowest
score was given by residents aged 50-64 (similar to last year).

On the upside On the downside
Aged 65+ years rate overall performance | Residents aged 50-64 years rated it at
highest at 55 46

Value for money

The council's value for money score dropped two points to 47. The value for money scores
state-wide decreased by 4 points to 49 and for Small Rural councils by 2 points to 49.

The highest score was from residents aged over 65 and the lowest score was from those
aged 50-64 which saw a significant drop from 43 to 36.

On the downside
This is similar to the proportion who rate

the value for money as 'very poor’ or ‘poor’
(33%)

On the upside

More than a third of Council residents
(32%) rate the value for money they
receive from Council in infrastructure and
services provided to their community as
‘very good' or 'good’

Overall council direction

The overall council direction score was down a further 3 points to 48 but is now higher
than the small rural average of (47) and higher than the state-wide average (46).

On the upside On the downside

The most satisfied with Council direction
are women and residents aged 65 years
and over

The least satisfied with Council direction
are residents aged 50 to 64 years




Customer service

The customer service result improved by 3 points to 61 against a trend for small rural
and statewide which were both down from previous years, closing the gap between our
result and these averages.

More than 6 in 10 Council residents (57%) have had contact with Council in the last 12
months, which is consistent with previous years, although a significant drop in contact
with council by 35-49 year olds (52% down 22 percent from last year)

On the upside On the downside
3 point improvement from last year Not yet restored to the 2019/2020 highs
of 73

Appearance of public areas

The council's overall score on the appearance of public areas is 67 which is a drop of 4
points from last year, but still one of our higher performing areas. The result is in line
with the State Average but lower than the average for other small rural shires (71),
which dropped 4 points and 2 points. The decrease in satisfaction in this area was from
women with a decrease of 6 points.

On the upside On the downside
This is Council's highest performing area. | A drop of 4 points overall and 6 points by
women.

Waste management

The waste management score of 65 is one point up from last year and one point lower
than both the statewide and small rural scores which both dropped by two points closing
the gap.

The highest score was from 65+ years and the lowest from residents aged 35-49 years.

On the upside On the downside

Residents aged 65 years and over (index | Residents aged 65 years and over dropped
score of 69) and men rate Council higher | their rating by one point.

than the average

Informing the community

The informing the community score (56) dropped by 2 points and is 1 point below the
State average and 1 point below the average of small rural councils, scores for both of
these dropped 1 and 2 points respectively.



Consultation and engagement

The consultation and engagement score remain at 51 which is 2 points below the State
Average and 1 point below other small rural councils. These averages dropped by 2 and 1
points respectively.

The highest score is again from people aged 65+ (who are the target audience for the
Maryborough District Advertiser where Council provides a weekly update and news
stories) and the lowest from people aged 50-64. There was an increase in satisfaction
from men of 4 points and a decrease from women of 5 points.

Community decisions in the interest of the community

The community decisions result (49) was one point lower than last year, and 2 points
lower than the state average and 3 points lower than small rural.

These averages dropped 3 and 2 points respectively reducing the gap.

The highest score is from residents aged 65+ with an increase of 2 points and the lowest
from 18-34-year-olds which dropped 4 points.

Lobbying

The overall score for lobbying (48) dropped by 2 points as did the state and small rural
averages (52 and 54 respectively).

The highest score was for residents 18-34 with an increase in 5 points, while the score
for 50-64-year-olds dropped by 4 points.

Sealed local roads.

The sealed roads result of 38 is down from 45 and lower than the small rural (44) and
state-wide (48) averages.

People aged 50-64 rated sealed roads as 28, down 10 points from last year, and 18-34-
year-olds also marked sealed local roads down 10 points to 32.

These scores will be a result of the damage done by the floods in October 2022, and we
would expect improvements in next year's scores once the roads are repaired.

CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

The survey is conducted by Computer Assisted Telephone Interviewing (CATI) as a
representative random probability survey of residents aged 18+ years in Central
Goldfields Shire Council.



The survey sample is designed to match the demographic profile of Central Goldfields
Shire Council as determined by the most recent ABS population estimates and includes
up to 40% mobile phone numbers to cater to the diversity of residents within Central
Goldfields Shire Council (particularly younger people).

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial or resource implications relevant to this report.
RISK MANAGEMENT

This report addresses Council's strategic risk Community engagement - Inadequate
stakeholder management or engagement impacting brand reputation and community
satisfaction in Council decision making by eliciting feedback on performance to guide
continuous improvement.

CONCLUSION

The Community Satisfaction Survey is conducted annually as mandated under the
Victorian Local Government Act 2020.

The survey results for 2022 (reported in 2023) for Central Goldfields Shire Council are
generally lower than last year's results. Results are lower across most measures for both
the statewide and small rural also.

ATTACHMENTS

8.7.1 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 Central Goldfields Shire Council



2023 Local
Government
Community
Satisfaction Survey

Central Goldfields
Shire Council

Coordinated by the Department of
Government Services on behalf of

Victorian councils
JWSRESEARCH
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Background and objectives

The Victorian Community Satisfaction Survey
(CSS) creates a vital interface between the council
and their community.

Held annually, the CSS asks the opinions of local
people about the place they live, work and play and
provides confidence for councils in their efforts
and abilities.

Now in its twenty-fourth year, this survey provides
insight into the community’s views on:

+ councils’ overall performance, with benchmarking
against State-wide and council group results

+ value for money in services and infrastructure
* community consultation and engagement
» decisions made in the interest of the community

* customer service, local infrastructure, facilities,
services and

» overall council direction.

When coupled with previous data, the survey provides
a reliable historical source of the community’s views
since 1998. A selection of results from the last ten
years shows that councils in Victoria continue to
provide services that meet the public’s expectations.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

Each year the CSS data is used to develop this State-
wide report which contains all of the aggregated
results, analysis and data. Moreover, with 24 years of
results, the CSS offers councils a long-term measure of
how they are performing — essential for councils that
work over the long term to provide valuable services
and infrastructure to their communities.

Serving Victoria for 24 years

Participation in the State-wide Local Government
Community Satisfaction Survey is optional.
Participating councils have various choices as to the
content of the questionnaire and the sample size to be
surveyed, depending on their individual strategic,
financial and other considerations.

JWSRESEARCH



Key findings and
recommendations

JWSRESEARCH 4



J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Central Goldfields Shire Council - at a glance W

Overall council performance
Results shown are index scores out of 100.

Central
Goldfields 52

Iz
S-

777

Small Rural 55

State-wide 56

Council performance
compared to group average

Top performing areas
E| Appearance of public V lower
areas

s, —
l]n Waste management == ON par

Lowest performing area

( Sealed local roads VYV lower
®

== 0N par

E-*' Customer service

JWSRESEARCH



J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Summary of core measures W

Index scores

l'i.l ‘\p. alliie .=.
A © i %
Taw (V) ws-
Overall Value for  Community Making Waste Customer Overall
Performance money Consultation  Community management Service Council
Decisions Direction

38

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

27 June 2023 Council Meeting W
Summary of core measures

Core measures summary results (%)

Overall performance 5 34 33 16 9 2
Consultation & engagement 8 25 35 16 11 5
Community decisions [ 28 36 13 13 6
Sealed local roads [ 21 28 22 27 1
Customer service 24 31 22 11 11 1
mVery good = Good = Average = Poor m\/ery poor Can't say

Overall council direction

m Improved = Stayed the same m Deteriorated Can't say

217 of 629
JWSRESEARCH



J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Summary of Central Goldfields Shire Council performance w

Central . :
Services Goldfields Sta;g—zv:\glde H;ggfeSt L:!zﬁ:t
2022
f /\ Overall performance 52 53 55 56 Aged 65+ years Agiz;rg-m
9 Value for money 47 49 49 49 Aged 65+ years Aged 50-64
years
dP Overall council direction 48 51 47 46 Aged 65+ years Agt;:/(i:r(;-m
e - -
ey Customer service 61 58 65 67 Aged 35-49 Aged 50-64
e years years
T A f publi -
ppearance of public 67 7 7 67 Aged 65+ years Aged 50-64
E- areas years
—
Men, Aged 35-49
m] Waste management 65 64 66 66 e G i
Aﬁ’ Informing the community 56 58 58 57 Aged 65+ years Agf/g:r(;-m
L] Consultation & 51 51 53 52 el e Aged 50-64
#2%  engagement years
*_®
L~ i isi Aged 18-49
.r° Community decisions 49 50 52 51 Aged 65+ years years
:L Lobbying 48 50 52 51 Aged 18-34 Aged 50-64
years years
( Sealed local roads 38 45 44 48 Aged 65+ years Ag(;z a5r2-64

Significantly higher / lower than Central Goldfields Shire Council 2023 result at the 95% confidence interval.
Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.

JWS



J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Focus areas for the next 12 months W

Perceptions of Central Goldfields Shire Council’s overall performance have not changed
significantly since 2020, but remain lower than the higher ratings seen in 2019 and
between the years 2014 to 2016. On most service areas evaluated, ratings have largely
remained similar to last year. The exception is the appearance of public areas and sealed
local roads, where perceptions decreased significantly this year.

Overview

As the lowest performing area, sealed local roads should be Council’s primary area of
focus. Council should also look to improve residents’ perceptions of the two related areas
of lobbying and making decisions in the interest of the community, where it performs

relatively lower. Good communication and transparency with residents in Council decision
making provide an opportunity to drive up opinion of Council’s performance here.

Focus areas

Council performs in line with the Small Rural group and State-wide averages for councils
in the service areas of waste management, informing the community, and consultation and
engagement. On all other service areas, Council’s performance is significantly lower than
the Small Rural group average for councils. Council performs significantly lower than the
State-wide average for councils on lobbying and sealed local roads.

Comparison to state
and area grouping

Endeavours should be made to continue to improve customer service. A declining trend in
perceptions of customer service has been abated, however ratings remain lower than
historical ratings providing evidence that Council can be viewed more positively here. In
addition, residents aged 50 to 64 years old have a higher level of contact with Council and
are consistently the most critical of Council performance. Attention should be paid to
interactions with this cohort over the coming year.

Opportunity to

engage with residents

JWSRESEARCH
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Overall
performance
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Overall performance

The overall performance index score of 52 for Central
Goldfields Shire Council has remained relatively stable
for three years. The current rating is however lower
than the ratings seen in 2019 and in the years 2014 to
2016.

» Council's overall performance is rated statistically
significantly lower (at the 95% confidence interval)
than the Small Rural group and State-wide council
averages (index scores of 55 and 56 respectively).

Performance ratings across each of the demographic
cohorts evaluated are not significantly different from the
Council average.

Close to a third of Council residents (32%) rate the
value for money they receive from Council in
infrastructure and services provided to their community
as ‘good’ or ‘very good'’. This is similar to the number of
residents who rate the value for money as ‘poor’ or
‘very poor’ and those who rate it as ‘average’ (both
33%).

» Perceptions of value for money in services and
infrastructure are significantly higher than the
Council average (index score of 47) among residents
aged 65 years and over (52), and significantly lower
than the average among residents aged 50 to 64
years (36).

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

Overall performance
Results shown are index scores out of 100.

Central
Goldfields

52

13
S-

777

Small Rural
55

State-wide
56

v Aged 65+ years rate overall
performance highest (55)

x  Aged 50-64 years rate overall
performance lowest (46)

JWSRESEARCH
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J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Overall performance

2023 overall performance (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

W

State-wide 564 50 61 58 60 59 59 59 60 61

65+ 55 55 53 56 62 48 59 66 68 64

Small Rural 554 58 60 56 58 56 58 57 59 nla
Women 54 56 55 56 57 42 52 63 66 65

18-34 52 54 61 53 52 47 51 60 62 62

Central Goldfields 52 53 53 53 57 43 52 61 64 61
Men 50 51 50 58 44 53 58 62 57

35-49 51 49 48 59 34 43 55 64 60

50-64 48 48 52 52 41 52 58 60 58

Q3. ON BALANCE, for the last twelve months, how do you feel about the performance of Central ‘Goldficlds Shire Council, not just on one or

two issues, BUT OVERALL across all responsibility areas? Has it been very good, good, average, poor or very poor?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.

JWSRESEARCH
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Overall performance

2023 Central Goldfields
2022 Central Goldfields
2021 Central Goldfields
2020 Central Goldfields
2019 Central Goldfields
2018 Central Goldfields
2017 Central Goldfields
2016 Central Goldfields
2015 Central Goldfields
2014 Central Goldfields
State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

224 of 629
Q3. ON BALANCE, for the last twelve months, how do you feel about the performance of Central Goldfields Shire Council, not just on one or

10
11

11
11
13

20

27

m VVery good

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

27 June 2023 Council Meeting

2023 overall performance (%)

34
29
32
26
31

29
39
46
41
33
32
33
35
32
28

39

= Good

35

= Average

33
40
34
39
40
32
39
27
34
= Poor

two issues, BUT OVERALL across all responsibility areas? Has it been very good, good, average, poor or very poor?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

16
17
17
16
38 12
23
14
35
30
29
36 13
37 14
19
35 14
12
27
19
33 13
mVery poor Can't say

JWSRESEARCH
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Value for money in services and infrastructure

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

2023 value for money (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

W

65+

I

State-wide

Women

Small Rural

Central Goldfields

Men

35-49

18-34

50-64

524 55 51 n/a n/a n/a n/la nla nla nla

_ 49 53 54 n/a nla nla n/la nla nla nla
_ 49 52 51 n/la n/la n/a n/la nla nla nla
49 51 52 n/a nla nla nla nla nla nla

_ 47 49 49 n/la n/a n/la n/la n/la n/a nla
_ 45 47 46 nla nla nla n/la nla nla nla
_ 45 42 51 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nla
_ 44 47 45 nla nla nla nla nla nla nla
- 36Y 43 44 n/la n/a n/a n/la n/la n/a nla

Q3b. How would you rate Central Goldfields Shire Council at providing good value for money in‘irirastrictuie

and services provided to your community?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 65 Councils asked
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences

group: 19

JWSRESEARCH
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J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

27 June 2023 Council Meeting

Value for money in services and infrastructure

2023 value for money (%)

2023 Central Goldfields 6 26
2022 Central Goldfields 6 29
2021 Central Goldfields 5 24
State-wide 7 26
Small Rural 6 25
Men 4 24
Women 7 AS
18-34 7 17 34
35-49 B 30
50-64 [ 15 33
65+ 6 31
= Very good = Good = Average

226 of
Q3b. How would you rate Central Goldfields Shire Council at providing good value for money in infrastructure
and services provided to your community?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 65 Councils asked group: 19

33

30

37

34

34

35

30

30

12

33

m Poor

17

23

20

18

19

18

17

24

15

= Very poor

16
10
11
12
12
16
15
15
22
32
17 9
Can't say

W

JWSRESEARCH



Top performing service areas

Appearance of public areas (index score of 67) is the
area where Council performed best in 2023.
Perceptions, however, are significantly lower than
those seen last year (down four index points) and at
their lowest level recorded (across the four years
where this service area has been measured).

» Council performs significantly lower than the Small
Rural group average (index score of 71) and in line
with the State-wide average (67) in this service
area.

* Women’s perceptions of Council’s performance in
this service area have decreased significantly this
year (67, down six points from 2022).

Waste management is Council’s next highest rated
service area (index score of 65), although it has not
recovered from the decline experienced last year.
Notably, waste management is rated in line with the
Small Rural group and State-wide averages for
councils (both 66).

» Perceptions of Council’s performance on waste
management have improved significantly this year
among residents aged 18 to 34 years (up 12 index
points).

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

Appearance of public areas (index score ;

of 67) is the area where Council
performed best in 2023.

JWSRESEARCH
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Low performing service areas

Council rates lowest — relative to its
performance in other areas — in the area
of sealed local roads (index score of
38).

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

The service area that received the lowest rating by
Council residents is sealed local roads (index score of
38). This rating is significantly lower this year (down
seven points on 2022) and is the lowest rating to have
been recorded in 10 years.

It is also significantly lower than the Small Rural
group and State-wide averages (index scores of 44
and 48 respectively).

Council residents aged 65 years and over (index
score of 45) rate this service area significantly higher
than average, while those aged between 50 and 64
years (index score of 28) rate it significantly lower
than average.

Two in 10 Council residents (20%) volunteer sealed
road maintenance as the Council area most in need
of improvement.

Lobbying, and decisions made in the interest of the
community, are Council’s next lowest areas of service
(index scores of 48 and 49 respectively). Council
performs significantly lower than the Small Rural group
averages for councils in these service areas (both
index scores of 52).

JWSRESEARCH
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Individual service area performance

2023 individual service area performance (index scores)

Appearance of public areas

Waste management

Informing the community

Consultation & engagement

Community decisions

Lobbying

Sealed local roads

Q2. How has Council performed on [RESPONSIBILITY AREA] over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

71

64

58

51

50

50

45

n/a

69

n/a

54

51

50

50

75

63

n/a

51

49

49

51

75

69

n/a

55

52

53

48

n/a

n/a

n/a

45

42

44

48

2017

n/a

n/a

n/a

54

51

53

51

2016 2015 2014

n/a

n/a

n/a

57

58

55

54

W

n/a

n/a

n/a

59

64

61

55

n/a

n/a

n/a

58

63

61

52

JWSRESEARCH
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J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

27 June 2023 Council Meeting W
Individual service area performance

2023 individual service area performance (%)

Appearance of public areas

Waste management

Informing the community

Consultation & engagement 8 25 35 16 11 5

Community decisions [k 28 36 13 13 6

Lobbying

Sealed local roads

mVery good = Good u Average = Poor m Very poor Can't say

230 of 629

Q2. How has Council performed on [RESPONSIBILITY AREA] over the last 12 months? J W S R E S E A R C H 20
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19



J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Areas for improvement

2023 areas for improvement (%)
- Top mentions only -

Sealed Road Maintenance
Community Consultation
Address Issues/Keep Promises
Rates - Too Expensive

Median Strips/Nature Strips
Communication

Council Management

Informing The Community
Review Staff - Need Better
Unsealed Road Maintenance
Waste Management

Town Planning/Permits/Red Tape

Nothing

Q17. What does Central Goldfields Shire Council MOST need to do to improve its performance?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 53 Councils asked group: 12 J W S R E S E A R C H 21
A verbatim listing of responses to this question can be found in the accompanying dashboard.
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Contact with council and customer service “s
Contact with council Customer service

Close to six in 10 Council residents (57%) have had Council’s customer service index of 61 has improved
contact with Council in the last 12 months. Rate of slightly, but remains lower than historical ratings.

contact over the past decade has been relatively stable. Customer service is rated in line with the Small Rural

* Rate of contact is significantly lower than the Small group average for councils (index score of 65) and
Rural group and State-wide averages for councils significantly lower than the State-wide average for
(66% and 62% respectively). councils (67).

* Rate of contact has decreased significantly this year
among residents aged 35 to 49 years (52%, down 22
percentage points on 2022).

* Ratings among Council residents aged 50 to 64
years (49) are significantly lower than the Councll
average.

Among those residents who have had contact with
Council, over half (55%) provide a positive customer
service rating of ‘very good’ or ‘good’, far more than the
two in 10 (22%) rate the customer service as ‘poor’ or
‘very poor’.

Among those residents who have had

contact with Council, 55% provide a

positive customer service rating of ‘very

good’ or ‘good’, including 24% of

residents who rate Council’s customer
service as ‘very good’. ,

JWSRESEARCH 23
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Contact with council

2023 contact with council (%)

Have had contact

62 62
60 60 60
57
\/
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Q5. Over the last 12 months, have you or any member of your household had any contact with Cepiral, Geldfields Shire
Council? This may have been in person, in writing, by telephone conversation, by text message, by email or via their
website or social media such as Facebook or Twitter?

Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 41 Councils asked group: 16

61
57 57

2021 2022 2023

JWSRESEARCH

24



J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

Contact with council

2023 contact with council (%)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Small Rural

Central Goldfields

664 63 64 67 63 64 62 61 64 nla

o | - 2 & G o1 5 s e 6 o
State-wide _ 624 60 62 64 61 61 58 58 60 61
Women _ 58 66 60 60 60 53 62 58 63 62
_ 57 61 57 60 60 54 57 60 62 62
65+_ 56 57 57 61 57 53 51 57 656 56

Men _ 55 56 63 59 61 54 51 61 62 62
_ 54 58 50 56 53 49 64 43 65 58

74 56 56 68 53 62 68 68 75

Q5. Over the last 12 months, have you or any member of your household had any contact with Central Goldfields Shire
Council? This may have been in person, in writing, by telephone conversation, by text message;byremailpvia their website
or social media such as Facebook or Twitter?

Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 41 Councils asked group: 16

Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.

JWSRESEARCH
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Customer service rating M
2023 customer service rating (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

35-49 _ 68 56 63 74 81 57 67 69 66 71
State-wide _ 674 68 70 70 71 70 69 69 70 72
Small Rural 65 67 69 70 70 69 69 69 70 nla

Women 61 64 78 71 65 69 76 72 75

(o2}
w

Central Goldfields 58 62 73 73 66 67 73 70 72

Men

I

18-34 60 59 75 61 64 57 71 60 71

!

50-64 49Y 54 54 71 68 66 65 72 73 66

|

Q5c. Thinking of the most recent contact, how would you rate Central Goldfields Shire Council for customer
service? Please keep in mind we do not mean the actual outcome but rather the actual service that was
received.

Base: All respondents who have had contact with Council in the last 12 months.

Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19 JWSRESEARCH 26

Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.



J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Customer service rating

2023 customer service rating (%)

2023 Central Goldfields 24 31
2022 Central Goldfields 20 31
2021 Central Goldfields 24 32
2020 Central Goldfields 41 29
2019 Central Goldfields 35 34
2018 Central Goldfields 30 29
2017 Central Goldfields 29 32
2016 Central Goldfields 34 &Y
2015 Central Goldfields 37 29
2014 Central Goldfields 36 32
State-wide 29 34
Small Rural 27 34
Men 20 215
Women 28 27
18-34 23 18 27
35-49 30 29
50-64 8 33 27
65+ 29 35

m Very good = Good = Average u Poor

Q5c. Thinking of the most recent contact, how would you rate Central Goldfields Shire Council for customer
service? Please keep in mind we do not mean the actual outcome but rather the actual service that was
received.

Base: All respondents who have had contact with Council in the last 12 months.

Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

W

22 11 11 1
19 17 12
20 13 10 2
16 7 6 |
17 9 31l
21 L8 | 9 K
23 ~ 8 | 7 i
13 8 5.1l
17 10 6 |l

20 .6 5 il
19 .9 | 8

18 10 9 1
20 12
24 11 10 il
22 )
29 10 3
2
16 o 10
= \ery poor Can't say
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Communication

Newsletters sent via mail (29%) and advertising in a
local newspaper (28%) continue to be the preferred
forms of communication from Council about news and
information and upcoming events.

Advertising in a local newspaper has seen the greatest
change (seven percentage points up) since 2022.
Council newsletters via email (11%) are the next
biggest change; going down six percentage points
since 2022. A newsletter via email has now been
pushed down to the fourth preferred form of
communication from Council, just behind social media
(13%).

* Among residents aged under 50 years, Council
newsletters sent via mail (31%) continue to be the
preferred form of communication, closely followed by
social media (26%).

* Among residents aged over 50 years, advertising in
a local newspaper (36%, up 11 percentage points on
2022) has overtaken Council newsletters via mail
(28%) as the preferred form of communication.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

JWSRESEARCH
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Best form of communication

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

2023 best form of communication (%)

Text Social

Advertising in Council Council Council Council
aLocal Newsletter Newsletter Newsletter as Website Message Media
Newspaper via Malil via Email Local Paper Insert
37
31 31
29
27
25~
18 17
19 19 15
/ 1 13
12 13 12
10/ 12 15 9 11
9
5
4 4 S —_— 5
— b 1
3 3 1 /\ SR
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Q13. If Central Goldfields Shire Council was going to get in touch with you to inform you about Counciliews and information and upcoming

events, which ONE of the following is the BEST way to communicate with you?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 40 Councils asked group: 11
Note: ‘Social Media’ was included in 2019.
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Best form of communication: under 50s

2023 under 50s best form of communication (%)

©@ee0e0

Advertising in Council Council Council Council Text Social
aLocal Newsletter Newsletter Newsletter as Website Message Media
Newspaper via Malil via Email Local Paper Insert
37
26
19
- / 13 11 \12
11
6 \
5
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Q13. If Central Goldfields Shire Council was going to get in touch with you to inform you about Courciliews and information and upcoming
events, which ONE of the following is the BEST way to communicate with you?

Base: All respondents aged under 50. Councils asked State-wide: 40 Councils asked group: 11

Note: ‘Social Media’ was included in 2019.
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Best form of communication: over 50s

Advertising in
aLocal
Newspaper

2014 2015

2023 over 50s best form of communication (%)

©@ee0e0

Council Council

Council

Council Text Social
Newsletter Newsletter Newsletter as Website Message Media
via Malil via Email Local Paper Insert
37
N4 33
29
28
\// \
25
22
19 16
h 12 13
10 12 14 10
5/5/\5
2 2 3 5 . 3
1 1 N 1
1 2
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Q13. If Central Goldfields Shire Council was going to get in touch with you to inform you about Counciliews and information and upcoming
events, which ONE of the following is the BEST way to communicate with you?

Base: All respondents aged over 50. Councils asked State-wide: 40 Councils asked group: 11

Note: ‘Social Media’ was included in 2019.

JWSRESEARCH
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Council direction

Over the last 12 months, 55% of Council residents
believe the direction of Council’s overall performance
has stayed the same (up eight percentage points since
2022).

* 18% believe the direction has improved in the last 12
months (down seven points on 2022) .

* 22% believe it has deteriorated, down two points on
2022.

Perceptions of the direction of Council’s overall
performance (index score of 48) have not changed
significantly since 2020.

* These perceptions are in line with the Small Rural
group and State-wide averages for councils (index
scores of 47 and 46 respectively).

* The most satisfied with Council direction are
residents aged 65 years and over.

* The least satisfied with Council direction are
residents aged 50 to 64 years.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W
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Overall council direction last 12 months W

2023 overall council direction (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

65+ 50 54 56 47 59 51 54 59 63 62

Women 49 54 56 52 57 50 a7 57 62 62

18-34 48 48 51 56 54 46 36 50 59 61

Central Goldfields 48 51 53 50 57 47 46 53 59 60
Small Rural 47 51 53 50 53 50 52 50 53 nla
State-wide 46 50 53 51 53 52 53 51 53 53

Men 46 a7 51 49 58 43 45 50 57 58

35-49 46 47 55 49 59 44 46 50 59 58

50-64 42 46 48 52 55 42 40 51 55 58

Q6. Over the last 12 months, what is your view of the direction of Central Goldfields Shire Council’s overall performance?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19 J w S R E S E AR C H 35
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.
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Overall council direction last 12 months

2023 Central Goldfields
2022 Central Goldfields
2021 Central Goldfields
2020 Central Goldfields
2019 Central Goldfields
2018 Central Goldfields
2017 Central Goldfields
2016 Central Goldfields
2015 Central Goldfields
2014 Central Goldfields
State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

13

18

25
25

23

20

30

21

28
29

13
15
16
19
17
15

18

19

2023 overall council direction (%)

55
47
51
51
47
44
62
60
58
59
61
60
58
53
59
58

57

22
24
19
22
17
26

21

W

= Improved = Stayed the same m Deteriorated

Can't say

JWSRESEARCH

Q6. Over the last 12 months, what is your view of the direction of Central Goldfields Shire Council’s overall performance?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

36



Individual service
areas
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Community consultation and engagement performance W

2023 consultation and engagement performance (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

65+ 53 53 54 56 58 52 58 60 63 60

Small Rural 53 54 56 54 56 54 55 55 56 n/a
State-wide 52 54 56 55 56 55 55 54 56 57
Women 51 56 57 56 57 45 53 61 61 62

Central Goldfields 51 51 54 51 55 45 54 57 59 58

Men 46 50 a7 54 44 54 54 56 54

35-49 51 53 44 60 42 50 58 60 53
18-34 50 58 54 52 42 56 58 60 65

50-64 46 48 47 50 39 49 53 52 54

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Community consultation and engagement’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19 J w S R E S E AR C H 38
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.
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27 June 2023 Council Meeting

Community consultation and engagement performance W

L.
0e®
L\

2023 Central Goldfields
2022 Central Goldfields
2021 Central Goldfields
2020 Central Goldfields
2019 Central Goldfields
2018 Central Goldfields
2017 Central Goldfields
2016 Central Goldfields
2015 Central Goldfields
2014 Central Goldfields
State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

2023 consultation and engagement performance (%)

12
12

10
10

10
10

20

12

25
28
31
24
25

28
35
34

31
27
28
23
27

21
35
28

= Very good

Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

= Good

35
27
32
29
34
27
31
28
29
32
32
30
35
36
51
37
21
33

= Average = Poor

249 of 629

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Community consultation and engagement’ over the last 12 months?

16 11 5
21 9 8
17 8 6
16 13 7
15 7 9
11 10
16 7 11
12 7 7
12 5 10
12 5 11
17 9 8
17 ) 7
15 11 6
16 10 5
14 10 8
15 12 5
21 16 4
15 8 7
m\ery poor Can't say
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Lobbying on behalf of the community performance

2023 lobbying performance (index scores)

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Small Rural 524 54 55 52 55 53 55 54 56 n/a
State-wide _ 514 53 55 53 54 54 54 53 55 56
18-34- 50 45 57 50 55 41 52 50 64 65

65+ - 49 53 51 53 58 49 58 62 64 63

Men - 48 47 47 46 52 43 56 51 60 57

Central Goldfields _ 48 50 50 49 53 44 53 55 61 61
Women - 48 52 54 53 55 44 51 58 63 65

35-49 - 46 47 51 45 52 40 50 49 57 58

50-64 - 45 49 43 44 47 41 49 54 59 57

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Lobbying on behalf of the community’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 51 Councils asked group: 14
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.
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Lobbying on behalf of the community performance

.

2023 Central Goldfields
2022 Central Goldfields
2021 Central Goldfields
2020 Central Goldfields
2019 Central Goldfields
2018 Central Goldfields
2017 Central Goldfields
2016 Central Goldfields
2015 Central Goldfields
2014 Central Goldfields
State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

OENESBw

10
11

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

27 June 2023 Council Meeting

2023 lobbying performance (%)

23
23
22
18
19
14
24
28
34
31
21
23
24
23
25
23
23
23

= Very good

31

= Good

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Lobbying on behalf of the community’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 51 Councils asked group: 14

32
31

33

34

31

33

31

31

29
35

29

= Average

251 of 629

31
38
35

24

27

28
29

= Poor

W

16 9 17
17 8 18

22 6 15
18 5 16

15 5 18
13 7 18
9 3 17
10 3 17
15 7 21
14 7 19
17 10 17
15 9 17
15 8 20
15 13 8
13 16 11
18 7 21

m\ery poor Can't say
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Decisions made in the interest of the community W
performance

2023 community decisions made performance (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

65+ 544 52 50 52 57 47 59 63 68 65

Small Rural 524 54 56 53 55 52 55 53 56 nla
State-wide 51 54 56 53 55 54 54 54 55 57
Women 50 51 55 52 53 41 51 60 66 66

Central Goldfields 49 50 51 49 52 42 51 58 64 63
Men 49 48 47 46 50 43 51 56 62 60

50-64 48 46 46 48 40 49 56 59 59

35-49 48 51 41 49 39 44 52 62 60

18-34 49 58 54 49 39 43 55 64 69

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Decisions made in the interest of the community’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19 J w S R E S E AR C H 42
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.



performance

2023 Central Goldfields
2022 Central Goldfields
2021 Central Goldfields
2020 Central Goldfields
2019 Central Goldfields
2018 Central Goldfields
2017 Central Goldfields
2016 Central Goldfields
2015 Central Goldfields
2014 Central Goldfields
State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

™ M N N IS

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Decisions made in the interest of the community

2023 community decisions made performance (%)

11
11
13

28
24
29
22
26
18
26

27
27
27
29
19

28
31
31

= Very good

Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

32

32

42
42

= Good

253 of 629

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Decisions made in the interest of the community’ over the last 12 months?

36
35

34
35

30

32

33
33
35
37
46
27
26

= Average

37

W

JWSRESEARCH

13 13 6
18 9 8
15 9 8
19 11 6
18 9 8
25 13 10
16 10 8
31 10 8 8
25 11 2 8
24 10 4 8
16 9 9
16 9 7
16 13 6
11 12 7
15 15 3
20 17
14 19 7
11 8 8
= Poor = Very poor Can't say
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The condition of sealed locai roads in your area W
performance

2023 sealed local roads performance (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

State-wide 484 53 57 54 56 53 53 54 55 55
65+ 54 50 54 57 57 55 56 61 62 58
Small Rural 444 50 53 51 53 49 50 52 52 nla

Women 46 51 53 48 49 52 57 55 55

Central Goldfields - 38 45 50 51 48 48 51 54 55 52

Men 44 50 48 49 47 51 51 55 50

43 49 44 42 41 42 51 60 49

42 47 a7 40 47 56 51 45 53

38 45 46 46 44 49 50 49 48

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘The condition of sealed local roads in your area’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19 J w S R E S E AR C H 44
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.



performance

2023 Central Goldfields
2022 Central Goldfields
2021 Central Goldfields
2020 Central Goldfields
2019 Central Goldfields
2018 Central Goldfields
2017 Central Goldfields
2016 Central Goldfields
2015 Central Goldfields
2014 Central Goldfields
State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

10

11

12

11

10

15

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

The condition of sealed locai roads in your area

2023 sealed local roads performance (%)

21

20
21
17

24
24

30

23

27

26
24

28

31
27

= Very good

Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

30
34

35
22

= Good

22

255 of 629

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘The condition of sealed local roads in your area’ over the last 12 months?

28

25
30

= Average

22
26
34
32
27
33
32
30
31
32
28
29
23
20
20
28
26
29

= Poor

W

27
23 19
21 10
18 13
24 13
18 14
18 12
18 9
14 10
18 10
19 17
21 19
26
27
37
27
38
19 19
m\ery poor Can't say

N
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Informing the community performance W

2023 informing community performance (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

65+ 60 61 na n/a n/a n/la n/la nla nla nla

Small Rural 58 59 61 58 58 56 58 58 60 n/a

State-wide 59 60 59 60 59 59 59 61 62

18-34 55 nf/a n/a nla nla nla nla nla nla

Women 61 nfa n/a nla nla nla nla nla nla

Central Goldfields 58 na n/a n/la n/la nla nla nla nla

Men 54 nf/a n/a nla nla nla nla nla nla

35-49 55 na n/a n/la n/la n/la nla nla nla

50-64 54 nf/a n/a nla nla nla nla nla nla

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Informing the community’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 38 Councils asked group: 10 J w S R E S E AR C H 46
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.
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27 June 2023 Council Meeting

Informing the community performance

v 2023 informing community performance (%)
2023 Central Goldfields 9 35 31
2022 Central Goldfields 11 36 29
State-wide 11 33 31
Small Rural 12 35 30
Men 7 36 31
Women 10 35 30
18-34 7 34 32
35-49 9 33 26
50-64 7 29 (0]
65+ 10 39 32
m Very good = Good u Average = Poor
257 of 629

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Informing the community’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 38 Councils asked group: 10

W

14 8 8

14 . 3

15 6 [

14 6 [

14 7 4
14 8 2

15 5 7
17 13 2
17 15 2
12 5 K
m\ery poor Can't say
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The appearance of public areas performance W

2023 public areas performance (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Small Rural 714 73 75 72 73 72 74 73 74 nla

65+ 69 73 nla 76 79 nla nla nla nla nla

Men 68 70 nla 72 75 nla nla nla nla nla

18-34 68 71 nla 76 66 nfa n/la nla nla nla

Central Goldfields 67 71 nla 75 75 nla n/la nla nla nla
State-wide 67 71 73 72 72 71 71 71 72 72
Women 67 73 nla 78 75 nla nla nla nla nla

35-49 66 71 nla 75 75 nla nfa nla nla nla

50-64 64 69 n/la 73 78 nla nla nla nla nla

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘The appearance of public areas’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 45 Councils asked group: 14 J w S R E S E AR C H 48
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.



The appearance of public areas performance

2023 Central Goldfields

2022 Central Goldfields

2020 Central Goldfields

2019 Central Goldfields

State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

2023 public areas performance (%)

19

26

32

33

21

25

21

17

22

18

22

= Very good

54

= Good

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘The appearance of public areas’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 45 Councils asked group: 14

45
46
42
40
43
43
44
47
39
43
46
= Average = Poor

W

24 7 4
19 4 4
21 4 1
20 4 2l
23 8 4
21 6 3 W

23 8 4
25 7 4
32 3 5
25 10 3
25 7 4 Wi
20 8 4

m\ery poor Can't say
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Waste management performance W

2023 waste management performance (index scores)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Men 65 69 64 71 na n/a n/la nla nla

65+ 69 69 68 75 nf/a n/a nla nla nla

State-wide 68 69 65 68 70 71 70 72 73

18-34 54 77 59 62 nf/a n/fa nla nla nla

Small Rural 68 68 64 66 69 70 69 71 n/a

Central Goldfields 64 69 63 69 na n/a n/la nla nla

Women 63 69 63 67 nf/a n/a nla nla nla

50-64 62 62 64 66 na n/a n/la nla nla

35-49 60 68 55 67 nf/a n/a nla nla nla

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Waste management’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19 J w S R E S E AR C H 50
Note: Please see Appendix A for explanation of significant differences.



Waste management performance

2023 Central Goldfields

2022 Central Goldfields

2021 Central Goldfields

2020 Central Goldfields

2019 Central Goldfields

State-wide

Small Rural

Men

Women

18-34

35-49

50-64

65+

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

2023 waste management performance (%)

17
19
20
20
25
20
19
19
15
17
17
17

17

= Very good

Q2. How has Council performed on ‘Waste management’ over the last 12 months?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

= Good

46

40

34

49

38

41

42

45

47

44

40

46

49

= Average

= Poor

W

21 8 . 2
23 11 6 W
20 6 3 W
29 10 6 il
24 8 3 K
22 9 5 K
22 9 5 &
22 7 4 i
20 8 8 2
22 7 5 5
22 13 8
16 8 11 8
23 6 4 i
m\ery poor Can't say
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Gender and age profile

2023 gender

Central Goldfields Small Rural State-wide

2023 age

Central Goldfields Small Rural State-wide

m18-24 m25-34 m35-49 m50-64 m65+ m18-24 m25-34 m35-49 m50-64 m65+ m18-24 m25-34 m35-49 m50-64 m65+

S3. [Record gender] / S4. To which of the following age groups do you belong?
Base: All respondents. Councils asked State-wide: 66 Councils asked group: 19

Please note that for the reason of simplifying reporting, interlocking age and gender reporting has not been included in this report. Interlocking J W S R E S E A R C H
age and gender analysis is still available in the dashboard and data tables provided alongside this report.
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Index scores,
margins of error
and significant
differences
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Appendix A:
Index Scores

Index Scores

Many questions ask respondents to rate council
performance on a five-point scale, for example, from
‘very good’ to ‘very poor’, with ‘can’t say’ also a
possible response category. To facilitate ease of
reporting and comparison of results over time, starting
from the 2012 survey and measured against the state-
wide result and the council group, an ‘Index Score’ has
been calculated for such measures.

The Index Score is calculated and represented as a
score out of 100 (on a 0 to 100 scale), with ‘can’t say’
responses excluded from the analysis. The ‘%
RESULT’ for each scale category is multiplied by the
‘INDEX FACTOR'. This produces an ‘INDEX VALUE’
for each category, which are then summed to produce
the INDEX SCORE’, equating to ‘60’ in the following
example.

Similarly, an Index Score has been calculated for the
Core question ‘Performance direction in the last 12
months’, based on the following scale for each
performance measure category, with ‘Can’t say’
responses excluded from the calculation.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

SCALE
CATEGORIES

Very good
Good
Average
Poor

Very poor

Can’t say

SCALE
CATEGORIES

Improved

Stayed the
same

Deteriorated

Can’t say

% RESULT F[L\ICE)TESR INDEX VALUE
100 S

9%
40%
37%

9%

4%

1%

75

50

25
0

W

30
19
2

0

INDEX SCORE
60

% RESULT F[AI\\IC[ZDTE(;(R INDEX VALUE

36%

40%

23%

1%

100

50

36

20

0

INDEX SCORE
56
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Appendix A: W
Margins of error

The sample size for the 2023 State-wide Local
Government Community Satisfaction Survey for Central
Goldfields Shire Council was n=400. Unless otherwise
noted, this is the total sample base for all reported
charts and tables.

Maximum
margin of error
at 95%
confidence
interval

Actual
survey Weighted

Demographic sample base

size

Central Goldfields

()
>

. : Shire C i 400 400 +/-4.8
The maximum margin of error on a sample of Iits SOl
approximately n=400 interviews is +/-4.8% at the 95% M 187 197 +/-7.1
confidence level for results around 50%. Margins of Women 213 203 +/-6.7
error will be larger for any sub-samples. As an 18-34 years 41 74 +/-15.5
0 .
exa_tmple_, a res_ult of 50% can be read confidently as S 4 60 67 +-12.7
falling midway in the range 45.2% - 54.8%.
_ _ _ 50-64 years 72 61 +/-11.6
Maximum margins of error are listed in the table below,
65+ years 227 198 +/-6.5

based on a population of 11,000 people aged 18 years
or over for Central Goldfields Shire Council, according
to ABS estimates.

JWSRESEARCH 56



Appendix A:

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Significant difference reporting notation W

Within tables and index score charts throughout this
report, statistically significant differences at the 95%
confidence level are represented by upward directing
green (=) and downward directing red arrows ().

Significance when noted indicates a significantly higher
or lower result for the analysis group in comparison to
the ‘Total’ result for the council for that survey question
for that year. Therefore in the example below:

*  The state-wide result is significantly higher than
the overall result for the council.

* ~ The result among 50-64 year olds is significantly
lower than for the overall result for the council.

Further, results shown in green and red indicate
significantly higher or lower results than in 2022.
Therefore in the example below:

* The result among 35-49 year olds in the council is
significantly higher than the result achieved among
this group in 2022.

* The result among 18-34 year olds in the council is
significantly lower than the result achieved among
this group in 2022.

2023 overall performance (index scores)
(example extract only)

State-wide 674
18-34 66
Central Goldfields 60
Small Rural 58
35-49 57
50-64 54v
65+ 58

JWSRESEARCH
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Appendix A: W
Index score significant difference calculation

The test applied to the Indexes was an Independent

Mean Test, as follows:

Z Score = ($1 - $2) / Sqrt (($5"2 / $3) + ($6"2 / $4))

Where:

$1 = Index Score 1

$2 = Index Score 2

$3 = unweighted sample count 1
$4 = unweighted sample count 2
$5 = standard deviation 1

$6 = standard deviation 2

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

All figures can be sourced from the detailed cross
tabulations.

The test was applied at the 95% confidence interval, so
if the Z Score was greater than +/- 1.954 the scores are
significantly different.

JWSRESEARCH
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Appendix B:
Further information

Further information about the report and explanations
about the State-wide Local Government Community
Satisfaction Survey can be found in this section
including:

+ Background and objectives
* Analysis and reporting

* Glossary of terms
Detailed survey tabulations

Detailed survey tabulations are available in supplied
Excel file.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

For further queries about the conduct and reporting of
the 2023 State-wide Local Government Community
Satisfaction Survey, please contact JWS Research on

(03) 8685 8555 or via email:
admin@jwsresearch.com

Contacts

JWSRESEARCH
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J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Survey methodology and sampling W

The 2023 results are compared with previous years, as
detailed below:

» 2022, n=401 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 27t January — 24 March.

» 2021, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 28™ January — 18 March.

« 2020, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 30t January — 22" March.

« 2019, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 15t February — 30t March.

« 2018, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 15t February — 30t March.

» 2017, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 15t February — 30t March.

» 2016, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 15t February — 30t March.

» 2015, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 15t February — 30t March.

» 2014, n=400 completed interviews, conducted in the period
of 31st January — 11t March.

Minimum quotas of gender within age groups were

applied during the fieldwork phase. Post-survey

weighting was then conducted to ensure accurate

representation of the age and gender profile of the

Central Goldfields Shire Council area.

Any variation of +/-1% between individual results and
net scores in this report or the detailed survey
tabulations is due to rounding. In reporting, ‘—’ denotes
not mentioned and ‘0%’ denotes mentioned by less
than 1% of respondents. ‘Net’ scores refer to two or
more response categories being combined into one
category for simplicity of reporting.

This survey was conducted by Computer Assisted
Telephone Interviewing (CATI) as a representative
random probability survey of residents aged 18+ years
in Central Goldfields Shire Council.

Survey sample matched to the demographic profile of
Central Goldfields Shire Council as determined by the
most recent ABS population estimates was purchased
from an accredited supplier of publicly available phone
records, including up to 60% mobile phone numbers to
cater to the diversity of residents within Central
Goldfields Shire Council, particularly younger people.

A total of n=400 completed interviews were achieved in
Central Goldfields Shire Council. Survey fieldwork was
conducted across four quarters from 16" June 2022 —

19 March 2023.

JWSRESEARCH
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Appendix B:
Analysis and reporting

All participating councils are listed in the State-wide
report published on the DELWP website. In 2023, 66 of
the 79 Councils throughout Victoria participated in this
survey. For consistency of analysis and reporting
across all projects, Local Government Victoria has
aligned its presentation of data to use standard council
groupings. Accordingly, the council reports for the
community satisfaction survey provide analysis using
these standard council groupings. Please note that
councils participating across 2012-2023 vary slightly.

Council Groups

Central Goldfields Shire Council is classified as a Small
Rural council according to the following classification
list:

» Metropolitan, Interface, Regional Centres, Large
Rural & Small Rural.

Councils participating in the Small Rural group are:

+ Alpine, Ararat, Benalla, Buloke, Central Goldfields,
Gannawarra, Hepburn, Hindmarsh, Indigo, Loddon,
Mansfield, Murrindindi, Northern Grampians,
Pyrenees, Queenscliffe, Strathbogie, West Wimmera
and Yarriambiack.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W

Wherever appropriate, results for Central Goldfields
Shire Council for this 2023 State-wide Local
Government Community Satisfaction Survey have been
compared against other participating councils in the
Small Rural group and on a state-wide basis. Please
note that council groupings changed for 2015, and as
such comparisons to council group results before that
time can not be made within the reported charts.

JWSRESEARCH
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Appendix B:
2012 survey revision

The survey was revised in 2012. As a result:

» The survey is now conducted as a representative
random probability survey of residents aged 18 years
or over in local councils, whereas previously it was
conducted as a ‘head of household’ survey.

» As part of the change to a representative resident
survey, results are now weighted post survey to the
known population distribution of Central Goldfields
Shire Council according to the most recently
available Australian Bureau of Statistics population
estimates, whereas the results were previously not
weighted.

* The service responsibility area performance
measures have changed significantly and the rating
scale used to assess performance has also
changed.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

As such, the results of the 2012 State-wide Local
Government Community Satisfaction Survey should be
considered as a benchmark. Please note that
comparisons should not be made with the State-wide
Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey
results from 2011 and prior due to the methodological
and sampling changes. Comparisons in the period
2012-2023 have been made throughout this report as
appropriate.

JWSRESEARCH
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Appendix B: W
Core, optional and tailored questions

Core, optional and tailored questions

Over and above necessary geographic and
demographic questions required to ensure sample
representativeness, a base set of questions for the
2023 State-wide Local Government Community
Satisfaction Survey was designated as ‘Core’ and
therefore compulsory inclusions for all participating
Councils.

These core questions comprised:

Overall performance last 12 months (Overall
performance)

Value for money in services and infrastructure
(Value for money)

Contact in last 12 months (Contact)
Rating of contact (Customer service)

Overall council direction last 12 months (Council
direction)

Community consultation and engagement
(Consultation)

Decisions made in the interest of the community
(Making community decisions)

Condition of sealed local roads (Sealed local
roads)

Waste management

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Reporting of results for these core questions can
always be compared against other participating
councils in the council group and against all
participating councils state-wide. Alternatively, some
questions in the 2023 State-wide Local Government
Community Satisfaction Survey were optional. Councils
also had the ability to ask tailored questions specific
only to their council.

JWSRESEARCH
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Appendix B:
Analysis and reporting

Reporting

Every council that participated in the 2023 State-wide
Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey
receives a customised report. In addition, the State
government is supplied with this State-wide summary
report of the aggregate results of ‘Core’ and ‘Optional’
questions asked across all council areas surveyed,
which is available at:

https://www.localgovernment.vic.gov.au/our-
programs/council-community-satisfaction-survey

Tailored questions commissioned by individual councils
are reported only to the commissioning council and not
otherwise shared unless by express written approval of
the commissioning council.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

W
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Appendix B:
Glossary of terms

Core questions: Compulsory inclusion questions for all
councils participating in the CSS.

CSS: 2023 Victorian Local Government Community
Satisfaction Survey.

Council group: One of five classified groups,
comprising: metropolitan, interface, regional centres,
large rural and small rural.

Council group average: The average result for all
participating councils in the council group.

Highest / lowest: The result described is the highest or
lowest result across a particular demographic sub-
group e.g. men, for the specific question being
reported. Reference to the result for a demographic
sub-group being the highest or lowest does not imply
that it is significantly higher or lower, unless this is
specifically mentioned.

Index score: A score calculated and represented as a
score out of 100 (on a 0 to 100 scale). This score is
sometimes reported as a figure in brackets next to the
category being described, e.g. men 50+ (60).

Optional questions: Questions which councils had an
option to include or not.

J01207 Community Satisfaction Survey 2023 — Central Goldfields Shire Council

Percentages: Also referred to as ‘detailed results’,
meaning the proportion of responses, expressed as a
percentage.

Sample: The number of completed interviews, e.g. for
a council or within a demographic sub-group.

Significantly higher / lower: The result described is
significantly higher or lower than the comparison result
based on a statistical significance test at the 95%
confidence limit. If the result referenced is statistically
higher or lower then this will be specifically mentioned,
however not all significantly higher or lower results are
referenced in summary reporting.

State-wide average: The average result for all
participating councils in the State.

Tailored questions: Individual questions tailored by
and only reported to the commissioning council.

Weighting: Weighting factors are applied to the sample
for each council based on available age and gender
proportions from ABS census information to ensure
reported results are proportionate to the actual
population of the council, rather than the achieved
survey sample.

JWSRESEARCH
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8.8 TALBOT FUTURES PROJECT AND DRAFT STRUCTURE PLAN

Author: General Manager Infrastructure Assets
and Planning

Responsible Officer: General Manager Infrastructure Assets
and Planning

The Officer presenting this report, having made enquiries with relevant members of
staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this report.

SUMMARY/PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to consider endorsing the Talbot Draft Structure Plan and
supporting documents for the purpose of undertaking public consultation.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Endorse the Talbot Draft Structure Plan and supporting documents for the
purposes of undertaking public consultation.

LEGISLATION AND POLICY CONTEXT
Central Goldfields Shire Council's Council Plan 2021-2025 - Our Growing Economy
The Community's vision 2. A vibrant and thriving economy with a growing population

Initiative: Promote the liveability of Central Goldfields

Ensure sufficient land is zoned to accommodate residential
growth.

Complete planning for a wastewater scheme for Talbot
township

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Talbot Futures Project has made significant progress in recent months. The project
that commenced in September 2022 has two major components:

1. Preparation of a structure plan for the township (managed by Hansen Partnership
along with SGS Economics and Hello City); and



2. Design and costing of a sewerage scheme with a business case to support funding
for implementation (managed by Central Highlands Water (CHW) contract with
engineering firm Jacobs.

The project is funded by $630,000 from the Victorian Government (Living Regions Living
Suburbs Fund) and a Council contribution of $60,000.

REPORT

Talbot is well located in terms of road and rail access and is relatively safe from both
Bushfire and flooding impacts compared with other settlements in the shire.

The biggest hurdle for growth in Talbot is the absence of a reticulated sewerage system
and this project is addressing this issue with a structure plan to project the population,
growth areas for expansion and capacity of the sewerage facility to cater for future
growth.

This project has completed two phases of community and stakeholder engagement as
detailed in the attachments.

The project consultant has prepared a Draft Structure Plan from the inputs of the
engagement sessions and technical assessments including the bushfire assessment by
Kevin Hazell.

This project is key to implementing Council's vision of ensuring a thriving and vibrant
community with a growing population.

It is underpinned by the extensive research and recommendations of the Population,
Housing and residential Strategy 2020 and the Industrial Land Suppl & Demand
Assessment and Strategy 2021.

It addresses the need for Talbot to expand to enable growth of the municipality whilst
considering the risks present in and around the town.

The sewerage scheme component is also progressing well with Central Highlands Water
and Jacobs Engineering completing technical assessments and preparing drafts for a
proposed Sewerage Scheme with capacity for growth that aligns with the Structure Plan.

Jacobs will utilise the inputs from the Structure Plan to finalise the Sewerage Scheme
and prepare the business case that will underpin capital funding applications.

CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

The project has completed two stages of community engagement and received community
feedback on the key aspects of the project.

Multiple channels of communication have been used, including the Talbot local newsletter
(TTT) a special project newsletter and online information.



Feedback has been gained through hard-copy and online surveys as well as two in-person
sessions in the London House café and Talbot Market Square Precinct:

1. November 2022, - information on the project and community input on the broad
vision for the future of Talbot.
About 20 people attended and participated in discussion and an interactive walking
exercise.

2. March 2023 - issues and options workshop with consultants and council officers
attending. About 12 participants reviewed technical assessments and initial
community engagement findings and provided feedback.

In between these sessions, a technical workshop was held in January 2023 to refine
specifics of the issues and options process including identifying infill areas within the
township, potential expansion areas for future needs, key character and heritage values,
and alignment between structure planning and the proposed sewerage scheme.

Detail on the outputs from the community engagement process can be found in the
attached Future Visions Report and Talbot Function and Identity Study.

It is proposed to undertake further community engagement on the draft structure plan
to ensure it aligns with key inputs and feedback received from the community through
earlier phases of the project.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The Talbot Futures Project has been funded by the Victorian Government Living Regions
Living Suburbs Fund managed by Regional Development Victoria with a grant amount of
$630,000. Council is also contributing $60,000 towards this work.

Staff time to provide project management, document review and reporting to Council is
covered within the existing Strategic Planning budgeft.

RISK MANAGEMENT

This report addresses Council's strategic risk Community Well-being - Failure to
recognise and manage the impact of changing social and economic conditions on the
community - by addressing constraints on residential and industrial development that are
contributing to increasing housing costs and potential missed opportunities for enabling
industrial businesses to establish and grow in Central Goldfields.

This report further addresses Council's strategic risk Community engagement -
Inadequate stakeholder management or engagement impacting brand reputation and
community satisfaction in Council decision making by ensuring that relevant stakeholders
including landowners, community members and agencies are engaged in the decision-
making process.

CONCLUSION



The Draft Talbot Structure Plan provides directions on population growth, future housing
demands and areas for infill and greenfield development for Talbot upon the
implementation of a reticulated sewerage scheme for the township.

It is recommended that Council endorse the Talbot Draft Structure Plan and supporting
documents for the purposes of undertaking further public consultation.

ATTACHMENTS

8.8.1 Talbot Draft Structure Plan

8.8.2 Talbot Future Visions Report

8.8.3 Talbot Function and Identity Study
8.8.4 Talbot Bushfire Assessment Report
8.8.5 Talbot Technical Assessment

8.8.6 Talbot Discussion Paper

8.8.7 Talbot Final S6S Housing and Commercial Assessment
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TALBOT DRAFT STRUCTURE PLAN

1.1 Project Overview

Central Goldfields Shire Council has engaged Hansen Partnership
and their project partners (SGS Planning & Economics and Hello
City) to undertake a structure planning process for Talbot. The
project forms part of the wider Talbot Futures Project, which
includes the two core components of a town structure plan
overseen by Council and an updated and fully costed sewerage
scheme plan (occuring in parallel to the structure plan) overseen
by Central Highlands \Water.

1.2 What is a Structure Plan?

A Structure Plan is a long-term plan to guide Council decisions
about future development on private and public land within a
town or centre. It outlines a vision and key objectives, strategies
and actions to implement its goals in line with community
expectations. Structure plans guide the major changes to land
use, built form, access and movement networks, and public
spaces that together can achieve environmental, social and
economic outcomes for a place.

1.3 Why is a Structure Plan needed?

Numerous Council strategies and reports have highlighted the
provision of sewerage infrastructure to Talbot as a key priority.
However, Talbot is a unique and historic township that has not
seen any significant development over previous decades, and so
future development and change must be carefully managed to
ensure the key heritage and character attributes of the township
are protected.

The Structure Plan will guide the location of future development
and growth in Talbot and outline a long-term strategic vision so
that important opportunities for the Shire are identified.

The purpose of this structure plan is to:

= |dentify locations for planned future subdivision and
development zones to inform considerations of any sewerage
scheme;

= Ensure future development is managed in accordance with
Council and community objectives for the township.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

= |dentify changes to the planning scheme needed to faciliate the
directions in the Structure Plan, and provide direction on the
assessment of planning permit applications and amendments to
the planning scheme.

= Provide input into Council’s program of projects and works for
Talbot.

= Provide greater certainty to landowners, developers, and
businesses about the future potential of land in Talbot.

1.4 Project Process to Date

= Phase 1 - Preparation of Technical Assessments including:
Talbot Structure Plan Technical Assessments (Hansen
Partnership), Talbot Structure Plan Housing and Commercial
Technical Assessment (SGS Economics & Plannng), and Bushfire
Assessment to inform the Talbot Structure Plan (Kevin Hazell
Bushfire Planning)

= Phase 2 - Preparation of Talbot Futures Structure Plan Discussion
Paper (Hansen Partnership)

= Phase 3 - Preparation of Draft Structure Plan for Talbot (Current)

The community engagement activities that have occured to date
(facilitated and guided by Hello City) are outlined in section 2.5 of
the report.

1.5 The Study Area

The Talbot locality is much wider than the core township area.
The Structure Plan primarily focuses on the area of land within the
Township Zone, and land immediately surrounding this core area.
It is recognised however that both from an economic and social
perspective, who relates to the township is just as important

as who lives within Township zoned areas. The contribution

of residents who live beyond the core area to catchments on
demand for facilities and services must be considered. The key
study area (aligning with the township boundary identified at
Clause 02.04 of the Central Goldfields Shire Planning Scheme as
of early May 2023) is shown by the red outline in Figure 2, but the
broader area shown in that figure has been considered as well.
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1.6 Structure of the Document

The structure of this document is broken into five sections:
= This introduction section.
= The second section outlines the background information that

has informed the development of the plan including relevant
statistics, strategies and policies, and previous background

work. Key issues and drivers of change are then summarised.

= The third section identifies the vision statement for Talbot.

= The fourth section outlines the main objectives and strategies of
the structure plan and actions required for its implemetnation.

This section is arranged thematically.

= The fifth section provides direction on implementation.

27 June 2023 Council Meeting

BACKGROUND ANALYSIS
Identifies the background information that has informed the
Structure Plan and summarises the key drivers of change
and guiding issues.

VISION
The vision defines the overarching aspirations to guide the
long term growth and development of Talbot.

ELEMENTS

+ Future Urban Structure
+Land Use
+ Housing Choice,
Diversity & Affordability
+Character, Heritage &
Design
+Tourism & Economic
Development

OBJECTIVES
Identifies high level statements
that provide direction for each

structure plan element

STRATEGIES

Outlines key ways in which
the objectives should be

+Access & Movement achieved.
+ Community
Infrastructure
+Environment &
Landscape ACTIONS

+ Environmental Risks &
Climate Change
+ Physical Services &
Utilities

Sets out tangible actions to
implement the strategies for
each structure plan element.

IMPLEMENTATION

Outlines a plan to implement the various actions identi-

fied through the Structure Plan, with key mechanisms,
responsibilities and timing identified.

286 of 629

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd



TALBOT DRAFT STRUCTURE PLAN

n Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd



TALBOT DRAFT STRUCTURE PLAN

2.1 About Talbot

Talbot is located within the Central Goldfields Shire, approximately
130km to the north-west of Melbourne. It is the fourth largest
settlement in the shire (by population) after Maryborough,
Carisbrook and Dunolly. According to the 2021 census, Talbot (as a
statistical area) had a population of 452 persons.

Talbot is located within the Victorian Goldfields region, and is
approximately 16km south of Maryborough, 18km north-west of
Clunes, and 53km north of Ballarat. It sits on the Maryborough to
Melbourne railway line, while the Ballarat to Maryborough Road
provides the main access to Talbot, from Maryborough to the north,
and Clunes/ Creswick and Ballarat to the south.

Talbot is situated within a broadly agricultural and forested
landscape setting. Volcanic rises are a significant landscape
feature within Talbot’s broader landscape context.

The Dja Dja Wurrung people are the Traditional Owners of the

land on which Talbot is located. Goldfields were opened in the
Talbot district in 1852 and Talbot rapidly grew to become one of
Victoria’s most significant gold rush townships. In 1865 Bailliere’s
Victorian Gazetteer recorded Talbot as having two breweries,

a soap and candle works, a hospital, a mechanics’ institute, a
county and other courts, 19 hotels, private schools and a National
school. While much of this heritage fabric is no longer present,
Talbot retains an intact and rich heritage. It is graced with fine
civic buildings and charming cottages, while the main street of
Talbot is amongst the most intact heritage streetscapes in the
Goldfields region.

Talbot's central ‘core” is centred around Scandinavian Crescent
and Camp Street. Key focal points for commercial and social
activity include the London House Café, the adjoining community
garden and the market square, where the Talbot Farmers Market
is held every month, alongside the Town Hall Market, attracting
thousands of visitors.

Talbot's central ‘core” was laid out before the motor vehicle,

meaning the urban form is walkable, legible and on a human scale.

Talbot's town square, museum, local pub, book stores, and library
are all within close walking distance of each other. The Talbot
railway station, located on the north-east edge of the township, is
within a five-minute walking distance of the central ‘core’.

Most existing urban development within Talbot is located to the
east of Ballarat-Maryborough Road and Back Creek, which runs
parallel to that road and separates the main township area from
the Hard Hill Public Recreation Reserve and the towns Recreation
Reserve. The central township area is surrounded by lower density
lots in the Rural Living Zone, particularly to the south and west.

There are numerous vacant lots within the township itself,
particularly to the western and northern edges.Except for reticulated
sewer, Talbot is currently connected to all urban services.
Established vegetation is a key characterisitc of the township,
including significant trees and several very beautiful and carefully
managed private gardens. Existing community infrastructure is
somewhat dispersed throughout Talbot rather than clustered, with
the Talbot Recreation Reserve relatively disconnected from the
township on the west side of the Ballarat-Maryborough Road.

st

Historic buildings on Scandanavian Crescent

e i il

Community Garden adjoining the London House Cafe
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2.7 Population & Profile

Talbot has a total population of around 452 residents. This figure
captures the population of the statistical locality of Talbot, which
spans some 32.5sq kms. The population of the Central Goldfields
Shire is 13,483.

There has been neglible growth in population in Talbot over the last
five years, with the addition of only 10 people. It is noted that the
population of Talbot was 586 persons in 2006, and 715 in 2011.
However the 2006/2011 figures are not comparable due to the use
of different statistical geographic areas for those years. In regard to
population projections, four scenarios for future dwelling growth in
Talbot have been identified, from which future population estimates
can be extrapolated from (refer to section 4.2 of this document).

The median age of people in Talbot is 59 years, compared to 52

in Central Goldfields, and 38 in Victoria. The median age in Talbot
increased from 55 to 59 years from 2016-2021. A trend of an
ageing population is particularly pronounced in Talbot, with the
lack of new development seeing few younger households joining
the community. 31.6% of Talbot’s population is over 65 years,
compared to 31.1% across the Central Goldfields, and 16.8% across
Victoria.

The average household size in Talbot is 1.9 persons, compared with
2.1 in Central Goldfields Shire. Across the four largest settlements
in the Shire, Talbot and Dunolly share the lowest average household
size.

The median total weekly household income in Talbot increased from
$710 to $733 between 2016 and 2021. A more significant increase
occurred across the Central Goldfields Shire as a whole, where
median total weekly household income increased from $775 to
$904 over the same four year period.

(Source: ABS Data, 2006, 2011, 2016 and 2021 & SGS Economics
and Planning, Housing and Commercial Technical Assessment, 2022)

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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2.3 Background Assessments

The following documents helped inform the development of the
draft Structure Plan:

= Talbot Structure Plan Technical Assessments (Hansen
Partnership, 2023)

= Talbot Structure Plan Housing and Commercial Technical
Assessment (SGS Economics & Planning, 2022)

= Bushfire Assessment to inform the Talbot Structure Plan (Kevin
Hazell Bushfire Planning, 2023)

= Talbot Futures Structure Plan Discussion Paper (Hansen
Partnership, 2023)

2.4 Strategic Policy and Planning Context

This section provides a summary of the policy and planning
context for Talbot. Further discussion of the policy context is
provided in the Talbot Structure Plan Technical Assessments.

The regional role of Talbot in relation to the Loddon Mallee South
region is reflected in the directions in the Loddon Mallee South
Regional Growth Plan.

Regional Documents

= Loddon Mallee South Regional Growth Plan (2014)

This growth plan is the strategic land use plan for the Loddon
Mallee South region, to guide growth and change for the next 30
years The plan covers the local government areas of the Central
Goldfields Shire, the City of Greater Bendigo, Loddon Shire,
Macedon Ranges Shire and Mount Alexander Shire.

The plan notes that:

“The netwaork of larger and smaller towns in the Loddon Mallee
South region, most of which connect closely to Bendigo, are
central to the region’s unique character. Larger centres such as
Gisborne, Kyneton, Castlemaine and Maryborough act as hubs
to smaller surrounding settlements and rural areas both inside
and beyond the regional boundaries. These larger centres offer
a diversity of retail and community services and recreational and
cultural opportunities, which complement thase in Bendigo and
Melbourne”

Talbot is identified within the category of ‘towns and rural centres’
in the settlement network of the plan (at the bottom end of the
settlement hierarchy). Directions for small towns in the Regional
Growth Plan (2014) are considered relevant. These include:

= Support the ongoing role of the region’s small towns and
settlements.

= [nvest in liveability, infrastructure and urban design initiatives
to make the region’s small towns great places to live.

= Support the sustainability of small towns through investment
and diversification of their economies and appropriate flexible
zoning provisions.

In relation to Talbot, the Plan includes a future regional land
use settlement action to “investigate the sewering of some
townships, including Talbot and Newhbridge”.

= Loddon Mallee Climate Ready Plan

The Plan prioritises climate change actions to be taken at
the regional level that centre on the needs people most
disproportionately impacted by climate change.

= North Central Regional Catchment Management Strategy 2021-
2027

The overarching strategy for land, water and biodiversity
management within the north central region. The Strategy
provides a roadmap for all stakeholders to care for the region’s
catchments over the next six years.

View east up Camp Street from Ballarat- Maryborough Road

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Municipal Documents (Shire-wide Focus)

= Central Goldfields Shire Council Plan 2021-2025
= Central Goldfields Shire Community Vision 2031

= Central Goldfields Shire Population, Housing and Residential
Strategy 2020

= Central Goldfields Shire Council Integrated Transport Strategy
2020-2030

= Central Goldfields Shire Walking and Cycling Strategy 2017-
2026

= Active Central Goldfields Recreation and Open Space Strategy
2020-2029.

= Central Goldfields Shire Heritage Review 2005
= Sustainability Action Plan 2012-2020

= Neighbourhood Safer Places Plan

= Tree Management Plan 2020-2024

= Positive Ageing Strategy 2021-2026

= Central Goldfields Shire Priority Projects Plan
= Climate Action Plan 2022-2030

= Economic Development Strategy 2020-2025
= Health and Wellbeing Plan 2021-2025

= Planning Scheme Review 2020

= Tourism & Events Strategy 2020-2025

= Township Tree Management Plan and Agreement, Central
Goldfields Shire and Powercor Australia

Municipal Documents (Talbot Focus)

= Talbot & District Community Plan 2030
= Talbot Urban Design Guidelines 2016
= The Talbot and Clunes Conservation Study 1988

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Central Goldfields Planning Scheme - Planning Policy

This section of of the document summarises relevant planning
policy within the Central Goldfields Planning Scheme. It is ordered
thematically, rather than by clause number.

Settlement

Clause 02-03-1 (Settlement) identifies Talbot as a ‘local
community centre’, the role of which is to provide “mainly day
to day convenience shopping”. This Clause also specifies that
the townships” identity is “defined by town’s heritage character,
particularly Scandinavian Crescent and Camp Street”. Relevant
settlement strategies include directing development to infill lots
that are suitable for development in Talbot and encouraging a
more compact urban form.

Clause 11.01-1R (Settlement- Loddon Mallee South) includes
the Loddon Mallee South Regional Growth Plan, where Talbot is
identified in the settlement network as part of “Town and Rural
Centres'.

Clause 11.01-1L (Settlement - Central Goldfields) supports the
provision of low density and rural living opportunities around the
periphery of Talbot where they do not conflict with environmental
and agricultural objectives and where infrastructure can be
supplied in a cost-effective way.

State level Policy (at Clause 11.02-1S Supply of Urban Land)
sets out the principles for identifying areas for growth and the
expectations in terms of land supply.

Environment and Landscape Values

Clause 02.03-2 (Environmental and landscape values) highlights
that there is a need to protect and enhance the natural
environment to protect ecological processes while providing for
continued land use change.

Protecting the Talbot districts” volcanic rises as a significant
landscape is a key strategy at Clause 02.03-2 (Environmental and
landscape values)

Clause 12.01-2S (Biodiversity) sets the objective of protecting and
enhancing Victoria's biodiversity.

Clause 12.01-2S (Native Vegetation Management) seeks to
ensure that there is no net loss to biodiversity as a result of the
removal, destruction or lopping of native vegetation.

Environmental risks and amenity

The environmental risks and amenity policies are contained

in Clause 13 and address a variety of issues including climate
change impacts, bushfire risk, floodplains, soil degradation, noise,
air quality and amenity, human health and safety.
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Natural Resource Management

Planning policy for natural resource management is included
at Clause 14. Generally, strategy revolves around preserving
agriculture, water and natural resources whilst also managing
conflicts with urban development.

Clause 14.02-2L (Water quality - Central Goldfields) seeks to
ensure that any effluent disposal systems in unsewered areas
are located and maintained to minimise the risk of pollution to
waterways.

Built Environment

Clause 02.03-5 (Built environment and heritage) identifies that
the main streets of Talbot and Dunolly are among the most intact
heritage streetscapes in the Goldfields region, while the Talbot
Structure Plan (Clause 02.04) identifies the central core of Talbot
as a ‘Conservation Precinct” where “historic urban form, heritage
buildings and streetscapes” are to be protected and enhanced.

Clause 15.01-1 (Built Environment) contains policy for urban
design, building design and subdivision design as well as
strategies to achieve broader goals of achieving healthy
neighbourhoods, neighbourhood character and design for rural
areas.

Housing

Clause 16.01-1S (Housing Supply) includes the objective of
facilitating “well-located, integrated and diverse housing that
meets community needs”. The objective of Clause 16.01-2S
(Housing Affordability) is “to deliver more affordable housing
closer to jobs, transport and services”.

Clause 16.01-3S (Rural residential development) includes the
strategy of managing development in rural areas to protect
agriculture and avoid inappropriate rural residential development.

Economic Development

Clause 17.03-1L (Industrial land supply - Central Goldfields)
encourages industrial development in rural areas and within
unsewered urban areas where a number of criteria can be met.
Industrial development is required to be connected to reticulated
water, sewerage, power and stormwater facilities.

Clause 17.04-1S (Facilitating tourism) includes the strategy of a
encouraging the development of a range of well-designed and
sited tourist facilities. Creating innovative tourism experiences is
another strategy included at this clause.

Clause 17.01-1R (Diversified economy — Loddon Mallee South)
includes the strategies of:

= support ongoing role and contribution of the region’s small
towns, settlements and non-urban areas through investment
and diversification of their economies.

= support and develop emerging and potential growth sectors
such as tourism, renewable energy, resource recovery and other
green industries.

= Faciliate new manufacturing and food processing industries that
build on supply chains and take advantage of well-located and
affordable land

= Facilitate access to natural resources where appropriate,
including sand and stone, minerals, timber and renewable
energy potential.

On a regional basis (at Clause 17.04-1R Tourism — Loddon Mallee
South), tourism opportunities in appropriate locations near
heritage places and natural environments are to be facilitated.

Transport

Clause 18.01 (land use and transport) calls for the facilitation
of access to social, cultural and economic opportunities by
effeictively integrating land use and transport.

The objective of Clause 18.01-3S is the facilitation of an
environmentally sustainable transport system that is safe and
supports health and wellbeing.

Infrastructure

Clause 19.01-2R (Renewable Energy - Loddon Mallee South)
includes the strategy of supporting and facilitating development
in renewable energy, waste to energy, carbon sequestration and
other new energy opportunities.

Clause 19.02 (community infrastructure) addresses the provision
of health, education, cultural facilities, open space and social and
cultural infrastructure.

Clause 19.03-2S (Infrastructure design and provision) calls for
the timely provision of efficient and cost-effective development
infrastructure that meets the needs of the community.

State level policy for Integrated water mangement is provided

at Clause 19.03-3S, and seeks the sustaianable management of
water supply and demand, water resources, wastewater, drainage
and stormwater through an IWWM approach.

On a regional basis (at Clause 19.03-3R Integrated water
management. — Loddon Mallee South) ongoing investment in
water infrastructure and management of water resources to
enhance security and efficiency of water supply to irrigators,
farms and urban areas is supported.

Clause 19.03-3L (Integrated water management — Central
Goldfields) seeks to ensure that effluent disposal systems can be
contained within a site, and the potential for pollution is minimised
if reticulated sewerage is not available.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Central Goldfields Planning Scheme - Zones &
Overlays

Township Zone (TZ) - Applies to the central core of the town.
The local schedule (Central Goldfields Township) contains no
variations.

Low Density Residential Zone (LDRZ) - Applies to a small area of
land north of the township core, on the east side of the Ballarat —
Maryborough Road. The local Schedule contains no variations.

Rural Living Zone (RLZ) - Applies to land surrounding the central
core of the township. The local Schedule contains no variations.

Farming Zone (FZ) - Applies to land surrounding the township,
beyond the Rural Living Zone. The local Schedule applies a
minimum subdivision area of 40ha, and a minimum area for which
no permit is required to use land for a dwelling also of 40ha.

Public Park and Recreation Zone (PPRZ) - Applies to the Talbot
Recreation Reserve, Hard Hill Public Recreation Reserve, and the
Talbot Ornamental Plantation.

Public Use Zones - Public Use Zones in the area include
PUZ1 (Service & Utility), PUZ2 (Education), PUZ3 (Health and
Community), PUZ6 (Local Government), PUZ7 (Other Public Use).

Transport Zone - Strate Transport Infrastructure (TRZ1) - Generally
applies to the train line corridor.

Transport Zone - Principal Road Network (TRZ2) - Applies to the
Ballarat — Maryborough Road and to the Lexton — Talbot Road.

Transport Zone - Significant Municipal Road (TRZ3) - Applies to
Ballarat Street North, Avoca Road, Camp Street, Scandinavian
Crescent, Oxford Street and Majorca Road.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Bushfire Management Overlay - Applies to parts of the Hard Hill
Public Recreation Reserve and some RLZ lots on the western
periphery of the study area. No local Schedule applicable.

Salinity Management Qverlay - Applies to the whole of the study
area. The local Schedule exempts the use and development of an
outbuilding having an area of less than 120 square metres.

Erosion Mangement Overlay - Applies to the whole of the study
area. The local Schedule exempts the use and development of an
outbuilding having an area of less than 120 square metres.

Heritage Overlay - . HO208 (Talbot area) applies to all TZ land and
RLZ parcels between Bond and Mt Greenoch Road to the south

of the township core. HO132 applies to the Amherst Cemetery
and is not currently listed in the local HO Schedule. HO125 applies
to the Former Talbot Police Residence and Lock-Up at 19 Heales

Street.

Land Subject to Inundation Overlay (LSIO1) - Applies to a large
swathe of land that in part follows the general alignment of Back
Creek, and in part follows the general alignment of the Ballarat

Maryborough Road.
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2.5 Community Consultation — -

'N§ Talbot Futures News

o0z // 18mzz |

Overview

It is vital that the values of the community are heard and included

in the planning process. The community is the heart and soul of a
small town and has an intimate understanding of the town'’s values,
potential opportunities and the key issues which could have a
bearing on future growth potential. The community and stakeholder
consultation that has been undertaken thus far has been integral to
the development of this draft structure plan and progress with the
wider Talbot Futures project. The community engagement process
for Talbot Futures began in October 2022 and has so far included the
following elements:

= Talbot Futures News - is a multi issue limited run publication in
both poster and newsletter formats designed to inform, connect
and spark conversations with and between locals around the
sewerage upgrades and structure planning process. Issues were
published in October 2022, November 2022 and March 2023.

= Walk & Talk - On November 23rd 2022, Talbot locals, the project
team, Key Council Staff and Stakeholders gathered for a place Talbot Futures News Poster in a window in town
audit and creative conversation.

= Talbot Futures Community Design Lab - A community design
lab took place on March 25th 2023, in which the community were
invited to help explore the details of Talbot’s possible futures. .j

Activities and surveys which were shared in issues of Talbot
Futures News, via email, on local community social media pages
and promoted online by Council using their website and social
media pages.

A brief summary of engagement findings is available in the Talbot
Futures Vision Report, and a more detailed summary of engagement
findings is available in the Talbot Township Function and Identity
Study (both prepared by Hello City).

Participants in the ‘Walk and Talk” across Talbot, as part of the
Place Audit

Community Design Lab

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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2.6 Drivers of Change and Guiding Issues

Based on the background work carried out as part of this project,
a number of key issues and drivers of change have been identified.
They have been summarised as follows:

The heritage of Talbot, including but not limtied to the historic
urban form, heritage buildings and streetscapes, needs to be
protected and enhanced as Talbot grows.

The provision of sewerage to the township is the key driver of
change.

New development will need to be sympathetic to the character The town has a limited commercial offer. A supermarket and

of the town. Change will need to be carefully managed. pharmacy are currently absent.

Talbot’s population is stable and ageing, but new development Provide an attractive alternative to larger towns and ensure
could change the demographic mix. housing remains affordable.

The World Heritage bid of Central Victorian Goldfields, if Change in Talbot will need to be planned in relation to bushfire
successful, could have a significant impact. and flood risk.

MOVEMENT ACCOMMODATING GROWTH

Better connecting the town core to the recreation reserve and Keeping the town compact, but also identifying the opportunity
supporting walking and cycling across the town. for some new adjoining areas, if and when the need arises.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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VISION
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A vision statement has been prepared for Talbot.

The vision statement has been shaped by 2 stages of consultation
with the Talbot community.

The vision states a preferred future for the town, and seeks to
encapsulate the needs and aspirations of the community.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Talbot offers a peaceful respite from city life. The community
is growing slowly and steadily, with visitors and new resi-
dents enjoying the personality, charm and history of the town.
Locals both new and old put down deep roots, know their
neighbours and have a strong sense of pride in place.

The town has everything you need for a comfortable life
including sewerage, local doctors, a pharmacy, a choice of
places to eat, a small independently run supermarket and a

thriving monthly market. Local employment is limited; most lo-

cals commute or drive to nearby towns to work using regular

public transport services or they take advantage of improved
internet and phone connection to work remotely.

Walking around the township, you will discover its historic
core with small houses, both new and old, knitted together
tightly on small original lots that extend the look & feel of
Scandinavian Crescent. Larger surrounding properties in
the township have spacious gardens with wide views of big
skies, sunsets and the landscape. Contemporary homes and
well-preserved historic architecture strike a sensitive balance
between past and present.

Both young families and those looking to enjoy retirement will
find a welcoming and secure place to call home in Talbot. It
has a thriving kindergarten and primary school and accessible
housing for people on fixed or lower incomes. Older residents
are included sacially and economically and the town has high
walkability and many targeted community programs for both
the young and old alike. It also boasts dedicated housing with
universal design that allows residents to age in place.

Full of trees and birds, Talbot is known for its beautiful gar-
dens and landscapes, with shady streets, community projects
and green backyards. It is surrounded by farmland, & natural
iron-bark and grassy woodland. It is a place of beautiful jour-
neys, with forest paths, cobblestone lanes & myriad walking &
cycling paths.

Talbot tells the stories of its past and present; celebrating the
living culture of Dja Dja Wurrung people and preserving its
Gold Rush past. Making a home in Talbot is an invitation to be
part of a living history, and join a friendly, well-knit community.
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The outdoor space at Market Square

St Michael and All Angels Anglican Church
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4.1 About the Elements & Future Urban
Structure

About the elements

This section outlines the Structure Plan for Talbot, which identifies
a roadmap for the future planning of the townn. It is broken into a
number of key elements which each have a range of objectives,
strategies and actions to assist with implementation. Each
element has been informed by the overarching directions provided
by the Vision.

The key elements are outlined as follows:
= Land Use

= Housing Choice, Diversity & Affordability
= Character, Heritage & Design

= Tourism & Economic Development

= Access & Movement

= Community Infrastructure

= Environment & Landscape

= Environmental Risks & Climate Change

= Physical Services & Infrastructure

The structure of each section is as follows:

= Overview: provides either an overview/summary, or discussion
by theme, of the key issues of each element to assist with
understanding the topic and approach taken.

= Objectives: identifies high level statements that provide
direction for each Structure Plan element.

= Strategies: outlines key ways in which the objectives should
be achieved.

= Actions: sets out key tangible actions to implement the
strategies such as further Council works, Strategic Projects and
planning scheme changes, etc.

Future Urban Structure
The overall Structure Plan is outlined in Figure 5.

The key physical elements of the Structure Plan are outlined
below:

= Direct new housing to areas within the existing Township Zone,
and rezone to either the Neighbourhood Residential Zone or
General Residential Zone.

Identify a medium term potential growth area (‘Area B'), and
rezone if and when needed.

Identify two longer term potential growth areas (Area D - RLZ
part” and ‘Area P’), and rezone if and when needed.

= The Township boundary can be expanded in the medium term
to include ‘Area B’ if rezoned. The Township boundary can be
expanded further in the longer term to include ‘Area D’ (RLZ
part) and ‘Area P’, should those Areas be rezoned.

Identify a Commercial Town Centre area and rezone that area to
a Commercial 1 Zone.

Create a new northern open space corridor in the vicinity of
areas subject to flood risk, with the potential to link that open
space to the Back Creek Corridor

Investigate the development of a Nature Trail along Back Creek.

Investigate the relocation of the Transfer Station.

Continue implementing further construction of footpaths, and
undertake on-road painting of heritage bicycle trails. Better
connect the core of the town to the recreation reserve.

Strategies and Actions relating to other matters such as heritage
controls, and design controls for new development are discussed
in the relevant sub-sections of the Structure Plan.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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4.2 Land Use

Population and Dwelling Growth

State Planning Policy requires that local governments plan to
accomodate projected population growth over at least a 15- year
period and provide clear directions on locations where growth
should occur. Residential land supply is to be considered on a
municipal basis.

A 2019 Residential Land Supply and Demand Assessment (by
Spatial Economics) found that in aggregate, there is 18-25 years
of zoned urban residential land supply in Central Goldfields Shire.
However there is a mismatch between supply and demand
geographically - Maryborough is where demand is concentrated
(based on historical trends) but most capacity is in other
townships.

According to ABS census data, Central Goldfields Shire population
increased by 490 people between 2016 and 2021 with an average
annual growth rate of 0.8%. Talbot's population growth was
relatively modest in the context of the Shire over that recent five
year period, at an annual rate of 0.5% (from 442 to 452). There
were 288 private dwellings in Talbot as of 2021.

In Talbot, historical growth has been neglible due largely to the
lack of sewereage. The town is seeing relatievly little building
activity. With the proposed introduction of sewerage to Talbot,
the potential for more significant growth and development is
unlocked.

Analysis by SGS Economics and Planning in its ‘Housing and
Commercial Technical Assessment” identified four housing growth
scenarios for Central Goldfields Shire and Talbot, as reproduced
below:

Scenario Shire-wide | Share of Additional | Total Additional
AAGR growth for | dwellings | Dwellings | dwellings
(dwellings) | Talbot required 2051 per year
2020-2051 2021-2051
1VIF19 0.6% b5 343 2
2 Recent | 0.9% 4% 86 374 3
Growth
3 Big 1.1% 435 723 15
Melbourne
16%
4 Post- 1.5% 631 919 21
Covid

The first three scenarios assume the growth rates identified in
the 2020 Population, Housing & Residential Strategy (based in the
2019 Supply and Demand Assessment). VIF19 and Recent growth
scenarios are based on historical trends and State Government
forecasts and anticipate relatively modest growth for the shire

in the future. The ‘Big Melbourne’ scenario envisions somewhat
greater growth in larger nearby centres.

The fourth scenario (post-COVID) builds on the these assumpitions
and factors in additional growth due to entrenched post-COVID
pull factors and strategic interventions that unlock additional

land for development, ultimately resulting a growth rate less

than but more closely resembling that seem in the nearby Mount
Alexander LGA.

The scenarios also anticipate the share of growth across
different townships of the Shire. The first two scenarios assume
a spread of development broadly reflecting historical trends

(i.e. growth being concentrated in Maryborough), while the two
scenarios with higher growth assume higer shares of Shire-wide
development in Talbot and Carisbrook.

The Structure Plan has been prepared to respond to the ‘upper’
scenario (Scenario 4), which suggests an additional 631 dwellings
between 2020-2051, requiring around 21 additional dwellings per
year.

For the purpose of identifying a population size of Talbot at 2051,
assuming an average household size of 1.9 (which may vary over
time), and a total number of dwellings of between 723 and 919
(reflecting the two higher scenarios), a rounded population of
between 1374 - 1746 could be anticipated.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Housing - Existing Capacity

There were 288 private dwellings in Talbot as of 2021. There
are numerous vacant allotments (across a range of sizes) in
the township, including some very small lots from 19th century
subdivisions. Development and subdivision within the Talbot
township is largely restricted at present by a lack of existing
sewerage system.

Currently, a minimum site area (5,000sgm) is needed to provide
for onsite sewerage disposal (with that size including a sufficiently
sized effluent field, dwelling, garden, sufficient setbacks of the
fields to boundaries, etc).

According to the Population, Housing and Residential Settlement
Strategy (adopted May 2020), fifteen (15) additional dwellings is
considered the realistic unsewered capacity for Talbot township.
This is based on findings from within the Residential Land Supply
and Demand Assessment which informed that Strategy.

The assessment identified that in March 2019, zoned
broadhectare lot supply in Talbot was 15 lots, while there was 39
vacant urban lots.

Hansen Partnership undertook an assessment of future
development capacity of existing township zone areas in the
event that they were sewered. That estimate made a number
of assumptions, which are detailed in the Talbot Structure

Plan Technical Assessments document, including that future
subdivision would be limited to creating lots with a minimum
subdivision size of 400sgm. Under the sewered scenario, it was
estimated that an additional 718 lots could hypothetically be
developed in the existing Township Zone area. That figure is an
estimate only and does not address the range of considerations
which could reduce the effective capacity in some existing
Township Zone areas.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Housing - Future Approach

Given the significant potential for infill development within
existing Township zone boundaries if sewerage is provided, it is
considered that infill development within the Township zone area
should be supported as the priority to meet housing demand.

SGS Economics and Planning have identified in its assessment,
that optimistic growth rates such as that suggested by the ‘Post-
Covid" Scenario are unlikely to be achieved given existing lot and
ownership fragmentation in the township, without orderly infill
development and potentially, the addition of modest, adjacent
town extensions in conventional or low-density residential
precincts. It is noted that the forecasts may be subject to
potential refinements to finalise demand forecasts.

Accordingly, it is appropriate for this Structure Plan to consider
and identify potential areas for residential expansion, if and when
needed.

In identifying areas for future urban expansion and
consequentially rezoning, a range of matters have been

considered, including but not limited to:

= \Whether the land is contiguous to the existing urban boundary
and has the ability to be integrated into the existing road
network.

= Current zoning of the land.

= Proximity to existing services and facilities.

= Capacity to be serviced by physical infrastructure.

= The level of bushfire risk.

= The presence of clear, defined and defensible boundaries.
= Slope, drainage or flooding constraints.

= The need to avoid impacts on ecological values.

= The need to avoid impacts on high quality agricultural land.
= Potential for visual impact on main road entries.

= Desirability for residential use.

= Proximity to incompatible uses.

= Whether development will provide for market choice.
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Housing Growth Potential in Different Areas

Different areas across the existing Township Zone and in the
immediate surrounds were identified to help faciliate a finer grain
analysis of housing growth potential across Talbot (refer to Figure

6 on page 28). Directions fore each area are provided below.

Area A

= This is an area west of Ballarat - Maryborough Road, comprising
property not currently within the Township Zone. It has poor
connectivity to the main settlement area.

= |tis located in an area that the Bushfire Assessment prepared
for the Structure Plan identified as being at the middle to higher
end of bushfire risk in Victoria (Landscape type 3 area).That
assessment recommends that new subdivisions to enable
growth be directed to land east of Ballarat-Maryborough Road
(described as Landscape type 2 areas).

= Not suitable for urban expansion.

Area B

= This area is not within the township boundary and is currently
zoned for rural living. It benefits from close proximity to the
train station and Primary School.

= There is some existing development on Barkly Street and off
Potters Lane. The area includes some larger lots.

= A drainage line runs east-west along Potters Lane and a small
EVC is located near the train line.

= Includes a small section with a high Strategic biodiversity value
(from desktop analysis).

= This area is considered a logical extension to the township to
the north east. Potential to rezone in the medium term to GRZ
or NRZ to support resubdivision of larger lots to support town
growth.

= Rezoning is subject to determining the impacts of an EPA buffer
from the Landfill and Transfer Station, potential relocation of the
Transfer Station, and further investigations including potential
land contamination, ecology and bushfire risk.

= Coordination of orderly subdivision of this area via a
Development Plan Overlay would be required.

Area C

= This is an area not currently within the township boundary,
located east of the railway line, and north-east of the township.
The area is within the Farming Zone. The railway line presents a
barrier to town centre access.

= The area is close the existing Talbot Transfer Station and Landfill,
and may be impacted by the presence of an EPA buffer. Further
investigation into potential land contamination risk required.

= Not suitable for urban expansion at this point in time. In the
longer term, review the growth potential again.

Area D

= This is an area to the east of the railway line, and beyond Area
E. It is not currently within the township zone boundary.

= |t is largely within the Rural Living Zone, with some land in the
Farming Zone.

= Presence of some EVCs and a large section with moderate
Strategic biodiveristy value (from desktop analysis)

= Potential longer term opportunity for the Rural Living Zone part
of this area to be a secondary growth area (after Area B).

= Potential longer term rezoning options for the Rural Living Zone
part of this area could include the GRZ or NRZ and/or a Low
Density Residential Zone (LDRZ).

= Potential longer term rezoning is subject to addressing a range
of issues including the impacts of an EPA buffer from the Landfill
and Transfer Station, and the findings of further investigations
such as potential land contamination, ecology, and bushfire risk.

= |n the event of a longer term rezoning being supported,
coordination of the orderly development of the area via a
Development Plan Overlay is recommended.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Figure 6: Areas reviewed in relation to growth potential
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Area E

= This area is within the township boundary. Lots are largely
within the Township Zone except for some TRZ1 and two small
RLZ parcels.

= |t is to the east of the railway line. It includes part of the Bond
Street entry route to the township.

= Considered to have potential for further subdivision and
redevelopment of existing lots if sewered.

= Rezone to either GRZ or NRZ except for the RLZ parcels at
township gateway from Ballarat-Maryborough Road.

Area F

= This area includes the historic core of the township, and a
number of significant heritage buildings.

= There are a number of small lots, particularly along
Scandanavian Crescent. This may limit future subdivision
potential, although subdivision on some lots may be possible.

= New development will be possible but will need to carefully
respond to the sensitive heritage context in this area.

= Rezone in part to either NRZ or GRZ and Town Centre to
C1Z (Refer to the discussion under the ‘Town Centre and
Commercial sub-section on page 31 in relation to proposed
C12).

Area G

= This area comprises a section of the existing township generally
between the Railway Station and Scandanavian Lane. Includes
a historic threatened fauna record.

= Considered to have potential for further subdivision and
redevelopment of existing lots if sewered.

= Rezone to either GRZ or NRZ.

Area H

= Alarge area located to the south of the town core and abutting
Ballarat-Maryborough Road. It comprises a significant amount of
vacant or underutilised land.

= Highly visible location on main road and at town gateway which
provides a rural setting for historic core. Includes a small area
subject to flooding (per updated flood mapping) to the north-
west portion of the area close to Camp Street. Includes an EVC
area and a section with moderate Strategic biodiversity value
(from desktop analysis), and historic threatened fauna record.

= A small number of properties are within an area of Aboriginal
cultural heritage sensitivity. Development potential of land
within that area would need to be further reviewed.

Considered to have potential for further subdivision and
redevelopment of existing lots if sewered. Rezone to either GRZ
or NRZ.

Coordination of orderly subdivision of area would be

required, with consideration of access, provision of physical
infrastructure, flood risk and protection of ecological values.
A Development Plan Overlay should be applied to most of the
area.

Area |

= Includes properties fronting Scandanavian Crescent west of the
Railway line, through to Fraser Street and Star Street.

= Considered to have potential for further subdivision and
redevelopment of existing lots if sewered. Rezone to either GRZ
or NRZ.

= Development will need to be responsive to highly visible location
at entry to historic core.

Area J

= Located north of Camp Street, between Ballarat-Maryborough
Road and Lansdowne Street.

= Within an area of Aboriginal cultural heritage sensitivity. Also
includes a small area subject to flooding (per updated flood
mapping) near Camp Street. Visual sensitivity adjacent to
Ballarat-Maryborough Road.

= Considered to have potential for further subdivision and
redevelopment of existing lots if sewered. Rezone to either GRZ
or NRZ.

= Development would need to be sensitive to highly exposed
location and minor flood risk. Development potential within the
area of Aboriginal cultural heritage sensitivity would need to be
further reviewed.

Area K

= Located to the north of the town core, and dissected by Ballarat
Street North. Existing subdivision pattern includes a number of
smaller legacy lots.

= Development will need to be responsive to visually prominent
Icoation as northern gateway to historic core.

= Considered to have potential for further subdivision and
redevelopment of existing lots if sewered. Rezone to either GRZ
or NRZ.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Area L

= Located at the northern edge of the Township zone area.
Includes a small area subject to flooding (per updated
flood mapping). Includes a section with moderate strategic
biodiversity value (from desktop analysis), and potential
threatened flora record.

= Considered to have potential for further subdivision and
redevelopment of existing lots if sewered. Rezone to GRZ or
NRZ.

= Rezoning is subject to resolving the impact from any EPA buffer
from the existing Talbot Transfer Station and Landfill on this
area.

= Coordination of orderly subdivision of area would be required,
with consideration of access, provision of open space corridor,
provision of physical infrastructure, and ecological assessment.
A Development Plan Overlay should be applied.

Area M

= This area is located outside the township boundary, to the north
of Potters Lane (and east of Area 0). It is within the Farming
Zone. A large parcel in this area has been developed with an
Olive grove.

= Part of the area is within an area of Aboriginal cultural heritage
sensitivity. A large part of the Area is also within an area where
the introduction of bushfire hazards should be avoided.

= The area is to the west of the existing Talbot Transfer Station
and Landfill, and may be impacted by the presence of an EPA
buffer.

= Not recommended for urban expansion.

Area N

= Located east of the Train Station, but with no nearby access
across train line. Not currently within the Township boundary,
and zoned Farming Zone.

= The area is to the south/south-east of the existing Talbot
Transfer Station and Landfill, and may be impacted by the
presence of an EPA buffer. Further investigation into potential
land contamination risk required.

= Review growth potential again in the longer term.

B[l Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Area O
= Largely within the Rural Living Zone, with some Farming Zone.

= Within an area of relatively higher bushfire risk. Includes a small
area subject to flooding (per updated flood mapping). Partly
within an area of Aboriginal cultural heritage sensitivity.

= Not recommended for urban expansion.

Area P
= Within the Rural Living Zone.

= Presence of some EVCs and large section with moderate
Strategic biodiveristy value (from desktop analysis).

= Potential longer term opportunity for this Area to be a secondary
growth area (after Area B).

= Potential longer term rezoning options could include the GRZ or
NRZ and/or a Low Density Residential Zone (LDRZ).

= |f the GRZ or NRZ were contemplated, those zones would likely
be more appropriate for the northern part of Area P, than the
remainder of Area P

= A potential longer term rezoning must be subject to findings
from further investigations, including land capability, ecology,
bushfire risk, visual impact and any buffer distances needed
from the Timberyard on Biltons Lane.

= |n the event of a longer term rezoning being supported,
coordination of the orderly development of the area via a
Development Plan Overlay is recommended.
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The Township Zone, General Residential Zone and
Neighbourhood Residential Zone

While the Township Zaone provides flexibility in a small town
context, it is not generally considered to be aligned with a move
towards a clearly defined town structure in Talbot, comprised of a
legible and defined town centre surrounded by residential areas.

The application of either the Neighbourhood Residential Zone or
General Residential Zone to existing Township Zone areas and
also to ‘Area B’ (in the short-medium term) is proposed by the
Structure Plan. The use of only one of either the NRZ or GRZ is
recommended, not both.

The selection of either the GRZ or NRZ should be consistent with
the directions provided in Planning Practice Note 91: Using the
Residential Zones.

Minimum Subdivision Size

In relation to ‘greenfield development’, the Talbot Urban Design
Guidelines (Michael Smith & Associates, 2016) included as a
principle the setting of a 400sgm minimum lot size for new
residential development.

That minimum lot size is considered to be a suitable guide to
utilise in defining an appropriate minimum lot size for applications
to subdivide land in Talbot, if used with other design-focused
controls. It is noted that 400sgm is a minimum, and applicants
can pursue larger new lots in response to market demand.

A 400sgm lot minimum subdivision size should be supported
across areas that transition from the Township Zone to either the
General Residential Zone or Neighbourhood Residential Zone, and
potentially ‘Area B’ should it be rezoned. A minimum subdivision
size could be applied via a Design and Development Overlay
Schedule or via a Schedule to the Neighbourhood Residential
Zone.

There may also be an opportunity to provide some discretion to
allow a variation to the subdivision size requirement, for small
scale unit developments.

A 2000sgm (0.2ha) minimum lot subdivision size is provided in
the Low Density Residential Zone (if reticulated sewerage is
provided), which in the longer term is an option for ‘Area D" and
‘Area P".

These minimum lot sizes for subdivision should be subject to
review by a Bushfire Planning Expert.

Township Boundary

The Township boundary can be expanded in the medium term

to include ‘Area B’ if rezoned. The Township boundary can be
expanded further in the longer term to include ‘Area D" (RLZ part)
and ‘Area P’, should those areas be rezoned.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Commercial & Town Centre

SGS Economics and Planning (2022) has estimated that within the
Township Zone areas of Talbot there is approximately 3,430sqm of
active commercial space (albeit with ‘part time" opening hours).

Active commercial sites are located across Central Talbot,
generally concentrated around Camp Street, Ballarat Street,

and Scandanavian Crescent. They are single-storey, historical
buildings. There are also a number of these buildings that are not
currently in use and have been converted to dwellings, or remain
vacant.

Types of active commercial space uses include accommodation,
dining (cafes) and retail shops. The post-office doubles as a
general store, servicing day-to-day needs of the township. Two
local markets also run in central Talbot once a month. The vision
statement for Talbot also identifies a future desire for a pharmacy
in the town.

Maryborough and Clunes are the nearest towns where
Supermarket shopping is available.The potential future residential
growth in Talbot should be supported by additional retail
floorspace in town, allowing residents to meet more needs locally.

SGS Economics and Planning have analysed the potential future
retail needs of Talbot, drawing on comparisons with small towns
of Harcourt and Newstead. Their analysis suggests that a small
supermarket of 500-600sqm of floorspace, potentially supported
by 2-3 smaller shops (of approximately 100-300sgm total), could
be anticipated once the town has accommodated a further 250-
300 dwellings in approximately 15-20 years' time (assuming
approximately 15-20 dwellings a year).

The Structure Plan presents an opportunity to clearly identify a
Town Centre in Talbot. The area identified is considered to be
relatively compact, to improve vibrancy, and support walkability.
A potential small scale supermarket and 2-3 additional smaller
shops would ideally locate within the town centre, potentially
within a converted former shop building, to avoid the possibility of
‘out-of-centre’ development undermining the town centre in the
long term.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

It is considered appropriate to rezone a ‘town centre’ area (as
identified on the Land Use Plan), to the Commercial 1 Zone to
encourage the consolidation of commercial uses in that area, and
to manage the intrusion of non-commercial uses.

The use of the Neighbourhood Residential Zone or General
Residential Zone in the areas surrounding the town centre will
prevent retail premises (other than Covenience Shop, Food
and drink premises, market, and plant nursery). Uses such

as a medical centre (subject to conditions) and home based
businesses would however be permitted as of right.

Other Land Use Directions

As towns grows, the sustainable management of waste becomes
increasingly important. In addition, these types of facilities are
often associated with planning controls which seek to reduce

the amount of residential development in proximity in order

to minimise land use conflicts and amenity issues for those
residents. Talbot's Transfer Station is currently located on public
land to the north east of the township. The location of this
transfer station should be reviewed, with potential relocation
considered to avoid impacting upon growth potential.

There will also be a need to further investigate to confirm the
EPA buffer requirements to the Transfer Station and former
Landfill site.

The location of a potential sewerage treatment plant to service
the town will also need to be resolved, with a buffer applied to
manage potential off-site amenity impacts.

The approach to development potential in Rural Living Zone areas
should be reviewed as part of a municipal-wide Rural Living

Strategy.

Potential Anomalies

It is recommended that the application of the Transport Zone
along the railway corridor, particularly at the corner of Bond Street
and Oxford Street, be reviewed with the relevant authority to
confirm its present accuracy.

Council should review Council-held properties to determine if the
current zoning is appropriate for current and potential future uses.
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01.1

01.2

01.3

01.4

01.5

To manage growth and development in Talbot in a
coordinated and sutainable manner that ensures
Talbot retains its character.

To ensure a sufficient amount of land is available for
residential development over the next 15 years.

To broaden the commercial offer in the township,
direct commercial uses to appropriate locations, and
identify a commercial town centre of Talbot.

To define a township boundary to consolidate
township growth around existing services and prevent
unsuitable expansion.

To ensure the zoning regime across Talbot is
appropriate for current and potential future land uses.

S1.1

S1.2

S1.3

S1.4

S1.5

$1.6

S1.7

S1.8

S1.9

$1.10

S1.11

$1.12

$1.13

$1.14

S1.15

$1.16

Encourage infill development on vacant lots within the
township boundary, as the first priority.

Support new residential development across the
township in areas to be rezoned to either GRZ or NRZ.

Support subdivision of larger lots within the township
boundary.

Support subdivision of land in GRZ or NRZ areas to a
minimum of 400sgm.

Support the provision of reticulated sewerage to
enable residential development.

Encourage the consolidation of existing very small lots
into larger allotments in GRZ or NRZ areas.

Consider rezoning identified potential future growth
areas (Area B, Area D - RLZ part, & Area P) if and
when needed, subject to further investigation.

Utilise the Development Plan Overlay where
appropriate to ensure coordinated and orderly
development.

Review the growth potential of Area C and Area N as
required.

Review the extent of Rural Living Zone land around
Talbot

Identify parts of Scandinavian Crescent and Camp
Street as the commercial town centre & rezone to C1Z.

Support the establishment of new businesses in
heritage shop buildings in the town centre.

Support appropriately located and designed proposals
for a small supermarket in the town centre.

Support commercial proposals in the town centre.

Contain growth within an identified township
boundary, that can be expanded to include
recommended areas for rezoning.

Review zoning anomalies across Talbot, and check the
zoning of Council-held properties.

Land Use Actions - over the page...
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A1.1

A1.2

Undertake the following zone changes:

= Rezone the Commercial Town Centre indicated on
the Land Use Plan to C1Z. Rezone remaining existing
Township Zone land to either a GRZ or NRZ.

= |n the medium term, consider rezoning ‘Area B’
to either the GRZ or NRZ if appropriate subject to
determing the impacts of an EPA buffer from the
Landfill and Transfer Station, potential relocation of
the Transfer Station, and further investigations
including potential land contamination, ecology, and
bushfire risk.

In the longer term, consider rezoning Area D’ (RLZ
part) to the GRZ, NRZ and/or LDRZ if appropriate,
subject to determing the impacts of an EPA
buffer from the Landfill and Transfer Station,
potential relocation of the Transfer Station, and
further investigations including potential land
contamination, ecology, and bushfire risk.

In the longer term, consider rezoning ‘Area P’ to the
GRZ, NRZ and/or LDRZ if appropriate, subject to
further investigations, including ecology and bushfire
risk, visual impact, and any buffer distances needed
from the Timberyard on Biltons Lane. If the GRZ or
NRZ were contemplated, those zones would likely
be more appropriate for the northern part of Area P
than the remainder of Area P

Undertake the following overlay changes:

= Apply a 400sgm minimum lot subdivision size via a
Design and Development Overlay to the future NRZ
or GRZ areas, or potentially via a Schedule to the
NRZ.

Apply a Development Plan Overlay to ‘Area L', and
most of Area ‘H’ to coordinate orderly development
in these areas, and require further assessments/
investigations.

= |n the medium term, consider applying a
Development Plan Overlay to ‘Area B', to coordinate
orderly development, and require further
assessments/investigations.

In the longer term, consider applying a Development
Plan Overlay to ‘Area D' (RLZ part) and ‘Area P, to
coordinate orderly development, and require further
assessments/ investigations.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

A13

A1.4

A15

A1.6

A1.7

A1.8

A1.9

A1.10

In the longer term, review the growth potential of
‘Area C', and ‘Area N, as required.

Include the township boundary in Local Policy

to provide certainty and clarity for future growth
opportunities and to ensure development avoids more
sensitive locations.

Review and expand the township boundary to include
growth areas if rezoned.

Review potential zoning anomalies and rectify where
appropriate.

Review the zoning of Council-held properties to
ensure zoning is appropriate for current and potential
future uses.

Undertake a Rural Land Strategy that includes a
review of RLZ areas around Talbot.

Monitor the rate of development after the provision of
sewerage infrastructure.

Include relevant objectives and strategies from this
structure plan element in a local policy relating to
Talbot, where appropriate.
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4.3 Housing Choice, Diversity &
Affordability

Overview

At present, more than 90% of the existing housing stock in Central
Goldfields Shire is comprised of single detached dwellings. This
type of housing is also observed to dominate across Talbot.
Greater housing diversity will likely be required to cater to different
housing needs of a larger Talbot, comprising both ‘existing” and
‘new’ residents.

Population growth in Talbot will increase the mix of people and
will influence the type and style of housing required to meet their
needs. A mix of housing options is important for young families,
first home owners and single and shared households

Consideration will also need to be given to the housing needs

of an ageing existing population in Talbot. Housing diversity is
particularly important for older people in the community who

may seek alternatives to the traditional family home as they age.
Being able to provide housing options, including smaller dwellings
or retirement/ aged care living, is very important to ensure that
people can “age in placé” and remain within their community.

An analysis of rent and mortgage repayments in Talbot and
Central Goldfields is provided in the Housing and Commerical
Technical Assessment prepared by SGS Economics and Planning.
This assessment found in relation to Talbot that:

= Median weekly rent in Talbot increased from $85 in 2011 to
$160in 2021,

= Median monthly mortgage repayments slightly decresaed
overall between 2011-2021 from $900 to $867.

= Households in Talbot are spending around 20% of their income
on weekly rent, or around 27% of their income on monthly
mortgages in 2021. This means that media household rent/
mortgage costs are currently within an acceptable range to
avoid housing stress on average (where 30% of a low-income
households income being spent on housing costs is generally
considered a threshold for experiencing housing stress).

It will be important to ensure that as Talbot grows, housing costs
remain relatively affordable for lower-income households.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

021

02.2

S2.1

S2.2

$2.3

S2.4

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

To encourage housing diversity to cater for different
housing needs.

To provide a greater level of affordable housing within
the township.

Support diverse housing typologies, and retirement /
aged care living at a scale, density and design that
respects the character and heritage qualities of the
town.

Support the development of good quality affordable
housing.

Support innovative housing models that increase the
mix of housing options, and respond to community
needs.

Encourage the development of housing that
incorporates Universal design and adaptable internal
dwelling design.

Advocate for the funding of affordable housing, in
Talbot, supported by findings from more detailed
analysis of Affordable Housing Needs.

Explore opportunities to use underutilised Council land
to provide affordable housing.

Include relevant objectives and strategies from this
element in a local policy relating to Talbot, where
appropriate.
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4.4 Character, Heritage & Design

Heritage

The heritage qualities of Talbot are a defining aspect of the town,
and any future growth must proceed in a manner that ensures
the careful protection of these qualities.

A Heritage QOverlay (H0208 - Talbot Heritage Area) covers the
township where the Township Zone applies (except for some

minor alignment differences), and some rural living zoned land
between Bond Street and Mt. Greenoch Road.

The Former Talbot Police Residence and Lock-Up at 19 Heales
Street is listed on the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) and
included in HO125. The Amherst Cemetery, approximately 2km
west of the township, is within HO132. There are also some
Victorian Heritage Inventory (VHI) sites across the town and in
the surrounds.

The heritage of Talbot has been documented comprehensively
in the Talbot and Clunes Conservation Study (Aitken, 1988).
That study made a range of recommendations for the future
conservation of the Talbot area.

The Central Goldfields Shire Heritage Review (Rowe and Jacabs,
2005) recommended that the existing Talbot Heritage Area
(HO208) be retained, and that objectives and policies for the area
should be prepared to support the conservation and management
of the area. The review also recommended that the analyses,
statement of significance, policies and recommendations outlined
in the Talbot and Clunes Conservation Study be used as a basis
for a local policy for the area. That review also made a range of
recommendations for the future conservation of the Talbot area,
(which were identified in the Talbot Structure Plan Technical
Assessments)

Note: Both the Talbot and Clunes Conservation Study (Aitken,
1988) and the Central Goldfields Shire Heritage Review (Rowe and
Jacobs, 2005) made a range of recommendations in relation to
Talbot and the Talbot heritage area which are not detailed in full in
this Structure Plan. Please refer to those respective documents for
full details.

It is recommended in this Structure Plan that specific heritage
design guidelines be prepared for H0208 by a Heritage
Professional. In addition, and despite the direction of the 2005
heritage review, it is considered now appropriate to review the
extent of HO208. The ‘blanket” nature in which H0208 has been
applied means that the overlay applies to a number of large
vacant lots within the township zone that have development
potential.. In the context of Talbot's future development, it will be
important to ensure that the level of heritage protection in place
is appropriate to protect heritage significance, but also does not
unreasonably inhibit development potential.

A potential conservation precinct in the core of Talbot was
proposed in the Talbot and Clunes Conservation Study (1988),
which could form the basis of a refined and reduced H0208
extent. It is recommended that heritage guidelines also

draw on the relevant guidance provided in the Talbot Urban
Design Guidelines (Michael Smith & Associates, 2016), where
appropriate.

Talbot is significant as one of the most intact small goldmining
towns in Victoria and Australia. The town contains a significant
number of buildings, sites and works relating to the period c.1860-
1930 which form the major attributes of the area. The significance
of the area Is especially enhanced by the relatively high number
of buildings from the period ¢.1860-75. The Government block
contains the most complete collection of buildings of any small
gold rush town in Victoria and one of the best precincts of modest
government buildings in Australia. Talbot is significant for the
manner in which geological factors influencing mining are reflected
in the street pattern still used as the major streets in the town. The
setting of the town is enhanced by the proximity of mining areas
on Back Creek, Rocky Flat, Mount Greenock and the Amherst
area. All these areas have a significant part in the development of
different phases of the town's history.

The Significance of Talbot - Talbot and Clunes Conservation Study
(Richard Aitken, 1988)

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Talbot Primary School

Former Primitive Methodist Church free Library Building
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Individually Significant Heritage Buildings

The Talbot and Clunes Conservation Study (Aitken, 1988) = Former Sub-Treasury, Heales Street

included a number of recommendations regarding buildings of » Former Presbyterian Church, Heales Manse, Bond Street
significance, including that a number of buildings be listed as of

State Significance or registered as part of the National Estate. » Former London Chartered Bank Coach House and Stables,

Aside from the listing on the Victorian Heritage Register of the eales Street

Former Talbot Police Residence and Lock-Up at 19 Heales Street, = St Michael's Church of England, Landsdowne Street
2 CEGEMEMCEL 0 B Mt regresse: = Talbot Railway Station Building, Railway Street

= Prince Alfred State School No.954 and former Common School,

It is important that additional protection is provided for buildings Rowe Street

of State or national significance in Talbot. The buildings
recommended for Victorian Heritage Register listing (original » Shop, Scandanavian Crescent
recommendation being for register of historic buildings and listing

_ ; = Former London Chartered Bank, Scandanavian Crescent
as part of the national estate) in the 1998 study are as follows:

= Former Talbot Gasworks, Whittakers Lane.

= Former Talbot Borough Hall, Ballarat Street

= A.N.A Hall, Corner Heales and Ballarat Streets

= Ramsay Shop and Residence, Ballarat Street North

= Former Bull and Mouth Hotel, Ballarat Street

= Former Burdess Residence, Barkly Street

= Former Presbyterian Manse, Bond Street

= Former Willox Residence, Bond Street

= Former Church of England Vicarage, Brougham Street

= Former Hopkins Residence, Camp Street

= Post and Telegraph Office, Corner Heales and Camp Street
= Free Library (Former Court of Petty Sessions), Camp Street
= Former Dowling Residence, Camp Street

= Former Primitive Methodist Church, Camp Street

= Shops and Residence, Corner Camp Street and Scandanvian Former Talbot Police Residence & Lock-Up
Crescent

= Former Elder Residence, Camp Street

= Former Camp Hotel, Camp Street
= Former Wesleyan Church, Camp Street

= Fire Brigade Engine House, Heales Street

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Urban Design & Character

Talbot's urban design is inextricably linked to the heritage of the
township. Heritage buildings are found throughout the township,
and the surrounding rural living areas retain some heritage assets.
While the townships subdivision pattern was established during
Victoria's gold rush era, subsequent changes meant that the
development potential of the settlement was never fully realised.
Today, many of the lots within the township, including within the
core, remain vacant.

Key attributes that contribute to the character of the township
are drawn out in the Talbot Urban Design Guidelines (Michael
Smith & Associates, 2016) These include:

= Development being characterised by wide front and rear
setbacks, with little to no encroachment, meaning that views
to trees, key buildings and the surrounding countryside are
maintained.

A number of laneways within the town contribute to a sense

of spaciousness, and a couple of laneways provide direct
corridor-like sight lines to key buildings and sites within the core
township historic precinct. The laneways with a combination of
diverse fence types, varied setbacks, overhanging trees, gravel
surfaces further add to the informaility and landscape character
within the historic core of the town.

Streetscape character plays an important role in perceptions
of the township character and materials such as bluestone and
brickwork alongside signage, vegetation, lighting, furniture and
picket and woven wire fences are important considerations.

The role of corner sites and vacant sites in the township is
discussed in the Guidelines, and the potential for unsympathetic
development on these sites (and adjoining laneways) will need to
be prevented as the town develops.

The Guidelines draw attention to a number of key views across
the township and to key buildings. These should be protected,
where possible. There are also other identified viewpoints to

the township, and areas of visual sensitivity (such as those
associated with key arrival corridors), which are not identified in
the Guidelines, that development should respond to. The Structure
plan proposes planting a low buffer of vegetation along Ballarat-

Maryborough Road to address foreground views.

Key entrances to Talbot are important in defining the character
and identity of the town. Existing signage and treatments at key
gateway entrances should be reviewed in accordance with the
guidelines, with an opportunity for new interventions at those
locations in consultation with the community.

I8 Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

The Talbot Urban Design Guidelines provide a series of principles
and performance criteria which address the design considerations
of development density, height, architectural detailing, materials
and colour, roofs, walls, windows, eaves and verandahs, energy
efficient buildings and sustainable design elements, open drainage
channels, greenfield development, view-lines, vegetation patterns,
pedestrian permability and comfort, entrances, active frontages,
gathering locations, furniture palettes and adaptive re-use of
buildings.

To ensure the design of future development is sympathetic to the
township’s character, new planning controls should be applied
across the township. The controls should use the Talbot Urban
Design Guidelines as a main reference point, drawing upon the
principles and performance criteria, with opportunity for further
refinement where of benefit.

The use of a Design and Development Overlay with tailored
schedules should be considered as a potential planning tool

to apply the level of design control and guidance needed to
sufficiently protect the various elements which contribute to the
town's character.

The Overlay would need to be applied in a manner that
complements requirements applied through HO208 (with
potentially refined extent), and directions provided by any
additional heritage guidance prepared. It should also consider
specifying different design requirements across different parts
of the township, such as designating different requirements for
areas directly adjoining the heritage core and more peripheral
residential areas.

Residential Zone schedules provide another approach to
potentially address built form design considerations, and should
also be explored during implementation of the Structure Plan.
However, they may lack the ability to address the range of design
considerations and details of importance in Talbot.

Note: Reference is made in the Talbot Urban Deisgn Guidelines

to the role played by vegetation in relation to the character of the
township. Vegetation across the township is considered in section
4.8 ‘Environment and Landscape’ of the Structure Plan.
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Aboriginal Cultural Heritage

The Dja Dja Wurrung are the Traditional Owners of the land on
which Talbot was established. The Dja Dja Wurrung Country Plan
(2014-2034) provides a source of information on the documented
cultural Values of the land on which Talbot has developed.

An area of Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Sensitivity runs along the
Back Creek Corridor, and applies to some parts of land currently
within the township (within Areas H, J & K), and some land
outside the township (within Areas A, M & 0). An Aboriginal
Maternity Tree is located over 2km north of the township and

is included in a heritage overlay (HO148) within the Central
Goldfields Shire Planning Scheme.

A Cultural Heritage Management Plan (CHMP) would be required
for a "high impact activity in an area of ‘cultural heritage
sensitivity’, with these terms defined in the Aboriginal Heritage
Regulations 2018.

The future growth of Talbot presents opportunities for greater
recognition of Aboariginal Cultural Heritage. Specific opportunities
could include a proposed trail along Back Creek with educational
and interpretive signage, and the embedding of local Aboriginal
language, design and names in public spaces across the
township, both subject to consultation with the Traditional
Owners.

Sustainable Building Design

New buildings in Talbot should be encouraged to incorporate a
range of sustainable building design initiatives, from the design
stage through to construction and operation.

Some ESD-related measures may be able to be included within
the proposed design-focused planning controls to be prepared for
the township. However, and noting that Central Goldfields does
not have a local ESD policy, ESD measures may instead need

to be encouraged for new development within any new local
planning policy for Talbot, if possible.

One sustainable building design issue of particular relevance to
Talbot, is the tension between the installation of solar panels
to support renewable energy generation and the protection of
heritage values.

The Talbot Urban Design Guidelines (Michael Smith & Associates,
2016), suggest that:

= Solar panels must not overhang the roof edge,
= Panels should be in simple rectangular banks, not staggered, and

= Solar panels are discouraged on frontages to heritage buildings
visible from the street(s) or along a significant view-line.

The last suggested point may compromise the ability for
properties to generate energy and should be treated as

discretionary, depending on the ability of the property to
accomodate panels or elsewhere.

Recent changes to the Heritage Overlay Schedule in Victoria
allow Councils to ‘schedule-out” solar energy system controls, in
order to support renewable generation and associated emissions
reduction. This should be considered for the Talbot Area (HO208).

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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03.1

03.2

03.3

03.4

S3.1

S3.2

S3.3

S3.4

S3.5

S3.6

S3.7

S3.8

S3.9

To protect and enhance the valued attributes and
heritage of Talbot that contribute to its character.

To protect Aboriginal Cultural Heritage.

To support new development that is sustainably
designed.

To provide a sense of arrival to Talbot along key routes
through defined gateways.

Ensure extensions and additions to heritage places,
and development within heritage precincts and
adjoining heritage places, is sympathetic to the
heritage significance and contributory elements.

Provide clear guidelines for heritage buildings,
addressing adaptive reuse, colour schemes, signage,
demolition and new buildings and works.

Ensure the Heritage Overlay is appropriately applied to
identified heritage assets and precincts, and avoid the
unnecessary demolition of significant heritage places
and places with contributory significance.

Ensure aboriginal cultural heritage is protected

and recognised and that any new development,
particularly in greenfield sites, is in accordance with
the requirements of the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006
and the Aboriginal Heritage Regulations 2018.

Celebrate aboriginal cultural heritage through
educational and interpretive signage along Back
Creek, and the embedding of local Aboriginal
languge, design and names in public spaces across
the township, both subject to consultation with the
Traditional Owners.

Ensure the the design of future development is
sympathetic to the township’s character, by preparing
new planning controls applied across the township,
including relevant content in new local planning policy.

Review and improve existing signage and entrance
treatments at key gateways, in accordance with the
Talbot Urban Design Guidelines (2016).

Encourage sustainable building design in new
development across the township.

Support low level planting as a buffer along sections
of Ballarat- Maryborough Road (eastern side), subject
to bushfire risk review.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

$3.10

A3.1

A3.2

A3.3

A3.4

A3.5

A3.6

A3.7

A3.8

A3.9

Support the additional protection of identified
significant heritage places.

Prepare Heritage Design Guidelines for HO208 and
review the extent of the existing boundaries of the
heritage overlay. Implement the Heritage Design
Guidelines and an updated HO208 extent into the
Central Goldfields Planning Scheme.

Consider ‘scheduling-out” solar energy system
controls in the Heritage Overlay Schedule for HO208.

Submit identified places for inclusion on the Victorian
Heritage Register.

Develop and apply new planning controls to the
township to ensure the design of future development
is sympathetic to the township’s character. Use

the Talbot Urban Design Guidelines as a main
reference point. Implement the planning controls
into the planning scheme, potentially via Design

and Development Overlay Schedules, or other tools
if necessary. Ensure local planning policy includes
content to support this aim, as necessary.

Include the encouragement of ESD measures or
initiatives including, (but not limited to):
- Energy efficiency

- Permeability & stormwater
- Water efficiency
- Waste Management

within any local policy or design focused planning
controls prepared for Talbot, as appropriate.

Undertake low level buffer planting along sections of
Ballarat-Maryborough Road (eastern side), subject to
bushfire risk review.

Undertake a review of existing entrance treatments
at key entrance gateways, in accordance with

the Talbot Urban Design Guidelines (2016), and

in consultation with the community. Deliver the
improvements.

Seek to incorporate educational and interpretative
signage in the design of the nature trail along Back
Creek, subject to consultation with Traditional
Owners.

Develop a project to embed local Aboriginal language,
design and names in public spaces across the
township, subject to consultation with Traditional
Owners.



TALBOT DRAFT STRUCTURE PLAN

TALBOT DRAFT =
— ‘“--‘_H__HH_H—%___

STRUCTURE PLAN
Character, Heritage &
Design

thot Primary
*Sefaoi

—_——

19aNg UeLudeyd

\ | Taibot Soldiers | <A
o~ o Memtorial Fark

|

V4
pe
i
£
4
|
/|
/
4
- Mﬁ‘}.ﬂr{‘a Roag
Project Ref 22.0403
Dwg No.: UDD-001
Scale 8,000 @A4
Date: 08.05.23
Revision A

Views Across Low Planter Treatment
(subject to bushfire
risk assessment)

— — Conservation Precinct Significant Vistas within
| in 1988 Conservation "4 Existing Township Boundary Open Land
—-) \?jterg]?o[i%gilr?t%n | | Cultural Sensitivity
Heritage Overlay (HOZ08) Public Open Space
- Extent to be reviewed (Current & Proposed
=) Proposed Open Space | gy \/Line Trainline

|
= = Study
Strong view cone
< to ma?ntaiﬂ
E = J Corridor {Indicative)
Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

|
f, J Primary Gateway
‘ Recommended to VHR
Visual Sensitivity

‘ Existing on VHR

Legend
Township Boundary - Fotential to
be modified if potential growth
areas are rezoned. Review as

needed.

Figure 8: Character, Heritage & Design



TALBOT DRAFT STRUCTURE PLAN

4.5 Tourism & Economic Development

Heritage

The existing appearance of the town and its heritage fabric is
fundamental to retaining and growing tourism in Talbot.

Without maintenance or repair, there is a risk that some heritage
buildings across the town may gradually deteriorate. The process
of maintenance and repair can be costly, and existing efforts to
seek funding to support these activities should continue to be
pursued.

Should the bid for the World Heritage listing of the Central
Victorian Goldfields be successful, Talbot would potentially stand
to benefit from the resulting expected increase in tourst visitation

to the Shire.

Signage

Capturing passing trade is understood to be an increasingly
important source of business for local businesses. Promotional
and wayfinding signage can play a critical role in attracting people
to stop and spend in town. Opportunities to improve existing or
add new appropriately designed signage, or generally beautify

key town entrance points should be reviewed and improved in
accordance with the direction provided in the Talbot Urban Design
Guidelines (2016), and in consultation with the community.

The current provision of wayfinding and tourist signage across the
town, including between the train station and town, should also

be reviewed to ensure it is suitable.

Markets, Events and Festivals

The Talbot Farmer’s market and Talbot Town Hall market attract
significant visitor numbers. Expansion and development potential
of Farmer’s Market is however understood to be limited due to
resourcing capacity. There is an opportunity to explore developing
complementary/aligned ancillary event(s) to the Talbot Farmers’
Market which do not cause resourcing issues.

Another potential opportunity to explore is the development of
unique arts and culture events, and small festivals, which could
also be a significant attractor. It will be important to ensure
that such events or festivals are sufficiently unique and do not
compete with events and festivals in nearby towns.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Tourist Routes

Including Talbot is part of a trail or a touring route concept in
conjunction with other towns in the Shire or surrounding Shires, is
another opportunity warranting investigation.

Two regional cycling trails, the Ballarat — Maryborough Heritage
Trail and the Talbot Heritage trail, pass through Talbot, and greater
regional promotion of these trails could bengfit the township.

There is also an opportunity to explore the potential for rail-related
tourism (including heritage trains, or the like).

Accommodation

It will be important to ensure that a sufficient and diverse supply
of tourist accommaodation is available in Talbot into the future.
Tourist accommodation should be generally small-scale and

appropriate to the Town's character and setting.
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04.1

04.2

S4.1

S4.2

S4.3

4.4

S4.5

S4.6

S4.7

S4.8

S4.9

$4.10

S4.11

To support existing tourist attractors, and to
encourage new tourism uses, development and
activities which are suited to the character of the
township.

To provide for sufficient accomodation options.

Support the ongoing operation of the two markets
within Talbot.

Investigate the potential for complementary/aligned
ancillary event(s) to the markets which avoid
resourcing capacity constraints.

Encourage opportunities for new unique arts and
cultural events, and small festivals.

Support increased use of the heritage cycling trails
which pass through Talbot.

Investigate tourism opportunities where Talbot is part
of a trail or a touring concept in conjunction with other
towns in the Shire,

Investigate the potential for rail-related tourism.

Support the bid for World Heritage Listing of the
Central Victorian Goldfields.

Ensure heritage assets across the township are well-
maintained

Review and improve existing promotional signage
at key entrance gateways, and wayfinding signage
across the township, in accordance with the Talbot
Urban Design Guidelines (2016).

Encourage tourist/visitor accommodation including
bed and breakfasts and other small-scale
accommodation in the town.

Ensure any new development associated with tourist/
visitor accommaodation is sensitively designed and
appropriate to the town’s character.

Ad1

A4.2

A4.3

Ad.4

A4.5

A4.6

A4.7

A4.8

Explore developing complementary/aligned ancillary
event(s) to the markets which avoid resourcing
capacity constraints.

Investigate tourism opportunities where Talbot is part
of a trail or a touring concept in conjunction with other
towns in the Shire, or opportunities in the form of
unique arts and cultural events and small festivals.

Contribute to the greater promotion of the Ballarat —
Maryborough Heritage Trail and the Talbot Heritage
trail.

Continue to support the bid for World Heritage Listing
of the Central Victorian Goldfields.

Explore the potential for rail-related tourism (including
heritage trains, or the like).

Continue to advocate for further funding to restore
and maintain heritage assets across the township.

Undertake a review of existing promotional signage
at key entrance gateways, and wayfinding signage
across the township in accordance with the Talbot
Urban Design Guidelines (2016) and in consultation
with the community. Deliver the improvements.

Implement objectives and strategies from this
element of the structure plan into the planning
scheme, where appropriate to do so.
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4.6 Access and Movement

This section outlines the key access and movement
considerations of the Structure Plan. It has been informed in
large part by Council's Integrated Transport Strategy, Walking and
Cycling Strategy, and project investigations.

Key Road Access

The Ballarat to Maryborough Road provides the main access to
Talbot, from Maryborough to the north, and Clunes/ Creswick and
Ballarat to the south.

The key entry gateways into town from the Ballarat to
Maryborough Road are via Camp Street, Ballarat Street North

and Bond Street, although access via other streets is also
possible. Avoca Road and Lexton-Talbot Road provide access from
destinations to the west of Talbot.

Majora Road provides access to the township from Red Lion and
Majorca. While not a relatively major gateway or primary entry
route to the township, Majora Road and Oxford Street (which
Majorca Road becomes on arrival to town) is only single lane, and
may need to be upgraded to accomodate two lanes in the future.

Road Network

The existing road network in Talbot comprises key sealed roads
including Scandinavian Crescent, Camp Street, Ballarat Street
North and Prince Alfred Street that take , other local roads (both
sealed and unsealed), and a number of unsealed lanes.

Better maintenance of unsealed roads and laneways will need to
occur across the township.

Future growth and subdivision in some areas of the township
will likely require the formation of new public roads (with
accompanying footpaths/nature strip). Existing unbuilt roads in
road reserves can logically be utilised, in at least ‘Area B', ‘Area
H’, ‘Area L' and potentially other areas. Further roads connections
to the Ballarat-Maryborough Road are however not considered
necessary or likely appropriate given the current structure of the
network.

Public Transport
Talbot is on the Maryborough to Melbourne train line which runs
via Ballarat. Current services only run twice a day on weekdays,

and once a day on the weekend, with only a coach service
available to Melbourne on a Sunday.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Two separate bus routes run though Talbot. One provides access
to Maryborough and Ballarat. The Mildura to Melbourne service
also runs through Talbot and is accessible to residents. Council
runs community bus services in the Shire, and there is an
opportunity for community bus services to Talbot to be enhanced.

There is an opportunity for Central Goldfields Shire to advocate
to the Department of Planning and Transport for more frequent
passenger train services, including both on weekends to facilitate
tourist arrivals (including to better suit the ‘day trip” market),

and weekdays to support work commuting to Ballarat and
Maryborough.

Walking and Cycling

\While the town has recently seen some footpath upgrades,
including the west side of Prince Alfred Street, there is an
opportunity for further improvements to footpaths and other
paths. A number of projects are identified in Council’s Walking
and Cycling Strategy which should form the basis for initial
improvements to footpaths and on/off road paths.

Completing a footpath along Fyffe Street between Scandanavian
Crescent and Ballarat Street to support a more direct formal
pedestrian link to the town centre from the Station should be
investigated.

The closure of a 110m section of Rowe Street between Barkly
Street and Chapman Street was identified in Council’s Integrated
Transport Strategy as a way to improve public open space and
make pedestrian movement safer. This action does not appear
appropriate given the functions served by the road.

Investigation into on-road marking of key pedestrian crossing
points should be undertaken, with a view to improving pedestrian
safety, and in particular student safety.

Improved pedestrian connectivity between the town and the
Recreation Reserve, along Camp Street and across key barriers
of Ballarat-Maryborough Road and Back Creek will need to be
provided. The design of these improvements should be prepared
by Transport Engineeing and Sustainable Transport Professionals.
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In newly developing areas of Talbot, new footpath infrastructure
should be funded and provided by development proponents,
and connected with existing footpaths, or where yet to be built
footpaths in existing areas would logically be built.

Two regional cycling trails, the Ballarat — Maryborough Heritage
Trail and the Talbot Heritage trail, pass through Talbot. There is an
opportunity to better identify the location of these trails by way

of on-road painted treatments to support the creation of safe
cycling corridors. Along Prince Alfred Street, and Camp Street this
could serve a dual purpose of providing a safer cycling corridor
for students from the School to the town centre and on to the
Recreation Reserve.

There is a lack of off-road walking/cycling trails in Talbot that
provide local residents and visitors with the opportunity to walk
or cycle to a local attraction. The provision of a ‘nature trail” along
Back Creek , suitable for walking and cycling, would help address
this deficiency. There would be a need to further explore access
and land tenure conditions to understand the potential for the
creek corridor to be utilised. (Refer to Community Infrastructure
section for relevant strategy and action in regard to the Back
Creek Nature Trail)

Future walking and cycling interventions in Talbot beyond those
already identified should be identified via future updates to
Council’s ITS and Cycling and Walking Strategy.

Railway Line Crossing Points

There are presently two railway line crossing points, one on
Ballarat-Maryborough Road and the other adjacent to the meeting
point of Scandanavian Crescent, Oxford Street and Bond Street.
This latter crossing should be reviewed to improve safety and
pedestrian/cycling access. Consultation with relevant authorities
is required to determine the functioning and safety of the Ballarat-
Maryborough Road crossing.

In the longer term, a new connection point for vehicles, pedestrian
and cyclists across the railway line in a position generally north of
the Railway Station could be explored, but it is not considered to
be urgently needed.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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05.1

05.2

05.3

S5.1

S5.2

S5.3

S5.4

S5.5

S5.6

S5.7

S5.8

S5.9

$5.10

S5.11

$5.12

To provide a safe transportation network for all users.

To prioritise sustainable transport across the
township.

To improve pedestrian and cyclist connectivity
between key community infrastructure across the
township.

Provide on-road marking of key pedestrian crossing
points with a view to improving pedestrian safety, and
in particular student safety.

Improve the maintenance of unsealed roads and
laneways.

Upgrade Majorca Road and Oxford Street to dual lane.

Enhance Community Bus Services to better serve
Talbot.

Utilise unbuilt roads in road reserves in areas within
the township to inform the new road network, but

avoid new connections to Ballarat-Maryborough Road.

Require the provision of an appropriate movement
network and access arrangement in the design of
new subdivisions.

Better identify the location of cycling tourist trails
through the town by way of on-road painted
treatments, and support the creation of safe cycling
corridors.

Review the functioning and safety of the railway
crossing adjcaent to the meeting point of
Scandanavian Crescent, Oxford and Bond Streets.

Investigate the potential for second crossing of the
train ling, in a location generally north of the Station.

Increase the frequency of passenger train services.

Expand the footpath and on-road/off-road path
network, drawing on the projects identified for
completion in Council's Walking and Cycling Strategy,
and investigate completing a footpath between
Scandanavian Crescent and Ballarat Street, along
Fyffe Street.

Make ongoing improvements to the movement
network as the town develops further.
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$5.13

$5.14

A5.1

A5.2

A5.3

A5.4

A5.5

A5.6

A5.7

A5.8

A5.9

A5.10

A5.11

A5.12

Better connect the Town Centre with the Recreation
Reserve

Support movement along Back Creek through the
creation of a nature trail, with safely designed links
back to the core township area.

Investigate and deliver on-road marking of key
pedestrian crossing points, with a view to improving
pedestrian safety, and in particular student safety.

Deliver an improved maintenance regime for the
unsealed roads and laneways in Talbot.

Deliver the upgrading of Majorca Road and Oxford
Street to dual lane.

Investigate how community bus services can be
enhanced to better serve Talbot.

Use the Development Plan Overlay Schedule in
identified areas to ensure that proponents provide
an appropriate movement network and access
arrangements in new subdivisions, including delivery
of pedestrian and cycling infrastructure.

Deliver on-road painted treatments of cycling tourist
trails in the town, and create safe cycling corridors.

Undertake a review of the functioning and safety of
the railway crossing (Scandinavian Crescent/ Bond
Street), and implement recommendations.

In the longer term, investigate the potential for an
additional crossing of the train ling, in a location
generally north of the Train Station.

Advocate to the Department of Transport and Planning
for more frequent passenger train services.

Implement the footpath and on-road/off-road path
projects identified for completion in Council’s Walking
and Cycling Strategy, and investigate completion of a
footpath between Scandinavian Crescent and Ballarat
Street, along Fyffe Street.

Future walking and cycling interventions in Talbot
beyond those already identified, or delivered via new
development, should be identified via future updates
to Council's ITS and Cycling and Walking Strategy.

Ensure the working group established in relation
to the nature trail considers the inclusion of safely
designed links back to the core Township area.
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4.7 Community Infrastructure

Open Space and Recreation

Talbot contains a variety of recreation facilities and a mix of active
and lower-order passive open spaces.

Active recreation facilities and open spaces include the Talbot
Recreation Reserve (for Football, Cricket, Netball) with Basketball
Stadium, Lawn Bowling Club, an Outdoor Swimming Pool, Tennis
Club, and the 18 hole Talbot Golf Club.

Specifically in relation to suitability of the distribution and the
level of provision of Active Open Space reserves in the township,
the overall size of the Recreation Reserve (approx. 2.7ha) and its
removed location relative to the township, is acceptable in this
rural context.

A masterplanning process invalving key users and the community
should be undertaken in relation to the Talbot Recreation Reserve
to determine the type of upgrades potentially needed.

Local passive open spaces within the township include Pioneer
Reserve, Talbot Soldiers Memorial Park and Talbot Ornamental
Plantation. The community garden on Scandanavian Crescent is
also an important space within the township.

Pioneer Reserve has been provided with a playground, exercise
station, shelter and public toilets.

There is an opportunity to improve the design of both the Talbot
Soldiers Memarial Park and Talbot Ornamental Plantation through
a masterplanning process.

The provision of a ‘nature trail” along Back Creek (also discussed
in the movement sub-section), would help address the specific
a lack of recreational off-road walking/cycling trails across the
township. Further investigation will be necessary in relation to
Aboriginal cultural heritage sensitivity and land access along the
corridor.

Updated flood mapping across Talbot identifies an area at the
northern edge of the township near Potters Lane is subject to
flooding. The creation of a new open space corridor is proposed in
and around this area, with the opportunity for this corridor to link
with the Back Creek corridor further west.

WU Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Community Facilities

Community facilities within Talbot include the existing Talbot
Primary School on Rowe Street, the Kindegarten on Fyffe Street,
the town hall and ANA Hall, and the Talbot Library (limited opening
hours). A general practioner was operating in the township but
has recently reverted to telehealth.

The Talbot community must travel to Maryborough for some
services, including a secondary education faciltities (Maryborough
Education Centre or Highview), a maternal and child health centre
and public library with standard opening hours.

Based on an assessment of the existing level of provision of
community facilities, additional community facilities are not
considered to be needed this time. The level of provision relative
to level of community need will however require monitoring and
regular review as the population of the town increases, and
community needs potentially evolve.
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06.1

06.2

S6.1

S6.2

S6.3

S6.4

S6.5

To support a range of well located and accessible
community facilities that meet the needs of the
community.

To provide a high-quality open space network that
provides for a range of active and passive recreational
opportunities.

Support the development and upgrading of
community facilities, in response to future community
needs.

Support the development of a new open space
corridor near Potters Lane, and explore linkages
between that corridor and Back Creek. Ensure that the
design of this open space corridor is acceptable from
a bushfire risk perspective.

Investigate the provision and design of a nature trail
along Back Creek, with appropriate linkages back to
the township.

Support the master planning of Talbot Recreation
Reserve

Support the master planning of the Talbot Soldiers
Memorial Reserve and Talbot Ornamental Plantation.

A6.1

A6.2

A6.3

A6.4

A6.5

A6.6

Monitor and review community needs with respect to
community facilities and services.

|dentify the new northern open space corridor in
relevant planning controls to apply to the proposed
corridor location. A Development Plan Overlay is
recommended across the Areas where the open
space corridor is proposed.

Explore whether public acquisition may be necessary
to facilitate the delivery of the northern open space
carridor.

Establish a working group to investigate and design
the Nature Trail along Back Creek.

Undertake a master planning process for the Talbot
Recreation Reserve.

Undertake master planning processes for the Talbot
Soliders Memorial Park and the Talbot Ornamental
Plantation.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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4.8 Environment & Landscape

Landscape Setting

Talbot is located on the lands of the Dja Dja Wurring people, who
have shaped the landscape and cared for Country for thousands
of years.

It is within the ‘Goldfields" bioregion, although it is noted that
the boundary with the Victorian Volcanic Plain bioregion is close
by, to the east of the township. Talbot is also within the broader
Maryborough — Paddy Ranges Landscape, which is a ‘focus
landscape’ for on-ground biodiversity conservation action in
Victoria.

Biodiversity

A desktop review using State Government online mapping (2005
records) indicates the presence of the following Ecological
vegetation classes (with bioregional conservation status) across
the Talbot area:

= EVC55 Plains Grassy Woodland (Endganered) — Some records to
the north-east of town.

= EVC68 Creekline Grassy Woodland (Endangered) — Located
along Back Creek.

= EVC76 Grassy Woodland/ Alluvial Terraces — Herb Rich
Woodland Mosaic (Endangered) — a record on Potters Lane to
the north of the town.

= EVC175 Grassy Woodland (Vulnerable) — Primarily located west
of Back Creek, including around the Recreation Reserve, and at
the Hard Hill Public Recreation Reserve, but with some areas to
the east, south and south-east of the town (including one area
on Fraser Street).

It is noted that a large area of EVC61 — Box Iron Forest (Depleted)
is located further west of Talbot at the Tunnel Hill Bushland
Reserve.

In regard to threatened fauna, VBA Species records include
previous record of a Whisked Tern and Little Eagle in the
township. Further south, and well out of the township, there are
records relating to the Golden Sun Moth, Black-eared Cuckoo, and
Southen Whiteface.

In regard to Threatened Flora, there is a considerably older record
of the Goldfield Boronia near Ballarat-Maryborough Road to the
north of town, and a general record of Lowly Greenhood that
covers part of the northern edge of town.

It is also noted that the Hard Hill Public Recreation Reserve,
located to the west of the Talbot Recreation Reserve, contains a
significant population of Spiny Rice-Flower (Pimelea spinescens
subsp. spinescens). This vegetation should be protected in

the planning scheme through the application of a Vegetation
Protection Overlay, as requested by Department of Environment
Land Water and Planning.

The Victorian Government’s biodiversity dataset (VaturePrint)
identifies the strategic biodiversity value of different areas across
the township, with the darker the colour indicating a higher value.
The values are shown below:

!

y
- ‘-’—"-Talbot
7|

Strategic Biodiversity Values (Naturekit, DEECA)

A desktop understanding of potential ecological values across the
township has been used in formulating the directions provided for
the areas of potential urban growth.

More detailed ecological assessments will be required in relation
to potential future growth areas ‘Area B'. ‘Area D" and ‘Area P’, and
some existing Township Zone areas, including at least ‘Area L' and
‘Area H'. Ecological Assessments should also be sought, where
necessary, for new development proposals within other existing
township areas.

This Structure Plan will seek to ensure the protection of the
significant ecological values of Talbot, as part of the town's
growth.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Vegetation in the Private Realm

The private gardens of Talbot are a defining feature of the
township. The plantings in these gardens make a significant
contribution to the landscape character of the town and likely
provide habitat for birds and insects. There are a significant
number of canopy trees on private lots which form the backdrop
to a number of historic buildings.

The Talbot Urban Design Guidelines include directions around
controls that may be needed in support of vegetation outcomes
in the private realm. Suggested performance criteria in the
guidelines include an sizeable envelope to support canopy growth
and the provision of clearance between trees and buildings.

A suggested principle is the retention of significant existing
vegetation or private property.

The Structure Plan directs that the suggested performance
criteria relating to vegetation from the guidelines be implemented
on a discretionary basis, as part of new design controls to protect
the character of the township.

Council will need to determine a definition of “significant”
existing vegetation as part of the formulation of these controls,
which should draw on commonly used thresholds across Local
Government. Significant existing vegetation should be protected
via planning controls or local laws.

The finalisation of the design controls should be subject to
review by a bushfire planning expert to ensure that risk is
not unacceptably raised in the township area given that the
core town is identified as a lower fuel area in bushfire risk
assessments.

Other Vegetation across the Township

Vegetation coverage should generally be increased across the
public realm in Talbot, to support cooling and provide habitat.
Increasing vegetation cover should be subject to ensuring any
new plantings are appropriate with respect to bushfire risk, and
the existing Tree Management Plan Agreeement with Powercor.

The Talbot Urban Design Guidelines (2016) include a list of
recommended street and park trees. This list can be utilised by
Council subject to review by a bushfire planning specialist and
Ecologist (in relation to the appropriateness of the peppercorn, an
environmental weed in some places, in the tree list).

Opportunities to increase vegetation cover on public open space
should be explored via proposed masterplanning processes for

the Soldiers Memaorial Park and Ornamental Plantation.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

The potential open space corridor proposed at the northern edge
of town presents another opportunity for new planting, however
it will be important to ensure that the landscaping adopted for
this open space is suitable in regard to bushfire risk.

The creation of Nature Trail along Back Creek may provide an
opportunity for ecological restoration activities.

Surrounding Landscape Views

A Significant Landscape Overlay (SLOZ - Talbot District Volcanic
Rises) applies to Mount Glasgow which is located approximately
5-5.5km to the south-east of town. Otherwise there are no
other areas indentified as ‘significant landscapes’ by SLO in the
immediate surrounds. Mount Greenock is a similar feature to
Mount Glasgow (i.e. a volcanic cone), and is located slightly
closer to Talbot, but is not identified with an SLO.

Maintaining view-lines to surrounding rural land and the more
distant forested areas is included as a principle within the Talbot
Urban Design Guidelines (2016). This principle should be reflected
as a consideration in either Design and Development Overlay
schedules to apply to township areas, and/or potentially included
in local palicy for Talbot.
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07.1

07.2

07.3

S7.1

S7.2

S7.3

S7.4

S7.5

S7.6

S1.7

S7.8

S7.9

$7.10

S7.11

$7.12

To protect the significant ecological values in and
around Talbot.

To increase tree canopy coverage across the town
to reduce the urban heat island effect and enhance
habitat available.

To support the retention and enhancement of the
landscape character across the township, and views
to the surrounding landscape.

Require ecological assessments in relation to potential
future growth areas of ‘Area B', ‘Area D" and ‘Area P,
and some existing Township Zone areas, including at
least ‘Area L' and ‘Area H'.

Seek ecological assessments from planning permit
applicants, where deemed necessary, within existing
township areas.

Ensure the proposed Nature Trail along Back Creek is
sensitive to EVCs and other ecological values present.

Explore the opportunity for ecological restoration
activities along Back Creek, as part of the trail design.

Ensure the protection of EVC areas across the
township, including in any new potential areas of
township expansion.

Ensure the master planning of the three reserves is
sensitive to EVCs and other ecological values present.

Explore increasing vegetation cover on existing open
space through master planning processes.

Encourage development to provide increased tree
cover and vegetated spaces, where bushfire risk is
not unacceptably increased.

Include the performance crtieria for vegetation in
Talbot Urban Design Guidelines in new planning
controls on a discretionary basis, and subject to
review by a bushfire planning expert.

Require the protection of Significant existing
vegetation via an appropriate mechanism.

Consider utilising the list of recommended street and
park trees across the township, subject to review by a
bushfire planning specialist and ecologist.

Seek to maintain view-lines to surrounding rural land
and more distant forested areas, where possible.

A7.1

A7.2

A7.3

A7.4

A7.5

A7.6

A1.7

A7.8

A7.9

A7.10

A7.11

A7.12

Ensure ecological assessments are carried out for
Area B, D and P to inform the feasibility of future
rezoning in those areas, and protect significant
ecological values. Ensure ecological assessments
are carried out for Area L and H to inform future
subdivision, and protect significant ecological values.

Ecological Assessments should be sought, where
necessary, for new development proposals within
other existing township areas. Protect significant
ecological values in these areas.

The working group established to investigate and
design the nature trail should ensure that the design is
sensitive to EVCs and other ecological values present,
and that opportunities for ecological restoration are
explored in the project.

Protect the significant population of Spiny Rice-Flower
in the planning scheme by applying a Vegetation
Protection Overlay.

Master plans for the three reserves should be
sensitive to EVCs and other ecological values present.

Ensure the stategy of increasing vegetation cover is
explored in the master planning processes for the
three reserves identified for master planning (subject
to review by a bushfire planning professional).

Ensure new design-focused planning controls
include the performance criteria for vegetation on a
discretionary basis.

Ensure that vegetation-related directions in the
design controls proposed for the township are subject
to review by a bushifre planning expert to ensure that
risk is not unacceptably raised in the township area.

Determine a definition of “significant” existing
vegetation as part of the formulation of design
controls to be implemented, and appropriate
mechansims by which to protect this vegetation
(planning scheme or local law)

Investigate utilising the list of recommended street
and park trees included in the Talbot UDG (2016).

Ensure that the ambition of maintaining view-lines to
surrounding rural land and the more distant forested
areas is reflected as a consideration in either the
DDO schedules to apply to township areas, and/or
potentially included in local policy for Talbot.

Implement objectives and strategies from this
element of the structure plan into the planning
scheme, where appropriate to do so.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd [
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4.9 Environmental Risks & Climate Change

Climate Change

The key impacts that may potentially be felt in Talbot under
different climate change scenarios revolve around increased heat
and bushfre risk, as well as changing patterns of rainfall, which
could have implications for flood risk. There are also likely to be
impacts on agriculture, but those are of less relevance to this
project.

Potential strategies to improve resilience to climate impacts in
Talbot include (but are not limited to) improvements to urban
tree cover in the public and private realm (subject to bushfire
risk assessment), water efficiency and re-use measures, and
appropriate permeability standards in new development. Note:
Most of the strategies and actions relating to sustainable building
design are located in the character/heritage/design section of this
structure plan.

Bushfire Risk

Talbot is located in a designated bushfire prone area. A Bushfire
Management Overlay applies generally to peripheral bushland and
forested areas, beyond the immediate agricultural surrounds. At
its nearest point, the BMO applies to the western edge of Hard
Hill Public Recreation Reserve and some Rural Living Zone areas to
the west/ south-west.

Kevin Hazell Bushfire Planning prepared a targeted bushfire
assessment for Talbot. This assessment has informed the
settlement planning discussed in section 4.2 of this report,
including the identification of areas potentially suitable for urban
development and growth.

Using the landscape typologies approach, different landscape
types were applied to the study area in the assessment.
Landscape Type 2 aligned with the central part of Talbot and its
immediate surrounds. This positions those areas at the middle
end of bushfire risk in Victoria. Landscape Type 3 aligned with
areas generally to the west of Ballarat- Maryborough Road and a
Rural Living Zone area just to the east of that road. This positions
those areas at the middle to higher end of bushfire risk in Victoria.

The assessment recommends that new growth and development
should be directed to land east of Ballarat-Maryborough Road, as
generally described as Landscape type 2 areas and shown in the
Bushfire assessment report. The bushfire assessment also makes
further recommendations in regard to interfaces with a bushfire
hazard, vegetation in completed development, perimter roads and
recognising lower fuel areas in decision making. Rhere is a need
for lower fuel areas not to be compromised over time based on
the protective benefit they provide to Talbot.

Flooding Risk

The extent of the existing Land Subject to Inundation Overlay
(LSIO1) that applies to land near Back Creek is considered
outdated and inaccurate.

A rapid flood mapping project was completed in 2020 which
covered the township and provided updated flood mapping based
on both 1% AEP (1 in 100) and 0.5% AEP (1 in 200) flood extents).
These updated extents are shown in the Figure on page 59.

An updated LSIO extent (using the 1% AEP probabiliy or as
determined by the floodplain management authority) will need to
be implemented into the planning scheme.

Erosion and Salinity Management

The entirety of the existing township and surrounding areas are
affected by the Salinity Management Overlay (SMO) and the
Erosion Management Overlay. The SMQO applies to areas which
are subject to saline ground water discharge or high ground water
recharge, and which may pose a threat to a variety of assets.
The EMO applies to areas where there is the potential for landslip
or other disturbances that may need to be considered as part

of any application for a permit. CGSC has an agreement with
DELWP regarding the application of standard conditions in place
of individual reporting requirements contained in the Overlays. No
further action is recommended.

Potential Contamination

\Where necessary, an investigation to determine the likelyhood

of potentially contaminated land may need to be undertaken,

in accordance with the Environment Protection Framework,
Planning and Environment Act 1987, and other components of the
regulatory framework relating to planning and contaminated land.

Waste Transfer Station and Former Landfill

Directions in regard to buffers from Transfer Station and former
Landfill site, and the need to potentially relocate the Transfer
station are discussed in the ‘Land Use’ section of this Structure
Plan. A relevant strategy and action is provided below.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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08.1

08.2

08.3

S8.1

S8.2

S8.3

S8.4

To recognise and respond appropriately to
environmental risks of flooding, bushfire,
contamination, erosion, and salinity

To encourage a climate resilient township that
responds to the increasing severity of environmental
risks

To recognise and protect human health and safety
from uses with potential adverse off-site impacts.

Avoid development in areas of flooding risk

In relation to bushfire risk:

= Direct development to lower bushfire risk locations,
generally described as landscape type 2 areas.

= New subdivisions (building envelopes) should be
setback from bushfire hazards for a distance no less
than that required to ensure exposure is less than
12.5kw of radiant heat.

= A bushfire hazard site assessment should be
prepared for development enabled by the Structure
Plan to confirm vegetation type, slope and final
setbacks.

= Clause 53.02 Bushfire Planning, Table 6 Vegetation
management requirements should be applied to
new lots for Accommodation which are larger
that 1,200sgm. Alternative hazard management
approaches can be developed to the satisfaction of
the relevant fire authority.

= Development should be separated from permanent
hazards by perimeter roads on grassland interfaces.

= Lower fuel areas should not be comprimised over
time based on the protective benefit they provide to
Talbot.

Support the provision of vegetation cover in the public
and private realm which reduces the urban heat island
effect, while not unacceptably increasing bushfire risk.

Encourage development and infrastructure to
be designed in a manner that supports climate
adaptation.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

S8.5

S8.6

S8.7

S8.8

S8.9

A8.1

A8.2

A8.3

A8.4

A8.5

A8.6

Ensure development does not contribute to an
increase in salinity or erosion.

Support the continued use of standard conditions
in place of individual reporting requirements for
applications in the EMO and SMO, where appropriate.

Avoid development in potentially contaminated areas

Review the location of the transfer station and
potentially relocate.

Ensure development is setback from uses which may
cause offence or unacceptable risk.

Update flood mapping within the planning scheme via
a planning scheme amendment.

Implement objectives and strategies from this
element of the structure plan into the planning
scheme, where appropriate to do so.

Ensure a bushfire plannng professional reviews any
new planning controls and design requirements,
including landscape requirements, to apply to Talbot.

Undertake investigations into the potential for land
contamination across the township where necessary,
and apply the Environmental Audit Overlay (EAQ) to
potentially contaminated sites where appropriate.

Investigate and confirm the EPA buffer requirements
to the Waste Transfer Station and former Landfill site.

Undertake a review of the location of the Waste
Transfer station and potentially relocate.
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4.10 Physical Services & Utilities

Overview

Ensuring the Structure Plan is consistent with the provision of
essential services to Talbot is important for coordinating service
provision strategies and for highlighting any required upgrades.

Talbot currently has no access to sewerage which is a widely
acknowledged constraint. Some septic systems across township
are also understood to be performing poorly. Sewerage system
design options are currently being prepared by Central Highlands
Water. The township area has access to potable water (provided
by Central Highlands Water) and electricity (Powercor).

Drainage, often consisting of open swales, has proven difficult

to maintain in some areas, and often becomes blocked.
Meanwhile the limited areas of pipe may not have the capacity to
accommodate additional flows.

Internet and mobile phone coverage is understood to be
inadequate across the township, and continued advocacy for
improved coverage and performance will be required. Improved
coverage has implications for economic development, and is
particularly important in the context of the recent increased
opportunities for those in the labour force to work from home.

Council also provides waste collection services to the township.
While there are stated aspirations to increase the provision

and rates of recycling in the township there is currently no
infrastructure to support these ambitions.

As also identified in the land use section of this plan, Talbot's
transfer station is currently located on public land to the north
east of the township. The location of this transfer station should
be reviewed, with potential relocation considered to avoid limiting
potential growth areas.

There will also be a need to ensure that developers of land in
identified growth areas and some areas within the township
provide a servicing plan as part of planning for development and
future subdivision.

How new growth areas will interact with and impact upon
existing drainage systems requires further investigation, and a
drainage plan for existing and growth areas of Talbot should be

prepared.

m Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd

Integrated Water Management (I\WM) and Water Sensitive Urban
Design (WSUD) Principles should be embedded into the design of
new infrastructure and future development.

A number of small townships across Victoria are beginning to
explore opportunities to generate renewable energy locally and
support this generation with community batteries. Community
batteries would provide a level of sufficiency which improves
the resilience of community in times of disasters/ hazard events.
Opportunities for Talbot to have sensitively located community
batteries should be explored.

Continued planning and ongoing liaison with service providers will
be required through the implementation of this Structure Plan.
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09.1

09.2

S9.1

S9.2

S9.3

S9.4

S9.5

S9.6

S9.7

S9.8

S9.9

S9.10

To ensure that essential services for water, sewerage,

electricity, drainage and telecommunications are
provided to the existing and future community in a
timely manner, while protecting the landscape and
township character of Talbot.

To ensure that IWM and WSUD principles are
embedded in the the provision of infrastructure and
design of new development.

Support the provision of sewerage to Talbot as
designated in a Sewerage Scheme/system design.

Support the undergrounding of services where
possible.

Support the development of a community battery in
Talbot.

Avoid sensitive development encroaching within the
buffer of a local Waste Water Treatment Plant, should
one be developed.

Improve the functioning of drainage in existing areas
and ensure the design of drainage systems in growth
areas considers potential impacts on drainage in
existing areas.

Require the preparation of a servicing plan in
Development Plan Overlay Schedules to be potentially
applied to identified areas, as designated in this
Structure Plan. Ensure it addresses how drainage and
essential services will be provided to development
within these areas.

Ensure new development is staged appropriately to
enable the orderly provision of services.

Require new development in the township to meet
urban stormwater best practice environmental
management guidance requirements.

Encourage the use of WSUD in new development and
the provision of new infrastrucutre.

Encourage the use of WM principles in new
development and the provision of new infrastructure.

A9.1

A9.2

A9.3

A9.4

A9.5

A9.6

Finalise the preparation of a Sewerage Scheme/
System Design for Talbot.

Ensure new DPO schedules to be applied to selected
areas includes a Servicing Plan.

Investigate the feasibility of developing a community
battery, and seek Government funding to support its
development.

Determine and apply a buffer around a local Waste
Water Treatment Plant, should one be developed.

Prepare a drainage plan for existing and growth areas
of Talbot.

Implement WM and WSUD requirements into
the planning scheme, as appropriate. Include in
new controls relating to Talbot, where appropriate,
otherwise explore changes to local planning policy.
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TALBOT DRAFT STRUCTURE PLAN

5.1 Structure Plan Implementation

This section outlines a plan to implement the various actions
identified through the Structure Plan, with key mechanisms,
responsibilities, and timing identified.

The implementation of the Structure Plan will require both
Planning Scheme Amendments to the Central Goldfields Shire
Planning Scheme and other actions to ensure the vision is
implemented.

The Structure plan will need to be adopted by Council and be
implemented via an amendment into Planning Scheme.

The Structure Plan will be implemented by:

= Planning Scheme Amendment: key changes to various
controls and policies of the Central Goldfields Shire Planning
Scheme.

= Further Investigation: there are a range of actions that
require further investigation to understand the implications
before a decision can be made.

= Advocacy Work: Council plays an active role in advocating
for various funds from State Government and other agencies
to contribute to projects across the shire.

= Council Work Program: Ongoing Council capital works and
strategic projects.

= Work by Others: Works and projects undertaken by Others.
Statutory Implementation

In terms of Planning Scheme Amendments, as identified in the
Implementation Table, the Structure Plan will involve changes
across the following aspects of the Central Goldfields Shire
Planning Scheme:

= Zones: the Structure Plan recommends a number of zoning

changes which will alter the statutory land use implications for

various parcels of land. Further investigations are required to
undertake a number of rezonings.

= Qverlays: the Structure Plan recommends the application of
some new overlays and the review and potential removal or

adjustment of some overalys. Further work may be required in

relation to some changes.

= Policy: changes to planning policy will ensure consistency
in Council decision making to ensure key objectives and
strategies of this document are considered.

The structure plan will require ongoing monitoring and review,
and should be reviewed every 3-5 years to ensure it remains
consistent with changes within the town, Councils local policies,
the Council Plan, and State and Regional level Planning Policy.

Such a review period will also identify any changes required in
response to new development proposals, shifts in residential
demand or need for additional retail floorspace.

It is recommended that the first review occur at 3 years, to
monitor and review the progress of key recommendations.

In particular the first review should assess the take up of land
for residential development, in order for Council to reveiw
development capacity in the township based on actual rates of
development that have been achieved after sewering of the town
or parts of the town.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd JGK]
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The tables below collates the key actions identified within this
document and assigns the following:

= Mechanism: how the action will be implemented.
= Responsibility: who is responsible for its implementation.

= Timing: whether it is a short term (0 to 5 years), medium
term (5 to 10 years), or long term action (10 years plus).

Action Mechanism Responsibility

Land Use

Undertake the following zone changes:

= Rezone the Commercial Town Centre
indicated on the Land Use Plan to C1Z.
Rezone remaining existing Township Short Term
Zone land to either a GRZ or NRZ.

In the medium term, consider rezoning
‘Area B’ to either the GRZ or NRZ if
appropriate subject to determing the
impacts of an EPA buffer from the
Landfill and Transfer Station, potential
relocation of the Transfer Station, and
further investigations including potential Medium Term
land contamination, ecology, and
bushfire risk.

In the longer term, consider rezoning
‘Area D' (RLZ part) to the GRZ, NRZ and/ i . . .
A1.1 or LDRZ if appropriate, subject to Zl?nnenr:ggngg?eme Central GOldfleldS Sh|re COUﬂCI|
determing the impacts of an EPA buffer
from the Landfill and Transfer Station,
potential relocation of the Transfer Long Term
Station, and further investigations
including potential land contamination,
ecology, and bushfire risk.

In the longer term, consider rezoning
‘Area P’ to the GRZ, NRZ and/or LDRZ if
appropriate, subject to further
investigations, including ecology and
bushfire risk, visual impact, and any
buffer distances needed from the Long Term
Timberyard on Biltons Lane. If the GRZ or
NRZ were contemplated, those zones
would likely be more appropriate for the
northern part of Area P, than the
remainder of Area P

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Mechanism

Responsibility

Land Use

A1.2

Undertake the following overlay changes:

= Apply a 400sgm minimum lot
subdivision size via a Design and
Development Overlay to the future
NRZ or GRZ areas, or potentially via a
Schedule to the NRZ.

Apply a Development Plan Overlay

to ‘Area L', and most of Area ‘H'" to
coordinate orderly development in these
areas, and require further assessments/
investigations.

= |n the medium term, consider applying
a Development Plan Overlay to ‘Area
B', to coordinate orderly development,
and require further assessments/
investigations.

In the longer term, consider applying
a Development Plan Overlay to ‘Area
D" and ‘Area P’, to coordinate orderly
development, and require further
assessments/ investigations.

Planning Scheme
Amendment

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

Short Term

Medium Term

Long Term

A13

In the longer term, review the growth
potential of ‘Area C’, and ‘Area N', as
required.

Further
Investigation

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Long Term

A1.4

Include the township boundary in Local
Policy to provide certainty and clarity for
future growth opportunities and to ensure
development avoids more sensitive
locations.

Planning Scheme
Amendment

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

A15

Review and expand the township
boundary to include growth areas if

Planning Scheme

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Medium - Long Term

Amendment
rezoned.
. . . ‘ Furthe_r _
A1.6 Rew_ew potential zoning anomalies and Inves'glgatlon/ Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
rectify where appropriate. Planning Scheme
Amendment
Review the zoning of Council-held F#\/rter;%r it
A1.7 | properties to ensure zoning is appropriate PIanning Scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
for current and potential future uses. Amend?nent

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd &)
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Action Mechanism Responsibility
Land Use
Undertake a Rural Land Strategy that Council Work
A1.8 |includes a review of RLZ areas around P Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
rogram
Talbot.
Monitor the rate of development after the _
A1.9 | Pprovision of sewerage infrastructure. bl bk Central Goldfields Shire Council | oor Term
: Program (+ongoing)
Include relevant objectives and strategies
pr g | e seilie gl B ermeni e Planning Scheme | . ival Goldfields Shire Council | Short Term
local policy relating to Talbot, where Amendment
appropraite.

Action Mechanism Responsibility
Housing Choice, Diversity & Affordability
Advocate for the funding of affordable
housing, in Talbot, supported by findings ' ' ' Short Term
A2.1 from more detailed analysis of Affordable Advocacy Work Central Goldfields Shire Council (+-ongoing)
Housing Needs.
Explore opportunities to use underutilised | Further ] ] ] Short Term
A22 Council land to provide affordable housing. | Investigation Central Goldfields Shire Counci (+ongoing)
Include relevant objectives and strategies Planning Scheme
A2.3 | from this element in a local policy relating A g Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
: mendment
to Talbot, where appropriate.

E Hansen
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Action

Character, Heritage & Design

Mechanism

Responsibility

A3.1

Prepare Heritage Design Guidelines

for H0208 and review the extent of

the existing boundaries of the heritage
overlay. Implement the Heritage Design
Guidelines and an updated H0208 extent
into the Central Goldfields Planning
Scheme.

Planning Scheme
Amendment

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

A3.2

Consider ‘scheduling-out” solar energy
system controls in the Heritage Overlay
Schedule for HO208.

Planning Scheme
Amendment

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

A3.3

Submit identified places for inclusion on
the Victorian Heritage Register.

Advocacy Work

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

A3.4

Develop and apply new planning controls
to the township to ensure the design

of future development is sympathetic

to the township’s character. Use the
Talbot Urban Design Guidelines as a main
reference point. Implement the planning
controls into the planning scheme,
potentially via Design and Development
Overlay Schedules, or other tools if
necessary. Ensure local planning policy
includes content to support this aim, as
necessary.

Planning Scheme
Amendment

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

A3.5

Include the encouragement of ESD
measures or initiatives (including, but not
limited to):

- Energy efficiency
- Permeability & stormwater

- Water efficiency
- Waste Management
within any local policy or design focused

planning controls prepared for Talbot, as
appropriate.

Planning Scheme
Amendment

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

A3.6

Undertake low level buffer planting along
sections of Ballarat-Maryborough Road
(eastern side), subject to bushfire risk
review.

Advocacy Work/
Council Work
Program

Transport Victoria/ Central
Goldfields Shire Council

Short-Medium Term

A3.7

Undertake a review of existing entrance
treatments at key entrance gateways, in
accordance with the Talbot UDG (2016),
and in consultation with the community.
Deliver the improvements.

Council Work

Central Goldfields Shire Council

Short Term

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Action

Character, Heritage & Design

Mechanism

Responsibility

Owners.

Seek to incorporate educational and Further
interpretative signage in the design of the | Investigation/ . . .
A38 nature trail along Back Creek, subject to | Council Work Central Goldfields Shire Council Sl T2
consultation with Traditional Owners. Program
Develop a project to embed local
i : Further
Aboriginal language, design and names s iy
A3.9 |in public spaces across the township, 9 Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
. . : >, Council Work
subject to consultation with Traditional Program

Mechanism Responsibility

Tourism & Economic Development
E)gplore deyeloping complementary/

A4 ahg_ned an_olllary evept(s) to the markets Furthe.r . Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Te_rm
which avoid resourcing capacity Investigation (+ongoing)
constraints.

Investigate tourism opportunities where
_Talbot.is part of a trail or a touring concept

AL.2 in conjunction Wlth _othgr towns in the Furthe.r . Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Te_rm
Shire, or opportunities in the form of a Investigation (+ongoing)
unique arts and cultural event and small
festivals.

Contribute to the greater promotion of the Council Work
A4.3 Ballarat — Maryborough Heritage Trail and P Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
: . rogram
the Talbot Heritage trail.
Continue to support the bid for World

Ad.4 Heritage Listing of the Central Victorian Advocacy Work Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
Goldfields.

Explore the potential for rail-related

A4.5 tourism (including heritage trains, or the IFurthe.r : Central Goldfields Shire Council S Te_rm
ike). nvestigation (+ongoing)
Continue to advocate for further funding Short Term

A4.6 to restore and maintain heritage assets Advocacy Work Central Goldfields Shire Council .

. (+ongoing)
across the township.
Undertake a review of existing
promotional signage at key entrance
gateways, and wayfinding signage across Council Work

A4.7 the township in accordance with the Proaram Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term
Talbot Urban Design Guidelines (2016) g
and in consultation with the community.

Deliver the improvements.
Im_plement objectives and strategi_es from _

A48 this e_Iement of the structure plan into the | Planning Scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
planning scheme, where appropriate to Amendment
do so.

m Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Access and Movement

Mechanism

Responsibility

Investigate and deliver on-road marking Further

A5.1 of key pgdestngn crossing points, with a Investl.gatlon/ Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Te.rm
view to improving pedestrian safety, and | Council Work (++ongoing)
in particular student safety. Program

A5.2 Deliver an improved maintenance regime | Council Work Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Te.rm
for the unsealed roads and laneways. Program (+ongoing)

. : : Council Work : : :
Deliver the upgrading of Majorca Road Central Goldfields Shire Council/

s and Oxford Street to dual lane. SE[(;]%rra;m/ Work By Potentially Others Long Term

A5.4 e IgaTE oL ERTITIE B SERes Furthe_r , Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term
can be enhanced to better serve Talbot. Investigation
Use the Development Plan Overlay
Schedule in identified areas to ensure
that proponents provide an appropriate :

A5.5 movement network and access Sl By Central Goldfields Shire Council S el

. . Amendment (+ongoing)
arrangements in the design of new
subdivisions, including delivery of
pedestrian and cycling infrastructure.
Deliver on-road painted treatments of Council Work

A5.6 cycling tourist trails in town, and create Program Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term
safe cycling corridors. g
Undertake a review of the functioning
and safety of the railway crossing Further . . .

L) (Scandinavian Crescent/Bond Street), and | Investigation Central Goldriglas shire Louncil SfiortTerm
implement recommendations.

In the longer term, investigate the

A5.8 pot.en.nal fpr an addlmonal enualng i e Furthe.r . Central Goldfields Shire Council Long Term
train line, in a location generally north of | Investigation
the train station.

A5.9 ALELE o DTP for.more [EBLEL Advocacy Work Central Goldfields Shire Council Sl Te.rm
passenger train services. (+ongoing)
Implement the fo_otpat_h and _on—road/
oot pt s et for, | ot v I |

A5.10 , , X Program/ Further | Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term
Strategy, and investigate completion of a Investigation
footpath between Scandinvian Crescent g
and Ballarat Street, along Fyffe Street.

Future walking and cycling interventions in
Talbot beyond those already identified, or Council Work

A5.11 | delivered via new development, should be P Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term
S e " rogram
identified via future updates to Council's
ITS and Cycling and Walking Strategy.

Ensure the working group established in
relation to the nature trail considers the Further . . .
nli inclusion of safely designed links back to | Investigation et Cslaielits el el St T

the core township area.
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Action Mechanism Responsibility
Community Infrastructure
Monitor and review community needs
A6.1 with respect to community facilities and Furthe.r : Central Goldfields Shire Council S Te.rm
] Investigation (-+ongoing)
SErvices.
|dentify the new northern open space
corridor in relevant planning controls
A6.2 0 ap.ply to the proposed corridor . Planning Scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
location. A Development Plan Overlay is | Amendment
recommended across the Areas where
the open space corridor is proposed.
Explore whether public acquisition may be Further
A6.3 necessary to facilitate the delivery of the | P Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
. nvestigation
northern open space corridor.
Establish a working group to investigate Council Work
A6.4 and design the Nature Trail along Back P Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
rogram
Creek.
pg5 | ndertake amaster planning process for | Council Work | ooy o) Gofields Shire Council | Short-Medium Term
the Talbot Recreation Reserve. Program
Undertake master planning processes for Council Work
A6.6 the Talbot Soliders Memorial Park and the P Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term
. rogram
Talbot Ornamental Plantation.

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Action Mechanism Responsibility

Environment & Landscape

Ensure ecological assessments are
carried out for Area B, D and P to inform
the feasibility of future rezoning in those
areas, and protect significant ecological | Further Propanent & Central Goldfields Short Term- Long
values. Ensure ecological assessments Investigation Shire Council Term

are carried out for Area L and H to inform
future subdivision in those areas, and
protect significant ecological values.

A7

Ecological Assessments should be sought,
where necessary, for new development

A7.2 s e : Further Proponent & Central Goldfields Short Term- Long
. proposals within other existing township Investigation Shire Council Term
areas. Protect significant ecological values g
in these areas.
The working group established to
investigate and design the nature trail
should ensure that the design is sensitive Council Work
A7.3 to EVCs and other ecological values Program Central Goldfields Shire Council | Short-Medium Term

present, and that opportunities for
ecological restoration are explored in the
project.

Protect the significant population of Spiny
Al.4 Rice-Flower in the planning scheme by

ARl Sensrie Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term

applying a Vegetation Protection Overlay. AT,
Master plans for the three reserves should Council Work
A1.5 be sensitive to EVCs and other ecological Program Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term

values present.

Ensure the strategy of increasing
vegetation cover is explored in the
master planning processes for the three | Council Work
reserves identifed for master planning Program
(subject to review by a bushfire planning
professional).

A7.6 Central Goldfields Shire Council Short-Medium Term

Ensure new design-focused planning
A71.1 controls include the performance criteria
for vegetation on a discretionary basis.

Planning Scheme

Amendmant Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term

Ensure that vegetation-related directions
in the design controls proposed for the
township are subject to review by a Further
bushfire planning expert, to ensure that Investigation
risk is not unnaceptably raised in the
township area.

A7.8 Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term

Environment & Landscape Actions Continued over page...
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Environment & Landscape

Mechanism

Responsibility

Determine a definition of “significant”
existing vegetation as part of the

planning scheme, where appropriate to
do so.

Amendment

A7.9 forr_nulann IR controls. o Furthe_r . Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
be implemented, and appropriate Investigation
mechanisms by which to protect this
vegetation (planning scheme or local law).
Investigate utilising the list of Furth
A7.10 | recommended street and park trees I#Jtes?irgation Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
included in the Talbot UDG (2016).
Ensure that the ambition of maintaining
view-lines to surrounding rural land
and the more distant forested areas is .
A7.11 | reflected as a consideration in either DDO Planning scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council | Short Term
: Amendment
schedules to apply to township areas,
and/or potentially included in local policy
for Talbot.
Implement objectives and strategies from
A7.12 this element of the structure plan into the | Planning Scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd
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Mechanism

Responsibility

Environmental Risks & Climate Change

Update flood mapping within the planning

Planning Scheme

A8.1 : . Amendment/ Work | NCCMA Short Term
scheme via planning scheme amendment.

By Others
Implement objectives and strategies form

A8.2 this e]ement of the structure plan into the | Planning Scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
planning scheme, where appropriate to Amendment
do so.

Engure a bushfire plarm.ng professional Furthe.r .

A8.3 reviews any new planmng C_ontrols and Inves’qgatlon/ Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term- Long
design requirements, including landscape | Planning Scheme Term
requirements, to apply to Talbot. Amendment
Undertake investigations into the
potential for land contamination across Further
the township where necessary, and apply | Investigation/ : : : Short Term- Long

As.4 the Environmental Audit Overlay (EAQ) Planning Scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council Term
to potentially contaminated sites where Amendment
appropriate.

Investigate and confirm the EPA buffer Further
A8.5 requirements to the Waste Transfer | - Central Goldfields Shire Council | Short Term
3 M e nvestigation
Station and former Landfill site
Undertake a review of the location of the | Further ] : .
= transfer station and potentially relocate. | Investigation bl b el Sl bl it T

Action

Mechanism

Responsibility

Physical Services & Utilities

Finalise the preparation of a Sewerage

A9.1 Scheme/System Design for Talbot Work by Others Central Highlands Water Short Term
Ensure new DPO schedules to be applied :
A9.2 | to selected areas includes a Servicing ilanmgg Scheme Central Goldfields Shire Council %hort e Lang
Plan. mendment erm
Investigate the feasibility of developing a ,
A9.3 | community battery, and seek Government r#\/rg;%r il Central Goldfields Shire Council %&r}t [ealn
funding to support its development. g
Determine and apply a buffer around Further
A9.4 | alocal Waste Water Treatment Plant, Investigation Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term
should one be developed. g
A9.5 Prepare a drainage plan for existing and Council Work Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term- Medium
growth areas of Talbot. Program Term
Implement WM and WSUD requirements
into the planning scheme, as appropriate. Planning Scheme
A9.6 | Include in new controls relating to Talbot g Central Goldfields Shire Council Short Term

where appropriate, otherwise explore
changes to local planning policy.

Amendment

Hansen Partnership Pty Ltd JK]
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8.8.2 TALBOT FUTURES

Talbot Futures
Vision Report

utlined here is the people

of Talbot’s Vision* for

the future of the township

along with the 3 Jobs,

4 Archetypes and 5
Strengths* of Talbot. Considered together
these form a key strategic direction for
Talbot.

The Vision captures the town's ambitions
and priorities and draws a picture of a
shared future.

The 3 jobs capture the key functions of
the township, both tangible and intangi-
ble. These are the services or roles that are
primary reasons that people choose to live,

“People in small
towns, much
more than in
cities, share a
destiny.”

- Richard Russo

shop or invest in Talbot.

The archetypes map the characteristics

and personality types that shape the town;
most residents of Talbot township share
motivations and values with one or multiple
archetypes.

The 5 Strengths articulate the qualities that
make Talbot Talbot and are essential for
continuity of Talbot’s identity and that enable
Talbot to meet the needs of its community.

Think of these as a guide and a touchstone
for day-to-day decision making. These
should hold true for the better part of the
next decade. None of the strengths can be
lost without risking continuity in Talbot’s
function and identity, however it’s possible
that new jobs, archetypes or strengths may
emerge which should be added to the mix.

* These are still in draft form and may evolve or
change slightly during the feedback process

Function & Identity
SHET L

Social and Economic

Inclusion of Older People

Support for Personal
Expression

Cultural & Historical
Reproduction & Continuity

4 Archetypes

Salt of Earth
The Story Tellers
The Protectors

The Passionate Amateurs

5 Core
Strengths

Refuge
Community Heart
Custodians

Beauty to Share

In Nature, Under Stars

5 Core Strengths of
Talbot Township

1. Refuge

A place to slow down, age in place, find peace and quiet and
meaningful face to face connections. A place for gardening,
reading and reflection. A place where you can stand in the
middle of a street and have a chat with a neighbour. A place
to enjoy retirement/semi-retirement and the third age.

2. Community Heart

Busy and generous locals who pitch in and invest time in
their community and each other, seeing the local footy team,
belonging to a club/committee, participating in outdoor
exercise. Cuppas at each other's houses, evening walks, giv-
ing your neighbour a lift to a medical appointment, taking
initiative and pride in place.

3. Custodians

A town that has embraced the legacy of the Gold Rush

and taken on the role of caretakers in its complexity and
fullness. Locals volunteering to run museums, restore an-
tique machinery, sweep out bluestone drains, and maintain,
restore and register heritage buildings. Despite the challeng-
es of declining infrastructure and insufficient preservation
mechanisms, locals remain steady in their mission to keep
history alive. Multi generations of families growing up in
Talbot with deep connections to its past and wishing to pass
on the stories and legacies to a new generation.

4. Beauty to Share

Home to potters, artists, curators, crafters, artisans and
ornamental gardeners. A place of collaboration, creativity,
community gardens at the centre of town, open garden events,
Christmas lights festivals, free book racks and planter boxes
on the street.

5. In Nature, Under Stars

Cradled by bushland reserves , under big skies, a perfect
spot for stargazing, plenty of space, uninterrupted sightlines,
views of the Pyrenees, bushwalking, Back Creek.

Talbot Futures Community Vision

Talbot offers a peaceful respite from city life. The
community is growing slowly and steadily, with
visitors and new residents enjoying the personality,
charm, and history of the town. Locals both new and
old put down deep roots, know their neighbours and

have a strong sense of pride in place.

The town has everything you need for a com-
Jortable life including sewerage, local doctors, a
pharmacy, a choice of places to eat, a small inde-
pendently run supermarket and a thriving monthly mar-
ket. Local employment is limited; most locals commute
or drive to nearby towns to work using regular public
transport services or they take advantage of improved

internet and phone connection to work remotely.

Walking around the township, you will discover
its historic core with small houses, both new
and old, knitted together tightly on small original
lots that extend the look & feel of Scandina-

vian Crescent. Larger surrounding properties in
the township have spacious gardens with wide
views of big skies, sunsets and the landscape.
Contemporary homes and well-preserved historic
architecture strike a sensitive balance between

past and present.

“It kind of feels like one big
community working and
playing together all day!”

- Talbot Local

Both young families and those looking to enjoy
retirement will find a welcoming and secure
place to call home in Talbot. It has a thriving
kindergarten and primary school and accessi-

ble housing for people on fixed or lower
incomes. Older residents are included
socially & economically and the town has high
walkability with many targeted community programs
for both the young and old alike. It also boasts ded-
icated housing with universal design that allows

residents to age in place.

Full of trees & birds, Talbot is known for its
beautiful gardens and landscapes, with shady streets,
community projects and green backyards. It is sur-
rounded by farmland & natural iron-bark and grassy
woodland. It is @ place of beautiful journeys,
with forest paths, cobblestone lanes & myriad walking

& cycling paths.

Talbot tells the stories of its past and present;
celebrating the living culture of the Dja Dja Wurrung peo-
ple and preserving its Gold Rush past. Making a home in
Talbot is an invitation to be a part of living his-

tory, and join a friendly, well-knit community.

“My Talbot is a quiet
community where |
feel at home and | can
wear my gumboots to
the Post Office”

- Local
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About the project

he 5 Key Strengths of Talbot
township and the Vision for
the future captured in this
document have emerged from
the Talbot Futures project
which includes investigations into sewerage
upgrades and a new Structure Plan and is
led by Central Goldfields Shire Council
and delivered by Hansen Partnership,
economists SGS and urban strategists and
place-based consultants Hello City.

Talbot Futures is supported by the Victorian
Government through the Living Regions
Living Suburbs fund and it was launched in
October 2022.

About Talbot

Talbot is a small town located on the
traditional lands of the Djaara or Dja Dja
Wurrung people about 2 hours drive north-
west of Melbourne. Situated in the Victorian
Goldfields region, Talbot's history is inter-
twined with the Victorian Gold Rush of the
mid-19th century, which shaped the town's
architecture, identity, and economy.

As the gold prospectors moved on, Talbot's
population steadily decreased, and it is

now home to 452 residents, the majority of
whom are over 50 and some of whom use
the township as a second home on week-
ends. Talbot has a legacy of historical build-
ings, shop fronts, streets and subdivided lots
much larger than is typical for a town of its
size with many of the shops and historical
buildings now private residential properties.

Small and peaceful, Talbot has easy access
via road and train to neighbouring towns and
cities, including Ballarat, and Maryborough.
It’s home to a cafe, a pub, an antique store,
a gift store and a few boutique second hand
book stores as well as a popular monthly
Market. The Talbot Post Office fills some of
the retail gaps providing multiple services
to the community including operating as a
convenience store, newsagent and visitor
information centre.

Neighbouring towns include Maryborough,
Clunes, Amherst, Majorca, Carisbrook,
Lexton and Avoca. The township also serves
as a centre for a district of smaller locations
including Daisy Hill, Red Lion, Mt. Glasgow,
Craigie and Caralulup.

Research &

Engagement

More than 12% of the population of Talbot
have taken part in the conversation to date
100+ exchanges, and 50+ individual par-
ticipants. Locals were challenged to work
through difficult trade-offs, tackle thorny
problems and do some open-ended creative
dreaming and planning for their best possi-
ble future Talbot.

For more detail on the process and what the
people of Talbot have had to say, see the

Talbot Township Function and Identity Study.

Key Research Insights

Key community priorities include;

*  maintaining strong social networks

* slow growth

* increased demographics of families and
young people

e improved mobile and internet service

e  ensuring new development matches the
look and feel of the heritage buildings

e atown centre with denser built form,
strong township identity & increased
activity including food and beverage
choices, pharmacy, GP and an indepen-
dent supermarket

Talbot Futures
Generator Outputs

Participants were asked to make a series of
decisions and trade-offs around both strate-
gic and day-to-day aspects of life in Talbot.

Community Talbot: a town with strong social
networks and a community feel

Township Talbot: a Talbot town centre with
denser built form, strong township identity &
increased activity

Sustainable Talbot: a town which grows at a
steady pace and minimises negative impacts
on the environment and resources

Expanded Talbot: a town that relies on
resources outside the town boundary, and is
car dependent

Inclusive Talbot: a town which prioritises
fairness, equality & social cohesion

Creative Talbot: a place that embraces and
supports innovation, learning, creativity &
personal expression

Competitive Talbot: a fast growing town and
economy where businesses have a strong
voice

Small Talbot: a quiet, small town with slow
growth & a strong focus on history

Healthy Talbot: a town where there are ex-
ceptional levels of health & wellbeing

Creative Talbot 7%
Competitive Talbot 6%
Small Talbot 2%
Healthy Talbot 1%

Community Talbot

Inclusive
Talbot

12%

Expanded
Talbot

13%

22%

Township Talbot
19%

Sustainable

Talbot
17%

T ﬂd_“-‘-&g‘_-__.

Talking Sewerage

Most respondents believe that Talbot needs

Case Study: Newstead, Vic

Newstead is a small but vibrant town with a strong sense of com-
munity whose economy is mostly based on agriculture and tourism.
With a population of only 700 people it is home to a main street of
well maintained Gold Rush era buildings operating as retail as well
as a boutique music festival and an arts hub located in the old train
station. Although small it has retained a healthy number of businesses
and services including a post office, bakery, pub, cafes, community
centre, supermarket, a butchers and gift and fashion retail.

a sewerage upgrade, only 2 respondents

were opposed.

Those in favour objected to the current smell
of blocked drains and septic smells, and want-
ed to see increased enviro sustainability and

development and growth.

While the vast majority of participants firmly
support sewerage upgrades, it is possible that
objections will emerge once specific sewerage
design options and more information on the

implications of these are available.

The following concerns and questions were

raised by residents who were both for and

against a sewerage upgrade;

cost of initial connection

Case Study: Violet Town Markets

The small community of Violet Town, Victoria, has been success-
fully running one of Victoria's best loved Community Markets since
1978 despite having a population of only 1,100 people. The town's
monthly community market has become a major attraction for both
locals and tourists alike, with thousands of visitors flocking to the
market each month to shop at one of its over 300 stalls. The market
is run by volunteers, and all profits go towards supporting the local
community. Visitors are encouraged to make a weekend of it with
multiple accommodation options in town, a country pub, takeaway,
as well as a wine bar and restaurant about to open doors in a histor-
ic mainstreet pub.

damage to gardens during installation

ongoing cost of being connected particu-

larly for residents on a fixed income
increase in rates
locations of settling ponds and tanks

general disruption during installation
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PRIVACY & CONFIDENTIALITY

Hello City does from time to time collect personally identifiable
and confidential information. We meet our responsibilities under
the Victorian Privacy Act 1988 and comply with the Australian
Privacy Principles 2014. Our professional practice is guided by
the Australian Market Research Association Code of Conduct.

CONSULTATION

Hello City takes all reasonable steps to ensure the accuracy

and authenticity of the information provided. We take our
responsibility to present the views of participants accurately
seriously however we cannot be accountable for the authenticity
of information provide